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ATTACHMENT F 

Future Capital Requiremente and Resources 

Contractual Obligations 

The following table shows the contractual obligations of Integrys Energy Group, including its subsidiaries, 
as of December 31,2009. 

jMiUions) 
Total Amounte 

Committed 

Paymente Due By Period 

2010 
2011 to 

2012 
2013 to 

2014 
2015 and 

Thereafter 

(2) 

Long-tenn debt principal and interest 
payments *̂ * 

Operating lease obligations 
Commodity purchase obligations 
Purchase orders *̂^ 
Pension and other postretirement 

funding obligations ^̂^ 

3,580.2 
68.4 

5.735.6 
515.3 

683.4 

$ 254.4 
11.6 

2,399.9 
514.1 

103.3 

$ 942.3 
19.6 

1,858.0 
1.2 

267.4 

571.8 
13.6 

689.8 

138.1 

$1,811.7 
23.6 

787.9 

174.6 
Total contractual cash obligations $10.582.9 $3.283.3 $3,088.5 $1.413.3 $2,797.8 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

Represents bonds issued, notes issued, and loans made to Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries. Integrys 
Energy Group records all principal obligations on the balance sheet. For purposes of tills table, it is assumed 
that the current interest rates on variable rate debt will remain in effect until the debt matures. 

Energy supply contracts at Integrys Energy Services included as part of commodity purchase obligations are 
generally entered into to meet obligations to deliver energy to customers. The utility subsidiaries expect to 
recover the coste of their contracts in future customer rates. 

Includes obligations related to nomiai business operations and large constmction obligations. 

*'** Obligations for pension and other postretirement benefit plans, other than the Integrys Energy Group Retirement 
Plan, cannot be estimated beyond 2012. 

The table above does not refiect any payments related to the manufactured gas plant remediation liability 
of $657.7 million at December 31, 2009, as the amount and timing of paymente are uncertain, integrys 
Energy Group anticipates incurring costs annually to remediate these sites, but management believes 
that any coste incurred for environmental activities relating to former manufactured gas ptant operations 
that are not recoverable through contributions from other entities or from insurance carriers have been 
prudentiy incun-ed and are, therefore, recoverable through rates for WPS, MGU, PGL. and NSG. See 
Note 16, "Commitments and Contingencies," for more infonnation about environmental liabilities. In 
addition, the table does not reflect any payments for the December 31, 2009, liability related to uncertain 
tax positions, as the amount and timing of payments are uncertain. See Note 15, "income Taxes" for 
more information about this liability. 

-60-
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Capital Requirements 

Estimated constmction expenditures by company for the three-year period 2010 through 2012 are listed 
below. 

(MiUions) 
WPS 

Environmental projects $ 164.1 
Electric and natural gas distribution projects 150.9 
Electric and natural gas delivery and customer service projects 59.1 
Other projects 108.0 

UPPCO 
Repairs and safaty measures at hydroelectric facilities 37.3 
Other projects 28.4 

MGU 
Natural gas pipe distribution system, underground natural gas storage facilities, and 

other projects 29.8 

MERC 
Natural gas pipe distribution system and other projects 48.5 

PGL 
Natural gas pipe distribution system, underground natural gas storage facilities, and 

other projects * 481.1 

NSG 
Natural gas pipe distribution system and other projects 45.9 

Integrys Energy Services 
Solar and other projects 88.9 

IBS 
Corporate sen/ices infrastmcture projects 53.7 

Total capital expenditures $1,295.7 

** Includes approximately $114 million of expenditures related to the accelerated replacement of cast iron mains at 
PGL in 2011 and 2012. On January 21. 2010, the ICC approved a rider mechanism to allow PGL to recover tiie 
incremental cost of an accelerated natural gas main replacement program. See Note 24, "Regulatory 
Environment," for more information. 

integrys Energy Group expects to provide additional capitat contributions to ATC (not included in the 
above table) of approximately $7 million in 2010, $8 million in 2011, and $7 million in 2012. 

All projected capital and investinent expenditures are subject to periodic review and may vary signiflcantiy 
from the estimates depending on a number of factors, including, but not limited to, industry restructuring, 
regulatory constraints, acquisition opportunities, market volatility, and economic trends. 

Capital Resources 

As of December 31, 2009, Integrys Energy Group and each of its subsidiaries were in compliance with all 
respective covenants related to outetanding short-term and long-temn debt and expect to be in 
compliance with all such debt covenants for the foreseeable future. 
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See Note 12, "Short-Term Debt and Lines of Credit" for more information on integrys Energy Group's 
credit facilities and other short-term credit agreements, including short-tenn debt covenante. See 
Note 13, "Long-Term Debt," for more infonnation on Integrys Energy Group's tong-tenn debt covenants. 

Integrys Energy Group plans to meet its capital requirements for the period 2010 through 2012 primarily 
through internally generated funds (net of forecasted dividend payments) and debt and equity financings. 
During 2010. over $1.3 billion of integrys Energy Group's revolving credit facilities wilt mature. It is the 
intent of management to renew a substanttal portion of the maturing credit facilities by the end of the 
second quarter of 2010. integrys Energy Group plans to maintain current debt to equity ratios at 
appropriate levels to support current credit ratings and corporate growth. Management believes Integrys 
Energy Group has adequate financial flexibility and resources to meet its future needs. 

In March 2009, Integrys Energy Group filed a shelf registration statement which allows it to publicly issue 
debt, equity, certain types of hybrid securities, and other flnancial instruments. Specific terms and 
conditions of securities issued will be detennined prior to the actual issuance of any specific security. 

Under an existing shelf registration statement, WPS may issue up to $250.0 miliion of senior debt 
securities with amounte, prices, and terms to be determined at the time of foture offerings. In 
December 2008, WPS issued $125.0 million of 6.375%. 7-year Senior Notes under this shelf registration 
statement. 

Other Future Considerations 

Integrys Energy Services Business Segment Strategy Change 

At December 31.2009, Integrys Energy Group had completed a substantial portion of its previously 
announced strategy to divest of or significantiy reduce the size of its nonregulated energy sen/ices 
business segment to a smaller segment with significantly reduced credit and coltateral support 
requirements. One of the remaining parts of the strategy change is the pending sale of the wholesale 
electric business, which is expected to close in the first half of 2010. • 

Integrys Energy Group has repositioned its nonregulated energy services business segment from a focus 
on signiflcant growth in whoiesate and retail maricets across the United States and Canada, to a focus on 
selected retaii markete in the United States with the expectation that recurring customer based business 
will result in dependable cash and eamings contributions with a reduced risk and capital profile. In 
addition, Integrys Energy Sen/ices wilt continue to invest in energy assets with renewabte attributes. 
Once fully implemented. Integrys Energy Group expects its liquidity needs to decrease and expects to 
reduce its existing credit facilities. Integrys Energy Group may also use the proceeds from the sales of 
any portions of this business segment, as well as the return of invested capital, to reduce outstanding 
debt or invest in areas with more desirable risk adjusted rates of retum to achieve the highest value for ite 
sharehc^ders. See Note4, "Dispositions" for more infonnation. 

Customer Usage 

Due to the general economic slowdown and the increased focus on energy efficiency, sales volumes 
excluding the impact of weather have been decreasing at the utilities. In certain jurisdictions, decoupling 
mechanisms have been implemented, which allow utilities to adjust rates going fonvard to recover or 
refund all or a portion of the differences between the actual and authorized margin per customer impact of 
variations in volumes. The mechanisms do not adjust for changes in volume resulting from changes in 
customer count. Decoupling for residential and small commerciai and industrial sales was approved by 
the ICC on a four-year trial basis for PGL and NSG, effective March 1, 2008. Interveners, including the 
Illinois Attomey General, oppose decoupling and have appealed tiie ICC's approval. PGL and NSG are 
actively supporting the ICC's decision to approve decoupling. The PSCW approved the implementation 
of decoupling on a four-year trial basis, effective January 1,2009, for WPS's natural gas and electric 
residential and small commerciai sales. This decoupling mechanism includes an annual $14.0 million cap 
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for electric service and an annual $8.0 miilbn cap for natural gas sen/ice. The $14.0 million cap for 
electric service was reached in the second quarter of 2009. On December 16, 2009, decoupling for 
UPPCO was approved for all customer groups by the MPSC effective January 1, 2010. MGU requested 
decoupling in its rate case filed in July 2009. The partial settlement approved in that rate case did not 
address the decoupling request. Therefore the request will be addressed by the MPSC through the 
normal rate case process, which is expected to conclude in the second quarter of 2010. In Minnesota, 
the legislature required the MPUC to evaluate decoupling. The MPUC is currently engaged in that 
process and has sought and received commente on decoupling mechanisms from utilities and interveners 
in Minnesota. 

Uncollectibie Accounts 

The resen/es for uncollectible accounts at Integrys Energy Group refiect management's best estimate of 
probable losses on the accounts receivable balances. The reserves are based on known troubled 
accounts, historical experience, and other currentiy available evidence. Provisions for bad debt expense 
are affected by changes in various factors, including the impacts of the ecx)nomy, energy prices, and 
weather. 

The impact of the weak economic environment could cause more accounts receivable to become 
uncollectible. Higher levels of uncollectible baiances could negatively impact Integrys Energy Group's 
results of operations and could result in higher woricing capital requirements. Recoveries (or refunds) 
under Illinois Senate Bill (SB) 1918 and an Uncollectible Expense Tracking Mechanism (UETM) in 
Michigan will affect bad debt expense as described in Note 24, "Regulatory Environment." 

Goodwill Impairment Testing 

Integrys Energy Group peribmis its required annual goodwill impainnent tests each April 1. Interim 
impainnent tests are performed between required annual testing dates if certain conditions exist. One of 
these conditions is a change in business climate, which may be evidenced by, among other things, a 
prolonged decline in a company's market capitalization below book value. Any annual or interim goodwill 
impainnent test could result in the recognition of a goodwill impainnent loss. See Note 10, "Goodwill and 
Other Intangible Assets," for more infonnation on goodwill balances for Integrys Energy Group's reporting 
unite at December 31,2009. 

Climate Change 

Recently, efforts have been initiated to develop state and regional greenhouse gas programs, to create 
federal legislation to limit carbon dioxide emissions, and to create national or state renewable portfolio 
standards. Some examples of these efforts are the Waxman-Markey bill, which passed the United States 
House of Representatives; the Kerry-Boxer draft bill, which was introduced in the United States Senate; 
and the Wisconsin Clean Energy Jobs Act, which has been introduced in the Wisconsin legislature to 
implement recommendations from the Governor's Global Wanning Task Force. The Wisconsin Clean 
Energy Jobs Act establishes statewide goals for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions and requires 
certain actions, including an increased renewable portfolio standard, to meet those goals. In addition, in 
April 2009. the EPA declared carbon dioxide and several other greenhouse gases to be a danger to 
public health and welfare, which is the first step towards the EPA potentially regulating greenhouse gases 
under the Clean Air Act. A risk exists that such legislation or regulation will increase the cost of energy. 
However, Integrys Energy Group believes the capital expenditures being made at its generation units are 
appropriate under any reasonable mandatory greenhouse gas program and that future expenditures 
related to control of greenhouse gas emissions or renewable portfolio standards by its regulated electric 
utilities will be recoverable in rates. Integrys Energy Group will continue to monitor and manage potential 
risks and opportunities associated with future greenhouse gas legislative or regulatory actions. 

The majority of Integrys Energy Group's generation and distribution facilities are located in the upper 
Midwest region of the United States. The same is tme for the majority of our customers' facilities. The 
physical risks posed by climate change are not expected to be significant at this time. Ongoing 
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evaluations will be conducted as more infonnation on the extent of such physical changes becomes 
available. 

New Laws 

In Febmary 2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) was signed into law. 
ARRA contains various provisions intended to stimulate the economy. Included in ARRA are several tex 
provisions that may affect the company. Most notably, a provision of ARRA provides Integrys Energy 
Group with additional opportunities to claim tax deductions for bonus depreciation for certain assets 
placed in service during 2009, extending the bonus depreciation period established by the Economic 
Stimulus Act of 2008. The additional first year deduction for bonus depreciation is estimated to be 
approximately $200 million. Other provisions of ARRA provide Integrys Energy Group with elections to 
select among a production tax credit, an investment tax credit, or a federal grant for various renewable 
generating facilities that went into service in 2009. Integrys Energy Group currently plans to take 
production tex credits on power generated by wind facilities, but is evaluating the other alternatives 
mentioned. 

In February 2009. Wisconsin Act 2 was signed into law. Act 2 contains various tax provisions intended to 
reduce Wisconsin's current budget gap. Most notably, this Act will require Integrys Energy Group and its 
subsidiaries to flte a Wisconsin income tax retum as a combined group. As a result, all of Integrys Energy 
Group's income became subject to apportionment and taxation in Wisconsin beginning January 1, 2009. 
In the future. Integrys Energy Group may experience higher or lower Wisconsin income taxes depending 
on the mix and type of income. In the short-tenn. after the adjustment to defened taxes at the time ofthe 
law change, this law is expected to generate a small benefit for Integrys Energy Group. 

Property Tax Assessment on Natural Gas 

Integrys Energy Group's natural gas retaiters. including its five natural gas utilities, purchase storage 
sen/ices from pipeline companies on the pipelines' interstate natural gas storage and transmission 
systems. Once a shipper delivers natural gas to the pipeline's system, that specific natural gas cannot be 
physically traced back to the shipper, and the physbal location of that specific natural gas is not 
ascertainable. Some states tax natural gas as personal property and have recently sought to assess 
personal property tax obligations against natural gas quantities held as working gas in facilities located in 
their states. Because the pipeline does not have title to the woricing gas inventory in these facilities, the 
state imposes the tax on the shippers as of the assessment date, based on allocated quantities. 
Shippers that are being assessed a tax are actively protesting these property tax assessments. PGL and 
MERC are cunently pursuing protests through litigation in Texas and Kansas, respectively. 

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

See Note 17, "Guarantees," for infonnation regarding guarantees. 

MARKET PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 

Maricet price risk management activities include the electric and natural gas mariceting and related risk 
management activities of Integrys Energy Sen/ices. 

Integrys Energy Services measures the fair value of derivative instruments on a mark-to-market basis. 
The fair value is included in assets or liabilities from risk management activities on Integrys Energy 
Group's Consolidated Balance Sheets, with an offeetting impact to other comprehensive income (for the 
effective portion of cash flow hedges), also on Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated Balance Sheets, or 
to earnings. The following table provides an assessment of the factors impacting the change in the net 
value of Integrys Energy Services' assets and liabilities ftDm risk management activities for the year 
ended December 31, 2009. 
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Integrys Energy Services 
Mark-to-Market Roll Forward 
(MiUions) 
Fair value of contracte at December 31,2008 *̂^ 

Contracte realized or settled during period ^̂^ 

Natural Gas Electric Totel 

Plus: Changes in fair value of contracts in existence 
at December 31.2009*^* 

$294.0 
317.0 

60.0 

$(135.4) 
(225.9) 

$158.6 
91.1 

(187.9) (127.9) 
Fair value of contracts at December 31,2009 VT $ 37.0 $ (97.4) $ (60.4) 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

Reflects the values reported on the balance sheets for net maric-to-market current and long-tenn risk 
management assets and liabilities as of those dates. The feir value of contracts at December 31, 2008, indudes 
$0.6 million of liabilities held for sale, related to the sale of generation assets and the associated sales and 
sen/Ice contracts in Northern Maine, which closed during the first quarter of 2010. The feir value of Integrys 
Energy Services' contracts at December 31, 2009, was impacted by tiie reduction in wholesale trading and 
mariceting activity assodated with its strategy change, as well as an overall decline in energy prices in 2009. 

Includes the value of contracts in existence at December 31, 2008, that were no longer included in the net 
maric-to-maricet assets as of December 31,2009. 

Includes unrealized gains and losses on contracte that existed at December 31, 2008, and contracts that were 
entered into subsequent to December 31,2008. which were Induded in Integrys Energy Semces' portfolio at 
December 31, 2009. 

There were, in many cases, derivative positions entered into and settled during the period resulting in 
gains or losses being realized during the current perbd. The realized gains or losses fi-om these 
derivative positions are not refiected in the table at)ove. 

The table below shows Integrys Energy Services' risk management instmments categorized by fair value 
hierarchy levels and by maturity. For more information on the fair value hierarchy, including definitions of 
Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3, see Notel(r), "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Fair Value." 

Integrys Energy Services 
Risk Management Contract Aging at Fair Value 
As of IDecember 31,2009 (MUUons) 

Fair Value Hierarchy Level 
Level 1 
Level 2 
Level 3 
Total fair value 

Maturity 
Less Than 

1Year 
$(52.2) 

(56.4) 
37.1 

$(71.5) 

Maturity 
1 t o 3 
Years 
$ 0.6 
(75.7) 
80.8 

$ 5,7 

Maturity 
4 t o 5 
Years 
$(0.3) 

4.1 
(0.6) 

$3.2 

Maturity 
in Excess 
of 5 years 

$ -
1.6 
0.6 

$2.2 

Totai 
Fair 

Value 
$(51.9) 
(126.4) 
117.9 

$(60.4) 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Integrys Energy Group has detennined that the following accounting policies are critical to the 
understanding of ite financial statemente because their application requires significant judgment and 
reliance on estimations of matters that are inherently uncertain. Integrys Energy Group's management 
has discussed these critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. 

Risk Management Activities 

Integrys Energy Group has entered into contracte that are accounted for as derivatives. All derivative 
contracts are reconJed at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, unless they qualify for the 
normal purchases and sales exception, which provides that recognition of gains and losses in the 
consolidated financial statements is not required until the settiement of the contracts. Changes in fair 
value, except effective portions of derivative instruments designated as hedges or qualifying for regulatory 

-65-



ATTACHMENT F 

deferral, generally affect income available for common shareholders at each financial reporting date until 
the contracts are ultimately settled. 

At December 31. 2009, those derivatives not designated as hedges were primarily commodity contracts 
used to manage price risk associated with natural gas and electricity purchase and sale activities. Cash 
flow hedge accounting treatment may be used when Integrys Energy Group enters into contracts to buy 
or sell a commodity at a fixed price for future delivery to protect future cash flows conesponding with 
anticipated physical sales or purchases. In addition, Integrys Energy Group uses cash flow hedge 
accounting to protect against changes in interest rates. Fair value hedge accounting may be used when 
Integrys Energy Group holds assets, liabilities, or finm commitments and enters into transactions that 
hedge the risk of changes in commodity prices or interest rates. To the extent that the hedging 
instmment is fully effective in offeetting the transaction being hedged, there is no impact on income 
available for common shareholders prior to settlement of the hedge. 

in conjunction with the implementation of SFAS No. 157. "Fair Value Measurements" (now incorporated 
as part of the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB ASC), on January 1, 2008, 
Integrys Energy Group categorized ite fair value measurements into three levels within a fair value 
hierarchy. See Note 1 (r), "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Fair Value," and Note 22, "Fair 
Value," for more information. 

Integrys Energy Group has based its valuations on obsen/able inputs whenever possible. However, at 
times, the valuation of certain derivative instmments requires the use of internally developed valuation 
techniques and/or significant unobsen/able inputs. These valuations require a significant amount of 
management judgment and are classified as Level 3 measurements. Of the total risk management 
assets on Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated Balance Sheets, $1,593.0 million (68.7%) utilized 
Level 3 measuremente. Of the total risk management liabilities. $1,471.6 million (61.6%) utilized Level 3 
measuremente. Integrys Energy Group believes these valuations represent the fair values of these 
instmments as of the reporting date; however, the actual amounte realized upon settlement of these 
instruments could vary materially from the reported amounts due to movements in maricet prices and 
changes in the liquidity of certain maricets. 

Beginning January 1,2008. Integrys Energy Sen/ices no longer includes transaction costs in fair value 
determinations. 

As a component of fair value detenninations, Integrys Energy Group considers counterparty credit risk 
(including its own credit risk) and liquidity risk. The liquidity component of the fair value determination 
may be especially subjective when limited liquid maricet information is available. Changes in the 
underiying assumptions for these components of fair value at December 31. 2009, would have had the 
following effects: 

Effect on Fair Value of Net Risk Management 
Liabilities at December 31,2009 

Change in Components (Millions) 
100% increase $15.8 decrease 
50% decrease $7.9 increase 

These hypothetical changes in fair value would be included in current and long-tenn assets and liabilities 
from risk management activities on the Consolidated Balance Sheete and as part of nonregulated 
revenue on the Consolidated Statemente of Income, unless the related contracts are designated as cash 
flow hedges, in which case potential changes would be included in Other Comprehensive Income - Cash 
Flow Hedges on the Consolidated Statemente of Common Shareholders' Equity. 
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Asset impairment 

Integrys Energy Group reviews certain assets for impainnent as required by the Property, Plant, and 
Equipment Topic and intangibles - Goodwill and Other Topic of the FASB ASC. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is tested for impainnent using a two-step process that begins with an estimation of the fair value 
of a reporting unit. A reporting unit can be an operating segment, or one level below an operating 
segment, as defined by the Segment Reporting Topic of the FASB ASC. At Integrys Energy Group, 
goodwill has been assigned to each of the five reporting units that comprise the natural gas utility 
segment and also to the Integrys Energy Services segment. The carrying value of goodwill by reporting 
unit and reportable segment for the year ended December 31.2009 was: 

(MUUons) 
WPS 
PGL 
NSG 
MERC 
MGU 

Total Natural Gas Utility Segment 
integrys Energy Sen/ices 

Balance at December 31,2009 

Carrying Value 
of Goodwill 

$ 36.4 
401.2 

36.1 
127.7 
34.5 

$635.9 
6.6 

$642.5 

The goodwill for each of the reporting units is tested for impainnent annually on April 1 or more frequently 
when events or circumstances wanent. The fair maricet value of each reporting unit is estimated using 
certein key assumptions that require significant judgment. This judgment includes developing cash flow 
projections (including the selection of appropriate returns on equity, long-term growth rates, and capital 
expenditure levels), selecting appropriate discount rates, and identifying relevant market comparables. 

The fair value of WPS cunently exceeds the carrying amount by a significant amount, such that integrys 
Energy Group believes WPS is unlikely to fail step one of the goodwill impainnent test in the foreseeable 
future. 

However, in the firet quarter of 2009, the combination of the decline in equity markets as well as the 
increase in the expected weighted-average cost of capital indicated that a potential impairment of 
goodwill might exist for PGL, NSG, MERC, MGU, and Integrys Energy Services, triggering an interim 
goodwill impainnent analysis effective February 28,2009 for these reporting units. For this analysis, the 
estimated fair value for the PGL. NSG, MERC, and MGU reporting units was determined by utilizing a 
combination of the income approach and the maricet approach methodologies. More weight was given to 
the income approach as Integrys Energy Group believes that the income approach more accurately 
captures the anticipated economics and related perionnance expectations for each of these reporting 
unite. In the first quarter of 2009, Integrys Energy Group announced a strategy change for Integrys 
Energy Sen/ices. Because it was likely that Integrys Energy Group would sell a significant portion of 
Integrys Energy Services, the goodwill at Integrys Energy Services was tested for impairment during each 
interim period in 2009 as well as at the time of the April 1, 2009 annual testing date. At each testing date, 
the fair value of Integrys Energy Services exceeded its carrying amount. Based on the interim test 
performed at Dec:ember 31, 2009, the fair value of Integrys Energy Services exceeded its carrying 
amount by more than 10%. 

The income approach was based on discounted cash flows which were derived from internal forecasts 
and economic expectations. The key assumptions used to determine fair value under the income 
approach included the cash fiow period, terminal values based on a temiinal growth rate, and the 
discount rate. The discount rate represents the estimated cost of debt and equity financing weighted by 
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the percentage of debt and equity in a company's target capital stmcture. The discount rates used in the 
income approach for PGL, NSG, MERC, and MGU ranged from 7.25% to 7.5%. The discount rate used 
for Integrys Energy Services was 10.2%. The terminal grovirth rates used in the income approach ranged 
fi-om 2% to 3%. 

The market approach for PGL, NSG, MERC, and MGU utilized the guideline company method, whbh 
calculates valuation multiples based on operating and valuation metrics from publicly traded guideline 
companies in the regulated natural gas distribution industry. Multiples derived from the guideline 
companies provided an indication of how much a knowledgeable investor in the marketplace would be 
witling to pay for an investment in a similar company. These multiples were then applied to the 
appropriate operating metric for PGL, NSG, MERC, and MGU to detemnine indications of fair value. 

Aggregate fair values of all of Integrys Energy Group's operating segments were compared to its maricet 
capitalization as an assessment of the appropriateness of the fair value measurements. When assessing 
Integrys Energy Group's market capitalization, the average stock price 15 days before and after the 
interim February 28, 2009. valuation date was used. The comparison between the aggregate fair values 
of all reporting units of Integrys Energy Group and the market capitalization indicated an implied control 
premium. A control premium analysis indicated that the implied premium was within a range of the overall 
premiums observed in the market place. 

As a result of applying the first step of goodwill impairment testing to determine if potential goodwill 
impainnent existed at the Febmary 28,2009 interim testing date, Integrys Energy Services passed (fair 
value exceeded canying amount) and PGL, NSG, MERC, and MGU failed (carrying amount exceeded fair 
value). As a result, a $291.1 million pre-tax impairment loss was recorded in the first quarter of 2009, 
which included a $148.0 miilion goodwill impaimient loss related to PGL, a $38.2 million goodwill 
impainnent loss related to NSG, a $16.7 million goodwill impainnent loss related to MERC, and an 
$88.2 million goodwill impainnent loss related to MGU. See Note 10, "Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets,"for infonnation. 

On the Aprii 1, 2009 annual goodwill impairment testing <jate, an increase in equity values for United 
States companies, as well as a decrease in the discount rate since Febmary 28, 2009, resulted in the fair 
values of PGL, NSG, MERC and MGU exceeding their respective carrying amounte. The resulting fair 
values exceeded the canying amount by less than 10% for each of these four reporting units. 

Other 

Integrys Energy Group evaluates property, plant, and equipment for impairment whenever indicators of 
impairment exist. These indicatore include a significant underperformance of the assets relative to 
historical or projected future operating results, a significant change in the use of the assets or business 
strategy reiated to such assets, and significant negative industry or economic trends, ff the sum of the 
undiscounted expected future cash flows from an asset is less than the canying value ofthe asset, an 
asset impairment must l̂ e recognized in the income statement. For assete held for sale, impairment 
charges are recorded if the carrying value of such assete exceeds the estimated fair value less costs to 
sell. The amount of impairment recognized is calculated by reducing the carrying value of the asset to its 
fair value (or fair value less costs to sell if held for sale). For Integrys Energy Group's regulated utilities, 
an asset impaimient requires further assessment to determine if a regulatory asset should be recorded. 

The review for impairment of tangible assete is more critical to Integrys Energy Servbes than to any other 
segment because of its lack of access to rate setting based on cost of service that is available to the 
regulated segments. At December 31, 2009, the carrying value of Integrys Energy Services' property, 
plant, and equipment totaled $143.9 miltion. Management's assumptbns about future market sales 
prices and generation volumes require significant judgment because actual prices and generation 
volumes have fluctuated in the past as a result of changing fuel costs and required plant maintenance 
and are expected to continue to do so in the future. 
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The primary assumptions used at Integrys Energy Services in the impainnent analyses are future revenue 
streams that depend on future commodity prices, capital expenditures, environmental landscape, and 
operating costs. A combination of inpute from both internal and external sources is used to project 
revenue streams. Integrys Energy Services forecasts future operating coste with input from extemal 
sources. These assumptions are modeled over the projected remaining life ofthe asset. 

Throughout 2009, Integrys Energy Services tested various assets for impaimient whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicated that a test was required. No material impairment charges were 
recorded in 2009 as a result of the recoverability teste. Results of past impairment tests may not 
necessarily be an indicator of foture resulte given the nature ofthe accounting estimates involved, as 
discussed more fully above. Future results or changes in assumptions could result In an impainnent. 

Receivables and Reserves 

The regulated natural gas and electi-ic utilities and integrys Energy Services accrue estimated amounts of 
revenues for services rendered but not yet billed. Estimated unbilled revenues are calculated using a 
variety of factors based on customer class or contracted rates. At December 31,2009 and 2008, Integrys 
Energy Group's unbilled revenues were $337.0 million and $525.5 miliion, respectively. Any difference 
between actual revenues and the estimates are recorded in revenue in the next period. Differences 
historically have not been significant. 

The majority ofthe bad debt expense at the utilities is recovered through rates. Integrys Energy Sen/ices 
calculates the resen/e for potential uncollectible customer receivable balances by applying an estimated 
bad debt experience rate to each past due aging category and reserving for 100% of specific customer 
receivable balances deemed to be uncollectible, ff the assumption that historical uncollectible experience 
matches current customer default is incorrect, or if a specific customer with a large account receivable 
that has not previously been identified as a risk detaulte, there could be significant changes to bad debt 
expense and the uncollectible resen/e balance. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, Integrys Energy 
Services' resen/e for uncollectible accounts was $19.4 million and $16.7 million, respectiveiy. 

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefite 

The costs of providing non-contributory defined benefit pension benefite and other postretirement 
benefits, described in Note 18, "Employee Benefit Plans," are dependent upon numerous factors resulting 
from actual plan experience and assumptions regarding future experience. 

Pension and other postretirement benefit costs are impacted by actual employee demographics (including 
age, compensation levels, and empbyment periods), the level of contributions made to the plans, and 
earnings on pian assete. Pension and other postretirement benefit costs may be signiflcantiy affected by 
changes in key actuarial assumptions, including anticipated rates of retum on plan assete, discount rates 
used in detennining the projected pension and other postretirement benefit obligations and coste, and 
health care cost trends. Changes made to the pian provisions may also impact cunent and future 
pension and other postretirement benefit costs. 

integrys Energy Group's pension and other postretirement benefit plan assets are primarily made up of 
equity and fixed income investmente. Fluctuations in actual equity and fixed income maricet returns, as 
well as changes in general interest rates, may result jn increased or decreased benefit costs in future 
periods. Management believes that such changes in costs would be recovered at the regulated 
segments through the ratemaking process. 

The following table shows how a given change in certain actuarial assumptions would Impact the 
projected benefit obligation and the reported net periodic pension cost. Each factor below reflects an 
evaluation ofthe change based on a change in that assumption only. 
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Actuarial Assumption 
(MUiions, except percentages) 
Discount rate 
Discount rate 
Rate of retum on plan assets 
Rate of return on pian assets 

Percentage-
Point Change in 

Assumption 
(0.5) 
0.5 

(0.5) 
0.5 

impact on 
Projected Benefit 

Obligation 
$75.5 
(64.1) 

N/A 
N/A 

Impact on 2009 
Pension Cost 

$7.5 
(4.2) 
5.4 

(5.4) 

The following table shows how a given change in certain actuarial assumptions would impact the 
accumulated other postretirement benefit obligation and the reported net periodic other postretirement 
benefit cost. Each factor below reflects an evaluation of the change based on a change in that 
assumption only. 

Actuarial Assumption 
(MiUions, except percentages) 
Discount rate 
Discount rate 
Health care cost trend rate 
Health care cost trend rate 
Rate of retum on plan assets 
Rate of retum on plan assets 

Percentage-Point 
Change in 

Assumption 
(0.5) 
0.5 

(1.0) 
1.0 

(0.5) 
0.5 

Impact on 
Postretirement 

Benefit Obligation 
$29.0 
(27.1) 
(48.4) 
58.1 
N/A 
N/A 

impact on 2009 
Postretirement 

Benefit Cost 
$2.2 
(2.2) 
(6.8) 
8.3 
1.1 

(1.1) 

Integrys Energy Group uses an interest rate yield curve to enable it to make appropriate judgments about 
discount rates. The yield curve is comprised of non-callable (or callable with make-whole provisions), 
high-quality corporate bonds with maturities between 0 and 30 years. The included bonds are generally 
rated "Aa" with a minimum amount outstanding of $50 million. The expected annual benefit cash flows 
are discounted for each of Integrys Energy Group's pension and retiree welfare plans using this yield 
curve, and a single-point discount rate is developed matching each plan's expected payout structure. 

Integrys Energy Group establishes its expected retum on asset assumption based on consideration of 
historical and projected asset class retums. as well as the target allocations of the benefit trust portfolios. 
The assumed long-term rate of retum was 8.5% in 2009, 2008, and 2007. For 2009. 2008, and 2007, the 
actual rates of retum on pension plan assets, net of fees, were 22.0%, (25.9)%, and 6.2%, respectively. 

The determination of expected return on qualified plan assets is based on a market-related valuation of 
assets, which reduces year-to-year volatility. Cumulative gains and losses in excess of 10% of the 
greater of the pensbn or other postretirement benefit obligation or martcet-related value are amortized 
over the average remaining future service to expected retirement ages. Changes in fair vatue are 
recognized over the subsequent five years for pians sponsored by WPS, while differences between actual 
investment returns and the expected retum on plan assets are recognized over a five-year period for 
pension plans sponsored by IBS and PEC. Because of this method, the future value of assete will be 
impacted as previously deferred gains or losses are included in maricet-related value. 

In selecting assumed health care cost ti-end rates, past performance and forecasts of health care costs 
are considered. For more information on health care cost trend rates and a table showing future 
payments that Integrys Energy Group expects to make for pension and other postretirement benefits, see 
Note 18, "Employee Benefit Plans." 

Regulatory Accounting 

The electric and natural gas utility segments of Integrys Energy Group follow the guidance underthe 
Regulated Operations Topic of the FASB ASC, and the financial statements refiect the effects of the 
different ratemaking principles followed by the various jurisdictions regulating these segments. Certain 
items that would othen/i/ise be immediately recognized as revenues and expenses are deferred as 
regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities for future recovery or refund to customers, as authorized by 
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Integrys Energy Group's regulators. Future recovery of regulatory assets is not assured, and is generally 
subject to review by regulators in rate proceedings for matters such as prudence and reasonableness. 
Management regularly assesses whether these regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of future 
recovery or refond by considering factors such as changes in the regulatory environment, earnings at the 
utility segments, and the status of any pending or potential deregulation legislation. Once approved, the 
regulatory assets and liabilities are amortized into income over the rate recovery period. If recovery or 
refund of costs is not approved or is no longer deemed probable, these regulatory assete or liabilities are 
recognized in current period income. 

The application of the Regulated Operations Topic of the FASB ASC would be discontinued if the 
regulated electric and natural gas utility segments or a separable portion of those segmente would no 
longer meet the criteria for application. Assets and liabilities recognized solely due to the actions of rate 
regulation would no longer be recognized on the l̂ alance sheet, but rather classified as an extraordinary 
item in income for the period in which the discontinuation occurred. A write-off of all of Integrys Energy 
Group's' regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities at December 31, 2009, would result in a 13.1% 
decrease in total assets and a 4.2% decrease in total liabilities. See Note 8, "Regulatory Assets and 
Liabilities," for more information. 

Environmental Activities Relating to Former Manufactured Gas Operations 

Integrys Energy Group's natural gas utilities, their predecessors, and certain former affiliates operated 
facilities in the past at multiple sites for the purpose of manufacturing and storing manufactured gas. The 
utility subsidiaries are accruing and deferring the costs incurred in connection with environmental 
activities at the manufactured gas plant sites pending recovery through rates or from other entities. The 
amounts defen-ed include coste incurred but not yet recovered through rates and management's best 
estimates of the costs that the utilities will incur in investigating and remediating the manufactured gas 
sites. Management's estimates are based upon a probabilistic model and an ongoing review by 
management of foture investigative and remedial coste. 

Management considers this policy critical due to the substantial uncertainty in the estimation of future 
costs with respecjt to the amount and timing of costs, and the extent of recovery from other potential 
responsible parties. See Note 16, "Commitments and Contingencies," for further discussion of 
environmentel matters. 

Tax Provision 

Integrys Energy Group is required to estimate income taxes for each of the jurisdictions in which it 
operates as part of the process of preparing Integrys Energy Group's consolidated financial statements. 
This process involves estimating actual cunrent tax liabilities together with assessing temporary 
differences resulting from differing treatinent of items, such as depreciation, for tax and accounting 
purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included within 
Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated Balance Sheets. Integrys Energy Group must also assess the 
likelihood tiiat its deferred tax assets will be recovered through future taxable income. To the extent 
Integrys Energy Group believes that recovery is not likely, it must establish a valuation allowance, which 
is offset by an adjustment to the provision for income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of income. 
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Uncertainty associated with the application of tax statutes and regulations and the outcomes of tax audits 
and appeals require that judgment and estimates be made in the accrual process and in the calculation of 
effective tax rates. Integrys Energy Group adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, 
"Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes- an Interpretation of FAS 109" (now incorporated as part of 
the Income Taxes Topic of the FASB ASC). which requires that only income tex beneflts that meet the 
"more likely than not" recognition threshold be recognized or continue to be recognized. The change in 
the unrecognized tax benefits needs to be reasonably estimated based on an evaluation ofthe nature of 
uncertainty, the nature of event that couid cause the change, and an estimate of the range of reasonably 
possible changes. As allowed under Intenaretation No. 48, Integrys Energy Group also elected to change 
its method of accounting to record interest and penalties paid on income tax obligations as a component 
of provisbn for income taxes. 

Significant management judgment is required in determining integrys Energy Group's provision for 
income taxes, defan-ed tax assets and liabilities, and any valuation allowance recorded against deferred 
tax assete. The assumptions involved are supported by historical data, reasonable projections, and 
technical inteqsretations of applicable tax laws and regulations across multiple taxing jurisdictions. 
Significant changes in these assumptions could have a material impact on Integrys Energy Group's 
financial condition and results of operations. See Note 1 (o), "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
- Income Taxes," and Note 15. "Income Taxes" for a discussion of accounting for income taxes. 

IMPACT OF INFLATION 

Integrys Energy Grciup's financial statements are prepared in accondance with GAAP. The statements 
provide a reasonabte, objective, and quantifiable statement of financial results, but generally do not 
evaluate the impact of inflation. For Integrys Energy Group's regulated operations, to the extent it is not 
recovering the effects of inflation, it will file rate cases as necessary in the various jurisdictions in which it 
operates. Integrys Energy Group's nonregulated businesses include infiation in forecasted costs. 
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT 
MARKET RISK 

Market Risks and Other Significant Risks 

Integrys Energy Group has potential maricet risk exposure related to commodity price risk (including 
regulatory recovery risk), interest rate risk, and equity return and principal preservation risk. Integrys 
Energy Group is also exposed to other signiflcant risks due to the nature of our subsidiaries' businesses 
and the environment in which we operate. Integrys Energy Group has risk management policies in place 
to monitor and assist in controlling tiiese risks and may use derivative and other instmments to manage 
some of these exposures, as further described below. 

Commodity Price Risk and Regulatory Recovery Risk 

Utilities 

The electric utilities of Integrys Energy Group purchase natural gas, fuel oil, and coal for use in power 
generation. They also buy power from the MISO market at a price that is often reflective ofthe underiying 
cost of natural gas used in power generation. Pmdent fuel and purchased power costs are recovered 
from customers under one-for-one recovery mechanisms by UPPCO and by the wholesale electric 
operations and Michigan retail electric operations of WPS. The coste of natural gas used by the natural 
gas utility subsidiaries are generally also recx}vered from customers under one-for-one recovery 
mechanisms. These recovery mechanisms greatiy reduce commodity price risk for the utilities. 

WPS's Wisconsin retail elecb-ic operations do not have a one-for-one recovery mechanism for price 
fluctuations. Instead, a "fuel window" mechanism has partially mitigated the year-to-year price risk. See 
Note 1 (e), "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Revenue and Customer Receivables," for more 
information. 

To manage commodity price risk, our regulated utilities enter into contracte of various durations for the 
purchase and/or sale of natijral gas, fuel for electric generation, and electricity. In addition, the electric 
operations of WPS and tiie natural gas operations of WPS, PGL, NSG, and MERC employ risk 
management techniques, which include the use of derivative instruments such as swaps, futures, and 
options. 

Inteorvs Enerov Services 

Integrys Energy Services seeks to reduce market price risk from ite generation and energy supply 
portfolios through the use of various flnancial and physical instmments. 

To measure commodity price risk exposure, Integrys Energy Group employs a number of controls and 
processes, including a value-at-risk (VaR) analysis of ite exposures. Integrys Energy Services* VaR 
calculation is utilized to quantify exposure to market risk associated with its marketing and trading 
portfolio (primarily natural gas and power positions), which also includes near-temn positions managed 
under its asset management strategy through tolling agreemente with the merchant generating fleet. The 
VaR calculation excludes the long-dated positions created by owning merchant generation and 
associated coal, sulfur dioxide emission allowances, and other ancillary foels. Additionally, flnancial 
transmission rights, renewable energy credite, and certain portions of long-dated natural gas storage and 
ti-ansportetion contracte are also excluded from the VaR calculation. The capped downside nature of the 
risks and duration of these positions would result in a VaR that would not be representative of the actual 
exposure. Therefore, Integrys Energy Services evaluates the exposures for these types of conti"acts by 
assessing the maximum potential loss of the positions which would represent the cost of the physical 
asset or the fixed demand charges for tiie contract. 
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VaR is used to describe a probabilistic approach to quantifying the exposure to market risk. The VaR 
amount represents an estimate ofthe potential change in fair value that could occur from changes in 
market factors, within a given confldence level, if an instmment or portfolio is held for a specified time 
period. VaR models are relatively sophisticated. However, the quantitative risk information is limited by 
the parametere esteblished in creating the model. The instrumente being used may have features that 
could trigger a potential loss in excess of the calculated amount if the changes in the underiying 
commodity price exceed the confldence level ofthe model used. VaR is not necessarily Indicative of 
actual results tiiat may occur. In addition to VaR, Integrys Energy Services employs other risk 
measuremente including maric-to-market valuations, stress testing, and scenario based testing. In 
conjunction with the VaR analysis, these other risk measurements provide the risk management analysis 
for Integrys Energy Services' risk exposure. Additionally, Integrys Energy Services also uses volume 
limits and stop loss limits to limit ite exposure to commodity price movemente. 

VaR has a number of limitations that are important to consider when evaluating the calculation results. 
Most importantiy, VaR does not represent the maximum potential loss ofthe portfolio. Price movements 
outside of the relevant confidence levels can and do occur and may result in iosses exceeding the 
reported VaR. Large short-term price moves can be caused by catestrophic weather evente or other 
drivers of short term supply and demand dismptions. Also, the holding period may not always be an 
adequate assessment of the timeframe to close out positions. Short-term reductions in maricet liquidity 
could cause Integrys Energy Services to hold positions open longer than anticipated, resulting in greater 
than predicted iosses. Additionally, there are other risks not captured by the VaR metric including, but not 
limited to. the risk of customer and vendor nonperformance and the risks associated with the liquidity in 
the markete in which Integrys Energy Services transacts. Customer and vendor nonperformance risk 
couid result in bad debt losses, realized and unrealized losses on commodity contracte, or increased 
supply coste in the event tiiat contractual obligations of our counterparties are not met. Maricet liquidity 
risk refers to the risk that Integrys Energy Services will not be able to efftcientiy enter or exit commodity 
positions. 

Integrys Energy Services' VaR is calculated using non-discounted positions witii a delte-normal 
approximation based on a one-day holding period and a 95% confldence level, as well as a ten-day 
hoiding period and 99% confidence level. The delta-normal approximation is based on the assumption 
that changes in the value of the portfolio over short time periods, such as one day or ten days, are 
normally distiibuted. Integrys Energy Services' VaR calculation includes finandai and physical 
commodity instmments, such as fonwards. futures, swaps, and options, as well as natural gas inventory, 
natural gas storage, and transportation contracte, to the extent such positions are significant, but 
excludes the positions mentioned above. 

The VaR for Integrys Energy Services' portfolio at a 95% confidence level and a one-day holding period is 
presented in the foltowing teble: 

(MUiions) 2009 2008 

As of December 31 
Average for 12 months ended December 31 
High for 12 months ended December 31 
Low for 12 months ended December 31 

$0.6 
0.8 
1.1 
0.6 

$1.3 
1.4 
2.3 
0.9 
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>2.9 
3.8 
4.7 
2.9 

$5.6 
6.2 

10.2 
4.8 
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The VaR for Integrys Energy Services' portfolio at a 99% confidence level and a ten-day holding period is 
presented below: 

(MUUons) 20M 2008 

As of December 31 
Average for 12 months ended December 31 
High for 12 months ended December 31 
Low for 12 months ended December 31 

The average, high, and low amounte were computed using the VaR amounte at each ofthe four quarter 
ends. 

The year-over-year decrease in VaR was driven by a substential reduction in trading activity, as a result 
of Integrys Energy Services' strategy change and ultimate decision to exit ite wholesale natural gas and 
electric businesses, and ite Canadian energy marketing business. 

interest Rate Risk 

Integrys Energy Group is exposed to interest rate risk resulting fi-om its variable rate long-temn debt and 
short-term borrowings. Exposure to interest rate risk is managed by limiting the amount of variable rate 
obligations and continually monitoring the effecte of market changes on interest rates. Integrys Energy 
Group enters into long-term flxed rate debt when it is advantageous to do so. Integrys Energy Group may 
also enter into derivative flnancial instrumente. such as swaps, to mitigate interest rate exposure. 

Due to decreases in short-temn borrowings in the last year, Integrys Energy Group has decreased its 
exposure to variable interest rates. Based on the variable rate debt of Integrys Energy Group outstanding 
at December 31, 2009, a hypothetical increase in market interest rates of 100 basis points would have 
increased annual interest expense by $3.5 million. Comparatively, based on the variable rate debt 
outetanding at December 31,2008, an increase in interest rates of 100 basis pointe would have increased 
interest expense by approximately $11.7 million. This sensitivity analysis was perfonned assuming a 
constant level of variable rate debt during the period and an immediate increase in interest rates, with no 
other changes for the remainder of the period. 

Equity Return and Principal Preservation Risk 

Integrys Energy Group cun-entiy funds liabilities related to employee b>eneflts through various extemal 
trust fonds. The trust fonds are managed by numerous investment managers and hold investments in 
debt and equity securities. Changes in the market value of tiiese investmente can have an impact on the 
future expenses related to these liabitities. Dedines in the equity markets or declines in interest rates 
may result in increased future coste for tiie plans and possible future required contributions for the 
pension plans. Integrys Energy Group monitors the tmst fund portfolio by benchmarking the perfonnance 
of the investmente against certain security indices. Most of tiie employee benefit coste relate to Integrys 
Energy Group's regulated utilities. As such, the majority ofthese costs are recovered in customere' rates, 
mitigating tiie equity retum and prindpal preservation risk on these exposures. Effective May 1,2008, 
and July 1.2008, the defined pension pians were closed to new union hires at PGL and NSG, 
respectively. Effective April 19, 2009, and December 18,2009, tiie defined benefit pension plans were 
closed to new union hires at UPPCO and WPS, respectively. Effective January 15, 2010, the defined 
pension plans were closed to new Local 12295 union hires at MGU. 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

A. MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING 

The management of Integrys Energy Group and ite subsidiaries is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting. Integrys Energy Group's control systems 
were designed to provide reasonable assurance to Integrys Energy Group's management and Board of 
Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentetion of published flnancial statemente. 

All intemal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even 
those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial 
statement preparation and presentation. 

Integrys Energy Group's management assessed the effectiveness of its internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31,2009. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set fortii by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework. Based on this assessment, management believes that, as of December 31. 2009, 
Integrys Energy Group's intemal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria. 

Integrys Energy Group, Inc.'s independent registered public accounting flrm has issued an audit report on 
the effectiveness of integrys Energy Group's internal control over flnancial reporting. 
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B. REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBUC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholdere of Integrys Energy Group, inc.: 

We have audited the intemal control over financial reporting of integrys Energy Group, Inc. and 
subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31. 2009, based on criteria esteblished in Intemal Control -
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective interna! control over 
finandai reporting and for ite assessment of the effectiveness of intemal conti-ol over flnandal reporting, 
included in the accompanying Management Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal control over financial reporting based on 
our audlL 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standarcls of the Public Company Accounting Overeight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and peHbnn tiie audit to obtain reasonable 
assuranc:e about whether effective intemal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material 
respecte. Our audit induded obtaining an understanding of intemal control over finandai reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness existe. testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

A company's intemal cxintrol over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision 
of, the company's principal executive and principal financial officers, or pereons performing similar 
functions, and effected by the company's boand of directore. management, and other personnel to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding tiie reliability of flnancial reporting and the preparation of flnancial 
statemente for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal control over flnandal reporting includes those policies and procedures tiiat (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairiy reflect tiie transactions and 
dispositions of tiie assete of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance tiiat transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial stetements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting prindples, and that receipte and expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance witii authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assete that could have a material effect on the financial statemente. 

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatemente due to error or fraud may 
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of 
the intemal control over financial reporting to foture periods are subject to the risk that the controls may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance witii the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respecte, effective intemal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31. 2009, based on the criteria esteblished in Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 
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We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States), the consolidated financial statemente and finandai statement schedules as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 2009 of the Company and our report dated Febmary 25, 2010 
expressed an unqualified opinion on tiiose financial statements and financial statement schedules. 

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP 

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 
February 25, 2010 
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C. CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

Year Ended December 31 

(Millions, except per share data) 

Nonregulated revenues 

Utility revenues 

Total revenues 

2009 

$4,004.0 

3,495.8 

7,499.8 

2008 

$9,737.9 

4,309.9 

14,047.8 

2007 

$6,987.0 

3,305.4 

10,292.4 

Nonregulated cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power 

Utility cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power 

Operating and maintenance e}q>ense 

Goodwill impairment loss 

Restructuring expense 

Loss on Integrys Energy Services dispositions related to s^tegy change 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

Taxes other tiian income taxes 

3,701.3 
1,919.8 
1,100.6 

291.1 
43.5 
28.9 

230.9 
96.3 

9,654.3 
2,744.1 
1.081.2 

6.5 
-
-

221.4 
93.6 

6,676.2 
2,044.2 

922.1 

-
-
-

195.1 
87.4 

operating income 

Miscellaneous income 

Interest expense 

other expense 

Income before taxes 

Pnavision for income taxes 

Net income (loss) from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations, net of tax 

Net income (loss) 

Prefened stock dividends of subsidiary 

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries 

Net income (loss) attributed to common shareholders 

87 J4 

89.0 

(164.8) 

(75.8) 

11.6 

B32 

(71.6) 

2.8 

(68.8) 

(3.1) 
1.0 

($70.9) 

246.7 

87.3 

(158.1) 

(70.8) 

175.9 

51.2 

124.7 

4.7 

129.4 

(3.1) 
0.1 

$126.4 

367.4 

64.1 

(164.5) 

(100.4) 

267.0 

86.0 

181.0 

73.3 

254.3 

(3.1) 

0.1 

$251.3 

Average shares of common stock 
Basic 
Diluted 

76.8 
76.8 

76.7 
77.0 

71.6 

71.8 

Earnings (loss) |»r common share (basic) 

Net inoime (loss) from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations, net of tax 

($0.96) 
0.04 

$1.59 
0.06 

$2.49 
1.02 

Eamings (loss) per common share (basic) ($0.92) $1.65 $3.51 

Eamings (loss) per common share (diluted) 

Net income (loss) from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations, net of tex 
($0.96) 

0.04 
$1.58 
0.06 

$2.48 

1.02 

Eamings (loss) per common share (diluted) ($0.92) $1.64 $3.50 

Dividends per common share declared $2.72 $2.68 $2.56 

The accompanying notes to Integrys Energy Group's consolidated financial stetements are an integral part of tiiese stetements. 
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D. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

At December 31 

(Millions) 2009 2008 

ABSBtS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Collal«:ed on deposit 
^Mounts receivaWe and accrued imblled revwiues. net of reserves of $57.5 and $62.5, respective 

Inventories 
Assets tem risk managranent activities 
Regulatory assets 

Deferred incc»ne taxes 
Assets held for sale 
Ottier current assets 

$44^ 
184.9 
958.0 
304.3 

1,522.1 
121.1 
92.9 
26.5 

257.9 
3,512.2 

4,945.1 
1,434.9 

795.4 
642.5 
517.8 

$254.1 
262.7 

1.892.6 
732.8 

2.223.7 
244.0 

-
26.3 

280.8 
5.917.0 

4,748.5 
1,444.8 

756.7 

933.9 
469.6 

Currant assets 

Property, plant, and equipment net oi accurmilated depreciation of $2,847.2 and $2,701.0, respectively 
Regulatory assets 
Assets from risk management activities 
Goodwll 

Other long-term assets 

Total assets $11,847.9 $14,272.5 

Liabilities and Equity 
ShcHl-tenn debt 
Current portion of long-t«Tn debt 
Accour^ payat^ 
Liabilities ircMn risk management activities 
Regulatory liabiities 
Liabilities held for sate 
Deferred income taxes 
other cun«nt liabUiHes * 

$222.1 

116.5 

639.4 

1,607.1 
100.4 

0.3 

461.8 

$1,209.0 

150.9 

1,534.3 
2,189.7 

58.8 
7.5 

71.6 

494.7 

Current nabilHlBB 3.147.6 5,716.5 

Long^emi debt 
Deferred income taxes 

Deferred investment tax credits 

Regulatory liabilities 
Biviroranental remediation liabiities 
Penston and other postretirement benefit oMigatii 

Uabilities from risk management activities 
Asset retirement ot^igatiorts 

Otiier Ipng-tfflm Habflltles 

2,394.7 

658.2 

36.2 

277.6 

658.8 

640.7 

783.1 

194.8 

147.4 

2.285.7 

435.7 

36.9 

275.5 

640.6 

636.5 

762.7 

178.9 

152.B 

Long-term liabilities 5.791.5 5,405.3 

ComrnltmentB and contlngendes 

Common st<x^ - $1 par value; 200.000.000 shares authc îzed; 76.416343 shares 

75,980,143 shares outstanding 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained eamings 
Accumulated other ramprehanslve loss 
Treasury stock and shares in deferred compensation trust 

76.4 

2.497.8 

345.6 

(44.0) 

(17.2) 

76.4 

2.487.9 

624.6 

(72.8) 

(16.5) 

Total common shareholders' equi^ 2,858.6 3.099.6 
Preferred stock of subsidiary - $100 par vatue; 1,000,000 shares autlxxized; 

511.862 shares issued; 510,495 shares outstanding 

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries 

51.1 51.1 

Total liabilities and equity $11347.9 $14,272.5 

The accompanying notes to Integrys Energy Group's consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 

80 



ATTACHMENT F 

E. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY 

Integrys Errergy Group Cmnmon Shareholders' Equity 

(Millions) 

Deferred 
Compensation Additional 

Trust and Common Paid In 
Treasury Stock Stock Capital 

Retained 
Eamings 

Accumulated 
Other 

Compreliensive 
Income (Loss) 

Total 

Common Preferred 

SharehohJers' Stock of 
Equity Subsidiary 

Noncontrolling 
Interest 

$0.2 

Totai 
EqiJty 

Balance at Decemtwr 31,2DD6 ($13.5) $43.4 $689.3 $628.2 ($13.8) $1.533.6 $51.1 $1,584.9 
Net income attributed to common shareholders 
Other comprehensive Income 

C^sh flow hedges (net of tax of $3.1) 
Unrecognized pension and other postretirement 

costs (net of taxes of $3.0) 
Available-for-sale securities (net of tax of $0.2) 
Foreign currency translation (net of tax of $2.2) 

Comprehensive income 
Issuance of common stock 
PEC merger 
Stock based compensatjon 
Dividends on common stock 
Net contributions from noncontrolling parties 
Other 

251.3 

4.9 

251.3 

4.9 

(0.1) 251.2 

4.9 

1.1 
31.9 

44.5 
1,527.4 

8.7 
(177.0) 

3.8 
0.4 
3.6 

3.8 
0.4 
3.6 

264.0 
-
-
-
-

45.6 
1,559.3 

8 7 
(177.0) 

(1.5) • 3.9 (0.6) 
(^15.0) ^76.4 ^2.473.8 $701.9 

(0.2) 1.6 
$3,235.8 

-
. 
-

3.8 
0.4 
3.6 

263.9 
-
. 
-
-

0.1 
{0.2) 

45.6 
1,559.3 

8.7 
(177.0) 

0.1 
1.4 

Balance at December 31,2007 ($13) $51.1 $ ' $3,286.9 

Net Income attributed to common shareholders 
Ottier comprehensive income (loss) 

Cash flow hedges (net of tax of $33.7) 
Unrecognized pension and other postretirement 

costs (net of taxes of $8.1) 
Available-for-sale securities (net of tax of $0.3) 
Foreign currency translation (net of tax of $3.4) 

Comprehensive Income 
Cumulative e f ^ t of change in accounting principle 
Effects exchanging pension plan measuraTiait 

dale pursuant to SFAS No. 158 
Purchase of deferred compensation shares 
Stock based compensatksn 
Dividends on common sti>ck 
Net contributions from noncontrolling parttes 

126.4 

(52.8) 

(12.7) 
(0.5) 
(5.5). 

126.4 

(52.8) 

(12.7) 
(0.5) 
(5.5) 

(0.1) 

54.9 

126.3 

(52.8) 

(12.7) 
(0.5) 

j 5 ^ 
54.8 

(2.7) 
0.1 12.5 

4.5 

(3.5) 

(203.9) 

4.5 

(3.5) 
(2.7) 
12.6 

(203.9) 
0.1 

4.5 

(3-5) 
(2.7) 
12.6 

(203.9) 
0.1 

Ottier 
Balance at December 31,20D8 

1.1 
($16.5) 

1.6 
$76.4 $2,487.9 

(0.8) 
$624.6 

-
($72.8) 

1.9 
" $3,099.6 

-
$51.1 

-

i -
1.9 

$3,1507 
Net toss attributed to common shareholders 
Other comprehensive income (ioss) 

Cash flew hedges (net of tax of $17.0) 
Unrecognized pension and other postretirement 

costs (net of taxes of $3.2) 
Available-for-sale securities (net of tax of $0.1) 
Foreign currency b^nslation (net of tax of $2.6) 

Comprehensive loss 
Puniiase of deferred (x>mpensation shares 
Stock based compensation 
Dividends on common stock 
Net conbibutions from noncontrolling parties 

(70.9) 

31.5 

(6.7) 
(0.1) 
4.1 

(70.9) 

31.5 

(6.7) 
(0.1) 
4.1 

(1-0) (71.9) 

31.5 

(6.7) 
(0.1) 
4.1 

(3.1) 
0.1 

(42.1) 

11.3 
(206.9) 

(3.1) 
11.4 

(206.9) 

i43Ji 

0.1 

(3.1) 
11.4 

(206.9) 
0.1 

Other 
Balance at 6ecember 31.2009 

2.3 
($17.2) 

(1.4) 
i76.4 41497.8 

(1.2) 
$345.6 

-
$44.0 

(0.3) 
$2,858.6 

-
$51.1 

(0.3) 
($0.9) $2,908.8 

The aoxnnpanylng notes to Integrys Energy Group's consolkJated financial statements are an Inteeral part ofthese sfatemmis. 
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F. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Year Ended December 31 
2007 

Operating Actlvtttes 

Net income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

Oiscontinuad operations, net of tax 

Gooduvlli impairment ioss 

Depreciation and amortizatton expense 

Refund of nonquaMed decommissioning toist 

Recoveries and reminds of o^er regulatory assets and tiat)llltles 

Net unrealized losses (gains) on ncmregulated energy canb-acts 

Nonregulated lower of cost or market inventory adjustments 

Bad detH expense 

Pension and other postretirement expense 

Pension and other postretiranent contributions 

IDe^red inoHne taxes and invesbnent tax credit 

(Gain) Ic^s on sate of assets 

Equity income, net of dividends 

Other 

Changes in working capital 

Collateral on deposit 

Accounts rec^vatde and accrued unbilled revenues 

inventories 

Ottier curr«it assets 

Accounts payatile 

Other current liablHttes 

($68.8) $129.4 $254.3 

(2.8) 

291.1 

230.9 

(0.5) 

41.3 

104.2 

44.2 

54.6 

72.4 

(53.3) 

57.8 

25.5 

(16.1) 

38.5 

45.5 

864.8 

444.1 

39.6 

(604.7) 

(2.0) 

(4.7) 

6.5 

221.4 

(0.5) 

51.2 

(15.8) 

167.3 

76.8 

50.7 

(40.8) 

62.4 

(1.2) 

(15.1) 

9.9 

(239.2) 

(207.7) 

(312.0) 

(124.6) 

(512) 

(10.8) 

(73.3) 

195.1 

(70.6) 

32.6 

(59.5) 

7.0 

39.1 

67.5 

(35.3) 

66.8 

(1.6) 

2.4 

(24.1) 

82.0 

(30.7) 

(172.9) 

0.9 

(96.5) 

55.3 

Net casli provided by (used ftv) operaung activtUes 1,606.3 {250.0} 

Investing Activities 

Capital expenditures 

Pnaceeds firom the sale or disposal of assets 

Purchase of equity Investments 

Cash paid for transaOJon coste related to PEC merger 

Restricted cash ibr repayment of iong^enn debt 

Cash paid for transmission inteicDnnectli»i 

Proceeds received from transmissk>n interconnectiDn 

Other 

(MiSt) 

44.6 

(34.1J 

• 

-
-
-

(7.0) 

(532.8) 

31.1 

(37.8) 

-
-

(17.4) 

99.7 

5.0 

(392.6) 

15.6 

(S6.5) 

(14.4) 

22.0 

(219) 

-
8.3 

Net cast! Osed for Investing activities (440.7) (452.2) (451.5) 

Financing Activities 
Short-term d^>t, net 

Issuance of notes payabte 

Redemptior of notes payable 

Proceeds from sate of borrowed natural gas 

Purchase of natural gas to repay natural gas loans 

issuance of iong-temi debt 

Repayment of long-term debt 

Payment of di^dends 

PrefenwJ stock 

Common stodt 

Issuance of common stodt 

Proceeds from derivatiw contracts relatsd to divestitures classifiBd as financing activities 

Other 

(615.7) 

-
(1S7.9) 

162.0 

(445.2) 

230.0 

(157.8) 

(3.1) 

(206.9) 

-

569.7 

155.7 

530.4 

(267.2) 

181.5 

(58.1) 

(3.1) 

(203.9) 

-

(4617) 

. 
-

211.9 

(177.5) 

125.2 

(26.5) 

(11) 
(177.0) 

45.6 

33.9 

(17.7) (17) 5.S 
Nat cash (used for) provided by flnanclng activities (1.378.4) 911.3 (459.2) 

Change in casli and cash equivalents - continuing operations 

Change in cash and cash equivalents - discontinued operations 

The accompanying notes to integrys Energy Group's consolfdated financial statemerus are an integral part of these statements, 

(212.8) 209.1 (672.2) 

Net casii used for operMing activities 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Ctiange in casii and cash eqirivalents 

Cash and casii equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash wid cash equivalents at end of year 

3.2 

(209.6) 

254.1 

$44.5 

3.8 

212.9 

41.2 

$254.1 

(109.3) 

799.5 

18.0 

23.2 

$41.2 
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G. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Nature of Operations-lntegrys Energy Group is a holding company whose primary wholly owned 
subsidiaries at December 31. 2009 incfuded WPS, UPPCO, MGU, MERC, PGL, NSG, IBS, and Integrys 
Energy Services. Ofthese subsidiaries, six are regulated electric and/or natural gas utilities, one, IBS, is a 
wholly owned centralized service company, and one, Integrys Energy Sen/ices, is a nonregulated energy 
supply and sen/ices company. In addition, WPS Investments, LLC holds an approximate 34% interest in 
ATC. 

The term "utility" refers to the regulated activities of the electric and natural gas utility segments, while the 
term "nonutility" refers to the activities of the electric and natural gas utility segments that are not 
regulated. The term "nonregulated" refers to activities at Integrys Energy Services, the Integrys Energy 
Group holding company, and the PEC holding company. 

(b) Consolidated Basis of Presentatlon-The consolidated financial statements indude the 
accounts of Integrys Energy Group and all majority owned subsidiaries, after eliminating intercompany 
transactions and balances. If a noncontrolling owner's equity is reduced to zero, Integrys Energy Group's 
policy is to record 100% ofthe subsidiary's losses until the noncontrolling owner makes capital 
contributions or commits to fund its share of the operating costs. The cost method of accounting is used 
for investments when Integrys Energy Group does not have significant influence over the operating and 
financial policies of the investee. Investments in businesses not controlled by Integrys Energy GnDup, but 
over which it has significant influence regarding the operating and financial poiicies of the investee, are 
accounted for using the equity method. For additional information on equity method investments, see 
Note 9, "Investments in Affiliates, at Equity Method." These consolidated financial statements also reflect 
Integrys Energy Group's proportionate Interests in certain jointly owned utility facilities. 

(c) Use of Estimate^-Integrys Energy Group prepares its consolidated financial statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Integrys Energy 
Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect assets, liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabitities at the date ofthe financial statements, and the repori^d amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents-Short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or 
less are reported as cash equivalents. 

The following is supplemental disclosure to the Integrys Energy Group Consolidated Statements of Cash 
Flows: 

(Millions) 2009 2008 2007 
Cash paid for interest $164.8 $156.8 $144.5 
Cash paid for income taxes 19^1 100.9 198.1 
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Significant non-cash transactions were: 

(MUUons) 2009 2008 2007 

Construction costs funded through accounts payable $30.4 $34.2 $ 26.1 
Intangible assets (customer contracts) received in exchange 

for risk management assets 17.0 
Equity issued for net assets acquired in PEC merger _ - 1,559.3 
Realized gain on settlement of contracts due to PEC merger - - 4.0 
PEP post-closing adjustments funded through other current 

liabilities - ^ 9.9 

(e) Revenue and Customer Receivables-Revenues are recognized on the accrual basis and 
include estimated amounts for eleclric and natural gas services provided but not billed. At December 31, 
2009, and 2008, Integrys Energy Group's unbilled revenues were $337.0 million and $525.5 million, 
respectively. At December 31, 2009, there were no customers or industries that accounted for more than 
10% of Integrys Energy Group's revenues. 

Prudent fuel and purchased power costs are recovered from customers under one-for-one recovery 
mechanisms by UPPCO and by the wholesale electric operations and Michigan retail electric operations of 
WPS, which provide for subsequent adjustments to rates for changes in commodity costs. There is a 
portion of WPS's wholesale electric business that limits cost recovery to no greater than the 2-year 
average rate charged to large industrial retail customers for that same period. The costs of natural gas 
prudently incurred by the natural gas utility subsidiaries are also recovered from customers under 
one-for-one recovery mechanisms. 

WPS's Wisconsin retail electric operations do not have a one-for-one recovery mechanism. Instead, a 
"fuel window" mechanism is used to recover fuel and purchased power costs. Under the fuel window, if 
actual fuel and purchased power (X)sts deviate by more than 2% from costs included in the rates charged 
to customers, a rate review can be triggered. Once a rate review is triggered, rates may be reset (subject 
to PSCW approval) for the remainder of the year to recover or refund, on an annualized basis, the 
projected increase or decrease in the cost of fuel and purchased power. 

All of Integrys Energy Group's utility subsidiaries are required to provide service and grant credit (with 
applicable deposit requirements) to customers within their service territories. The companies continually 
review their customers' credit-worthiness and obtain or refund deposits accordingly. The utilities are 
generally precluded from discontinuing service to residential customers during winter moratorium months. 

PGL credits proceeds from its interstate services against natural gas costs, resulting in a reduction to 
utility customers' natural gas charges. 

WPS and UPPCO both sell and purchase power in the MISO maricet. If WPS or UPPCO is a net seller in 
a particular hour, the net amount is reported as revenue. If WPS or UPPCO is a net purchaser in a 
particular hour, the net amount is recorded as utility cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power on the 
Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Integrys Energy Group presents revenues net of pass-through taxes on the Consolidated Statements of 
Income. 

(f) Inventories-Inventories consist of natural gas in storage, liquid propane, and fossil fuels, 
including coal. Average cost is used to value fossil fuels, liquid propane, and natural gas in storage for the 
regulated utilities, excluding PGL and NSG. PGL and NSG price natural gas storage injections at the 
calendar year average ofthe costs of natural gas supply purchased. Withdrawals from storage are priced 
on the LIFO cost method. Inventories stated on a LIFO basis represented approximately 34% of total 
inventories at December 31, 2009, and 16% of total inventories at December 31,2008. The estimated 
replacement cost of natural gas in inventory at December 31, 2009, and December 31, 2008, exceeded 
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the LIFO cost by approximately $220.5 million and $212.2 million, respectively. In calculating these 
replacement amounts, PGL and NSG used a Chicago city-gate natural gas price per dekathemn of 
$6.14 at December 31,2009, and $5.80 at December 31,2008. 

Inventories at Integrys Energy Services are valued at the lower of cost or market unless hedged pursuant 
to a fair value hedge, in which case changes in the fair value of inventory subsequent to the hedge 
designation are recorded directly to inventory. Integrys Energy Sen/ices recorded net write-downs of 
$44.2 million, $167.3 million, and $7.0 million in 2009,2008, and 2007, respectively. 

(g) Risk Management Act iv i t ies-As part of its regular operations, Integrys Energy Group enters into 
contracts, including options, swaps, futures, fonvards, and other contractual commitments, to manage 
market risks such as changes in commodity prices and interest rates, which are described more fully in 
Note 2, "Risk Management Activities." Derivative instruments at the utilities are entered into in 
accordance with the terms of the risk management plans approved by their respective Boards of Directors 
and, if applicable, by their respective regulators. 

All derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value unless they qualify for the normal 
purchases and sales exception. Integrys Energy Group continually assesses its contracts designated as 
normal and will discontinue the treatment of these contracts as nomnal if the required criteria are no longer 
met. Most energy-related physical and financial derivatives at the utilities qualiiy for regulatory deferal. 
These derivatives are mari<ed to fair value; the resulting risk management assets are offset with regulatory 
liabilities or decreases to regulatory assets, and risk management liabilities are offset with regulatory 
assets or decreases to regulatory liabilities. Management believes any gains or losses resulting from the 
eventual settlement ofthese derivative instruments will be refunded to or collected from customers in 
rates. 

Integrys Energy Group classifies unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments that do not qualify 
for hedge accounting or regulatory deferral as a component of margins or operating and maintenance 
expense, depending on the nature of the transactions. Unrealized gains and losses on fair value hedges 
are recognized currently in revenue, as are the changes in fair value of the hedged items. To the extent 
they are effective, the changes in the values of contracts designated as cash flow hedges are included in 
other comprehensive income, net of taxes. Fair value hedge ineffectiveness and cash flow hedge 
ineffectiveness are recorded in revenue or operating and maintenance expense on the Consolidated 
Statements of Income, based on the nature of the transactions. Cash flows from derivative activities are 
presented in the same category as the item being hedged within operating activities on the Consolidated 
Statements of Cash Flows unless the derivative contracts contain an other-than-insignificant financing 
element, in which case the cash flows are classified within financing activities. 

FASB ASC 815-10-45 provides the option to present certain asset and liability derivative positions net on 
the balance sheet and to net the related cash collateral against these net derivative positions. Integrys 
Energy Group elected not to net these items. On the Consolidated Balance Sheets, cash collateral 
provided to others is shown separately as collateral on deposit, and cash collateral received from others is 
reflected in other current liabilities. 

(h) Emission Allowances-lntegrys Energy Services accounts for emission allowances as intangible 
assets, with cash inflows and outflows related to pun:hases and sales of emission allowances recorded as 
investing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Integrys Energy Services uses the 
guidance under the Property, Plant, and Equipment Topic ofthe FASB ASC to test allowances for 
impairment. The utilities account for emission allowances as inventory at average cost by vintage year. 
Charges to income result when allowances are utilized in operating the utilities' generation plants. Gains 
on sales of allowances at the utilities are returned to ratepayers. 

(i) Property, Plant, and Equipment-Utility plant is stated at original cost, including any associated 
AFUDC and asset retirement costs. The costs of renewals and bettemients of units of property (as 
distinguished from minor items of property) are capitalized as additions to the utility plant accounts. 
Except for land, no gain or loss is recognized in connection with onilinary retirements of utility prciperty 

•85-



3.04% 
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3.05% 
2.66% 
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2.55% 
1.80% 
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3.01% 
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3.42% 
2.86% * 
1.85%* 
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units. Maintenance, repair, replacement, and renewal costs associated with items not qualifying as units 
of prciperty are considered operating expenses. PGL and NSG charge the cost of units of property retired, 
sold, or othenA/ise disposed of to the accumulated provision for depreciation and record the cost of 
removal, less salvage value, associated with the retirement to depreciation expense. The other utilities 
charge the cost of units of property retired, sold, or otherwise disposed of, less salvage value, to the 
accumulated provision for depreciation and record a regulatory liability for removal costs included in rates, 
with actual removal costs charged against the liability as incurred. Consistent with the ICC rate order 
issued January 22,2010, PGL and NSG changed their method for recognizing net dismantling costs from 
as incurred to allocating the cost over the life of the asset. 

Integrys Energy Group records straight-line depreciation expense over the estimated useful life of utility 
property, using depreciation rates as approved by the applicable regulators. Annual utility composite 
depreciation rates are shown below. 

Annual Utility Composite Depreciation Rates 2009 2008 2007 
WPS - Electric 
WPS - Natural gas 
UPPCO 
MGU 
MERC 
PGL 
NSG 

Composite depreciation rate from the February 22, 2007 PEC merger date through the end of 2007. 

Interest capitalization is applied to nonutility property during construction, and a gain or loss is recognized 
for retirements. At December 31, 2009, and 2008, nonutility property at the regulated utilities consisted 
primarily of land. 

Nonregulated plant is stated at cost, which includes capitalized interest. The costs of renewals, 
bettemnents, and major overhauls are capitalized as additions to plant. The gains or losses associated 
with ordinary retirements are recorded in the period of retirement. Maintenance, repair, and minor 
replacement costs are expensed as incurred. 

Depreciation is computed for the majority of the nonregulated subsidiaries' assets using the straight-line 
method over the assets' useful lives. 

Integrys Energy Group capitalizes certain costs related to software developed or obtained for internal use 
and amortizes those costs to operating expense over the estimated useful life of the related software, 
which ranges from 3 to 15 years. If software is retired prior to being fully amortized, the difference is 
recorded as a loss on the Consolidated Statements of Income. 

See Note 6, "Property, Plant, and Equipment," for details regarding Integrys Energy Group's property, 
plant, and equipment balances. 

(j) Capitalized Interest and AFUDC-The nonregulated subsidiaries capitalize interest for 
construction projects, while the utilities capitalize the cost of funds used for construction using a 
calculation that includes both internal equity and external debt components. The internal equity 
component of capitalized AFUDC is accounted for as other income, and the extemal debt component is 
accounted for as a decrease to interest expense. 

Approximately 50% of WPS's retail jurisdic t̂ional construction wori< in progress expenditures are subject to 
the AFUDC calculation. For 2009, WPS's average AFUDC retail rate was 8.61 %, and its average AFUDC 
wholesale rate was 7.78%. WPS's allowance for equity funds used during constmction for 2009, 2008, 
and 2007 was $6.1 million, $5,2 million, and $0.9 million, respectively. WPS's allowance for borrowed 

-86-



ATTACHMENT F 

funds used during construction for 2009, 2008, and 2007 was $2.0 million, $1.8 million, and $0.3 million, 
respectively. 

The AFUDC calculation for IBS and the other utilities is detennined by the respective state commissions, 
each with specific requirements. Based on these requirements, IBS and the other utilities did not record 
significant AFUDC for 2009, 2008, or 2007. 

Interest capitalized at the nonregulated subsidiaries was not significant during 2009,2006, and 2007. 

(k) Regulatory Assets and Liabilities—Regulatory assets represent probable future revenue 
associated with certain costs or liabilities that have been deferred and are expected to be recovered from 
customers through the ratemaking process. Regulatory liabilities represent amounts that are expected to 
be refunded to customers in future rates or amounts collected in rates for future costs. If at any reporting 
date a previously recorded regulatory asset is no longer probable of recovery, the regulatory asset is 
reduced to the amount considered probable of recovery with the reduction charged to expense in the year 
the determination is made. See Note 8, "Regulatory Assets and Liabilities," for more infonnation. 

(I) Asset Impainnent—Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, 
but are subject to an annual impainnent test. Other long-lived assets require an impaimient review when 
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Integrys Energy 
Group bases its evaluation of other long-lived assets on the presence of impairment indicators such as the 
future economic benefit ofthe assets, any historical or future profitability measurements, and other 
external maricet conditions or factors. 

Integrys Energy Group's reporting units containing goodwill perfonn annual goodwill impairment tests 
during the second quarter of each year, and interim impainnent tests are performed when impairment 
indicators are present. The canying amount ofthe reporting unit's goodwill is considered not recoverable 
if the carrying amount of the reporting unit as a whole exceeds the reporting unit's fair value. An 
impaimient charge is recorded for any excess of the carrying value of the goodwill over the implied fair 
value. For more information on Integrys Energy Group's goodwill and other intangible assets, see 
Note 10, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." 

The canying amount of assets held and used is considered not recoverable if It exceeds the undiscounted 
sum of cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. If the carrying 
value is not recoverable, the impainnent loss is measured as the excess of the asset's canying value over 
its fair value. 

The carrying value of assets held for sale is not recoverable if it exceeds the fair value less cost to sell the 
asset. An impainnent charge is recorded for any excess of the carrying value over the fair value less 
estimated cost to sell. 

The carrying values of cost and equity method investments are assessed for impairment by comparing the 
fair values of these investments to their carrying values, if a fair value assessment was completed, or by 
reviewing for the presence of impairment indicators. If an impainnent exists and it is determined to be 
other-than-temporary, a charge is recognized equal to the amount the carrying value exceeds the 
investment's fair value. 

(m) Retirement of Debt-Any call premiums or unamortized expenses associated with refinancing 
utility debt obligations are amortized consistent with regulatory treatment of those items. Any gains or 
losses resulting from the retirement of nonutility debt are recorded through eamings, while gains or losses 
resulting from the retirement of utility debt that is not refinanced are either amortized over the remaining 
life of the original debt or recorded through earnings. 

(n) Asset Retirement Obligations-lntegrys Energy Group recognizes legal obligations at fair value 
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction or 
development, and/or nonnal operation of the assets. A liability is recorded for these obligations as long as 
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the fair value can be reasonably estimated, even if the timing or method of settling the obligation is 
unknown. The asset retirement obligations are accreted using a credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate 
commensurate with the expected settlement dates of the asset retirement obligations; this rate is 
detemiined at the date the obligation is incurred. The associated retirement costs are capitalized as part 
of the related long-lived assets and are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets. See Note 14, 
"Asset Retirement Obligations," for more information. 

(o) Income Taxes-Deferred income taxes have been recorded to recognize the expected future tax 
consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements by using currently enacted tax 
rates for the differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and the basis reported in the 
financial statements. Integrys Energy Group records valuation allowances for defen-ed tax assets when it 
is uncertain if the benefit will be realized in the future. Integrys Energy Group's regulated utilities defer 
certain adjustments made to income taxes that will impact future rates and record regulatory assets or 
liabilities related to these adjustments. 

Investment tax credits that reduce income taxes payable for the current year are recognized as a 
reduction ofthe provision for income taxes if the credits are generated in Integrys Energy Group's 
nonregulated operations unless it is likely that the related property that generated the tax credits will be 
sold after the end of the year with the tax credits transferred to the seller as pemiitted under tax law. For 
investment tax credits generated within regulated operations, regulators reduce Integrys Energy Group's 
future rates over the lives of the prc>perty to which the tax credits relate. Accordingly, Integrys Energy 
Grc)up defers the investment tax credits in the year the taxes payable are reduced and reduces the 
provision for income taxes over the useful lives of the related property. Production tax credits generally 
reduce the provision for income taxes in the year that electricity from the qualifying facility is generated 
and sold. Investment tax credits and production tax credits that do not reduce income taxes payable for 
the current year are eligible for carryover and recognized as a deferred tax asset. A valuation allowance is 
established unless it is more likely than not that the credits will be realized during the carryforward period. 

Integrys Energy Group files a consolidated United States income tax return that includes domestic 
subsidiaries of which its ownership is 80% or more. Integrys Energy Group and its consolidated 
subsidiaries are parties to a tax allocation arrangement under which each entity determines its provision 
for income taxes on a stand-alone basis. In several states, combined or consolidated filing is required for 
certain members of Integrys Energy Group doing business in that state. The tax allocation arrangement 
equitably allocates the state taxes associated with these combined or consolidated filings. 

Integrys Energy Group reports interest and penalties accrued related to income taxes as a component of 
provision for income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Income, as well as regulatory assets or 
regulatory liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

For more infonnation regarding Integrys Energy Group's accounting for income taxes, see Note 15, 
"Income Taxes." 

(p) Guarantees-lntegrys Energy Group follows the guidance of the Guarantees Topic of the FASB 
ASC, wh\ch requires that the guarantor recognize, at the inception of the guarantee, a liability for the fair 
value ofthe obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. For additional information on guarantees, see 
Note 17, "Guarantees" 

(q) Employee Beneflts-The costs of pension and other postretirement benefits are expensed over 
the periods during which employees render service. The transition obligation related to other 
postretirement plans that existed at Integrys Energy Group prior to the PEC merger is being recognized 
over a 20-year period beginning in 1993. In computing the expected retum on plan assets, Integrys 
Energy Group uses a market-related value of plan assets. Changes in fair value are recognized over the 
subsequent five years for plans sponsored by WPS, while differences between actual investment returns 
and the expected return on plan assets are recognized over a five-year period for pension plans 
sponsored by IBS and PEC. The benefit costs associated with employee benefit plans are allocated 
among Integrys Energy GnDup's subsidiaries based on employees' time reporting and actuarial 
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calculations, as applicable. Integrys Energy Group's regulators allow recovery in rates for the regulated 
utilities' net periodic benefit cost calculated under GAAP. 

Integrys Energy Group recognizes the funded status of defined benefit postretirement plans on the 
balance sheet, and recognizes changes in the plans' funded status in the year in which the changes occur. 
Integrys Energy Group's nonregulated segments reconJ changes in the funded status in other 

comprehensive income, and the regulated utilities record these changes to regulatory asset or liability 
accounts. 

Integrys Energy Group uses a December 31 measurement date for all of its pension and other 
postretirement benefit plans. 

For additional infonnation on Integrys Energy Group's employee benefits, see Note 18, "Employee Benefit 
Plans." 

(r) Fair Value-Effective January 1, 2008, Integrys Energy Group adopted SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value 
Measurements" (now incorporated as part of the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the 
FASB ASC). This standard defined fair value and required enhanced disclosures about assets and 
liabilities carried at fair value. These disclosures can be found in Note 22, "Fair Value" 

A fair value measurement is required to reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing 
an asset or liability based on the best available information. These assumptions include the risks inherent 
in a particular valuation technique (such as a pricing model) and the risks inherent in the inputs to the 
model. Also, transaction costs should not be considered in the determination of fair value. On 
January 1, 2008, Integrys Energy Group recognized an increase in nonregulated revenues of $11.0 million 
due to the exclusion of transaction costs from Integrys Energy Services' fair value estimates. 

SFAS No. 157 nullified a portion of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-3, "Issues Involved in 
Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading 
and Risk Management Activities." Under Issue No. 02-3, inception gains or losses were defen-ed unless 
the fair value of the derivative was substantially based on quoted prices or other current martlet 
transactions. However, SFAS No. 157 pnDvided a framewori< to consider, in evaluating a transaction, 
whether a transaction represents fair value at initial recognition. Integrys Energy Services recognized a 
pre-tax cumulative effect increase to retained earnings of $4.5 million on January 1,2008, related to the 
nullification of the aforementioned portion of Issue No. 02-3. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between martlet participants at the measurement date (exit price). Integrys Energy Group 
utilizes a mid-market pricing convention (the mid-point price between bid and ask prices) as a practical 
expedient for valuing certain derivative assets and liabilities. 

SFAS No. 157 established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The 
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active maricets for identical assets or 
liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). 
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows: 

Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active martlets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting 
date. Active markets are those in which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency 
and volume to provide pricing infomnation on an ongoing basis. 

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly, but are not quoted prices included 
within Level 1. Level 2 includes those financial instruments that are valued using extemal inputs within 
models or other valuation methodologies. 

Level 3 - Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less observable from objective 
sources. These inputs may be used with internally developed methodologies that result in management's 
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best estimate of fair value. Level 3 instruments include those that may be more stmctured or otherwise 
tailored to customers' needs. 

Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement. 

(s) Subsequent Events-Subsequent events at Integrys Energy Group were evaluated for potential 
recognition or disclosure thn^ugh February 25,2010, which is the date the consolidated financial 
statements were issued. 

(t) New Accounting Pronouncements-SFAS No. 167, "Amendments to FASB Interpretation 
No. 46(R)" (now incorporated as part ofthe Consolidation Topic of the FASB ASC), was issued in 
June 2009. This statement intrtxluces a requirement to perfonn ongoing assessments to detemnine 
whether an entity is a variable interest entity and whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a 
variable interest entity. In addition, this statement clarifies that the enterprise that Is required to 
consolidate a variable interest entity will have a controlling financial interest evidenced by 
(1) the power to direct the activities that most significantly affect the entity's economic performance, and 
(2) the obligation to absoris losses or the right to receive benefits that are potentially significant to the 
variable interest entity. Additional disclosures are required regarding involvement with variable interest 
entities, as well as the methodology used to detemnine the primary beneficiary of any variable interest 
entities. This standard was effective for Integrys Energy Group beginning January 1, 2010. Management 
is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption will have on Integrys Energy Gnaup's first quarter 2010 
consolidated financial statements. 

NOTE 2-RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 

The following table shows Integrys Energy Group's assets and liabilities from risk management activities: 

millions) 
Utility Segmente 
Non-hedge derivatives 

Commodity contracts 
Commodity contracts 

Cash flow hedges 
Commodity contracts 
Commodity contracts 

Nonregulated Segmente 
Non-hedge derivatives 

Commodity contracts 
Commodity contracts 
Interest rate swaps 
Interest rate swaps 
Foreign exchange contracts 
Foreign exchange contracts 

Fair value hedges 
Commodity contracts 
Interest rate swaps 
Interest rate swaps 

Cash flow hedges 
Commodity contracts 
Commodity contracts 
Interest rate swaps 
Interest rate swaps 
Foreign exchange contracts 

Total 

Balance Sheet 
Presentation^ 

Cunent 
Long-term 

Cunent 
Long-term 

Cunent 
Long-term 
Cunent 
Long-temn 
Current 
Long-term 

Cun-ent 
Cunent 
Long-tenn 

Current 
Long-term 
Cun-ent 
Long-temi 
Current 

Risk Manaaement Assete 

DecemlMr 31 
2009 

$ 10.8 
2.0 

• 

-

1.503.9 
787.2 

-
-

1.0 
0.9 

-
1.8 
0.8 

4.6 
4.5 

-
-
. 

$2,317.5 

December 31 
2008 

S 28.6 
-

-
-

2,080.9 
750.0 

-
-

2.8 
2.5 

14.2 
1.1 
2.1 

81.3 
4.1 

-
-

14.8 
$2,982.4 

RI?k|V)gpaqem9ntUabHiti6? 

December 31 
2009 

$ 24.7 
1.5 

0.2 
0.1 

1,548.4 
769.5 

1.0 
2.5 
0.9 
0.9 

-
-
-

30.1 
8.6 
1.8 

-
. 

$2,390.2 

December 31 
2008 

$ 161.6 
9.0 

1.5 
-

1,944.2 
729.7 

1.0 
3.3 
0.5 
2.3 

-
-
-

79.4 
14.8 
1.5 
3.6 

-
$2,952.4 

Assets and liabilities from risk management activities are classified as current or long-term based upon the maturities ofthe 
underlying contracts. 
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At December 31,2008, $0.6 million of cun'ent non-hedge commodity derivative contracts were classified 
as liabilities held for sale in the nonregulated Integrys Energy Services segment. For more infonnation 
see Note 4, "Dispositions." 

The following table shows Integrys Energy Group's cash collateral positions: 

millions) December 31,2009 December 31 , 2008 
Cash collateral provided to others $184.9 $262.7 
Cash collateral received f rom others 55^2 18.9 

Certain of Integrys Energy Gnaup's derivative and nonderivative commodity instruments contain provisions 
that could require "adequate assurance" in the event of a material adverse change in Integrys Energy 
Group's creditworthiness, or the posting of additional collateral for instruments in net liability positions, if 
triggered by a decrease in credit ratings. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with 
specific credit-risk related contingent features that were in a liability position at December 31, 2009, was 
$579.6 million. As of December 31, 2009, Integrys Energy Group had not posted any cash collateral 
related to the credit-risk related contingent features of these commodity instruments. 

If all of the credit-risk related contingent features contained in commodity instruments (including 
derivatives, non-derivatives, normal purchase and normal sales contracts, and applicable payables and 
receivables) had been triggered at December 31,2009, Integrys Energy Group would have been required 
to post collateral of $566.3 million. Of this amount, Integrys Energy Group had already satisfied 
$51.9 miliion with letters of credit. Therefore, the remaining collateral requirement would have been 
$514.4 million. 

Utility Segments 

Non-Hedge Derivatives 

Utility derivatives include a limited number of natural gas purchase contracts, financial derivative contracts 
(futures, options, and swaps), and financial transmission rights (FTRs) used to manage electric 
transmission congestion costs. The futures, options, and swaps were used by both the electric and 
natural gas utility segments to mitigate the risks associated with the maricet price volatility of natural gas 
supply costs and the costs of gasoline and diesel fuel used by utility vehicles. 

The table below shows the unrealized gains (losses) recorded related to non-hedge derivatives at the 
utilities. 

(Mittimis) Financial Statement Presentation 2009 
Commodity contracts Balance Sheet - Regulatory assets (cun-ent) $122.5 
Commodity contracts Balance Sheet - Regulatory assets (long-term) 7.3 
Commodity contracts Balance Sheet - Regulatory liabilities (cunent) (1.0) 
Commodity contracts Balance Sheet - Regulatory liabilities (long-term) 
Commodity contracts Income Statement - Utility cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power 0.1 _ 

At December 31, 2009, the utilities had the following notional volumes of outstanding non-hedge derivative 
contracts: 

Purchases Other Transactions 
Natural gas (millions of therms) 
FTRs (millions of kilowatt-hours) 
Petroleum products (barrels) 

833.2 
N/A 

42,823 

N/A 
4,546.6 

N/A 
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Cash Flow Hedges 

PGL uses commodity contracts designated as cash flow hedges to hedge changes in the price of natural 
gas used to support operations. These contracts extend through December 2011. At 
December 31,2009, PGL had the following notional volumes of outstanding contracts that were 
designated as cash flow hedges: 

Purchases 
Natural gas (millions of themis) 9 ^ 

Changes in the fair values of the effective portions of these contracts are included in other comprehensive 
income (OCI), net of taxes. Amounts recorded in OCI related to these cash flow hedges will be 
recognized in earnings when the hedged transactions occur, or if it is prc>bable that the hedged transaction 
will not occur. The tables below show the amounts related to cash flow hedges recorded in OCI and in 
eamings. 

Unrealteed Loss Recognized in 
OCI on Derivative Instruments 

(Effectwe Portion) 
(Millions) 2009 
Commodity contracts $(1.4> 

Loss Reclassified from Accumulated 
OCI Into Income (Effective Portion) 

(Millions) Income Statement Presentation 2009 
Settled commixlity contracts Operating and maintenance expense $(2.6) 

The amount reclassified from accumulated OCI into eamings as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow 
hedge accounting for certain hedge transactions was not significant during 2009, was a pre-tax loss of 
$2.7 million during 2008, and was not significant during 2007. Cash flow hedge ineffectiveness related to 
these commodity contracts was not significant during 2009 and 2008, and was a pre-tax loss of 
$4.4 million in 2007. When testing for effectiveness, no portion of the derivative instruments was 
excluded. In the next 12 months, PGL expects that an insignificant pre-tax loss will be recognized in 
earnings as the hedged transactions occur. 

Nonregulated Segments 

Non-Hedge Derivatives 

Integrys Energy Group's nonregulated segments enter into derivative contracts such as futures, forwarcls, 
options, and swaps that are not designated as accounting hedges underGAAP. In most cases, these 
contracts are used to manage commodity price risk associated with customer related contracts, interest 
rate risk associated with expected future natural gas purchases, and foreign currency exchange rate risk 
related to the wrap up of the Canadian mariceting operations. 

At December 31, 2009, the nonregulated segments had the following notional volumes of outstanding 
non-hedge derivative contracts: 

(Millions) 
Commodity contracts 

Natural gas (themis) 
Power (kilowatt-hour^) 

interest rate swaps 
Foreign exchange contracts 

Purchases 

2,990.4 
132,200.4 

N/A 
$35.1 

Sales 

2,917.1 
125,983.1 

N/A 
$35.1 

Other 
Transactions 

N/A 
N/A 

$219.2 
N/A 
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Gains (losses) related to non-hedge derivatives are recognized currently in earnings, as shown in the table 
below. 

(Millions) Income Statement Presentation 2009 
Commodity contracts Nonregulated revenue $ (5.1) 
Commodity contracts Nonregulated revenue (reclassified from accumulated OCI) (3.2) * 
Interest rate swaps Interest expense (1.7) 
Foreign exchange contracts Nonregulated revenue (1.8) 
Total $(11.8) 

* Represents amounts amortized out of accumulated OCI related to cash flow hedges that were dedesignated in 
prior quarters. 

Fair Value Hedges 

At PEC, an interest rate swap designated as a fair value hedge is used to hedge changes in the fair value 
i^$50.0millionofPECSeries A 6.9% notes due January 15, 2011. The changes in the fair value of this 
hedge are recognized currently in eamings, as are the changes in fair value of the hedged item. 
Unrealized gains (losses) related to the fair value hedge and the related hedged item are shown in the 
table below. 

(Millions) 
Interest rate swap 
Debt hedged by swap 
Total 

Income Statement 
Presentation 

Interest expense 
Interest expense 

2009 
$(0.6) 

0.6 
$ -

Fair value hedge ineffectiveness recorded in interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income 
was not significant in 2009, 2008, and 2007. No amounts were excluded from effectiveness testing 
related to the interest rate swap during 2009,2008, and 2007. 

During the year ended December 31,2009, Integrys Energy Services did not have any commodity 
derivative contracts designated as fair value hedges. During the years ended December 31,2008, and 
2007, Integrys Energy Services had commodity derivative contracts designated as fair value hedges to 
mitigate the risk of changes in the price of natural gas held in storage. Fair value hedge ineffectiveness 
recorded in nonregulated revenue on the Consolidated Statements of Income was not significant in 2008 
and 2007. Changes in the difference between the spot and fon/vard prices of natural gas were excluded 
frc>m the assessment of hedge effectiveness and reported directly in nonregulated revenue. The amount 
excluded was a pre-tax gain of $5.5 million during 2008 and was not significant during 2007. 

Cash Flow Hedges 

Commodity futures, fomvards, and swaps that are designated as cash flow hedges extend through April 
2014, and are used to mitigate the risk of cash flow variability associated with future purchases and sales 
of natural gas and electricity. Integrys Energy Group also has two interest rate swaps that are designated 
as cash flow hedges to fix the interest rate on an unsecured term loan through June 2010. At 
December 31,2009, the nonregulated segments had the following notional volumes of outstanding 
contracts that were designated as cash ftow hedges: 

(Mmk>ns) 
Commodity contracts 

Natural gas (therms) 
Power (kilowatt-hours) 

Interest rate swaps 

Purchases 

5.9 
7,116.2 

N/A 

Sales 

8.6 
-

N/A 

Other Transactions 

N/A 
N/A 

$65.6 

Changes in the fair values of the effective portions of contracts designated as cash flow hedges are 
included in OCI, net of taxes. Amounts recorcled in OCI related to cash flow hedges will be recognized in 
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earnings when the hedged transactions occur, or if it is probable that the hedged transaction will not occur. 
The tables below show the amounts related to cash flow hedges recorded in OCI and in earnings. 

Unrealaed Gain (Loss) Recognized 
in OCI on Derivative Instruments 

(Effective Portion) 
(Millions) 2009 
Commodity contracts $(60.0) 
Interest rate swaps 3.2 

Gain (Loss) Reclassified from 
Accumulated OCI into Income 

(Effertive Portion) 
(Millions) 
Settled/Realized 

Commodity contracts 
Interest rate swaps 

Hedge Designation Discontinued 
Commodity contracts 

Totai 

Income Statement Presentation 

Nonregulated revenue 
Interest expense 

Nonregulated revenue 

20Q9 

$(107.3) 
1.2 

2.7 
$(103.4) 

Loss Recognized in Income on 
Derivative Instrumente (Ineffective 

Portion and Amount Excluded from 
Effectiveness Testing) 

(Millions) Income Statement Presentation 2009 
Commodity contracts Nonregulated revenue $(1.1) 

In the next 12 months, subject to changes in maricet prices of natural gas and electricity, a pre-tax loss of 
$34.0 million related to cash flow hedges of commodity contracts is expected to be recognized in earnings 
as the hedged transactions occur. This amount is expected to be substantially offset by the settlement of 
the related nonderivative hedged contracts. 

NOTE 3-RESTRUCTURING EXPENSE 

Reductions in Workforce 

In an effort to pennanently remove costs from its operations, Integrys Energy Group developed a plan at 
the end of 2009 that includes reductions in the woridbrce. In connection with this plan, $18.0 million of 
employee-related and consulting costs, including an insignificant curtailment loss for a nonqualified 
pension plan, were included in the restructuring expense line item on the Consolidated Statements of 
Income. An insigniflcant amount was paid out in 2009 for consulting fees. The restructuring costs were 
distributed across Integrys Energy Group's segments as follows: 

(Millions) 2009 
Electric utility 
Natural gas utility 
Integrys Energy Services 
Holding company and other 
Total restructuring expense 

$ 8.6 
6.9 
1.7 
0.8 

$18.0 

Integrys Energy Services Strategy Change 

Integrys Energy Group is in the process of significantly reducing the size of its nonregulated energy 
services business segment to a smaller segment with significantly reduced credit and collateral support 
requirements. In connection with this strategy, the following restructuring costs were expensed: 
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(Millions) 20W 
Employee-related costs $10.1 
Legal and consulting 9.2 
Software write-offs and accelerated depreciation 5.9 
Miscellaneous 0^3 
Total restructuring expense $25.5 

All of the above costs were related to the Integrys Energy Services segment and were included In the 
restructuring expense line item on the Consolidated Statements of Income. 

The following table summarizes the activity related to employee-related restructuring expense: 

(MiUions) ^ 2009 
Accrued employee-related costs at beginning of period $ -
Employee-related costs expensed 10.1 
Cash payments 1.9 
Accrued employee-related costs at end of period $ 8.2 

Integrys Energy Group expects to incur total employee-related restructuring expense of approximately 
$12 million related to the Integrys Energy Services strategy change by the end of 2010, including the 
$10.1 million expensed as of December 31, 2009. 

NOTE 4»DISPOSmONS 

integrys Energy Services Strategy Change 

As part of Integrys Energy Group's decision to signiflcantiy reduce the size of its nonregulated energy 
services business segment with significantly reduced credit and collateral support requirements, it entered 
into the following sale agreements during 2009. 

PnDposed Sale of United States Whoiesate Electric Marketing and Trading Business 

In December 2009, Integrys Energy Services entered into a definitive agreement to sell substantially all of 
its United States wholesale electric mariceting and trading business. The closing of this sale is contingent 
upon obtaining certain customary contractual consents and necessary regulatory approvals. Effective 
February 1,2010, Integrys Energy Services transforced substantially all ofthe market risk associated with 
this business by entering Into trades with the buyer that mirror Integrys Energy Services' underiying 
wholesale electric contracts. Integrys Energy Services expects to transfer title to the underlying contracts 
and close the transaction by the end of the second quarter of 2010, at which time these min-or transactions 
will terminate. 

The canying values of the major classes of assets and liabilities included in the sale agreement were as 
follows at December 31. 2009: 

(MUUons) 

Current assets from risk management activities 
Long-temn assets from risk management activities 
Total assets 

Cun-ent liabilities from risk management activities 
Long-term liabilities from risk management activities 
Total liabilities 

$1,219.7 
629.4 

$1,849.1 

$1,229.8 
602.2 

$1,832.0 
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Based on the terms of the sale agreement and the carrying amount of the net assets being sold, had the 
sale transaction closed on December 31,2009, Integrys Energy Services would have realized a non-cash 
loss on the sale of appnDximately $58 million pre-tax. Also included in the sale transaction are commodity 
contracts that do not meet the GAAP definition of derivative instruments, and therefore are not reflected on 
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. In acconJance with GAAP, expected gains or losses related to 
nonderivative commodity contracts are not recognized until the contracts are settled. The gain or loss on 
the sale will be recorded in the period the contracts are transferred to the buyer as this transfer represents 
settlement. Furthermore, changes in fonn^ard electric prices will impact the ultimate gain or loss on the 
sale and could be different than the aforementioned loss that was computed assuming a December 31, 
2009 closing date. In conjunction with the sale, Integrys Energy Services will enter into derivative 
contracts with the buyer to reestablish the economic hedges for the retained retail business at the same 
prices and other tenns previously executed through Integrys Energy Services' wholesale electric 
marketing business being sold. Had these new third-party derivative contracts been entered into at 
December 31, 2009, the amount of assets and liabilities from risk management activities would have been 
as follows: 

(MUiions) 

Current assets from risk management activities 
Long-tenn assets from risk management activities 
Total assets 

Current liabilities from risk management activifies 
Long-temi liabilities from risk management activities 
Total liabilities 

$50.1 
30.5 

$80.6 

$78.9 
42.8 

$121.7 

Sale of Generation Assets in New Brunswick, Canada and Northern Maine, and Associated Retail Electric 
Contracts 

In November 2009, Integrys Energy Services entered into deflnitive agreements that it subsequently 
ctosed in the first quarter of 2010, for the sale of two of its power generation companies, which own 
generation assets in New Brunswick, Canada and Northern Maine, along with the associated retail electric 
contracts and standand offer service contracts in Northern Maine. The proceeds from the sale of the 
generation companies and associated retail electric contracts were $38.5 million, and the estimated pre­
tax gain on the sale to be recognized during the first quarter of 2010 is approximately $15 million, subject 
to certain post-closing adjustments. 
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The carrying values of the major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows: 

(Millions) December 31.2009 December 31,2008 

Inventories $ 0.1 $ 0.1 
Property, plant, and equipment - net of accumulated 

depreciation of $9.7 and $9.0, respectively 25.1 24.8 
Other long-term assets 1̂ 3 1 4 
Total assets $26.5 $26.3 

Cument portion of long-term debt $ - $ 4.3 
Cun'ent liabilities from risk management activities - 0.6 
Other current liabilities - 0.1 
Long-temi debt - 2.3 
Asset retirement obligations 0^3 0^2 
Total liabilities $ 0.3 $ 7.5 

Sale of United States Wholesale Natural Gas Marketing and Trading Business 

In October 2009, Integrys Energy Services entered into definitive agreements to sell the majority of its 
United States wholesale natural gas marketing and trading business in a two-part transaction. In 
December 2009, Integrys Energy Services completed the first part of the transaction by selling 
substantially all of its United States wholesale natural gas mariceting and trading business. The second 
part of this transaction includes wholesale natural gas storage contracts. Integrys Energy Services will 
continue to pursue the sale of these contracts throughout the year. The pre-tax loss on the sale of the 
United States wholesale natural gas mariceting and trading business reported during the fourth quarter of 
2009 was $28.5 million and is reported as a component of loss on Integrys Energy Services dispositions 
related to strategy change in the Consolidated Statements of hicome. 

The following table shows the canying values of the major classes of assets and liabilities included in the 
sale at the December 4, 2009 closing date. 

(MiUions) 

Inventories 
Cunent assets from risk management activities 
Long-temn assets from risk management activities 
Total assets 

Accounts payable 
Current liabilities fi-om risk management activities 
Long-term liabilities from risk management activities 
Total liabilities 

$ 9.9 
261.2 

68.6 
$339.7 

$ 36.0 
311.7 

79.8 
$427.5 

In addition to the above recognized assets and liabilities, commodity contracts that are not accounted for 
as derivatives were also transferred to the buyer. 
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In conjunction with the transaction, Integrys Energy Services entered into derivative contracts with the 
buyer to reestablish the economic hedges for the retained retail business, at the same prices and other 
terms previously executed through Integrys Energy Services' wholesale natural gas marketing and trading 
business being sold. The execution of these new third-party derivative contracts resulted in assets and 
liabilities from risk management activities as follows at the date of the sale: 

(Millions) 

Cunent assets from risk management activities 
Long-term assets from risk management activities 
Total assets 

Current liabilities from risk management activities 
Lonq-temri liabilities fn^m risk management activities 
Total liabilities 

$62.6 
25.9 

$88.5 

$134.3 
53.8 

$188.1 

In January 2010, the buyer ofthe wholesale natural gas mariceting and trading business exercised its 
option to purchase certain of the wholesale natural gas storage contracts from Integrys Energy Services in 
a subsequent sale. There is not anticipated to be a significant gain or loss on the sale ofthese natural gas 
storage contracts during the first quarter of 2010. 

The carrying values ofthe major assets and liabilities included in this sale were as follows at 
Decembers! 2009: 

(MiUions) 

Inventories 
Current assets fnam risk management activities 
Long-tenn assets from risk management activities 
Total assets 

Accounts payable 
Current liabilities from risk management activities 
Long-temn liabilities fn^m risk management activities 
Total liabilities 

$16.1 
37.5 
8.9 

$62.5 

$24.8 
42.9 
7.5 

$75.2 

Sale of Canadian Natural Gas and Electric Power Portfolio 

In September 2009, Integrys Energy Services of Canada, a subsidiary of Integrys Energy Services, sold 
neariy all of its Canadian natural gas and electric power contract portfolio. In a separate transaction, 
Integrys Energy Services of Canada sold a 2 billion cubic foot (bcif) natural gas storage contract to a 
counterparty. With these two transactions, Integrys Energy Services exited the majority of its electric and 
natural gas marketing business in Canada. The pre-tax loss on the sale ofthe Canadian porffolio was 
$0.4 million and is reported as a component of loss on Integrys Energy Services dispositions related to 
strategy change in the Consolidated Statements of Income. 
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The following table shciws the carrying values of the major classes of assets and liabilities included in the 
transactions at the closing dates. 

(MiUions) 

Inventories 
Current assets from risk management activities 
Long-temi assets from risk management activities 
Total assets 

Current liabilities from risk management activities 
Long-term liabilities from risk management activities 
Total liabilities 

$ 5.3 
134.7 
48.6 

$188.6 

$119.8 
32.3 

$152.1 

In conjunction with the transaction, Integrys Energy Services entered into derivative contracts with the 
buyer to reestablish the economic hedges for the retained United States retail business, at the same 
prices and other tenns previously executed through Integrys Energy Services' Canadian natural gas and 
electric power portfolio being sold. The execution of these new third-party derivative contracts resulted in 
assets and liabilities from risk management activities as follows at the date of sale: 

(MiUions) 

Current assets from risk management activities 
Lonq-temi assets from risk management activities 
Total assets 

Current liabilities from risk management activities 
Long-tenn liabilities from risk management activities 
Total-liabilities 

$21.8 
8.8 

$30.6 

$14.2 
6.3 

$20.5 

Discontinued Operations Resulting from Integrys Energy Services Strategy Change 

Energy Management Consulting Business 

During 2009, Integrys Energy Services completed the sale of its energy management consulting business 
and received proceeds of $4.7 million. This business provided consulting services relating to long-term 
strategies for managing energy c:osts for its customers. The historical flnancial results of this business 
were not signiflcant. The gain on sale of this business reported in discontinued operations was 
$3.9 million ($2.4 million after-tax). 

Other Discontinued Operations 

Stoneman 

During the third quarter of 2008, Integrys Energy Services sold its subsidiary Mid-American Power, LLC, 
which owned the Stoneman generatbn facility, located in Wisconsin. The historical financial results of this 
business were not significant. In the fourth quarter of 2008, Integrys Energy Services recognized a 
$6.3 million ($3.8 million after-tax) gain on the sale of this business in discontinued operations when a 
previously contingent payment was eamed*and paid by the buyer. This contingent payment resulted from 
legislation that was passed in the fourth quart:er of 2008, which extended the production tax credits available 
for certain biomass facilities. 

•99-



ATTACHMENT F 

PEP 

In September 2007, Integrys Energy Group completed the sale of PEP, an oil and natural gas production 
subsidiary acquired in the PEC merger, for $869.2 million, net of certain post-closing adjustments. These 
post-closing adjustments were funded through other cun-ent liabilities at December 31, 2007, and, 
therefore, are included in Note 1(d), "Summary of Signi^cant Accounting Policies- Cash and Cash 
Equivalents," as a non-cash transactran for 2007. Including the impact of the post-closing adjustments, 
the pre-tax gain recorded for 2007 was $12.6 million ($7.6 million after-tax), and was included as a 
component of discontinued operations. In 2008, $0.8 million of tax adjustments related to the 2007 PEP 
sale was recorded as income from discontinued operations. 

Components C3f discontinued operations reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income related to 
PEP were: 

February 22,2007 
through 

(MiUions) December 31,2007 

Nonregulated revenues $114.2 

Operating and maintenance expense 28.5 
Gain on PEP sale (12.6) 
Taxes other than income taxes 5.1 
Other expense OJ 

Income before taxes 93.1 
Pnjvision for income taxes 346 
Discontinued operations, net of tax $ 58.5 

It is Integrys Energy Group's policy to not allocate interest to discontinued operations unless the asset 
group being sold has external debt obligations. PEP had no external debt obligations during the period 
shown above. 

WPS Niagara Generation, LLC 

In January 2007, Integrys Energy Services completed the sale of WPS Niagara Generation, LLC (Niagara) 
and received proceeds of appnsximately $31 million. This facility was a merchant generation facility and 
sold power on a wholesale basis. Integrys Energy Services recognized a $24.6 million ($14.7 million after­
tax) gain on the sale of this business in discontinued operations. 
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Components of discontinued operations reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income related to 
Niagara for tiie year ended December 31 were as follows: 

(MiUions) 2007 

Nonregulated revenues $1.5 

Nonregulated cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power 1.0 
Operating and maintenance expense 0.5 
Gain on Niagara sale (24.6) 

Income before taxes 24.6 
Provision for income taxes 9.8 
Discontinued operations, net of tax $14.8 

No interest expense was allocated to discontinued operations as Niagara had no external debt obligations 
during the periods shown above. 

During 2008, Integrys Energy Services recorded a $0.1 million after-tax gain in discontinued operations 
related to amortization of an environmental indemnification guarantee included as part of the sale 
agreement. 

During 2009, Integrys Energy Services recorded a $0.4 million after-tax gain in discontinued operations 
related to a refund received in connection with the overpayment of auxiliary power service in prior years. 

NOTE 5-PEC MERGER 

The PEC merger was completed on February 21, 2007 and was accounted for under the purchase* 
method of accounting, with Integrys Energy Group as the acquirer. In the merger, shareholders of PEC 
received 0.825 shares of Integrys Energy Group common stock, $1 par value, for each share of PEC 
common stock, no par value, which they held immediately prior to the merger. The total purchase price 
was approximately $1.6 billion. The results of operations attributable to PEC are included in the 
consolidated flnancial statements for the years ended December 31,2009, 2008, and for the period from 
Febnjary 22,2007, through December 31, 2007. 

In order to achieve Integrys Energy Group's anticipated merger synergies, a restructuring plan was 
implemented, which included a process to eliminate duplicative positions within Integrys Energy Group. 
Costs associated with the merger-related involuntary tennination of employees at PEC (the acquired 
company) were recognized as a liability assumed in the merger and included in the purchase price 
alloc:ation. The liability recognized at the date of the merger was not significant and was fully paid at 
December 31,2008. 

Costs related to the involuntary termination of the acquirer's employees were expensed. Costs associated 
with the relocation or voluntary temriinations of both Integrys Energy Group and PEC employees were also 
expensed. The following table summarizes the ac:tivity related to these specific costs for the years ended 
December 31: 

(Millions) 
Accrued employee severance costs at beginning of period 
Severance expense recorded 
Cash payments 
Accrued employee severance costs at end of period 

2009 
$1.4 
0.1 

(1.1) 
$0.4 

2008 
$4.8 
2.5 
(5.9) 
$1.4 

2007 
$ -

7.2 
(2.4) 
$4.8 
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Supplemental Pro Forma Information 

The following table shows pro forma results of operations for Integrys Energy Group for the year ended 
December 31, 2007, as if the acquisition of PEC had been completed at January 1, 2007. Pro forma 
results are presented for informational purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of what the actual 
results would have been had the acquisitions actually occurred on January 1, 2007. 

Year Ended 
(MiUions, except per share amounte) December 31.2007 
Total revenues $10,997.7 
Net income from continuing operations $211.2 
Net income attributed to common shareholders $283.4 
Basic eamings per share - continuing operations $2.73 
Basic eamings per share $3.72 
Diluted eamings per share - continuing operations $2.73 
Diluted earnings per share $3.72 

NOTE 6-PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant, and equipment at December 31 consisted of the following utility, nonutility, and 
nonregulated assets: 

(Millions) 
Electric utility 
Natural gas utility 
Total utility plant 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Net 
Construction work in progress 
Net utility plant 

Nonutility plant - utility segments 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Net 
Construction woric in progress 
Net nonutility plant - utility segments 

Electric nonregulated 
Natural gas nonregulated 
Other nonregulated 
Total nonregulated property, plant, and equipment 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Net 
Construction woric in progress 
Net nonregulated property, plant, and equipment 

Total pnDperty, plant, and equipment 

2009 
$3,066.7 
4,338.3 
7,405.0 
2,726.0 
4,679.0 

40.7 
4,719.7 

100.7 
59.1 
41.6 
34.6 
76.2 

166.8 
18.1 
23.5 

208.4 
62.1 

146.3 
2.9 

149.2 

$4,945.1 

2008 
$2,777.6 
4,190.1 
6,967.6 
2,599.3 
4,368.3 

159.6 
4,527.9 

87.9 
51.0 
36.9 
15.5 
52.4 

161.5 
3.4 

23.1 
188.0 
50.7 

137.3 
30.9 

168.2 

$4,748.5 
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NOTE 7-JOINTLY OWNED UTIUTY FACILITIES 

WPS holds a joint ownership interest in certBin electrk: generating facilities. WPS is entitled to its share of 
generating capability and output of each facility equal to its respective ownership interest. WPS also pays 
its ownership share of additional constnjction costs, foel inventory purchases, and operating expenses 
unless specific agreements have been executed to limit its maximum exposure to additional costs. WPS's 
share of significant jointly owned electric generating facilities as of December 31,2009, was as follows: 

(Millions, except for percentaaes and megawatts) 
Ownership 
WPS's share of rated capacity (megawatts) 
Utility plant in service 
Accumulated depreciation 
in-service date 

Weston 4 
70.0% 
374.5 
$609.8 
$ 53.5 
200B 

West 
Marinette 

Unit No. 33 
68.0% 

56.8 
$18.2 
$ 9.7 
1993 

Columbia Energy 
Center 

Units 1 and 2 
31.8% 
335.2 

$165.9 
$102>L 

1975 and 1978 

Edgewater 
Unit No. 4 

31.8% 
105.0 
$37.8 
$23.5 
1969 

WPS's share of direct expenses for these plants is recorded in operating expenses in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income. WPS has supplied its own financing for all jointly owned projects. 
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NOTE 8-REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

The following regulatory assets and liabilities were reflected in Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated 
Balance Sheets as of December 31: 

(Millions) 2009 2008 

Regulatory assets 
Environmental remediation costs (net of insurance recoveries) 
Pension and other postretirement beneflt related items 
Asset retirement obligations 
De Pere Energy Center 
Derivatives 
Income tax related items 
Decoupling 
Weston 3 lightning strike 
Bad debt expense 
Conservation program costs 
Costs of previously owned nuclear plant 
Unamortized loss on debt 
Energy costs receivable through rate adjustments 
Rate case costs 
Costs to achieve merger synergies 
Other 

674.9 
605.5 
39.4 
33.4 
32.3 
29.0 
28.9 
18.1 
17.7 
17.4 
14.3 
12.5 
12.3 
9.5 
6.1 
4.6 

$ 681.1 
634.7 
30.5 
35.8 

162.0 
23.2 

4.4 
22.3 

4.8 
4.8 

24.1 
13.2 
23.1 

5.7 
12.1 
7.0 

Total 
Balance Sheet Presentation 
Current 
Long-term 
Total 

$1,556.0 

$ 121.1 
1,434.9 

$1,556.0 

$1,688.8 

$ 244.0 
1,444.8 

$1,688.8 

Regulatory liabilities 
Ccjst of removal reserve 
Energy costs refundable through rate adjustinents 
Pension and other postretirement benefrt related items 
Income tax related items 
EEP 
ATC and MISO refunds 
Derivatives 
Decoupling 
Other 

246.6 
79.6 
23.5 

6.7 
6.1 
4.6 
4.3 
1.4 
5.2 

$ 231.6 
34.1 
26.1 

8.2 
4.8 
9.6 
4.9 
9.4 
5.6 

Total 
Balance Sheet Presentation 
Cunent 
Long-term 
Total 

$ 378.0 

$ 100.4 
277.6 

$ 378.0 

$ 334.3 

$ 58.8 
275.6 

$ 334.3 

Integrys Energy Group's utility subsidiaries expect to recover their regulatory assets and incur foture costs 
or refund their regulatory liabilities through rates charged to customers based on specific ratemaking 
decisk>ns over periods specified by the regulators or over the normal operating period of the assets and 
liabilities to which they relate. Based on prior and cunent rate treatment for such costs, Integrys Energy 
Group believes it is probable that its utility subsidiaries will continue to recover from customers the 
regulatory assets described above. 

The regulatory assets listed in the table above related to WPS's environmental remediation costs, the 
Weston 3 lightning strike, rate case costs, and the unamortized loss on debt at PGL and NSG, are not 
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eaming a rate of retum. The regulatory asset for WPS's environmental remediation costs was 
$74.2 million at December 31,2009, and includes both liabilities and costs incurred to remediate the 
former manufactured gas plant sites that have not yet been recovered through rates. At December 31, 
2009, environmental remediation costs that have been incurred but not yet recovered in rates were not 
signiflcant. WPS is authorized recovery ofthe regulatory asset related to the Weston 3 lightning strike 
over a six-year period. The regulatory assets related to the unamortized loss on debt at PGL and NSG 
are not included in rate base, but are recovered over the tenn of the debt through the rate of retum 
authorized by the ICC. The regulatory assets related to rate case costs for PGL and NSG are authorized 
recovery by the ICC over a five-year period for 2008 rates and a three-year period for 2010 rates. The 
regulatory assets related to rate case costs for MERC are authorized recovery by the MPUC over a five-
year period for 2009 rates and a three-year period for 2010 rates. These regulatory assets are expected 
to be recovered frcim customers in future rates; however, the carrying costs of these assets are borne by 
Integrys Energy Group's shareholders. 

Prior to WPS purchasing the De Pere Energy Center, WPS had a long-tenn power purchase contract with 
the De Pere Energy Center that was accounted for as a capital lease. As a result of the purchase, the 
capital lease obligation was reversed and the difference between the capital lease asset and the purchase 
price was recorded as a regulatory asset WPS is authorized recovery of this regulatory asset over a 
20-year period. 

See Note 1 (g), "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Risk Management Activities," Note 14, 
"Asset Retirement Obligations," Note 15, "Income Taxes" Note 16, "Commitments and Contingencies," 
Note 18, "Employee Benefit Plans," and Note 24, "Regulatory Environment," for more information on some 
ofthe more significant regulatory assets and liabilities listed in the above table. 

NOTE 9-INVESTMENTS IN AFFIUATES. AT EQUITY METHOD 

Investments in corporate joint ventures and other companies accounted for under the equity method at 
December 31, 2009, and 2008 were as follows: 

(Millions) 
ATC 
WRPC 
Other 
Investments in affiliates, at equity method 

2009 
$395.9 

8.5 
1.4 

$405.8 

2008 
$346.9 

8.5 
3.1 

$358.5 

Investments in affiliates accounted for underthe equity method are included in other long-temn assets on 
the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and the equity income (loss) is recorded in miscellaneous income on 
the Consolidated Statements of Income. Integrys Energy Group is taxed on ATC's equity income, rather 
than ATC, due to the tax flow-through nature of ATC's business structure. Accordingly, Integrys Energy 
Group's provision for income taxes includes taxes on ATC's equity income. 

ATC 

Integrys Energy Group's electric transmission investinent segment consists of WPS Invesbnents LLC's 
ownership interest in ATC, which was approximately 34% at December 31, 2009. ATC is a for-profit, 
transmission-only company. ATC owns, maintains, monitors, and operates electric transmission assets in 
portions of Wisconsin, Michigan, Minnesota, and Illinois. 
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The following table shows changes to Integrys Energy Group's investment in ATC during the years ended 
December 31. 

(MiUions) 2009 2008 2007 
Balance at the beginning of period 
Add: equity in net income 
Add: cap'rtal contributions 
Less: dividends received 
Balance at the end of period 

$346.9 
75.3 
34.1 
60.4 

$395.9 

$296.6 
66.1 
34.6 
50.4 

$346.9 

$231.9 
50.5 
50.9 
36.7 

$296.6 

The regulated electric utilities provide constoiction and other services to, and receive networic 
transmission services from, ATC. The related party transactions recorded by the regulated electric utilities 
in the years ended December 31 were as follows: 

(MUUons) 2009 2008 2007 

Total charges to ATC for services and constnjction $10.1 $12.8 $98.6 
Total costs for networic transmission service provided by ATC 90.7 87.8 78.1 
Net amounts received from (advanced to) ATC for 

transmission interconnection ^ 82.3 (23.9) 

WRPC 

WPS owns 50% of the voting stock of WRPC, which operates two hydroelectric plants and an oil-fired 
combustion turisine. Two-thirds of the energy output of the hydnDelectric plants is sold to WPS, and the 
remaining one-third is sold to Wisconsin Power and Light. The electric power from the combustion turbine 
is sold in equal parts to WPS and Wisconsin Power and Light. 

WPS provides services to WRPC, purchases energy from WRPC, and receives net proceeds from sales 
of energy into the MISO maricet from WRPC. The related party transactions recorded and net proceeds 
and dividends received'during the years ended December 31 were as follows: 

(MiUions) 2009 2008 2007 
Revenues from services provided to WRPC 
Purchases of energy from WRPC 
Net proceeds from WRPC sales of energy to MISO 
Dividends received from WRPC 

$0.6 
4.6 
2.6 
0.9 

$0.8 
4.7 
5.8 
3.5 

$1.0 
4.7 
6.0 
0.9 

Of Integrys Energy Group's equity in net income disclosed below, $1.0 million, $2.2 million, and 
$1.8 million is the pre-tax income related to WPS's investment in WRPC in 2009,2008, and 2007, 
respectively. 

Finantnat Data 

Combined financial data of Integrys Energy GnDup's significant equity method investments, ATC and 
WRPC, is included in the table below. 
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(Millions) 
Income statement data 
Revenues 
Operating expenses 
Other expense 
Net income 

Integrys Energy Group's 

Balance sheet data 
Current assets 
Noncun-ent assets 
Total assets 

equity in net income 

2009 

$ 528.7 
235.7 

77.7 
$ 215.3 

$ 76.3 

$ 54.0 
2,785.5 

$2,839.5 

2008 

$ 474.0 
214.6 
67.1 

$ 192.3 

$ 68.3 

$ 52.5 
2,494.8 

$2,547.3 

2007 

$ 415.6 
203.9 

54.2 
$ 157.5 

$ 52.3 

$ 52.3 
2,207.8 

$2,260.1 

Cunent liabilities 
Long-temn debt 
Other noncurrent liabilities 
Shareholders' equity 

$ 286.3 
1,259.6 

80.1 
1.213.5 

$ 252.4 
1,109.4 

119.3 
1,066.2 

$ 3177 
899.1 
111.1 
932.2 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $2.839.5 $2,547.3 $2,260.1 

NOTE 10-GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Integrys Energy Group had the following changes to the canying amount of goodwill for the years ended 
December 31,2008 and 2009: 

(MUUons) 
Goodwill recorded at December 31.2007 * 
Adjustments to PEC purchase price allocation 

related to income taxes 
Impairment loss 
Goodwill reconded at December 31,2008 
Impairment loss 
Goodwill allocated to businesses sold 
Goodwill recorded at December 31,2009 

Natural Gas 
Utility Segment 

$936.8 

(3.3) 
(6.5) 

927.0 
(291.1) 

-
$635.9 

integrys Energy 
Services 

$11,5 

• (4.6) 
-

6.9 
-

(0-3) 
$ 6.6 

Total 
$948.3 

(7.9) 
(6.5) 

933.9 
(291.1) 

(0.3) 
$642.5 

* The goodwill balance at December 31,2007, did not include any accumulated impairment losses. 

In the first quarter of 2009, the combination of the decline in equity markets as well as the increase in the 
expected weighted-average cost of capital indicated that a potential impaimient of goodwill might exist, 
triggering an interim goodwill impainnent analysis. Based upon the results ofthe interim goodwill 
impairment analysis, Integrys Energy Group recorded a non-cash goodwill impainnent loss of 
$291.1 million ($248.8 million after-tax) in the first quarter of 2009, all within the natural gas utility 
segment. Key factors c:ontributing to the impainnent charge included disruptions in the global credit and 
equity maricets and the resulting increase in the weighted-average cost of capital used to value the natural 
gas utility operations, and the negative impact that the global decline in equity maricets had on the 
valuation of natural gas distribution companies in general. 

A goodwill impainnent loss in the amount of $6.5 million, after-tax, was recx}gnized for NSG in the second 
quarter of 2008. A present value technique was utilized to estimate the fair value of NSG at April 1,2008. 
The gocxJwill impaimient recognized for NSG was due to a decline in the estimated fair value of NSG, 
caused primarily by a decrease in forec:asted results as cximpared to the forecast at the time of the 
acquisition. Worsening economic factors also contributed to the dedine in fair value, 
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Identifiable intangible assets other than goodwill are included as a component of other cunent and 
long-tenn assets and other current and long-temn liabilities within the Consolidated Balance Sheets as 
listed below. 

(Millions) December 31,2009 December 31,2008 
Gross 

Carrying Accumulated 
Amount Amortization Net 

Gross 
Carrying Accumulated 
Amount Amortization Net 

Amortized intangible assets 
(liabilities) 

Customer-related '̂ ^ 
Natural gas and electric 
contract assets *̂ ^ ̂ * 

Natural gas and electric 
contract liabilities *̂ * ""̂^ 

Renewable energy credits *̂^ 
Nonregulated easements *®̂  
Emission allowances ^^ 
Other 

32.6 

71.4 

(10.5) 
3.4 
3.6 
2.1 
2.5 

$(18.3) 

(60.5) 

10.4 
(2.1) 
(0.1) 
(0.2) 
(0.5) 

$14.3 

10.9 

(0.1) 
1.3 
3.5 
1.9 
2.0 

$32.6 

60.1 

(33.6) 
3.4 

-
2.3 
3.0 

$(14.2) 

(54.6) 

20.2 
(2.1) 

-

(0.1) 
(1.0) 

$18.4 

5.5 

(13.4) 
1.3 

-
2.2 
2.0 

Total 

Unamortized intangible assets 
MGU trade name 

Total intangible assets 

$105.1 

5.2 
$110.3 

$(71.3) 

$(71.3) 

$33.8 

5.2 
$39.0 

$67.8 

5.2 
$73.0 

$(51.8) 

$(51.8) 

$16.0 

5.2 
$21.2 

"̂"̂  Includes customer relationship assets associated with both PEC's former nonregulated retail natijral gas and 
electric operations and MERC's nonutility ServiceChoice business. The remaining weighted-average amortization 
period for customer-related intangible assets at December 31,2009, was approximately 7 years. 

^̂ * Represents the fair value of certain PEC natural gas and electric customer contracts acquired in the merger that 
were not considered to be derivative instruments, as well as other electric customer contracts acquired in exchange 
for risk management assets. 

^' Includes both short-temi and long-tenn intangible assets related to customer contracts in the amount of $6.2 million 
and $4.7 million, respectively, at December 31,2009, and $3.1 million and $2.4 million, respectively, at 
December 31, 2008. The remaining weighted-average amortization period for these intangible assets at 
December 31, 2009, was 2.5 years. 

^̂^ Includes both short-term and long-temn intangible liabilities related to customer contracts in the amount of 
$6.0 million and $7.4 million, respectively at December 31, 2008. 

^̂ ' Used at Integrys Energy Services to comply with state Renewable Portfolio Standards and to support customer 
commitinents. 

^' Relates to easements supporting a pipeline at Integrys Energy Services. The easements are amortized on a 
straight-line basis, with a remaining amortization period of 14.5 years. 

'̂ ^ Emission allowances do not have a contractual temn or expiration date. 

Intangible asset amortization expense, excluding amortization related to natural gas and electric contracts, 
was recorded as a component of depreciation and amortization expense. Amortization for the years 
ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, was $6.3 million, $7.9 million, and $8.5 million, respectively. 
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Amortization expense for the next five fiscal years is estimated to be: 

(MiUions) 
For year ending December 31,2010 $4.2 
For year ending December 31,2011 3.3 
For year ending December 31, 2012 2.4 
For year ending December 31,2013 1.6 
For year ending December 31, 2014 1.4 

Amortization of the natural gas and electric contract intangible assets and liabilities were recorded as a 
component of nonregulated cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power. Amortization ofthese 
contracts for the years ended December 31, 2009,2008, and 2007, resulted in an increase to 
nonregulated fuel, natural gas, and purchased power in the amount of $8.9 miliion, $34.4 million, and 
$21.0 million, respectively. 

Amortization expense ofthese contracts for the next flve fiscal years is estimated to be: 

(MiUions) 
For year ending December 31,2010 $6.1 
For year ending December 31, 2011 2.8 
For year ending December 31, 2012 1.1 
For year ending December 31, 2013 0.5 
For year ending December 31, 2014 0.3 

NOTE11-LEASES 

Integrys Energy Group leases various property, plant, and equipment. Temis ofthe operating leases vary, 
but generally require Integrys Energy Group to pay property taxes, insurance premiums, and maintenance 
costs associated witii the leased property. Many of Integrys Energy Group's leases contain one of the 
folfowing options upon the end of the lease term: (a) purchase the property at the current fair maricet value 
or (b) exercise a renewal option, as set forth in the lease agreement. Rental expense attributable to 
operating leases was $16.9 million, $17.0 million, and $13.6 million in 2009,2008, and 2007, respectively. 
Future minimum rental obligatbns under non-cancelable operating leases are payable as follows: 

Year ending December 31 
(MUiions) 
2010 $11.6 
2011 10.5 
2012 9.1 
2013 8.8 
2014 4.8 
Later years 23.6 
Total payments $68.4 
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NOTE 12-SHORT-TERM DEBT AND LINES OF CREDIT 

Integrys Energy Group's short-term borrowings consist of sales of commercial paper, borrowings under 
revolving credit facilities, and short-temi notes. Amounts shown are as of December 31: 

(Millions, except percenteges) 2009 2008 2007 
Commen îal paper outstanding 
Average discount rate on outstanding commercial paper 
Borrowings under revolving credit facilities 
Average interest rate on outstanding borrowings under 

revolving credit facilities 
Short-term notes payable outstanding 
Average interest rate on short-temn notes payable 

$212.1 
0.52% 

$10.0 
0.18% 

$552.9 
4.78% 
$475.0 

2.41% 
$181.1 
3.40% 

$308.2 
5.51% 
$150.0 

3.56% 
$10.0 

5.20% 

The commercial paper outstanding at December 31, 2009. had varying maturity dates ranging from 
January 4,2010, through February 17,2010. 

The table below presents Integrys Energy Group's average amount of short-term bon-owings outstanding 
based on daily outstanding balances during the years ended December 31: 

(Millions) 2009 2008 2007 
Average amount of commercial paper outstanding 
Average amount of bonowings under revolving credit facilities 
Average amount of short-tenn notes payable outstanding 

$193.8 
$114.5 
$48.0 

$305.7 
$166.8 
$34.3 

$490.1 
$116.4 
$10.0 
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Integrys Energy Group manages Its liquidity by maintaining adequate extemal financing commitments. 
The information in the table below relates to Integrys Energy Group's short-term debt, lines of credit, and 
remaining available capacity as of December 31: 

millions) Maturity 2009 2008 
Revolving credit facility (Integrys Energy Group) ̂ '̂ 
Revolving credit facility (Integrys Energy Group) '^' 
Revolving credit facility (Integrys Energy Group) *̂ ' 
Revolving credit facility (Integrys Energy Group) *̂ ^ 
Revolving credit facility (Integrys Energy Group) *"* 
Revolving credit facility (WPS) *̂ * 
Revolving credit facility (PEC) ^̂ ' *®̂  
Revolving credit facility (PGL) *̂ * 
Revolving credit facility (Integrys Energy Services) ̂ '̂ 
Revolving short-term notes payable 0/VPS) *̂ ' 
Short-temi notes payable (Integrys Energy Group) '^°' 

6/02/10 
6/09/11 
5/03/09 
5/26/10 
6/04/10 
6/02/10 
6/13/11 
7/12/10 
6/29/09 
5/13/10 
3/30/09 

500.0 
500.0 

425.0 
35.0 

115.0 
400.0 
250.0 

10.0 

500.0 
500.0 
250.0 

115.0 
400.0 
250.0 
175.0 
10.0 

171.1 
Total short-temn credit capacity 2,235.0 2,371.1 

Less: 
Letters of credit issued inside credit facilities 
Loans outstanding under credit agreements and notes payable 
Commercial paper outstanding 
Accrued interest or original discount on outstanding commercial paper 

130.4 
10.0 

212.1 

414.6 
656.1 
552.9 

0.8 
Available capacity under existing agreements $1,882.5 $ 746.7 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(»} 

(10) 

Provides support for Integrys Energy Group's commerciai paper bonrowing program. 

This facility matured in May 2009, and the revolving credit agreement was terminated. 

In May 2009, Integrys Energy Group entered into a revolving credit agreement to provide support for Integrys 
Energy Group's commercial paper bon'owing program. 

In June 2009, Integrys Energy Group entered into a revolving credit agreement to provide support for Integrys 
Energy Group's commerdal paper borrowing program. 

Provides support for WPS's commercial paper borrowing program. 

Borrowings under this agreement are guaranteed by Integrys Energy Group. 

Provides support for PGL's commercial paper borrowing program. 

This facility matured in June 2009. at which time the borrowings were paid in full, and the revolving credit 
agreement was terminated. This facility was previously guaranteed by Integrys Energy Group. 

This note is renewed every six months and is used for general corporate purposes. 

This facility matured in March 2009, at which time the borrowings were paid in full, and the short-tenn debt 
agreement was terminated. 

At December 31, 2009, Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries were in compliance with all financial 
covenants related to outstanding short-tenn debt. Integrys Energy GnDup and certain subsidiaries' 
revolving credit agreements contain financial and other covenants, including but not limited to, a 
requirement to maintain a debt to total capitalization ratio not to exceed 65%, excluding non-recourse 
debt. Failure to nneet these covenants beyond applicable grace periods could result in accelerated due 
dates and/or termination of the agreements. 
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NOTE 13-LONG-TERM DEBT 

(Millions) 
December 31 

2009 20Q8 
\NPS First Mortgage Bonds 

WPS Senior Notes 

Series 
7.125% 

Year tJue 
2023 

Series 
6.125% 
4.875% 
4.80% 
3.95% 

6.375% 
5.65% 
6.08% 
6.55% 

Year Due 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2013 
2015 
2017 
2028 
2036 

UPPCO First Mortgage Bonds '^' 
Series 
9.32% 

Year Due 
2021 

PEC Unsecured Senior Note ^' 
Series Year Due 

A. 6.90% 2011 
Fair value hedge adjustment 

PGL Fixed First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds **'*̂ * 
Series 

HH, 4.75% 
KK, 5.00% 
LL, 3.75% 

MM-2, 4.00% 
NN-2,4.625% 

QQ, 4.875% 
RR, 4.30% 
SS, 7.00% 
TT, 8.00% 
UU. 4.63% 

2030 
2033 
2033 
2010 
2013 
2038 
2035 
2013 
2018 
2019 

Adjustable afterJuly 1,2014 

Adjustable after February 1,2012 

Adjustable after November 1,2018 
Adjustable after June 1,2016 

PGL Adjustable First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds {5)(S) 

NSG First Mortgage Bonds ^̂  

Series 
0 0 

Year Due 
2037 

Series 
M, 5.00% 

N-2,4.625% 
0, 7.00% 

Year Due 
2028 
2013 
2013 

Integiys Energy Group Unsecured Senior Notes **' 
Series 

5.375% 
7.00% 
7.27% 
8.00% 

Year Due 
2012 
2009 
2014 
2016 

Integrys Energy Group Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes *** 
Series 
6.11% 

Year Due 
2066 

Unsecured term loan due 2010 - Integrys Energy Group ""* 
Other tenn loan*"' 

$ 0.1 $ 0.1 

150.0 
150.0 
125.0 
22.0 

125.0 
125.0 
50.0 

125.0 

150.0 
150.0 
125.0 
22.0 

125.0 
125.0 
50.0 

125.0 

10.8 

51.0 

11.7 

325.0 
2.6 

50.0 
50.0 
50.0 
50.0 
75.0 
75.0 
50.0 
45.0 

5.0 
75.0 

325.0 
3.2 

50.0 
50.0 
50.0 
50.0 
75.0 
75.0 
50.0 
45.0 
5.0 

-

51.0 

28.5 
40.0 

6.5 

100.0 

100.0 
55.0 

300.0 
65.6 
27.0 

28.8 
40.0 

6.5 

100.0 
160.0 

300.0 
65.6 
27.0 

Total 
Unamortized discount and premium on bonds and debt 
Total debt 
Less current portion 
Total lonq-term debt 

2,509.1 
2.1 

2,511.2 
(116.5) 

$2,394.7 

2,430.9 
5.7 

2.436.6 
(150.9) 

$2,285.7 

(1) WPS's First Mortgage Bonds and Senior Notes are subject to the tenns and conditions of WPS's First Mortgage 
Indenture. Under the temns of the Indenture, substantially all property owned by WPS is pledged as collateral for 
these outstanding debt securities. All ofthese debt securities require semi-annual payments of interest. WPS 
Senior Notes become non-collateralized if WPS retires all of its outstanding First Mortgage Bonds and no new 
mortgage Indenture is put in place. 
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<2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(S) 

(9) 

(10) 

Under the terms of UPPCO's First Mortgage Indenture, substantially all property owned by UPPCO is pledged as 
collateral for this outstanding debt series. Interest payments are due semi-annually with a sinking fund payment 
of $0.9 miilion due each November 1. As a result, this payment is included in the current portion of long-term 
debt on Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated Balance Sheet at Decemtier 31, 2009. The final sinking fund 
payment due November 1,2021. vKilt completely retire tiie series. 

Integrys Energy Group entered into a First Supplemental Indenture, which provides that Integrys Energy Group 
will fully and unconditionally guarantee, on a senior unsecured t>asis, PEC's obligations under its $325.0 million, 
6.9% notes due January 15, 2011. See Note 2, "R/s/fWanagemenfArf/V/fres," for information on the PEC fair 
value hedge adjustment. 

In March 2010, $50.0 million of PGL's First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds will mature. As a result, tiiese notes 
are included in the current portion of long-temi debt on Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated Balance Sheet at 
December 31. 2009. 

In September 2009, PGL issued $75.0 million of Series UU. 4.63%, 10-year First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds 
due September 1, 2019. The net pn^ceeds from the issuance ofthese bonds were used for general corporate 
utility purposes and to increase liquidity. The First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds were sold in a private 
placement and are not registered under the Securities Act of 1933. 

PGL's First Mortgage Bonds are subject to the tenns and conditions of PGL's First Mortgage Indenture dated 
January 2,1926, as supplemented. Under the temris of the Indenture, substantially all pn^perty owned by PGL is 
pledged as collateral for these outstanding debt securities. 

PGL has outstanding $51.0 miliion of Adjustable Rate, Series 0 0 bonds, due October 1,2037, which are 
cun-ently in a 35-day Auction Rate mode (the interest rate is reset every 35 days through an auction process). 
Recent auctions have failed to receive sufficient clearing bids. As a result, these bonds are priced each 35 days 
at the maximum auction rate, until such time a successful auction occurs. The maximum auction rate is 
determined based on the lesser of tiie London Interisank Offered Rate or the Securities Industry and Financial 
Maricets Association Municipal Swap Index rate plus a deflned premium. The year-to-date weighted-average 
interest rate was 0.8% for these bonds in 2009. 

PGL has utilized certain First Mortgage Bonds to secure tax exempt interest rates. The Illinois Finance Authority 
and the City of Chicago have issued Tax Exempt Bonds, and tiie proceeds from the sale ofthese bonds were 
loaned to PGL. In retijm, PGL issued equal principal amounts of certain collateralized First Mortgage Bonds. 

NSG's First Mortgage Bonds are subject to the terms and conditions of NSG's First Mortgage Indenture dated 
April 1,1955, as supplemented. Under the terms of the Indenture, substantially all property owned by NSG is 
pledged as collateral for these outstanding debt securities. 

NSG has utilized First Mortgage Bonds to secure tax exempt interest rates. The Illinois Finance Authority has 
issued Tax Exempt Bonds, and the proceeds ftom the sale of these bonds were loaned to NSG. In retum, NSG 
issued equal principal amounts of certain collateralized First Mortgage Bonds. 

In June 2009, Integrys Energy Group issued $100.0 million of 7.27%, 5-year Unsecured Senior Notes due 
June 1,2014 and $55.0 million of 8.0%, 7-year Unsecured Senior Notes due June 1.2016. The net proceeds 
from the issuance ofthe Senior Notes were used to refinance existing short-tenn debt and for general corporate 
purposes. The Senior Notes were sold In a private placement and are not registered underthe Securities Act of 
1933. 

These Integrys Energy Gn^up Junior Sutwrdinated Notes are considered hybrid instruments with a combination 
of debt and equity characteristics. Integrys Energy Group has agreed in a replacement capital covenant with the 
holders of Integrys Energy Group's 5.375% Unsecured Senior Notes due December 1, 2012, that it will not 
redeem or repurchase the Junior Subordinated Notes on or prior to December 1, 2036 unless such repurchases 
or redemptions are made from tiie proceeds of tiie sale of specific securities considered by rating agencies to 
have equity characteristics equal to or greater than those of the Junior Subordinated Notes. 

In June 2010, Integrys Energy Group's $65.6 million unsecured term loan will mature. As a result, this loan is 
included in the current portion of long-temi debt on Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated Balance Sheet at 
December 31, 2009. 

-113-



ATTACHMENT F 

"̂̂  In April 2001, the Schuylkill County Industrial Development Authority issued $27.0 million of Refunding Tax 
Exempt Bonds. The proceeds from the bonds were loaned to WPS Westwood Generation, LLC, a subsidiary of 
Integrys Energy Services. This loan is repaid by WPS Westwood Generation to Schuylkill County Industrial 
Development Authority witii monthly interest only payments and has a floating interest rate that is reset weekly. 
At December 31,2009, the interest rate was 4.24%. The loan is to be repaid by April 2021. Integrys Energy 
Group agreed to guarantee WPS Westwood Generation's obligation to provide sufficient funds to pay the loan 
and the retated obligations and indemnities. 

Long-tenn borrowings by Integrys Energy Services under tenn loans have been reclassified as liabilities 
held for sale in the amount of $6.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, related to the sale of 
generation assets of WPS New England Generation, Inc. and WPS Canada Generation, Inc that closed in 
January 2010. As of December 31,2009, these temi Ictans have been paid in full. For more information 
about the sale, see Note 4, "Dispositions." 

At December 31, 2009, Integrys Energy Group and each of its subsidiaries were in compliance with all 
respective financial covenants related to outstanding long-tenn debt. Integrys Energy Group and certain 
subsidiaries' long-temn debt obligations contain covenants related to payment of principal and interest 
when due and various financial reporting obligations. In addition, certain long-tenn debt obligations 
contain financial and other covenants, including but not limited to, a requirement to maintain a debt to total 
capitalization ratio not to exceed 65%. Failure to comply with these covenants could result in an event of 
default which, if not cured or waived, could result in the acceleration of outstanding debt obligations. 

A schedule of all principal debt payment amounts related to bond maturities is as follows: 

Year ending December 31 
(MUUons) 
2010 $ 116.5 
2011 478.5 
2012 250.9 
2013 314.4 
2014 100.9 
Later years 1,247.9 
Total payments $2,509.1 

NOTE 14-ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS 

The utility segments have asset retirement obligations primarily related to removal of natural gas 
distribution pipe (including asbestos and PCBs); asbestos abatement at certain generation facilities, oftice 
buildings, and service centers; disposal of PCB-contaminated transformers; and closure of fly-ash landfills 
at certain generation facilities. The utilities establish regulatory assets and liabilities to record the 
differences between ongoing expense recognition underthe Asset Retirement and Environmental 
Obligations accounting rules, and the ratemaking practices for retirement costs authorized by the 
applicable regulators. 
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Changes to Asset Retirement Obligation Liabilities 

The following table shows changes to Integrys Energy Group's asset retirement obligations through 
December 31, 2009. 

(Millions) Utilities 

Integrys 
Energy 

Services Total 
Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2006 
Accretion 
Asset retirement obligations fixjm merger with PEC 
Asset retirement obligations transferred in sales 
Settlements 

; 9.4 
6.8 

124.9 
(0.2) 
(14) 

$0.7 10.1 
6.8 

124.9 
(0-2) 
(1-4) 

Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2007 
Accretion 
Additions and revisions to estimated cash flows 
Asset retirement oblipations ti-ansfen^ in sales 
Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2008 
Accretion 
Additions and revisions to estimated cash flows 
Asset retirement obligations at December 31,2009 

139.5 
7.8 

31.7 
(0.1) 

178.9 
9.6 
6.3 <̂> 

$194.8 

0.7 
-
-

(0.5) 
0.2^"' 
0.1 

. 
$0.3<='* 

140.2 
7.8 

31.7 
(0.6) 

179.1 
9.7 
6.3 

$195.1 

'̂ ^ This amount includes a $6.3 million asset retirement obligation related to the WPS 9g-megawatt Crane Creek 
wind generation project that became operational in the fourth quarter of 2009. All other adjustments netted to an 
insignificant amount. 

^̂^ These amounts were classified as held for sale, as they relate to the sale of generation assets in Northern Maine, 
which closed in the first quarter of 2010. 
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$ 90.7 
96.0 
55.4 
16.0 
32.4 

$ 96.0 
88.9 

-
15.9 
52.2 
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NOTE 15-INCOME TAXES 

Deferred income Tax Assets and Liabilities 

Certain temporary book to tax differences, for which the offsetting amounl is recorded as a regulatory 
asset or liability, are presented in the table below as net amounts, consistent with regulatory treatment 
The principal components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities recognized in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets as of December 31 are as follows: 

(MiUions) 2009 2008 

Deferred income tax assets: 
Tax credit canyfonArards 
Employee benefits 
Price risk management 
State capital and operating loss canyforwards 
Other 
Total deferred income tax assets $290.5 $253.0 
Valuation allowance (7.4) (2.3) 
Net deferred income tax assets $283.1 $250.7 

Deferred income tax liabilities: 
Plant related 
Regulatory deferrals 
Deferred income 
Price risk management - 45.6 
Total deferred income tax liabilities $848.4 $758.0 

Consolidated Balance Sheet presentation: 
Cunent deferred income tax assets $ 92.9 $ 
Current deferred income tax liabilities - 71.6 
Long-term deferred income tax liabilities 658.2 435.7 
Net defened income tax liabilities $56S.3 $507.3 

Deferred tax credit carryfonwards at December 31,2009, include $70.7 million of alternative minimum tax 
credits related to tax credits available under fonner Section 29/45K ofthe Internal Revenue Code. 
These altemative minimum tax credits can be carried fonvard indefinitely. 

Carryfonward periods for state capital and operating losses vary. In the majority of states in which 
Integrys Energy Group operates, the carryfonward period is 15 years or more, with the majority ofthe 
state capital and operating losses beginning to expire in 2013. Valuation allowances are established for 
certain state operating and capital loss carryforwards based on the ability of Integrys Energy Group to 
realize the benefit ofthese losses in the future. 

$756.8 
76.1 
15.5 

$642.1 
70.3 

-
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Federal Income Tax Expense 

The following table presents a reconciliation of federal income taxes to the provision for income taxes 
reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the periods ended December 31. The taxes are 
calculated by multiplying the statutory federal income tax rate by book income before federal income 
tax. 

2009 2008 2007 
(Millions, except fdr percenteges) 

Statutory federal income tax 
State income taxes, net 
Goodwill 
Investment tax credit - amortization 
Federal tax credits 
Plant related 
Unrecognized tax benefits 
Benefits and compensation 
Other differences, net 
Effective income tax 

Current provision 
Federal 
State 
Foreign 
Totai current provision 

Defen-ed provision 
Valuation atlovk^nce 
Interest 
Net operating loss carryfbnwands 
Investment tax credit - net 
Unrecognized tax benefits 
Penalties 
Total provision for income taxes 

Rate 

35.0% 
120.7 
562.1 
(13.8) 

6.0 
(14.7) 
14.7 

(31.0) 
38.2 

717.2% 

Amount 

$4 .1 
14.0 
65.2 
(1.6) 
0.7 

(1.7) 
1.7 

(3.6) 
4.4 

$83.2 

$ 1.9 
14.1 
7.1 

23.1 

52.5 
5.1 
3.7 
1.4 

(0.6) 
(2.0) 

-
$83.2 

Rate 

35.0% 
6.8 
1.3 

(1.0) 
(6.0) 

-
0.1 

(2.8) 
(4.3) 
29.1% 

Amount 

$61.6 
12.0 
2.3 

(1.8) 
(10.6) 

-
0.1 

(4.9) 
(7.5) 

$51.2 

$(10.5) 
(3.1) 
1.9 

(11.7) 

65.7 
-

.(0.1) 
(1-8) 
(1.5) 
0.2 
0.4 

$51.2 

Rate 

35.0% 
4.3 

-
(0.6) 
(5.4) 

-
1.2 

(2.5) 
0.2 

32.2% 

Amount 

$93.5 
11.5 

. 
(1.5) 

(14.3) 
-

3.3 
(6.8) 
0.3 

$86.0 

$(6.8) 
8.9 
4.7 
6.8 

77.7 
0.5 
2.4 
(0.9) 
(1.4) 
1.0 

(0.1) 
$86.0 

Foreign income before taxes was $0.3 million in 2009, $12.0 million in 2008, and $23.3 million in 2007. 

As the related temporary differences reverse, the regulated utilities are prospectively refunding taxes to or 
collecting taxes fi"om customers for which deferred taxes were recorded in prior years at rates different 
than cun-ent rates. The net regulatory asset for these and other regulatory tax effects totaled $19.3 million 
and $13.9 million as of December 31, 2009, and 2008, respectively. 

Integrys Energy Group records accrued interest and penalties related to income taxes as a component of 
the provision for income taxes. Integrys Energy Group had accrued interest of $8.0 million and accrued 
penalties of $3.0 million related to unrecognized tax beneflts at December 31, 2009. Integrys Energy 
Group had accrued interest of $2.9 million and accrued penalties of $3.1 million related to uncertain tax 
positions at December 31, 2008. 
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;22.4 
-

10.2 
(0.2) 
(0.1) 
(0.3) 
(0.2) 

$10.0 
-

23.8 
(7.7) 

-
(3.7) 

-

$ 3.7 
13.9 
0.5 

(0.3) 
(3.9) 
(3.6) 
(0.3) 
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Unrecognized Tax Benefits 

A reconciliation ofthe beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows: 

(Millions) 200? 2008 2007 

Balance at January 1 
Increase related to tax positions acquired 
Increase related to tax positions taken in prior years 
Decrease related to tax positions taken in prior years 
Decrease related to tax positions taken in current year 
Decrease related to settlements 
Decrease related to lapse of statutes 

Balance at December 31 $31.8 $22.4 $10.0 

At December 31, 2009, recognition in subsequent periods ofthe unrecognized tax benefits related to 
continuing operations could affect Integrys Energy Group's net income by $6.2 million. Also, recognition in 
subsequent periods ofthe unrecognized tax benefits related to discontinued operations could affect 
Integrys Energy Group's net income by $9.5 million. 

Subsidiaries of Integrys Energy Group file income tax returns in the United States federal jurisdiction, in 
various United States state and local jurisdictions, and in Canada. Subject to the major exceptions listed 
below, Integrys Energy Group is no longer subject to United States federal, state and local, or foreign 
income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2004. 

• Illinois Department of Revenue - PEC and consolidated subsidiaries have agreed to a statute 
extension for the September 30,2003 tax year. 

• Oregon Department of Revenue - WPS Power Development has open examinations for the 2002 
and 2003 tax years. 

In 2009, Integrys Energy Group closed the following examinations: 

• Wisconsin Department of Revenue - WPS for the 2001 through 2006 tax years. 

Integrys Energy Group has the following open examinations: 

• IRS - PEC and consolidated subsidiaries have open examinations for the September 30, 2004 
through December 31,2006 tax years. 

• IRS - Integrys Energy Group and consolidated subsidiaries have open examinations for the 2006 
and 2007 tax years along with the February 21,2007 PEC short year. 

• IRS - An Integrys Energy Sen/ices subsidiary, Synfuel Solutions, LLC, has open examinations for 
the 2005 and 2006 tax years. 

• Illinois Department of Revenue- PEC and consolidated subsidiaries have open examinations for 
the September 30,2003 thn:>ugh December 31,2006 tax years. 

• Kentucky Department of Revenue - Integrys Energy Group has open examinations for the 2005 
through the 2008 tax years. ^ 

• Mississippi Department of Revenue - PEC, PEP, and PEP Holdings LLC have open examinations 
for the September 30,2006, December 31, 2006, and December 31,2007 tax years. 

• New York State Department of Revenue - Integrys Energy Services and WPS Power Development 
have open examinations for the 2004 and 2005 tax years. 

• Oregon Department of Revenue - Integrys Energy Services has an open examination for the 2005 
tax year; WPS Power Development has open examinations for the 2002,2003, and 2004 tax years. 

• Pennsylvania Department of Revenue - Integrys Energy Services has open examinations for the 
2006 and 2007 tax years. 
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• Quebec Department of Revenue - Integrys Energy Services has open examinations for the 2006 
thnDugh 2008 tax years. 

In the next 12 months, it is reasonably possible that Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries will settle 
their open examinations in multiple taxing jurisdrctions related to tax years prior to 2007, resulting in a 
decrease in unrecognized tax benefits of as much as $10.9 million. 

NOTE 16-COMMiTMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Commodity Purchase Obligations and Purchase Order Commitments 

Integrys Energy Group routinely enters into long-term purchase and sale commitments that have various 
quantity requirements and durations. The regulated natural gas utilities have obligations to distribute and 
sell natural gas to their customers, and the regulated electric utilities have obligations to distribute and sell 
electricity to their customers. The utilities expect to recover costs related to these obligations in future 
customer rates. Additionally, the majority ofthe energy supply contracts entered into by Integrys Energy 
Services are to meet its obligations to deliver energy to customers. 

he obligations described below are as of December 31,2009. 

The electric utility segment has obligations related to coal supply and transportation that extend 
through 2016 and total $350.7 million, obligations of $1,192.1 million for either capacity or energy 
related to purchased power that extend through 2027, and obligations for other commodities 
totaling $13.5 million, which extend through 2013. 
The natural gas utility segment has obligations related to natural gas supply and transportation 
contracts totaling $1,301.0 miliion, some of which extend through 2028. 
Integrys Energy Services has obligations related to energy and natural gas supply contracts that 
extend through 2019 and total $2,878.3 million. The majority ofthese obligations end by 2012, 
with obligations totaling $113.0 million extending beyond 2012. 
Integrys Energy Group also has commitments in the fomn of purchase orders issued to various 
vendors, whfch totaled $515.3 million and relate to nomiai business operations, including 
consbnction projects. 

General 

Amounts ultimately paid as penalties, or eventually detennined to be paid in lieu of penalties, will not be 
deductible for income tax purposes. 

Environmental 

Dean Air Act New Source Review Issues 

Weston and Pulliam Plants: 
On November 18,2009, the EPA issued a Notice of Violation (NOV) to WPS alleging violations of the New 
Source Review requirements of the Clean Air Act (CAA). Specifically, the allegations relate to 
requirements for certain projects undertaken at Pulliam and Weston from 1994 to 2009. WPS has 
evaluated the NOV, including an analysis ofthe allegations as well as options for resolution with the EPA 
and has met with the EPA to begin discussions on a possible resolution. Integrys Energy Group continues 
to review the allegations but is currentiy unable to predict the impact on its consolidated financial 
statements. 

Columbia Plant: 
On October 10, 2009, WPS, along with its co-owners, received from the Sierra Club a Notice of Intent 
(NOI) to file a civil lawsuit based on allegations that major modifications were made atthe Columbia 
generation station without complying with the CAA. Specifically, the allegations suggest that Prevention of 
Significant Deterioration (PSD) pennits that imposed Best Available Control Technology (BACT) limits on 
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emissions should have been obtained for the Columbia generation station, which is jointly owned by 
Wisconsin Power and Light (WP&L), Madison Gas and Electric Company, and WPS, and operated by 
WP&L. The NOI also covers similar allegations related to another generation station solely owned by 
WP&L. Integrys Energy Group is reviewing the allegations but is cun-ently unable to predict the impact on 
its consolidated financial statements. 

WP&L, on behalf of itself and the joint owners, sent a Notice of Deficiency to the Sierra Club regarding the 
NOI. In response, the Siena Club filed a Supplemental NOI on December 14, 2009, purporting to correct 
the deficiencies. WP&L is in the process of analyzing the allegations and has begun discussions with the 
Sierra Club. 

Edaewater Plant: 
On December 11, 2009, WPS, along with its co-owners, received from the Sierra Club a copy of an NOI to 
file a civil lawsuit against the EPA based on the EPA's failure to take actions against the co-owners and 
operator of the Edgewater generation station based upon allegations of failure to comply with the CAA. 
Specifically, the allegations suggest that PSD pennits that imposed BACT limits on emissions from the 
facilities should have been obtained for Edgewater. Edgewater is jointly owned by WP&L, WE Energies 
(Unit 5) and WPS (Unit 4), and operated by WP&L. WP&L is in the process of analyzing the Sierra Club's 
actions. Integrys Energy Group is reviewing the allegations but is currentiy unable to predict the impact on 
its consolidated financial statements. 

On December 21, 2009, WPS, along with its co-owners, received from the Sierra Club an NOI to file a civil 
lawsuit based on allegations that major modifications were made at the Edgewater generation statton 
without complying with the PSD and Titie V Operating Pennit requirements of the CAA. Specifically, the 
allegations suggest that PSD permits that imposed BACT limits on emissions from the fecilities should 
have been obtained for Edgewater. WP&L is in the process of analyzing the allegations and has begun 
discussions with the Sierra Club. Integrys Energy Group is reviewing the allegatbns but is cun-ently 
unable to predict the impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

Columbia and Edaewater Plants: 
On December 14, 2009, the EPA issued an NOV to WP&L relative to its Nelson Dewey Plant and to 
WP&L and the other joint owners ofthe Columbia and Edgewater generation stations alteging violations of 
New Source Review requirements of the CAA for certain projects undertaken at those plants. WP&L is 
the operator of these plants and is in the process of analyzing the NOV. The joint owners met with the 
EPA to begin discussions on a possible resolution. Integrys Energy Group is also reviewing the 
allegations but is currently unable to predict the impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

EPA Settlements with Other Utilities: 
In response to the EPA's CAA enforcement initiative, several utilities elected to settle with the EPA, white 
others are in litigation. The fines and penalties (including the cost of supplemental environmental projects) 
associated with settlements involving comparably-sized facilities to Weston and Pulliam range between 
$7 million and $30 million. The regulatory interpretations upon which the lawsuits or settlements are 
based may change based on future court decisions made in the pending litigation. 

If the EPA brings a claim against WPS, and if it were detennined by a court that historic projects at WPS's 
Pulliam and Weston plants required either a state or federal CAA permit, WPS may, underthe applicable 
statutes, be required, in order to resolve any such claim, to: 

• shut down any unit found to be operating in non-compliance, 
• install additional pollution control equipment, 
• pay a fine, and/or 
• conduct a supplemental environmental project. 

In addition, under the CAA, citizen groups may pursue a claim. Except as noted above for the Columbia 
and Edgewater plants, WPS has no notice of such a claim. 
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Weston Air Permits 

In November 2004, the Sierra Club filed a petition with the WDNR under Section 235.61 of the Wisconsin 
Statutes seeking a contested case hearing on the construction pennit issued for the Weston 4 generation 
station, which was a necessary predicate to plant construction under the pertinent air emission regulations 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Weston 4 air permit"). In February 2006, the administrative law judge 
affirmed the Weston 4 air permit with changes to the emission limits for sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide 
from the coal-fired boiler and particulate from the cooling tower The changes, which were implemented 
by the WDNR in a revised permit issued on March 28, 2007, set limits that were more stringent than those 
originally set by the WDNR (hereinafter refen'ed to as the "March 28, 2007 pennit language"). 

On April 27,2007, the SienB Club filed a second petition requesting a contested case hearing regarding 
the March 28, 2007 permit language, which was granted by the WDNR. Both parties subsequentiy moved 
for summary judgment. In a decision issued on November 8, 2007, the administrative lawjudge granted 
WPS's motion for summary judgment in that proceeding, upholding the March 28, 2007 permit language. 
The Sien-a Club filed petitions with the Dane County Circuit Court on April 27, 2007, and November 14, 
2007, for judicial review ofthe Weston 4 air permit and the underiying proceedings before the 
administrative law judge. These two judicial review proceedings were consolidated by the court. On 
February 12,2009, the court upheld the administrative law judge's final onder, which affirmed the WDNR's 
actions. The Siera Club appealed this decision and the parties have completed filing briefs and are 
awaiting the court's decision. 

These activities did not stay the construction and startup of the Weston 4 fecility or the administrative law 
judge's decision on the Weston 4 air permit. WPS believes that it has substantial defenses to the Sierra 
Club's challenges. Until the Siena Club's challenges are finally resolved, Integrys Energy Group will not 
be able to make a final determination of the probable cost impact, if any, of compliance with any changes 
to the Weston 4 air pennit on its future costs. 

In December 2008, an NOV was issued to WPS by the WDNR alleging various violations of the air permits 
for Weston 4, as well as Weston 1 and 2. The alleged violations include an exceedance of the carbon 
monoxide and volatile organic compound limits at Weston 4, exceedances of the hourly sulfur dioxide limit 
in ten three-hour periods during startup/shutdown and during one separate event at Weston 4, and two 
that address baghouse operation at Weston 1 and 2. On July 22,2009, an NOV was Issued to WPS by 
the WDNR alleging violations of the opacity limits during two six-minute periods (one each at Weston 2 
and 4) and of the sulfur dioxide average limit during one three-hour period at Weston 4. An NOV was 
issued to WPS in September 2009 relating to one event involving baghouse operation at Weston 1 and 2 
that occurred in December 2008. A fourth NOV was issued on December 14,2009, for a clerical error 
involving pages missing from a quarteriy report. Con-ective actions have been taken for the events in the 
four NOVs. An enforcement conference was held on January 7, 2009, for the December 2008 NOV and 
on August 26, 2009, for the July 2009 NOV. Discussions with the WDNR on the severity classification of 
the events continue. Management believes it is likely that the WDNR will refer the NOVs to the state 
Justkî e Department for enforcement. Management does not believe that these matters will have a 
material adverse impact on the consolidated financial statements of Integrys Energy Group. 

In eariy November 2006, it came to the attention of WPS that previous ambient air quality computer 
modeling done by the WDNR for the Weston facility (and other nearby air sources) did not take into 
account the emissions from the existing Weston 3 facility for purposes of evaluating air quality increment 
consumption underthe required PSD. WPS believes it has undertaken and completed corrective 
measures to address any identified modeling issues and anticipates issuance of a revised Titie V permit 
that will resolve this issue. Integrys Energy Group currently is not able to make a final detennination of the 
probable cost impact of this issue, if any. 
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Columbia Air Permit 

The renewal of the Title V air pennit for the Columbia generation station, jointly owned by WP&L, MG&E, 
and WPS and operated by WP&L, was issued by the WDNR on September 2, 2008. On October 8, 2009, 
the EPA issued an orcler objecting to the Title V air permit. The order responds to a petition filed by the 
Sierra Club and determined that a project in 2006 to replace the economizer, final superheater, and 
related components on Unit 1 should have been pennitted as a "major modification." The order directs the 
WDNR to resolve the EPA's objections within 90 days and "terminate, modify, or revoke and reissue" the 
Title V pennit accordingly. It is not known how the WDNR will respond to the order. 

Mercury and Interstate Air Quality Rules 

Mercury 

The State of Wisconsin's mercury rule, Chapter NR 446, requires a 40% reduction from the 2002 through 
2004 baseline mercury emissbns in Phase I, beginning January 1, 2010, through the end of 2014. In 
Phase II, which begins in 2015, electric generating units above 150 megawatts will be required to reduce 
mercury emissions by 90%. Reductions can be phased in and the 90% target can be delayed until 2021 if 
additional sulfur dioxide and nitrc)gen oxide reductions are implemented. By 2015, electric generating 
units above 25 megawatts but less than 150 megawatts must reduce their mercury emissions to a level 
defined by the BACT rule. WPS estimates capital costs of approximately $19 million for Phase 1 and 
Phase II, which includes estimates for both wholly owned and jointly owned plants, to achieve the required 
reductions. The capital costs are expected to be recovered in future rate cases. Because of the vacatur 
of the federal mercury control and monitoring rule in February 2008, the EPA is reviewing options for a 
new rulemaking and is expected to issue a draft rule in 2010. 

Sulfur Dioxide and Nitrogen Oxide 

The EPA issued the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) in 2005. CAIR was originally intended to reduce 
sulfur dioxide and nitnDgen oxide emissions from utility boilers located in 29 states, including Wisconsin, 
lOlichigan, Pennsylvania, and New York. The first phase of CAIR required about a 50% reduction 
beginning in 2009 for nitrogen oxide and beginning in 2010 for sulfur dioxide. The second phase required 
about a 65% reduction in emissions of both pollutants by 2015. The State of Wisconsin's rule to 
implement CAIR, which incorporates the cap and trade approach, has been fonwarded to the EPA for final 
review. 

On July 11, 2008, the Court of Appeals issued a decision vacating CAIR, the EPA appealed, and in 
December 2008, the Court of Appeals reversed the CAIR vacatur and CAIR was reinstated. The Court of 
Appeals directed the EPA to address the deficiencies noted in its July 11,2008 mling, and the EPA has 
indicated they expect to issue a draft revised CAIR rule for comment in 2010. As a result of the Court of 
Appeals' decision, CAIR is in place for 2010. WPS has not acquired any nitnagen oxide allowances for 
vintage years beyond 2010 other than those allocated by the EPA, and does not expect any material 
impact as a result of the vacatur and subsequent reinstatement of CAIR. 

The reinstatement of CAIR also affected the status of the Best Available Retrofit Technology (BART) rule, 
which is a rule that addresses regional haze and visibility. The WDNR is evaluating whether air quality 
improvements under CAIR will be adequate to demonstrate compliance with BART. 

For planning purposes, it is still assumed that additional sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide controls will be 
needed on existing units. The installation of any controls will need to be scheduled as part of WPS's 
long-term maintenance plan for its existing units. As such, controls may need to be installed Isefore 2015. 
On a preliminary basis, and assuming controls are still required, WPS estimates capital costs of 
$596 million, which includes estimates for both wholly owned and jointiy owned plants, in order to meet an 
assumed 2015 compliance date. This estimate is based on costs of cun-ent control technology and 
current infonnation regarding the final state and federal rules. The capital costs are anticipated to be 
recovered in future rate cases. 
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Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation 

Integrys Energy Group's natural gas utilities, their predecessors, and certain fonner affiliates operated 
facilities in the past at multiple sites for the purpose of manufacturing and storing manufactured gas. In 
connection wtth manufacturing and storing manufectured gas, waste materials were produced that may 
have resulted in soil and groundwater contamination at these sites. Under certain laws and regulations 
relating to the protection of the environment. Integrys Energy Group's natural gas utilities are required to 
undertake remedial action with respect to some of these materials. 

Integrys Energy GnDup's natural gas utilities are responsible for the environmental impacts at 55 
manufactured gas plant sites located in Wisconsin, Michigan, and Illinois. All are former regulated utility 
sites and are being remediated, with costs charged to existing ratepayers at WPS, MGU, PGL, and NSG. 
Twenty of these sites have been transferred to the EPA Superfund Altemative Sites Program. Under the 
EPA's program, the remedy decisions at these sites will be based on risk-based criteria typically used at 
Superi^und sites. Integrys Energy Group estimated and accrued for $657.7 million of future undiscounted 
investigation and cleanup costs for all sites as of December 31, 2009. Integrys Energy Group may adjust 
these estimates in the future, contingent upon remedial technology, regulatory requirements, remedy 
determinations, and any claims of natural resource damages. Integrys Energy Group recorded a 
regulatory asset of $673.8 million, which is net of insurance recoveries received of $56.9 million, related to 
the expected recovery of botii deferred expenditures and estimated future expenditures as of 
December 31,2009. 

Integrys Energy Group's natural gas utilities are coordinating the investigation and cleanup of the 
manufactured gas plant sites subject to EPAjurisdiction under what is called a "multi-site" program. This 
program involves prioritizing the work to be done at the sites, preparation and approval of documents 
common to all of the sites, and utilization of a consistent approach in selecting remedies. 

The EPA identified NSG as a potentially responsible party (PRP) under the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended (CERCLA), at the Waukegan Coke Plant 
Site located in Waukegan, Illinois (Waukegan Site). The Waukegan Site is part ofthe Outboard Marine 
Corporation (OMC) Superfund Site. The EPA also identified OMC, General Motors Corporation (GM), and 
certain other parties as PRPs at the Waukegan Site. NSG and the other PRPs are parties to a consent 
decree that requires NSG and GM, jointiy and severally, to perfonn the remedial action and establish and 
maintain financial assurance of $27,0 million. The EPA reduced tiie financial assurance requirement to 
$21.0 million to reflect completion of the soil component of the remedial action in August 2005. NSG has 
met its financial assurance requirement in the form of a net worth test while GM met the requirement by 
providing a perfonnance and payment bond in favor of the EPA. As a result of the GM bankruptcy filing, 
the EPA has contacted the surety and the surety has stated that it will pnDvide the EPA access to the 
surety bond funds which are expected to fund a significant portion of GM's liability. The potential exposure 
related to the GM bankruptcy that is not expected to be covered by the bond proceeds has been reflected 
in the accrual identified above. 

Management believes that any costs incun-ed for environmental activities relating to former manufactured 
gas plant operations that are not recoverable through contributions from other entities or from insurance 
carriers have been prudently incurred and are, therefore, recoverable through rates for WPS, MGU, PGL, 
and NSG. Accordingly, management believes that the costs incurred in connection with former 
manufactured gas plant operations will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial 
statements of Integrys Energy Group. 
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Flood Damage 

In May 2003, a fuse plug at the Silver Lake reservoir owned by UPPCO was breached, resulting in 
subsequent fiooding downstream on the Dead River, located in the Upper Peninsula of Michigan. All 
litigation matters have been resolved. All environmental claims have been resolved with the State of 
Michigan, and a Consent Judgment on the environmental matters was filed and approved in June 2009. 

As part of a settlement agreement with the MPSC staff and inten/eners in UPPCO's 2009 Power Supply 
Cost Recovery (PSCR) case, $0.6 million of replacement power costs was deemed not recoverable and 
was recorded in operating and maintenance expense in the first quarter of 2009. This settlement has 
been approved by the MPSC. 

Greenhouse Gases 

There is increasing concern over the issue of climate change and the effect of greenhouse gas emissions, 
in particular from the combustion of fossil fuels. Integrys Energy Group is evaluating both the technical 
and cost implications that may result from future state, regional, or federal greenhouse gas regulatory 
programs. This evaluation indicates it is probable that any regulatory program which caps emissions or 
imposes a carbon tax will increase costs for Integrys Energy Group and its customers. The greatest 
impact is likely to be on fossil foel-fired generation, with a less significant impact on natural gas storage 
and distribution operations. Efforts are undenway within the utility industry to find a feasible method for 
capturing carî on dioxide from pulverized coal-fired units and to develop cleaner ways to burn coal. The 
use of alternate fuels Is also being explored by the industry, but there are many cost and availability 
issues. Recently, efforts have been initiated to develop state and regional greenhouse gas programs, to 
create federal legislation to limit carbon dioxide emissions, and to create national or state renewable 
portfolio standards. Some examples of these efforts are the Waxman-Markey bill, which passed the 
United States House of Representatives; the Keny-Boxer draft bill, which was introduced in the United 
States Senate; and the Wisconsin Clean Energy Jobs Act, which has been intnDduced in the Wisconsin 
legislature to implement recommendations from the Governor's Global Warming Task Force. The 
Wisconsin Clean Energy Jobs Act establishes statewide goals for the reduction of greenhouse pas 
emissions and requires certain actions, including an increased renewable portfolio standard, to meet those 
goals. In addition, in April 2009, the EPA declared carison dioxide and several other greenhouse gases to 
be a danger to public health and welfare, which is the first step towarcls the EPA potentially regulating 
greenhouse gases under the CAA. A risk exists that such legislation or regulation will increase the cost of 
energy. However, Integrys Energy Group believes the capital expenditures being made at its generation 
units are appropriate under any reasonable mandatory greenhouse gas program and that future 
expenditures related to control of greenhouse gas emissions or renewable portfolio standards by its 
regulated electric utilities will be recoverable in rates. Integrys Energy Group will continue to monitor and 
manage potential risks and opportunities associated with future greenhouse gas legislative or regulatory 
actions. 

Escanaba Water Permit Issues 

UPPCO operates the Escanaba Generating Station (EGS) under contract with its owner, the City of 
Escanaba (City). While the City owns the water pennits for EGS, UPPCO's personnel provide testing and 
certification of waste water discharges. In September 2008, UPPCO became aware of potential water 
discharge pennit violations regarding reported pH and oil and grease readings at EGS. Corrective actions 
were implemented at the plant, notification was provided to the City, and UPPCO self reported the 
potential permit violations to the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ). UPPCO filed a 
final report with the MDEQ on November 25, 2008, and a copy was sent to the City. 

In March 2009, MDEQ began its investigation into this matter Depending upon the results ofthe MDEQ's 
review of the infonnation provided by UPPCO, the MDEQ, in consultation with the Michigan Attomey 
General's Office, may assess a fine and/or seek criminal charges against UPPCO, assess a fine and/or 
seek criminal charges against the fonner manager who certified the reports, and/or close out the 
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investigation. Although a specific date of resolution is unknown, UPPCO has responded to all information 
requests from the MDEQ. 

Natural Gas Charge Reconciliation Proceedings and Related Matters 

Natural Gas Charge Settlement and Pending Natural Gas Charge Cases 

For PGL and NSG, the ICC conducts annual proceedings regarding the reconciliation of revenues from 
the natural gas charge and related natural gas costs. The natural gas charge represents the cost of 
natural gas and transportation and storage services purchased by PGL and NSG, as well as gains, losses, 
and costs incun-ed under PGL's and NSG's hedging program (Gas Charge). In these proceedings, 
interested parties review the accuracy of the reconciliation of revenues and costs and the prudence of 
natural gas costs recovered thnaugh the Gas Charge. If the ICC were to find that the reconciliation was 
inaccurate or any natural gas costs were imprudently incurred, the ICC would order PGL and NSG to 
refund the affected amount to customers through subsequent Gas Charge filings. 

In March 28, 2006 orders, the ICC adopted a settlement agreement related to fiscal years 2001 through 
2004 natural gas costs. Under certain provisions ofthe settlement agreement, PEC agreed to: (1) pn^vide 
the Illinois Attomey General (AG) and the City of Chicago (Chicago) up to $30.0 million for conservation 
and weatherization programs for which PGL and NSG may not seek rate recovery; (2) implement a 
reconnection program for certain customers and; (3) intemal audits and an extemal audit of natural gas 
supply practices. 

With respect to the conservation and weatherization funding, as of December 31,2009, $10.2 million 
remained unpaid, of which $5.2 million was included in other current liabilities, and $5.0 million was 
included in other long-term liabilities. Under the reconnection program, PGL and NSG took all steps they 
believed were required by the agreement The AG and Chicago have indicated that they believe the terms 
of the reconnection program are brciader. Management believes that PGL and NSG have folly complied 
with the reconnection program obligations ofthe settlement agreement; however, PGL, NSG, the AG and 
Chicago are discussing how to resolve this disagreement. 

Four of the five annual intemal audits required by the settlement agreement have been completed. An 
auditor hired by the ICC conducted the extemal audit, and filed its report on April 10,2008. On March 31, 
2009, PGL and NSG completed their responses to the auditor's recommendations. 

The fiscal 2006 Gas Charge reconciliation cases were initiated on November 21, 2006. The ICC staff and 
interveners (the AG, the Citizens Utilrty Board, and Chicago, filing jointly) each filed testimony 
recommending disallowances for PGL and NSG for a bank natural gas adjustment similar to that 
addressed in the fiscal 2005 Gas Charge reconciliation cases, which PGL and NSG did not contest. In 
addition, the interveners recommended a disallowance for PGL of $13.9 million (reduced to $11.0 million 
in their brief) associated with PGL's provision of interstate hub sen/ices. The ICC staff does not support 
the interveners' proposal, and PGL does not believe the proposal has merit. A hearing for the PGL and 
NSG cases was held on December 11,2008. For PGL, briefing concluded February 27, 2009, and the 
administrative law judge has not yet prepared a proposed order. For NSG, there were no contested 
issues, and the parties filed an agreed fomi of order in January 2009. 

Class Action 

In February 2004, a purported class action suit was filed in Cook County Circuit Court against PEC, PGL, 
and NSG by customers of PGL and NSG, alleging among other things, violation of the Illinois Consumer 
Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act related to matters at issue in the utilities' fiscal year 2001 
Gas Charge reconciliation proceedings. In the suit, Alport et al. v. Peoples Energy Corporation, the 
plaintiffs seek disgorgement and punitive damages. PGL and NSG have been dismissed as defendants 
and the only remaining counts of the suit allege violations of the Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business 
Practices Act by PEC and that PEC acted in concert with others to commit a tortious act. PEC denies the 
allegations and is vigorously defending the suit. On November 19, 2009, the court entered an order 
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certifying a class composed of customers of PGL and NSG during the period April 26, 2000, through 
September 30. 2002. On December 17, 2009, PEC filed a Petition for Leave to Appeal to the Appellate 
C^Durt challenging class certification and on Febaiary 19,2010, this appeal was denied. 

NOTE 17-GUARANTEES 

As part of nonnal business, Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries enter into various guarantees 
providing financial or perfonnance assurance to third parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries. These 
guarantees are entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise atiributed to a 
subsidiary on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to accomplish the 
subsidiaries' intended commercial purposes. 

Most of the guarantees Issued by Integrys Energy Grc)up consist of inter-company guarantees of 
subsidiaries' obligations or performance by the subsidiaries under certain contractual commitments. As 
such, these guarantees are excluded from the recognition and measurement requirements of the 
Guarantees Topic of the FASB ASC. 

The following table shows outstanding guarantees at Integrys Energy Group: 

Expiration 

(MUiions) 
Guarantees supporting commodity 

transactions of subsidiaries *̂ * 
Standby letters of credit *̂ ^ 
Surety bonds *̂ ^ 
Otiier guarantees ̂ "̂  

Total Amounts 
Committed at 

December 31,2009 

$ 981.4 
130.8 

3.1 
7.6 

Less 
Than 
lYear 

$773.8 
119.4 

3.1 
1.4 

1 to3 
Years 

$74.5 
11.3 

-
-

4 to 5 
Years 

$31.0 
0.1 

-
. 

Over 5 
Years 

$102.1 
-
-

6.2 
Total guarantees $1.122.9 $897.7 $85.8 $31.1 $108.3 

» 
*̂^ Consists of parental guarantees of $803.9 million to support the business operations of Integrys Energy Services; 

$92.7 million and $74.8 million, respectively, related to natural gas supply at MERC and MGU; and $5.0 million at 
both PEC and IBS to support business operations. These guarantees are not reflected on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets. 

*̂ ^ Composed of $120.4 million issued to support Integrys Energy Services' operations; $4.8 million related to letters 
of credit at WPS; $4.3 million issued for workers compensation coverage in Illinois; and $1.3 million related to 
letters of credit at UPPCO, MGU, MERC, PGL, and NSG. These amounts are not reflected on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets. 

(3) Primarily for workers compensation coverage and obtaining various licenses, pennits, and rights of way. Surety 
bonds are not included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

'̂ ^ Consists of a $5.0 million environmental indemnification provided by Integrys Energy Services related to the sale 
of the Stoneman generation facility, under which Integrys Energy Services expects that the likelihood of required 
perfoonance is remote; and $2.6 million related to other indemnifications and workers compensation coverage. 

Integrys Energy Group has provided total parental guarantees of $958.4 million on behalf of Integrys 
Energy Services as shown in the table below. Integrys Energy Group's exposure under these guarantees 
related to open transactions at December 31.2009, was appnDximately $513 million. 
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(Millions) December 31.2009 
Guarantees supporting commodity transactions $803.9 
Standby letters of credit 120.4 
Guarantees of subsidiary debt 27.0 * 
Surety bonds 1.5 
Other 5.6 
Total guarantees $958.4 

• Consists of outstanding debt at an Integrys Energy Services' subsidiary, which is not included in the total Integrys 
Energy Group guarantee amounts above, because the debt is refleded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

NOTE 18-EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

Defined Benefit Pians 

On September 30,2008, the PEC Service Annuity System was merged into the PEC Retirement Plan, 
which was then renamed the Integrys Energy Group Retirement Plan. On December 31,2008, the WPS 
Retirement Plan was merged into the Integrys Energy Group Retirement Plan. The two plan mergers had 
no effect on the level of plan benefits provided to participants or the management of plan assets. Integrys 
Energy Group and its subsidiaries now maintain one non-contributory, qualified pensbn plan covering 
substantially all employees, as well as several unfunded nonqualified retirement pians. In addition, 
Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries offer multiple other postretirement benefrt plans to employees. 
The benefits for a portion of these plans are funded through irrevocable trusts, as allowed for income tax 
purposes. 

Integrys Energy Group also currently offers medical, dental, and life insurance benefits to active 
employees and their dependents. Integrys Energy Group expenses the costs of these benefits as 
incurred. 

During the third quarter of 2007, Integrys Energy Group made a series of changes to certain o^its 
retirement benefit plans. Specifically, the changes included: 

• Closure of the defined benefit pension plans to non-union new hires, effective January 1, 2008; 
• A freeze in defined benefit isension service accruals for non-union employees, effective January 1, 

2013; 
• A freeze in compensation amounts used for detennining defined benefit pension amounts for 

non-union employees, effective January 1, 2018; 
• Revised eligibility requirements for retiree medical benefits for employees hired on or after 

January 1,2008, and the introduction of an annual premium reduction credit for employees eligible to 
retire after December 31, 2012; and 

• Closure of the retiree dental and life benefit prcigrams to all new hires, effective January 1,2008, and 
elimination of these benefits for any existing empbyees who are not eligible to retire before 
December 31, 2012. 

As a result ofthe changes described above, Integrys Energy Group remeasured certain of its pension and 
other postretirement benefit obligations as of August 1,2007. The curtailment gain recognized as a result 
of the plan design changes was not significant and is included in the net periodic benefit cost table below. 

A second remeasurement occurred on October 1,2007, because the ratification of a union contract 
resulted in changes to a postretirement medical plan. The changes did not result in a curtailment. 

Effective May 1,2008, and July 1,2008, the defined benefit pension plans were closed to new union hires 
at PGL and NSG, respectively. Effective April 19, 2009, and December 18,2009, the defined benefit 
pension plans were closed to new union hires at UPPCO and WPS, respectively. In addition, changes in 
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the WPS union contract resulted in a plan amendment in December 2009. Effective January 15, 2010, the 
defined beneflt pensbn plans were closed to new Local 12295 union hires at MGU. 

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the plans' benefit obligations and feir value 
of assets during 2009 and 2008. 

(Millions) 
Pension Benefits 

2009 2008 
Other Benefits 

2009 2008 
Reconciliation of benefit obligation 
Obiigatbn at January 1 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Plan amendments 
Plan curtailment 
Actuarial (gain) loss, net 
Participant contributions 
Benefit payments 
Federal subsidy on benefits paid 
Other 
Obligation at December 31 

$1,230.5 
38.9 
80.9 

3.0 
0.2* 

78.6 
-

(94.7) 
-
-

$1,337.4 

$1,210.2 
38.4 
76.2 

-
-

12.1 
-

(106.4) 
-
-

$1,230.5 

$432.7 
14.3 
26.5 

. 
m 

23.2 
-

(23.2) 
2.0 

-
$475.5 

$408.6 
15.7 
26.4 

-
-

(12.5) 
1.8 

(22.1) 
2.0 

12.8 
$432.7 

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets 
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 
Actual return on plan assets 
Employer contributions 
Participant contributions 
Beneflt payments 
Other 
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 

$ 830.3 
174.5 
23.5 

-
(94.7) 

-
$ 933.6 

$1,219.5 
(310.6) 

27.8 
-

(106.4) 
-

$ 830.3 

$191.1 
33.1 
29.8 

-
(23.2) 

-
$230.8 

$248.3 
(55.6) 
13.0 
1.7 

(22.1) 
5.8 

$191.1 

* In connection with the reduction in workforce discussed in Note 3, "Restructuring Expense," an insignificant 
curtailment loss was recognized. The curtailment is induded in the resti'uduring expense line item on the 
Consolidated Statement of Income, and is not induded in the r>et periodic benefit expense tabte below. 

Amounts recognized on Integrys Energy Group's Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 related to 
the funded status of the beneflt plans consisted of: 

(MiUions) 
Cunent liabilities 
Noncun-ent liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Pension Benefits 
2009 2008 

$ 7.5 $ 5.3 
396.3 394.9 

$403.8 $400.2 

Other Benefits 
2009 2008 

$ 0.3 $ -̂  
244.4 241.6 

$244.7 $241.6 

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined beneflt pension plans was $1.1 billion at both 
December 31,2009, and December 31,2008. Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit 
obligation in excess of plan assets is presented in the following table. 

(MiUions) 
December 31 

2009 2008 
Projected benefit obligation 
Accumulated benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

$1,337.4 
1,147.0 

933.6 

$1,230.5 
1,103.5 

830.3 
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The following table shows the amounts that had not yet been recognized in Integrys Energy Group's net 
periodic beneflt cost as of December 31. Amounts related to the nonregulated entities are included in 
accumulated other comprehensive loss, while amounts related to the utilities are recorded as regulatory 
assets or liabilities. 

(MUiions) 
Accumulated ottier comprehensive 

loss (pre-tax) 
Net actuarial loss 
Prior service costs (credits) 
Total 

Pension Benefits 
2009 2008 

$ 36.2 
0.9 

$ 37.1 

$ 25.7 
1.2 

$ 26.9 

pttierPen^fits 
2009 2008 

$ - $ 0.7 
(1.8) (2.2) 

$(1.8) $(1.5) 

Net regulatory assets 
Net actuarial loss 
Prior service costs (credits) 
Transition obligation 
Merger related regulatory adjustment 
Regulatory defen-al * 

$368.6 
21.1 

• 

71,5 
4.5 

$384.3 
22.9 

-
91.5 

-

$66.2 
(23.4) 

0.8 
38.7 
(1.3) 

$56.1 
(26.9) 

1.1 
42.0 

-
Total $465.7 $498.7 $81.0 $72.3 

* The PSCW authorized recovery for net increased 2009 WPS pension and other postretirement benefit costs 
related to plan asset losses that occurred in 2008. Amortization and recovery ofthese defened costs will occur 
in 2010. 

Integrys Energy Grciup recorded the PEC pension assets acquired and liabilities assumed at fair value at 
the February 2007 acquisition date. However, through 2009, PGL and NSG continued to have rates set 
based on their historical basis of accounting, including amortizations of prior service costs (credits), 
actuarial losses, and transition obligations, which were recognized on the consolidated financial 
statements as regulatory assets at the purchase date. The amount reflected in net periodic beneflt cost in 
the fable below is based on the amount used in the rate-setting process for PGL and NSG. The difference 
in the basis of accounting is shown as a merger related regulatory adjustinent in the table above. 

The estimated net losses and prior service costs for deflned benefit pension plans that will be amortized 
as a component of net periodic beneflt cost during 2010 are $11.5 million and $5.3 million, respectively. 
The estimated net losses, prior service credits, and transition obligation for other postretirement benefit 
plans that will be amortized as a component of net periodic benefit cost during 2010 are $2.8 million, 
$3.8 million, and $0.3 miilbn, respectively. 

The following fable presents the components of the consolidated net periodic benefit costs for the plans: 

(Millions) 
Net periodic benefit cost 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected retum on plan assets 
Plan curtailment gain 
Amortization of transition obligation 
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) 
Amortization of net aduarial (gain) loss 
Amortization of merger related regulatory adjustment 
Regulaton' defeiral * 
Net periodic benefit cost 

P&n$lon Benefits 
2009 

$38.9 
80.9 

(92.5) 
-
-

5.0 
1.9 

20.0 
(4.5) 

$49.7 

2008 

$38.4 
76.2 

(101.0) 
-
-

5.1 
0.7 
9.6 
-

$29.0 

2007 

$39.7 
70.4 

(89.4) 
-
-

5.1 
4.8 

14.2 
-

$44.8 

2009 

$14.3 
26.5 

(17.7) 
-

0.3 
(3.8) 
(1.5) 
3.3 
1.3 

$22.7 

Other Benefits 
2008 

$15.7 
26.4 
(19.0) 
, -
0.3 
(3.8) 

2.1 
-

$21.7 

2007 

$15.4 
24.5 
(17.5) 
(0.1) 
0.4 

(2.6) 
1.8 
0.8 

-
$22.7 

The PSCW authorized recovery for net increased 2009 WPS pension and other postretirement benefit costs related to plan 
asset losses that occurred in 2008. Amortization and recovery of these defened costs vAW occur in 2010. 
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Assumptions - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans 

The weighted-average assumptions used at December 31 to detemnine benefit obligations for the plans 
were as follows: 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 
Assumed medical cost trend rate (under age 65) 
Ultimate trend rate 
Ultimate trend rate reached in 
Assumed medical cost trend rate (over age 65) 
Ultimate trend rate 
Ultimate trend rate reached in 
Assumed dental cost trend rate 

Pension 
2009 
6.15% 
4.26% 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Benefits 
2008 
6.45% 
4.26% 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Other Benefits 
2009 2008 
5.96% 

N/A 
8.0% 
5.0% 
2013 
8.5% 
5.5% 
2013 
5.0% 

6.48% 
N/A 

9.0% 
5.0% 
2013 
9.5% 
5.5% 
2013 
5.0% 

The weighted-average assumptions used to detemiine net periodic benefit cost for the plans were as 
follows for the years ended December 31: 

Pension Benefits 

Discount rate 
Expected return on assets 
Rate of compensation increase 

2009 
6.45% 
8.50% 
4.26% 

2008 
6.40% 
8.50% 
4.27% 

2007 
5.88% 
8.50% 
5.50% 

Other Benefits 

Discount rate 
Expected return on assets 
Assumed medical cost trend rate (under age 65) 
Ultimate trend rate 
Ultimate trend rate reached in 
Assumed medical cost trend rate (over age 65) 
Ultimate trend rate 
Ultimate trend rate reached in 
Assumed dental cost trend rate 

2009 
6.48% 
8.50% 
9.0% 
5.0% 
2013 
9.5% 
5.5% 
2013 
5.0% 

2008 
6.40% 
8.50% 
10.0% 
5.0% 
2013 

10.5% 
5.5% 
2013 
5.0% 

2007 
5.79% 
8.50% 
8.0% 
5.0% 
2010 

8.0%-10.0% 
5.0%-6.5% 
2010-2011 

5.0% 

Integrys Energy Group establishes its expected retum on asset assumption based on consideration of 
historical and prc)jected asset class returns, as well as the target allocations of the benefit trust portfolios. 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported by Integrys Energy 
Group for the health care plans. For the year ended December 31,2009, a one-percentage-point change 
in assumed health care cost trend rates would have had the following effects: 

One-Percentage-Point 
(MUiions) 
Effect on totel of sen/ice and interest cost components of net 

periodic postretirement health care benefit cost 
Effect on the health care component of the 

accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 

Increase 

$ 5.8 

58.1 

Decrease 

$ (4.8) 

(48.4) 
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Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets 

Integrys Energy Group's investment policy includes various guidelines and procedures designed to ensure 
assets are invested in an apprc)priate manner to meet expected foture beneflts to be earned by 
participants. The investment guidelines consber a broad range of economic conditions. Central to the 
policy are farget allocation ranges by major asset categories. The policy is esteblished and administered 
in a manner that is compliant at all times with applicable regulations. 

The objectives of the target allocations are to maintain investment porffolios that diversify risk through 
prudent asset allocation parameters and to achieve asset returns that meet or exceed the plans' actuarial 
assumptions and that are competitive with like instruments employing similar investinent strategies. The 
portfolio diversification provides protection against significant concentrations of risk in the plan assets. 
The target asset allocations for pension plans and other postretirement plans that have significant assets 
are: 70% equity securities and 30% fixed income securities. Equity securities primarily include investments 
in large-cap and small-cap companies. Fixed income securities primarily include corporate bonds of 
companies from diversified industries. United Stetes govemment securities, and mortgage-backed 
securities. 

The Board of Directors has esteblished the Employee Benefits Administrator Committee (composed of 
members of management) to manage the operations and administration of all benefit plans and trusts. 
The commiftee perbdically reviews the asset allocation, and the portfolio is rebalanced when necessary. 

The investments recorded at fair value in the pensbn and other postretirement beneflt plan assets at 
December 31,2009, by asset category were as follows. See Note 1 (r), "Summary of Significant 
Accounting Policies - Fair Value," for infonnation on the fair value hierarchy and the inputs used to 
measure fair value. 

Pension Plan Assets Other Benefit Plan Assets 
(Millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Asset Category 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Equity securities: 

United States equity 
Intemational equity 

Fixed income securities: 
United States govemment 
Foreign government 
Corporate debt 
Asset-backed securities 

Real estate securities 
Other 

$ 2.1 

2617 
31.0 

-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 32.9 

171.3 
144.3 

109.6 
12.4 

124.9 
39.3 

-
-

$ -

-
-

-
0.4 
2.9 

-
24.9 

1.1 

$ 35.0 

433.0 
175.3 

109.6 
12.8 

127.8 
39.3 
24.9 

1.1 

$ -

48.0 
-

-
-

0.9 
-
-
-

$ 20.1 $ 

39.6 
26.9 

32.4 
1.5 

31.6 
9.0 

-
2.3 

- $ 20.1 

87.6 
26.9 

32.4 
1.5 

32.5 
9.0 

-
2.3 

401(h) other benefit plan assets 
invested as pension assets * 
Total 

294.8 

(0.8) 
$294.0 

634.7 

(17.6) 
$617.1 

29.3 

(0.1) 
$29.2 

958.8 

(18.5) 
$940.3 

48.9 

0.8 
$49.7 

163.4 

17.6 
$181.0 

-

0.1 
$0.1 

212.3 

18.5 
$230.8 

Pension ti-ust assets are used to pay other postretirement benefits as allowed under Intemal Revenue Code 
Section 401(h). 
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The following teble sets forth a reconciliation of changes in the fair value of pension plan assets 
categorized as Level 3 measurements: 

(Millions) 
Beginning balance at December 31,2008 
Actual retum on plan assets: 

Relating to assets still held at the reporting 
date 

Relating to assets sold during the period 
Purchases, sales, and settlements 
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3 
Ending balance at December 31,2009 

Foreign 
Government 

Debt 
$0.7 

0.8 

0.1 
(12) 
$0.4 

Corporate 
Debt 
$1.8 

1.1 

(0.4) 
0.7 

(0.3) 
$2.9 

Asset-
Backed 

Securities 
$0.1 

(0.1) 
$ -

Real 
Estate 

Securities 
$35.8 

(12.2) 

1.3 

$24.9 

Other 
$1.5 

1.2 

(0.5) 
(1.1) 

$1.1 

Totai 
$39.9 

(9.1) 

(0.9) 
1.0 

(1.6) 
$29.3 

Cash Flows Related to Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Pians 

Integrys Energy Group's funding policy is to contribute at least the minimum amounts that are required to 
be funded under the Empbyee Retirement Income Security Act, but not more than the maximum amounts 
that are cun-ently deductible for income tax purposes. Integrys Energy Group expects to contribute 
$67.6 million to pension plans and $35.7 million to other postretirement benefit plans in 2010. 

The following teble shows the payments, reflecting expected future service, that Integrys Energy Group 
expects to make for pension and other postretirement benefits. In addition, the table shows the expected 
federal subsidies, provided under the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 
2003, that will partially oflBet other postretirement benefits. 

(MiUions) Pension Benefits Other Benefits Federal Subsidies 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2D14 
2015-2019 

$87.6 
91.9 
97.6 

105.3 
105.8 
640.7 

$27.8 
29.9 
31.3 
32.8 
34.2 

206.5 

$(2.2) 
(2.4) 
(2.6) 
(2.7) 
(2.9) 

(17.0) 

Defined Contribution Benefit Plans 

Integrys Energy Group maintains 401 (k) Savings Plans for substantially all full-time employees and 
matches a percentage of employee contributions through an ESOP or cash contribution up to certain 
limits. Certain union employees receive a contributbn to their ESOP account regardless of their 
participation in the 401 (k) Savings Plan. The ESOP held 3.4 million shares of Integrys Energy Group's 
common stock (market value of $140.8 million) at December 31,2009. Certain employees participate in a 
discretbnary profit-sharing contribution and/or cash match. Certain empbyees who are not eligible to 
participate in the defined benefit pension plan participate in a defined contribution pension plan, in which 
Integrys Energy Group contributes certein amounts to an employee's account based on the employee's 
wages, age, and years of service. Totel costs incunBd under all of these plans were $16.8 million in 2009, 
$17.4 million in 2008, and $14.4 million in 2007. 

Integrys Energy Group maintains deferred compensation plans that enat̂ le certain key employees and 
non-employee directors to defer a portion of their compensation or fees on a pre-tax basis. Non-employee 
directors can defer up to 100% of their director fees. Compensation is generally deferred in the fonn of 
cash, indexed to certain investment options or Integrys Energy Group common stock with deemed 
dividends paid on the common stock automatically reinvested. 

The deferred compensation arrangements for which distributions are made solely in Integrys Energy 
Group's common stock are classified as an equity instrument. Changes in the fair value of the defen-ed 
compensation obligation are not recognized. The deferred compensation obligation associated with 
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Integrys Energy Group common stock was $24.2 million at December 31,2009, and $23.7 million at 
December 31, 2008. 

The portion ofthe deferred compensation obligation associated with deferrals that allow for distribution in 
cash is classified as a liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and adjusted, with a charge or credit to 
expense, to reflect changes in the fair value of the deferred compensation obligation. The obligation 
classified within other long-term liabilities was $32.1 million at December 31, 2009, and $28.2 million at 
December 31,2008. The costs incurred under this arrangement were $4.0 million in 2009, $1.9 million in 
2008, and $2.3 million in 2007. 

The deferred compensation programs are partially funded through shares of Integrys Energy Group's 
common stock that is held in a rabbi trust. The common stock held in the rabbi trust is classified as a 
reduction of equity in a manner similar to accounting for treasury stock. The totel cost of Integrys Energy 
Group's common stock held in the rabbi trust was $17.2 million at December 31,2009, and $16.3 million 
at December 31, 2008. 

NOTE 19--PREFERRED STOCK OF SUBSIDIARY 

Integrys Energy Gnsup's subsidiary, WPS, has 1,000,000 authorized shares of pretended stock with no 
mandatory redemption and a $100 par value. Outstanding shares were as follows at December 31: 

(MiUions, except share amounts) 

Series 
5.00% 
5.04% 
5.08% 
6.76% 
6.88% 
Total 

2009 
Shares 

Outstanding 
130.692 
29,898 
49,905 

150,000 
150,0Q0 
510.495 

Carrying 
Value 

$13.1 
3.0 
5.0 

15.0 
15.0 

$51.1 

2008 
Shares 

Outstanding 
130,695 
29,898 
49,923 

150,000 
150,000 
510,516 

Carrying 
Value 

$13.1 
3.0 
5.0 

15.0 
15.0 

$51.1 

All shares of preferred stock of all series are of equal rank except as to dividend rates and redemption 
terms. Payment of dividends from any eamed surplus or other available surplus is not restricted by the 
tenns of any indenture or other undertaking by WPS. Each series of outstanding preferred stock is 
redeemable in whole or in part at WPS's option at any time on 30 days' notice at the respective 
redemption prices. WPS may not redeem less than all, nor purchase any, of its prefen-ed stock during the 
existence of any dividend default. 

In the event of WPS's dissolution or liquidation, the holders of preferred stock are entitled to receive 
(a) the par value of their preferred stock out of the corporate assets other than profits before any of such 
assets are paid or distributed to the holders of common stock and (b) the amount of dividends 
accumulated and unpaid on their preferred stock out of the surplus or net profits before any of such 
surplus or net profits are paid to the holders of common stock. Thereafter, the remainder of the corporate 
assets, surplus, and net profits shall be paid to the holders of common stock. 

The preferred stock has no pre-emptive, subscription, or conversbn rights, and has no sinking fund 
provisions. 
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NOTE 20-COMMON EQUITY 

Integrys Energy GnDup's reconciliation of shares outstanding at December 31, 2009, and 2008, was as 
follows: 

2009 2008 

Common stock issued 
Less: 

Treasury shares 
Deferred compensation rabbi trust 
Restricted stock 

Total shares outstanding 

Shares 
76,418,843 

-
402,839 

35,861 
75,980,143 

Average Cost 

$ -
$42.58 *'» 
$55.33 *2> 

Shares 
76,430,037 

7,000 
367,238 
63,031 

75,992,768 

Average Cost 

$25.19 
$44.36 <̂> 
$54.81 '̂* 

*''* Based on Integrys Energy Group's stock price on the day the shares entered the deferred compensation rabbi 
trust. Shares paid out of the trust are valued at the average cost of shares in the taist. 

*̂ * Based on the grant date fair value of the restricted stock. 

During 2009 and 2008, Integrys Energy Group purchased shares of its common stock on the open martlet 
to meet the requirements of its Stock Investment Plan and certain stock-based employee benefit and 
compensation plans. Prior to 2008, Integrys Energy Group issued new shares of common stock under 
these plans. These stock issuances increased equity $45.6 million in 2007. 

Pursuant to the PEC merger, shareholders of PEC received 0.825 shares of Integrys Energy Group (then 
known as WPS Resources) common stock, $1 par value, for each share of PEC common stock, no par 
value, that they held immediately prior to the merger. This resulted in an increase in common stock 
outstanding of 31,938,491 shares and increased equity $1.6 billion as of December 31. 2007. 

Integrys Energy Group's common stock shares 
Balance at December 31,2006 43,387,460 
Shares issued 

Merger with PEC 31,938,491 
Stock Investinent Plan 529,935 
Stock-based compensation 444,041 
Restricted stock, net 93,339 
Rabbi trust shares 40,829 

Balance at December 31,2007 
Restricted stock shares cancelled 
Balance at December 31,2008 
Restricted stock shares cancelled 
Balance at December 31, 2009 

76,434,095 
(4,058) 

76,430,037 
(11,194) 

76,418,843 

Eamings Per Share 

In the first quarter of 2009, Integrys Energy Grciup adopted FASB Staff Positbn (FSP) No. EITF 03-6-1, 
"Detennining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating 
Securities,*' (now incorporated as part of FASB ASC 260-10). This FSP had no effect on previously 
reported basic eamings (loss) per share. 

Basic eamings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributed to common 
shareholders by the weighted average number of common stock shares outstending during the period. 
Diluted eamings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributed to common 
shareholders by the weighted average number of common stock shares outstanding during the period, 
adjusted for the exerc;ise and/or conversion of all potentially dilutive securities. Such dilutive items include 
in-the-money stock options, performance stock rights, and restricted stock. The effects of an insignificant 
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number of in-the-money securities were not included in the computation for 2009, because there was a net 
loss during the period, which would cause the impact to be anti-dilutive. The 2009 calculation of diluted 
eamings per share also excluded 2.7 million out-of-the-money stock options that had an anti-dilutive 
effect. The calculation of diluted eamings per share for 2008 excluded 2.2 million out-of-the-money stock 
options that had an anti-dilutive effect. The calculation of diluted earnings per share for 2007 excluded an 
insignificant number of stock options that had an anti-dilutive effect. The following table reconciles the 
computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) î er share: 

(Millions, except per share amounte) 2009 2008 2007 

Numerator: 
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 
Discontinued operations, net of tax 
Prefened stock dividends of subsidiary 
Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries 

$(71.6) 
2.8 

(3.1) 
1.0 

$124.7 
4.7 

(3.1) 
0.1 

$181.0 
73.3 
(3.1) 
0.1 

Net income (loss) attributed to common shareholders $(70.9) $126.4 $251.3 

Denominator 
Average shares of common stock 
Effect of dilutive securities 

Stock-based compensation 

basic 76.8 76.7 

0.3 

71.6 

0.2 
Average shares of common stock - diluted 76.8 77.0 71.8 

Eamings (loss) per common share 
Basic 
Diluted 

$(0.92) 
(0.92) 

$1.65 
1.64 

$3.51 
3.50 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax at December 31,2009, and 2008, 
.were: 

(MiUions) 2009 2008 
Cash flow hedges^'' 
Unrecognized pensbn and other postretirement benefit costs *̂ ^ 
Foreign cunrency translation 
Available-for-sale securities *̂ * 
Total accumulated other comprehensive bss 

$(24.9) 
(21.5) 

2.4 
-

$(44.0) 

$(56.4) 
(14.8) 

(1.7) 
0.1 

$(72.8) 

'̂'̂  Includes tax benefits of $18.6 million and $33.8 million at December 31, 2009, and 2008, respectively. 
^̂ ' Includes tax benefits of $13.8 million and $10.6 miliion at December 31, 2009, and 2008, respectively. 
*̂ ' Includes tax of $3.4 million at December 31,2008. 

NOTE 21-STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 

In May 2007, Integrys Energy Gnaup's shareholders approved the 2007 Omnibus Incentive Compensation 
Plan (2007 Omnibus Plan). Under the prcjvisions of the 2007 Omnibus Plan, the number of shares of 
stock that may be issued in satisfaction of plan awards may not exceed 3,500,000, and no more than 
1,500,000 shares of stock can be granted as performance shares or restricted stock. No additional 
awards will be issued under prior plans, although the plans continue to exist for purposes ofthe existing 
outstanding stock-based compensation. At December 31, 2009, stock options, pertbnnance stock rights, 
restricted shares and restricted share units, and stock appreciation rights were outstanding under the 
various plans. 
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Stock Options 

Under the prcjvisions of the 2007 Omnibus Plan, no single employee who is the chief executive officer of 
Integrys Energy Group or any of the other four highest compensated officers of Integrys Energy Group and 
its subsidiaries can be granted options for more than 1,000,000 shares during any calendar year. No 
stock options will have a term longer than ten years. The exercise price of each stock option is equal to 
Vne fair mart<et value of the stock on the date the stock option is granted. Generally, one-fourth of the 
stock options granted vest and become exercisable each year on the anniversary ofthe grant date. 

The fair values of stock option awards granted were estimated using a binomial lattice model. The 
expected temi of option awands is calculated based on historical exercise behavior and represents the 
period of time that options are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free interest rate is based on the 
United States Treasury yield curve. The expected dividend yield incorporates the curcent dividend rate as 
well as historical dividend increase patterns. Integrys Energy Group's expected stock price volatility was 
estimated using its 10-year historical volatility. The following table shows the weighted-average fair values 
per stock option along with the assumptions incorporated into the valuation models: 

2009 2008 2007 
Weighted-average fair value per option 
Expected tenn 
Risk-free interest rate 
Expected dividend yield 
Expected volatility 

$3.83 
8-9 years 
2.50%.2.78% 
5.50% 
19% 

$4.52 
7 years 
3.40% 
5.00% 
17% 

$7.80 
7 years 
4.65% 
4.50% 
17% 

Compensation cost recognized for stock options during the years ended December 31,2009,2008, and 
2007, was $2.0 million, $2.6 million, and $1.8 million, respectively. Compensation cost capitalized during 
these same years was not significant. As of December 31, 2009, $1.5 million of compensation cost 
related to unvested and outstending stock options was expected to be recognized over a 
weighted-average period of 2.4 years. 

ft 

Cash received from option exercises during the year ended December 31,2009, was not significant, and 
was $3.3 million and $14.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2007, respectiveiy. 
The tex benefit realized from these option exercises was not significant in 2009 and 2008, and was 
$2.3 millk>n in 2007. 

A summary of stock option activity for the year ended December 31,2009, and information related to 
outstending and exercisable stock options at December 31, 2009, is presented below: 

Stock Options 

Weighted-
Average 

Exercise Price 
Per Share 

Weighted-Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Life 
(in Years) 

Aggregate 
Intrinsic 
Value 

JMiUions) 
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 2,700,139 
Granted 511,484 
Exercised 33,659 
Forfeited 44,101 
Expired 577 
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 3,133,286 
Exercisable at December 31, 2009 2,006,897 

$47.90 
42.12 
32.64 
52.14 
43.10 

$47.06 
$47.29 

6.10 
4.80 

$0.3 

$2.3 
$2.3 

The intrinsic value of options exercised was not significant during the year ended December 31,2008, and 
was $4.4 million during the year ended December 31,2007. 

The aggregate intrinsic value for outstanding and exercisable options in the above table represents the 
total pre-tax intrinsic value that would have been received by the option holders had they all exercised 
tiieir options at December 31, 2009. This is calculated as the difference between Integrys Energy Group's 
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closing stock price on December 31,2009, and the option exercise price, multiplied by the number of 
in-the-money stock options. 

Performance Stock Rights 

Performance stock rights vest over a three-year performance period and are paid out in shares of Integrys 
Energy Group's common stock. No single empbyee who is the chief executive officer of Integrys Energy 
Group or any of the other four highest compensated officers of Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries 
can receive a payout in excess of 250,000 performance shares during any calendar year. The number of 
shares paid out is calculated by multiplying a performance percentage by the number of outstanding stock 
rights at the completion ofthe vesting period. The perfonnance percentage is based on the total 
shareholder retum of Integrys Energy Group's common stock relative to the total shareholder retum of a 
peer group of companies. The payout may range from 0% to 200% of target 

The fair values of perfonnance stock rights granted were estimated using a Monte Carlo valuation model, 
incorporating the assumptions in the table below. The risk-free interest rate is based on the United States 
Treasury yield curve. The expected dividend yield incorporates the current dividend rate as well as 
historical dividend increase patterns. The expected volatility was estimated using three years of historical 
data. 

Expected term 
Risk-free interest rate 
Expected dividend yield 
Expected volatility 

2009 
3 years 
1.38% 
5.50% 
26% 

2008 
3 years 
2.18% 
5.50% 
17% 

2007 
3 years 
4.71% 
4.50% 
15% 

Compensation cost recorded for performance stock rights for the years ended December 31,2009, 2008, 
and 2007 was $4.6 million, $5.2 million, and $3.5 million, respectively. Compensation cost capitalized 
during these same years was not significant. As of December 31, 2009, $1.8 million of compensation cost 
related to unvested and outstanding performance stock rights was expected to be recognized over a 
weighted-average period of 1.6 years. 

A summary of the activity related to perfonnance stock rights for the year ended December 31,2009, is 
presented below: 

Performance Weighted-Average 
Stock Rights Grant Date Fair Value 

Outstanding at December 31, 2008 
Granted 
Expired 
Forfeited 
Outstanding at December 31,2009 

263,109 
121,220 
79,574 

3,665 
301.090 

$50.13 
37.11 
48.37 
52.15 

$45.33 

No perfonnance shares were distributed in 2009 because the performance percentage was below the 
threshold payout level for those rights that were vested and eligible to be distributed during the year ended 
December 31, 2009. 

Restricted Shares and Restricted Share Units 

A portion of the long-term incentive is awarded in the fomn of restricted shares and restricted share units. 
Most ofthese awards have a four-year vesting period, with 25% of each awarci vesting on each 
anniversary ofthe grant date. During the vesting period, restricted share recipients have voting rights and 
are entitled to dividends in the same manner as other common shareholders, whereas restricted share 
unit recipients receive dividend credits and do not have voting rights. Restricted shares and restricted 
share units have a value equal to the fair market value of Integrys Energy Group's common shares on the 
grant date. Compensatbn cost recognized for these awards was $4.9 million, $4.2 million, and 
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$1.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Compensation 
cost capitalized during these same years was not significant. As of December 31, 2009, $7.4 million of 
compensation cost related to these awards was expected to be recognized over a weighted-average 
period of 2.5 years. 

A summary of the activity related to restricted share and restricted share unit awards for the year ended 
December 31, 2009, is presented below: 

Restricted Shares and Weighted-Average 
Restricted Share Unit Awards Grant Date Fair Value 

Outstanding at December 31,2008 
Granted 
Distributed 
Forfeited 
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 

228,615 
206,357 
69,587 
18,527 

346,858 

$50.19 
42.12 
50.76 
45.04 

$45.55 

Stock Appreciation Rights 

On February 21, 2007, all of PEC's then outstanding stock appreciation rights were converted into 14,021 
Integrys Energy Group stock appreciation rights. The fair value ofthe stock appreciation rights is 
estimated with a Btack-Scholes model and was not significant at December 31, 2009. No stock 
appreciation rights were issued during the year ended December 31,2009. 

NOTE 22-FAIR VALUE 

Fair Value Measurements 

In the fourth quarter of 2009, the WPS Crane Creek wind generation project became operational, and a 
$6.3 million asset retirement obligation was recorcied. The initial detennination ofthe amount ofthe asset 
retirement obligation was a fair value measurement calculated in accordance with the guidance of the 
Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations Topic of the FASB ASC and was categorized within 
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. This classification resulted from the use of signiflcant unobservable 
inputs, including the estimated costs of removing the wind turtDlnes. 

The following table shows Integrys Energy Group's financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for 
at fair value on a recurring basis, categorized by level within the fair value hierarchy. 

December 31, 2009 
(MiUions) 
Assets 

Risk management assets 
Other 

Liabilities 
Risk management liabilities 
Long-temn debt hedged by fair value hedge 

Level 1 

$284.9 
0.1 

336.4 
-

Level 2 

$439.6 
-

582.2 
52.6 

Level 3 

$1,593.0 
-

1,471.6 
m 

Total 

$2,317.5 
0.1 

2,390.2 
52.6 
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December 31,2008 
(MUUons) 
Assets 

Risk management assets 
Inventory hedged by fair value hedges 
Other 

Liabilities 
Risk management liabilities 
Liabilities held for sale 
Long-temi debt hedged by fair value hedge 

Level 1 

$703.0 
-

0.5 

820.5 
-
-

Level 2 

$1,524.0 
27.4 

-

1,559.1 
-

53.2 

Level 3 

$755.4 
-
-

572.8 
0.6 

-

Total 

$2,982.4 
27.4 
0.5 

2,952.4 
0.6 

53.2 

The determinatbn of the fair values above incorporates various factors required under the Fair Value 
Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB ASC. These factors include not only the credit 
standing of the counterparties involved, but also the impact of Integrys Energy Group's nonperformance 
risk on its liabilities. 

The risk management assets and liabilities listed in the tables include options, swaps, futures, physical 
commodity contracts, and other instruments used to manage maricet risks related to changes in 
commodity prices and interest rates. For more Information on Integrys Energy Group's derivative 
instruments, see Note 2, "Risk Management Activities." 

When possible, Integrys Energy Group bases the valuations of its risk management assets and liabilities 
on quoted prices for identical assets in active markets. These valuations are classified in Level 1. The 
valuations of certain contracts are based on NYMEX futures prices with an adjustment related to location 
differences, and certain derivative instruments are valued using broker quotes or prices for similar 
contracts at the reporting date. These valuations are classified in Level 2. 

Certain derivatives are categorized in Level 3 due to the significance of unobservable or 
internally-developed inputs. The primary reasons for a Level 3 classification are as follows: 

• While price curves may have»been based on observable information, significant assumptions may 
have been made regarding seasonal or monthly shaping and locational basis differentials. 

• Certain transactions were valued using price curves that extended beyond the quoted period. 
Assumptions were made to extrapolate prices from the last quoted period through the end of the 
transaction tenn. 

• The valuations of certain transactions were based on internal models, although external inputs 
were utilized in tiie valuations. 

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of changes in the fair value of items categorized as Level 3 
measurements: 

Year Ended December 31 
(MiUions) 200? 2008 
Balance at the beginning of period 
Net realized and unrealized gain (ioss) included in earnings 
Net unrealized gain (loss) recorded as regulatory assets or liabilities 
Net unrealized gain (loss) included in other comprehensive loss 
Net purchases and settlements 
Net transfers in/out of Level 3 
Balance at the end of the period $121.4 $182.0* 

Net unrealized gain (loss) included In eamings related to 
instruments still lield at the end ofthe period $35.4 $(55.3) 

* This amount includes $0.6 million of risk management liabilities classified as held for sale, related to tiie sale of 
generation assets and the associated sales and sen/ice contracts in Northern Maine, which closed in 
the first quarter of 2010. 
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Derivatives are transferred in or out of Level 3 primarily due to changes in the source of data used to 
construct price cun/es as a result of changes in martlet liquidity. 

Unrealized gains and losses included in earnings related to Integrys Energy Sen/ices' risk management 
assets and liabilities are recorded thnDugh nonregulated revenue on the Consolidated Statements of 
Income. Realized gains and losses on these same instalments are recorded in nonregulated revenue or 
nonregulated cost of foel, natural gas, and purchased power, depending on the nature ofthe instrument. 
Unrealized gains and losses on Level 3 derivatives at the utilities are deferred as regulatory assets or 
liabilities. Therefore, these fair value measurements have no impact on earnings. Realized gains and 
losses on these instruments flow through utility cost of fuel, natural gas, and purchased power on the 
Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The following table shows the financial instruments included on the Consolidated Batance Sheets of 
Integrys Energy Group that are not recorded at fair value. 

2009 2008 
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 

(MUiions) Amount Value Amount Value 
Long-term debt $2,511.2 $2,543.6 $2,443.2 * $2,276.0 
Preferred stock 51^1 4 4 ^ 51.1 46.0 

* This amount Includes $6.6 million of long-tenn debt classified as held for sale, related to the sate of generation 
assets in Northern Maine, which closed in the first quarter of 2010. 

The fair values of long-tenn debt instruments are estimated based on the quoted market price for the 
same or similar issues, or on the curcent rates offered to Integrys Energy Group for debt ofthe same 
remaining maturity, without considering the effect of third-party credit enhancements. The fair values of 
preferced stock are estimated based on quoted market prices when available, or by using a perpetual 
divkiend discount model. 

Due to the short maturity of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, not^s 
payable, and outstanding commercial paper, the carrying amount approximates fair value. 

NOTE 23-MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 

Integrys Energy Group's total miscellaneous income was as follows at December 31: 

(MiUions) 200? 2008 2007 
Equity earnings on investinents $76.1 $67.8 $34.6 
Equity AFUDC 6.0 5.5 0.9 
Interest and dividend income 5.6 5.0 12.7 
Key executive life insurance income 2.3 2.7 2.2 
Gain on sale of property 1.8 4.8 1.9 
Weston 4 ATC interconnection agreement interest - 2.5 3.9 
(Loss) gain on investments (0.1) (0.3) 3.9 
(Loss) gain on foreign curcency exchange (0.1) 0.9 2.4 
Other {2S) (16) 16 
Total miscellaneous income $89.0 $87.3 $64.1 
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NOTE 24-REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT 

Wisconsin 

2070 Rates 

On December 22,2009, the PSCW issued a final writi:en order for WPS authorizing no electric rate 
increase (net of 2009 and 2008 foel refunds) and a retail natural gas rate increase of $13.5 million, 
effective January 1, 2010. The PSCW orclered that $18.2 million of the 2008 and 2009 electric fuel cost 
over-collections be used to offset the overall electric rate increase needed for 2010, and was recorded as 
a short-tenn regulatory liability as of December 31,2009. The remaining $10.0 million of the 2009 fuel 
cost over-collections accrued in 2009 as a short-term regulatory liability, plus interest, will be refunded to 
customers during the first half of 2010. Fuel cost over/under recovery impacts related to the Weston 4 
power ptant exfoliation issue remain open for 2008 and 2009 and have been delayed to a future rate 
pnDceeding. 

2009 Rates 

On April 23,2009, the PSCW made the 2009 foel cost recovery subject to refund, effective April 25, 2009, 
as actual and projected fuel costs for the remainder of the year were estimated to be below the 2% fuel 
window. As of December 31,2009, WPS recorded a liability of $27.1 million related to this refund. 

On December 30, 2008, the PSCW issued a final written order for WPS authorizing no change in retail 
electric rates frc)m the fuel surcharge adjusted rates authorized effective July 4, 2008, and a $3.0 million 
decrease in retail natural gas rates. The PSCW also approved a decoupling mechanism as a four-year 
pilot program. The mechanism allows WPS to defer and recover or refund in future rate proceedings all or 
a portion ofthe differences between the actual and authorized margin per customer impact of variations in 
volumes. The annual defercal or refond is limited to $14.0 million for electric service and $8.0 million for 
natural gas service. The mechanism does not adjust for changes in volume resulting from changes in 
customer count and also does not cover large commercial and industrial customers. 

2008 Rates 

On January 15, 2008, the PSCW issued a final written order for WPS authorizing a retail electric rate 
increase of $23.0 million (2.5%), which included recovery of deferred 2005 and 2006 MISO Day 2 costs 
over a one-year period and increased electric transmission costs, effective January 16, 2008. On 
February 11,2008, WPS filed an application with the PSCW to adjust its 2008 rates for increased fuel and 
purchased power costs. The application requested an increase in retail electric rates due to a delay in the 
in-service date of the Weston 4 power plant, increased coal and coal transportation costs, and increased 
natural gas costs. The PSCW apprcived an interim annual fuel surcharge increase of $29.7 million on 
March 20,2008, and an additional final fuel surcharge increase of $18.3 million, effective July 4,2008. 

On September 30, 2008, the PSCW reopened the 2008 fuel surcharge to review forecasted fuel costs, as 
WPS's current and anticipated annual fuel costs were below those projected in the fuel surcharge. As a 
result of the lower fuel and purchased power costs, WPS's rates from September 30, 2008, through 
December 31,2008, were subject to refund. On February 9, 2009, WPS filed a request with the PSCW to 
refond approximately $5 million of 2008 fuel costs to Wisconsin electric retail customers. WPS had 
accrued this amount as a liability at December 31, 2008. This refund resulted in a credit to customers' bills 
In March and April 2009. An additional $1.1 million ofthe 2008 fuel cost over-recovery, including interest, 
was accrued in 2008 and 2009 and will be refunded as part ofthe 2010 rate case. 

2007 Rates 

On January 11, 2007, the PSCW issued a final written orcler for WPS authorizing a retell electric rate 
increase of $56.7 million (6.6%) and a retail natural gas rate increase of $18.9 million (3.8%), effective 
January 12,2007. The new rates reflected a 10.9% retum on common equity. The PSCW approved a 
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common equity ratio of 57.4% in WPS's regulatory capitel structure. The 2007 retail electric rate increase 
was required primarily because of increased costs associated with electric transmission, costs related to 
the construction of Weston 4 and the additional personnel to maintain and operate the plant, and costs to 
maintain the Weston 3 generation unit and the De Pere Energy Center. The 2007 retail natural gas rate 
increase was driven by inft-astmcture improvements necessary to ensure the reliability of the natural gas 
distribution system and costs associated with the remediation of former manufactured gas plant sites. 

Weston 3 Outage 

In October 2007. Weston 3, a coal-fired generating facility located near Wausau, Wisconsin, sustained 
damage from a major lightning strike that forced the facility out of service until January 14, 2008. The 
damage required the repair of the generator rotor, turt)ine rotors, and boiler feed pumps. WPS incurred 
$8.9 million of incremental pre-tax non-foel operating and maintenance expenditures through 
January 14, 2008, to repair and retum Weston 3 to sen/ice. WPS has insurance in place that covered all 
non-fuel operating and maintenance expenditures, tess a $1.0 million deductible. WPS incurred a total of 
$26.6 million of incremental pre-tax fuel and purchased power costs during the 14-week outage. WPS 
was granted approval fi-om the PSCW to defer the replacement fuel and purchased power costs for the 
Wisconsin retal portion ofthese costs retroactive to the date ofthe lightning strike. On 
December 30, 2008, the PSCW granted WPS recovery of $17.0 million of the requested $19.6 million of 
Weston 3 replacement fuel and power costs frc)m the Wisconsin retail jurisdiction, over a six-year period 
and without carrying costs. 

WPS was granted recovery of $0.4 million ofthe requested $0.5 million of replacement purchased power 
costs from the Michigan retail jurisdiction tiirough the annual PSCR mechanism. 

Kewaunee 

On February 20,2005, Kewaunee was temporarily removed from service after a potential design 
weakness was identified in its auxiliary feedwater system. In WPS's 2006 rate case, the PSCW 
detennined that it was reasonable for WPS to recover all deferred costs related to the 2005 Kewaunee 
forced outage over a five-year period, beginning on January 1, 2006. At December 31,2009, $9.6 million 
was left to be collected from ratepayers and remained recorded as a regulatory asset related to this 
outage. 

Michigan 

2010 UPPCO Rates 

On December 16,2009, the MPSC issued a final written orcler authorizing UPPCO a retail electric rate 
incre^e of $6.5 million, effective January 1,2010. The new rates refiect a 10.90% retum on common 
equity and a comnrvon equity ratio of 54.83% in its regulatory capitel structure. The order includes 
approval of a decoupling mechanism, as well as an uncollectibles expense tracking mechanism, which 
albws for the deferral and subsequent recovery or refund of 80% of the difference between actual write­
offs (net of recoveries) and bad debt expense included in utility rates, both effective January 1, 2010. 

2010 MGU Rates 

On November 23, 2009, the MPSC issued a partial settlement authorizing MGU a retail natural gas rate 
increase of $3.5 million, effective January 1, 2010. The filing includes a 10.75% return on common equity 
and a common equity ratio of 50.26% in its regulatory capital structure. The order indudes approval of an 
uncollectibles expense tracking mechanism, which albvt/s for the deferral and subsequent recovery or 
refund of 80% ofthe difference between actual write-offs (net of recoveries) and bad debt expense 
included in utility rates, effective January 1,2010. The decoupling mechanism proposed in the rate case 
is being contested and was not part of the settlement. An MPSC decision on decoupling is expected in 
the second quarter of 2010. 
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200Q MGU Rates 

On January 13, 2009, the MPSC issued a final written order for MGU approving a settiement agreement 
authorizing an annual retail natural gas rate Increase of $6.0 million, effective January 14, 2009. The new 
rates refiected a 10.45% retum on common equity and a common equity ratio of 50.01 % in its regulatory 
capital structure. The rate increase was required primarily due to general inflation, low margin revenue 
growth, increased costs of customer service functions, and increased environmental cleanup costs to 
remediate fonner manufactured gas plant sites. 

2008 WPS Rates 

On December 4, 2007, the MPSC issued a final written order authorizing WPS a retail electric rate 
increase of $0.6 million, effective December 5, 2007. WPS's last retell electric rate increase in Michigan 
was in July 2003. The new rates reflected a 10.6% retum on common equity and a common equity ratio 
of 56.4% in its regulatory capital structure. 

Illinois 

2010 Rates 

On January 21, 2010, the ICC issued a final written order authorizing a retail natural gas rate increase of 
$69.8 million for PGL and $13.9 million for NSG, effective January 28,2010. The rates for PGL reflect a 
10.23% retum on common equity and a common equity ratio of 56% in its regulatory capital structure. 
The rates for NSG reflect a 10.33% return on common equity and a common equity ratio of 56% in its 
regulatory capitel structure. The ICC approved a rider mechanism to recover the costs, above an annual 
baseline, of an accelerated natural gas main replacement program by PGL thnsugh a special charge on 
customers' bills, known as Rider ICR; in February 2010, PGL filed Rider ICR with a $51.85 million annual 
baseline. Recovery of costs for the accelerated gas main replacement program wilt begin In 2011 with the 
first Rider ICR charges being effective April 1, 2011. The rate order also afjproved the recovery of net 
dismantiing costs of property, plant, and equipment over the life of the asset rather than when incurred. 
PGL and NSG, as well as Chicago, the AG, and the Citizens Utility Board, filed requests for rehearing in 
Febmary 2010, all addressing Rider ICR. 

Recent Illinois Legislation 

In July 2009, Illinois Senate Bill (SB) 1918 was signed into law. SB 1918 contains a provision that allows 
PGL and NSG to file a rider to recover (or refond) the incremental difference between the rate case 
authorized uncollectible expense and the actual uncollectible expense reported to the ICC each year. 
PGL and NSG filed their respective riders with the ICC in September 2009, and began recording the 
effiects of this provision at that time. The ICC apprcived the rider in February 2010. SB 1918 also requires 
a percentage of income payment plan for low-income utility customers that PGL and NSG are offering as a 
transition program in 2010 and 2011, with a permanent such program to begin no later than September 1, 
2011, and an on-bill financing option that PGL and NSG filed in February 2010 and requested a June 2011 
effective date. The on-bill financing prcigram will allow certain residential customers of PGL and NSG to 
borrow funds from a third party lender to purchase natural gas energy efficiency measures and pay back 
the borcowed funds over time through a charge on their utility bill. No later than October 1, 2010, PGL and 
NSG must file an EEP to meet specified energy efficiency standarcls, with the first program year beginning 
June 2011. 

2008 Rates 

On February 5, 2008, the ICC issued a final written order authorizing a retail natural gas rate increase of 
$71.2 million for PGL and a retail natural gas rate decrease of $0.2 million for NSG, effective 
February 14, 2008. The rates for PGL reflected a 10.19% return on common equity and a common equity 
ratio of 56% in its regulatory capital structure. The rates for NSG refiected a 9.99% retum on common 
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equity and a common equity ratio of 56% in its regulatory capitel structure. The orcler included appnaval of 
a decoupling mechanism, effective March 1, 2008, as a four-year pilot program, which allows PGL and 
NSG to adjust rates going fomvard to recover or refund the difference between the actual and authorized 
margin impact of variations in volumes. Legislation was introduced at the Illinois state legislature to roll 
back decoupling but never reached a vote. This legislation was introduced again in the first quarter of 
2009. Integrys Energy Group actively supports the ICC's decision to approve this rate setting mechanism. 
The order also approved an EEP, which allows PGL and NSG to recover up to $6.4 million and 
$1.1 million per year, respectively, of energy efficiency costs. This EEP is separate from the SB 1918 
required EEP. 

On March 26, 2008, tiie ICC denied PGL's and NSG's request for rehearing of their rate orders, and all but 
one such request frc>m interveners. The only rehearing request granted by the ICC related to a change in 
the way PGL allocates interstate hub services revenues among customer groups. On June 6, 2008, 
several parties filed a stipulation to resolve the way PGL allocates interstate hub services revenues among 
customer groups. The ICC apprcived the stipulation, effective November 1, 2008, as well as a rehearing 
order. Following the stipulation approval. PGL and NSG and four other parties filed appeals with the 
Illinois appellate court. Issues on appeal include the decoupling mechanism. 

Minnesota 

2010 Rates 

On December 4, 2009, the MPUC approved a final written order authorizing MERC a retail natural gas 
rate increase of $15.4 million, effective January 1, 2010. The new rates reflect a 10.21% retum on 
common equity and a common equity ratio of 48.77% in its regulatory capital staicture. Since the flnal 
approved rate increase was bwer than the interim rate increase that went into effect in October 2008, 
refunds will be made to customers in March 2010. 

Federal 

Through a series of orders issued by the FERC, Regional Through and Out Rates for transmission service 
between the MISO and the PJM Interconnection were eliminated effective December 1, 2004. To 
compensate transmission owners for the revenue they will no longer receive due to this rate elimination, 
the FERC orclered a transitional pricing mechanism called the Seams Elimination Charge Adjustment 
(SECA) be put into place. Load-serving entities paid these SECA charges during a 16-month transition 
period frcim December 1,2004, thnDugh March 31, 2006. 

For the 16-month transitional period, Integrys Energy Services received billings of $19.2 million (pre-tax) 
for these charges. Integrys Energy Services expensed $14.7 million ofthe $19.2 million, as it is pnDbable 
tiiat Integrys Energy Services' total exposure will be reduced by at least $4.5 million due to inconsistencies 
between the FERC's SECA order and the transmission owners' compliance filings. Integrys Energy 
Services has reached setttement agreements with three of its vendors for a combined $1.6 million. 

In August 2006, the administrative lawjudge hearing the case issued an Initial Decision that was in 
agreement with all of Integrys Energy Services' positions. If the Final Order is consistent with the Initial 
Decision of the administrative law judge, Integrys Energy Services' pre-tax exposure of $19.2 million may 
be reduced by as much as $13 million. The Final FERC Orcler is subject to rehearing and then court 
challenges. Any refunds to Integrys Energy Services will include Interest for the period from payment to 
refund. A FERC Order addressing these issues is expected to be received by June 2010. 

NOTE 25-SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS 

The Segment Reporting Topic ofthe FASB ASC requires that companies disclose segment infonnation 
based on how management makes decisions about allocating resources to segments and measuring their 
performance. 
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Integrys Energy Group manages its reportable segments separately due to their different operating and 
regulatory environments. At December 31,2009, Integrys Energy Grciup reported five segments, which 
are described below. 

• The electric utility segment includes the regulated electric utility operations of WPS and UPPCO. 
• The natural gas utility segment includes the regulated natural gas utility operations of WPS, MGU, 

MERC, PGL, and NSG. 
• Integrys Energy Services is a diversified nonregulated natural gas and electric power supply and 

services company serving retail customers (residential, commercial, and industrial). 
• The electric transmission investment segment includes Integrys Energy Group's approximate 34% 

ownership interest In ATC. ATC is a federally regulated electric transmission company operating in 
Wisconsin, Michigan, Minnesota, and Illinois. 

• The holding company and other segment includes the operations ofthe Integrys Energy Group 
holding company and the PEC holding company, along with any nonutility activities at WPS, MGU, 
MERC, UPPCO, PGL, NSG, and IBS. Equity eamings from Integrys Energy Group's investment in 
WRPC are also included in the holding company and other segment. 

The nonregulated oil and natural gas prciduction segment includes the results of PEP, which were 
reported as discontinued operations in 2007. PEP engaged in the acquisition, development and 
production of oil and natural gas reserves in selected onshore basins in the United States through direct 
ownership in oil, natural gas, and mineral leases. Integrys Energy Group completed the sale of PEP in 
September 2007. 

The tables below present information for the respective years pertaining to Integrys Energy Group's 
reportable segments: 

• 
2009 (Millions) 

Income Statement 
Extemal revenues 
Intersegment revenues 
Goodwill impairment loss 
Restructuring expense 
Loss on Integrys Energy 

Services dispositions 
related to strategy change 

Depreciation and 
amortization expense 

Miscellaneous income 
(expense) 

Interest expense (income) 
Provision (benefit) for 

income taxes 
Net income (loss) from 

continuing operations 
Discontinued operations 
Prefen^ stock dividends of 

subsidiary 
Net income (loss) attributed to 

common shareholders 
Total assets 
Cash expenditures for 

loHQ-lived assets 

Electric 
Utility 

$1,258.9 
42.7 

-
8.6 

-

90.3 

4.8 
41.6 

51.4 

91.4 
. 

(2-5) 

88.9 
2,834.7 

250.4 

Regulated OQgistlSns 

Natural 
Gas 

Utility 

$2,236.9 
0.6 

291.1 
6.9 

-

106.1 

3.1 
52.2 

7.8 

(171.5) 
-

(0.6) 

(172.1) 
4,675.7 

136.9 

Electric 
Transm iss ion 

investment 

$ -
-
-
. 

-

-

75.3 
. 

29.8 

45.5 
-

-

45.5 
395.9 

-

Totai 
Regulated 
operations 

$3,495.8 
43.3 

291.1 
15.5 

-

196.4 

83.2 
93.8 

89.0 

(34.6) 
-

(3.1) 

(37.7) 
7.906.3 

387.3 

Nonutility and 
Nonregulated 

Operatipns 

Integrys 
Energy 

Services 

$3,992.5 
1.5 
-

27.2 

28.9 

19.3 

6.0 
13.1 

18.5 

(1.3) 
2.8 

-

2.5 
3,550.8 

22.4 

Hoiding 
Company 
and other 

$ 11.5 
-
-

0.8 

-

15.2 

46.5 
104.6 

(24.3) 

(35.7) 
-

-

(35.7) 
1,462.7 

34.5 

Reconciling 
Eliminations 

$ 
(44.8) 

-
. 

. 

-

(46.7) 
(46.7) 

. 

-
-

-

-
(1,071.9) 

-

Integrys 
Energy 
Group 

Consolidated 

$7,499.8 
-

291.1 
43.5 

28.9 

230.9 

89.0 
164.8 

83.2 

(71.6) 
2.8 

(3.1) 

(70.9) 
11,847.9 

444.2 
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Regulated Operations 

Nonutility and 
Nonregulated 

Operations 

2008 (Millions) 
Electric 
Utility 

$1,284.6 
44.3 

84.3 

6.0 
367 

48.1 

947 

Natural 
Gas 

Utility 

$3,025.3 
0.6 
6.5 

108.3 

7.0 
56.6 

57.1 

85.5 

Electric Toteil 
Transmis^on Regulated 

Integrys 
Energy 

Investment Operations Services 

Holding 
Company 
and other 

Reconciling 
Eliminations 

integrys 
Energy 
Group 

Consolidated 

Income Statement 
Extemal revenues 
Intersegment re\^nues 
Goodwill impairment loss 
Depreciation and 

amortization expense 
Miscellaneous income 

(expense) 
Interest expense (income) 
Provision (benefit) for 

Income taxes 
Net income (loss) from 

continuing operations 
Discontinued operations 
Preferred stodt dividends of 

subsidiary 
Net inconne (loss) attributed to 

common shareholders 
Total assets 
Cash expenditures for 

long-lived assets 

(2.1) 

92.6 
2,752.4 

207.4 

(1.0) 

84.6 
,173.8 

237.3 

26.4 

39.7 

39.7 
346.9 

$4,309.9 
44.9 
6.5 

192.6 

79.1 
93.3 

131.6 

219.9 

(3.1) 

216.8 
8,273.1 

.726.5 $ 11.4 
8 J 0.6 

14.5 

8.7 
12.1 

(56.2) 

(65.5) 
3.9 

(61.5) 
5.050.2 

68.1 

14.3 

454 
98.6 

(24.2) 

(29.7) 
0.8 

(28.9) 
2,144.3 

20.0 

(54.2) 

(45.9) 
(45.9) 

(1.195.1) 

$14,047.8 

6.5 

2214 

87.3 
158.1 

51.2 

124.7 
4.7 

(3.1) 

1264 
14.272.5 

532.8 

2007 (Millions) 

Income Statement 
Extemal revenues 
Intersegment revenues 
Depreciation and 

amortization expense 
Miscellaneous income 

(expense) 
Interest expense (Income) 
Provision (benefit) for 

Income taxes 
Net income (ioss) from 

continuing operations 
Discontinued operations 
Preferred stock dividends 

of subsidiary 
Net income (loss) attributed 

to common shareholders 
Total assets 
Cash expenditures for 

tong-lived assets 

Geographic 

Electric 
Utility 

$1,202.9 
43.2 

80.1 

8.3 
32.4 

51.5 

89.6 
-

(2.2) 

^ 87.4 
2470.8 

202.6 

ReflulatedMtill^teS 

Natural 
Gas 

Utility 

$2,102.5 
1.2 

97.7 

5.5 
53.4 

14.5 

29.6 
-

(0.9) 

28.7 
4,777.8 

158.8 

1 

Electric 
Transmission 

Investment 

$ -
-

-

50.5 
-

20.2 

30.3 
-

' 

30.3 
296.6 

' 

Total 
Regulated 
Operations 

ft 

$3,305.4 
44.4 

177.8 

64.3 
85.8 

86.2 

149.5 
-

(3.1) 

1464 
7,545.2 

3614 

2009 

Nonutility and 
Nonrefluleted Operations 

Integrys 
Energy 

Services 

$6,975.7 
4.0 

144 

(0.3) 
13.5 

26.3 

83.1 
14.8 

-

98.0 
3,150.6 

205 

Oil and 
Natural 

Gas 
Production 

$ -
-

-

01 
24 

(1.0) 

(2.5) 
58.5 

-

56.0 
-

-

2008 

Hoiding 
Company 
and other 

$11.3 
1.2 

2.9 

30.9 
93.7 

(25.5) 

(49.1) 
-

-

(49.1) 
1,614.8 

10.7 

Reconciling 
Eliminations 

$ -
(49.6) 

-

(30.9) 
(30.9) 

.-

-
-

-

-
(1,076.2) 

-

2007 

Integrys 
Energy 
Group 

Consolidated 

$10,292.4 
. 

195.1 

64.1 
164.5 

86.0 

181.0 
73.3 

(3.1) 

251.3 
11,2344 

392.6 

(Mill ion^ 

United States 
Canada* 
Total 

Revenues 
$6,628.5 

871.3 
$7,499.8 

Long-Lived 
Assets 

$7,540.3 

$7,540.3 

Revenues 
$11,639.3 

2,408.5 
$14,047.8 

Long-Lived 
Assets 

$7,576.8 
20.0 

$7,596.8 

Revenues 
$ 8,343.8 

1,948.6 
$10,292.4 

Long-Lived 
Assets 
$7,028.2 

20.6 
$7,048.8 

* Revenues and assets of Canadian subsidiaries. Includes the impact In 2009 of the sale of Canadian operations at Integrys 
Energy Services. 
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NOTE 26-QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited) 

(Millions, except share amounts) Three Months Ended 

March June 
2009 

September December Total 
Total revenues 
Operating income (loss) 
Net income (loss) fmm continuing operations 
Discontinued operations, net of tax 
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary 
Net income (loss) attributed to common shareholders 

$3,200.8 
(145.1) 
(179.5) 

m 

(0.8) 
(180.2) 

$1,427.6 
72.9 
35.0 
0.3 

(0.8) 
34.7 

$1,297.8 
93.3 
49.1 

2.3 
(0.7) 
51.1 

$1,573.6 
66.3 
23.8 
0.2 

(0.8) 
23.5 

$7,499.8 
87.4 

(71.6) 
2.8 

(3.1) 
(70.9) 

Average shares of common stock (basic) 
Average shares of common stock (diluted) 

76.7 
76.7 

76.8 
76.8 

76.8 
76.9 

76.8 
77.0 

76.8 
76.8 

Earnings (toss) per common share (t̂ asic) * 
Net income (loss) fi'om continuing operations 
Discontinued operations 
Earnings (loss) per common share (basic) 

Earnings (loss) per common share (diluted) * 
Net income (toss) from continuing operations 
Discontinued operations 
Eamings (toss) per common share (diluted) 

($2.35) 

(2.35) 

(2.35) 

(2.35) 

$0.45 

0.45 

0.45 

0.45 

$0.64 
0.03 
0.67 

0.63 
0.03 
0.66 

$0.31 

0.31 

0.31 

0.31 

$(0.96) 
0.04 
(0.92) 

(0.96) 
0.04 
(0.92) 

' Earnings (loss) per share for the individual quarters do not total tiie year ended earnings (loss) per share amount 
tsecause of changes fa3 tiie average number of shares outstanding and changes in incremental issuable shares 
throughout the year. 

(Millions, except share amounts) Three Months Ended 

March June 
2008 

September December Total 
Total revenues 
Operating income (loss) 
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 
Discontinued operations, net of tax 
Prefened stock dividends of subsidiary 
Net income (loss) attributed to common sharehobers 

,989.2 
234.7 
136.6 

-
(0.8) 

135.8 

$3,417.2 
53.1 
24.8 

0.1 
(0.8) 
24.1 

$3,223.1 
(76.2) 
(58.4) 

-
(0.7) 

(59.1) 

$3,418.3 
35.1 
21.7 
4.6 
(0.8) 
25.6 

$14,047.8 
246.7 
124*7 

47 
(3.1) 

126.4 

Average shaies of common stock (basic) 
Average shares of common stock (diluted) 

76.6 
76.9 

76.6 
76.9 

76.7 
76.7 

76.7 
77.0 

76.7 
77.0 

Earnings (loss) per common share (basic) * 
Net income (toss) from continuing operations 
Discontinued operations 
Eamings (loss) per common share (basic) 

Eamings (loss) per common share (diluted) * 
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 
Discontinued operations 
Eaminqs (toss) per common share (diluted) 

$1.77 

1.77 

1.77 

1.77 

$0.31 

0.31 

0.31 

0.31 

($0.77) 

(0.77) 

(0.77) 

(0.77) 

$0.27 
0.06 
0.33 

0.27 
0.06 
0.33 

$1.59 
0.06 
1.65 

1.68 
0.06 
1.64 

* Eamings (loss) per share for the individual quarters do not total the year ended earnings (loss) per share amount 
kiecause of changes to the average number of shares outstanding and changes in incremental Issuable shares 
throughout the-year. 

Because of various factors, the quarterly results of operations are not necessarily comparable. 
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H. REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To the Boanj of Directors and Shareholders of Integrys Energy Gnaup, Inc: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and 
subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated 
statements of income, equity, and cash fiows for each of tiie three years in the period ended 
December 31,2009. Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at 
Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and 
financial statement schedules based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance witti the standards of tiie Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Boand (United Stetes). Those standards require that we ptan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether tiie financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the flnancial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe tiiat our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairiy, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the tiiree years In the period ended 
December 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Also, In our opinion, such flnancial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the 
basic consolidated flnancial statements taken as a whole, present feirly, in all material respects, the 
information set forth therein. 

As discussed in Note 1(r) to the consolidated financial stetements, at January 1,2008, the Company 
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements." 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of tiie Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United Stetes), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, 
based on the criteria established in internal Control^integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission and our report dated Febnjary 25, 2010 
expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's intemal control over financial reporting. 

Isl Deloitte & Touche LLP 

Milwaukee, Wl 
Febmary 25,2010 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON 
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None. 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

Integrys Energy Group's management, with the participation of Integrys Energy Group's Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated tiie effectiveness ofthe design and operation of 
Integrys Energy Group's disclosure conb'ois and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) 
and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act)) as of the end 
of the period covered by this report and has concluded tiiat, as ofthe end of such period, Integrys Energy 
Group's disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be 
disclosed by Integrys Energy Gn^up in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is 
recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in tiie SEC's rules and 
forms and is accumulated and communicated to Integrys Energy Group's management, including its Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required 
disclosure. 

Changes in Internal Controls 

There were no changes in Integrys Energy Group's interna! controls over financial reporting (as such term 
is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under tiie Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that occurred 
during the quarter ended December 31,2009, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to 
materially affect, its intemal control over financial reporting. 

Management Reports on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

For Integrys Energy Group's Management Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting, see 
Section A of Item 8. 

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

For Integrys Energy Group's Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, see Sections B 
and H of Item 8. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 

None. 
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PART III 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

Infonnation required by this Item reganding the directors of Integrys Energy Group. Section 16 
compliance and the members of the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee financial expert can be 
found in Integrys Energy Gnaup's Proxy Statement for Its Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held 
May 13, 2010 (Proxy Stetement), underthe captions "Election of Directors," "Ownership of Voting 
Securities - Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" and "Board Committees," 
respectively. Such Information is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

Infonnation regarding the executive officers of Integrys Energy Group can be found in this Annual Report 
on Form 10-K in Item 4A. 

Integrys Energy Group has adopted a Code of Conduct, which serves as our Code of Business Conduct 
and Ethics. The Code of Conduct applies to all of our directors, officers, and employees, including the 
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Conti-oller and any otiier persons perfomiing 
similar fonctions. Integrys Energy Group has also adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines. 

Integrys Energy Group's Code of Conduct, Corporate Governance Guidelines and charters ofthe board 
committees may be accessed on the Integrys Energy Group Web site, www.integrysgroup.com under 
"Investor" then select "Corporate Governance." Amendmente to, or waivers from, our Code of Conduct 
will be disclosed on our Web site vwthin the prescribed time period. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Information required by this Item regarding compensation paid by Integrys Energy Group to its directors 
and its "named executive officers" in 2009 can be found in Integrys Energy Group's Proxy Statement 
under the captions "Director Compensation" and "Executive Compensation." Such information is 
incorporated by reference as If fully set forth herein. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND 
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

Inforniation required by this Item regarding the principal securities holders of Integrys Energy Group and 
the security holdings of its directors and executive officers can be found in Integrys Energy Group's Proxy 
Statement under the caption "Ownership of Voting Securities - Beneficial Ownership." Such infomnation 
is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

Information required by this Item regarding equity compensation plans of Integrys Energy Group can be 
found in Integrys Energy Group's Proxy Statement under the caption "Ownership of Voting Securities -
Equity Compensation Plan Information." Such information is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth 
herein. 
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND 
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

Information required by this Item regarding Integrys Energy Group's related person transactions and 
director independence can be found in Integrys Energy Group's Proxy Statement under the captions 
"Election of Directors - Related Person Transaction Policy" and "Election of Directors - Director 
Independence," respectively. Such infonnation Is Incorporated by reference as if fully set fortii herein. 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES 

For a summary of the fees billed to Integrys Energy Group (including its subsidiaries) by Deloitte & 
Touche LLP for professional services performed for 2009 and 2008 and tiie Audit Committee's 
preapprovat policies and procedures, please see Integrys Energy Group's Proxy Statement under the 
caption "Board Committees - Audit Committee." Such information is incorporated by reference as if fully 
set forth herein. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

Documents filed as part of this report: 

(1) Consolidated Financial Stetements included in Part II at Item 8 above: 

Description Paces In 10-K 

Consolidated Stetemente of Income for tiie three years ended 

December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 79 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,2009 and 2008 80 

Consolidated Statemente of Common Shareholders' Equity for the 
three years ended December 31, 2009,2008, and 2007 81 
Consolidated Stetemente of Cash Flows for the three years ended 

December 31, 2009,2008, and 2007 82 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemente 83 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 148 

(2) Financial Statement Schedules. 
The following financiai statement schedules are included in Part IV of this report. Schedules 
not InclUtled herein have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required 
Information Is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto. 

Description Pages in lO-K 

Schedule I - Condensed Parent Company Only Financial Statements 

A. Statemente of Income and Retained Earnings 154 

B. Balance Sheets 155 

C. Statemente of Cash Flows 156 

D. Notes to Parent Company Financial Statements 157 

Schedule II Integrys Energy Group, Inc. Valuation and Qualifying 

Accounts 160 

(3) Listing of all exhibite, including those incorporated by reference. 

See tiie attached Exhibit Index. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requiremente of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, tiie 
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on Its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly 
autiiorized, on tills 25th day of Fet>ruary, 2010. 

INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC. 

(Registrant) 

By: /s/ Charies A. Schrock 
Charies A. Schrock 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below 
by tiie follov^ng persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Sic nature Titie Date 

Keitfi E. Bailey * 
Richard A. Bemis * 
William J. Brodsky * 
Albert J. Budney. Jr.* 
Pastora San Juan Cafferty * 
Ellen Camahan * 
Robert C. Gallagher * 
Katiiryn M. Hasselblad-Pascale * 
John W. Higgins * 
James L. Kemeriing * 
Michael E. Lavin * 
William F. Protz. Jr. * 
Charies A. Schrock * 
Larry L. Weyers * 

/s/ Charies A. Schrock 
Charies A. Schrock 

Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director and Executive Chairman 

President and Chief Executive Febnjary 25, 2010 
Officer (principal executive officer) 

Senior Vice President and Chief February 25, 2010 

/s/Joseph P. O'Learv 
Financial Officer 
(principal financial officer) 

Joseph P. O'Leary 

/s/ Diane L. Ford 
Diane L. Ford 

Vice President and Corporate 
Controller 
(principal accounting officer) 

February 25.2010 

* Bv: /s/ Diane L. Ford 
Diane L. Ford Attomey-in-Fact February 25, 2010 
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SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED 
PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) 

A. STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

Year Ended December 31 

(Millions, except per share data) 

Equity eamings (loss) in excess of divWends from subsidiaries 

Dividends from subsidiaries 

income (loss) from subsidiaries 

Investment income and other 

Total income 

Operating expenses 

operating income 

interest expense 

Income (loss) before taxes 

Provision (benefit) for income taxes 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations, net of tax 
Net income (loss) 

2009 

($158.5) 

147.0 

(11.5) 

25.5 

14.0 

6.3 
7.7 

794 

(71.7) 

2.0 

(73.7) 

2.8 
($70.9) 

2008 

$44.2 

134.9 

179.1 
194 

198.5 

3.4 

195.1 

75.0 

120.1 

(1.6) 

121.7 

47 
$1264 

2007 

$1164 

120.0 

236.4 

177 

254.1 

18.5 

235.6 

65.6 

170.1 

(7.9) 

178.0 

73.3 
$251.3 

Retained eamings, beginning of year 

Common stock dividends 

Other 

$624.6 
(206.9) 

_(1.2) 

$701.9 
(203.9) 

0.2 

$628.2 
(177.0) 

(0.6) 
Retained earnings, end of year $345.6 $624.6 $701.9 

Average shares of common stock 
Basic 
Diluted 

76.8 
76.8 

76.7 
77.0 

71.6 
71.8 

Earnings (loss) per common share (basic) 
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 
Discontinued operations, net of tax 

($0.96) 
0.04 

$1.59 
0.06 

$2.49 
1.02 

Eamings (loss) per common share (basic) ($0.92) $1.65 $3.51 

Eamings (loss) per common share (diluted) 
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 
Discontinued operations, net of lax 
Eamings (loss) per common share (basic) 

Dividends per common share declared 

($0.96) 
0.04 

($0.92) 

$2.72 

$1.58 
0.06 

$1.64 

$2.68 

$2.48 
1.02 

$3.50 

$2.56 

The accompanying notes to Integrys Energy Group's parent company financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED 
PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) 

B. BALANCE SHEETS 

At December 31 

(Millions) 2009 2008 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accounts receivable from related parties 

Interest receivable from related parties 

Deferred income taxes 

Notes receivaUe from related parties 

Assets from risk management activities 

Other current assets 

Notes receivable from related parses 

Properly and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $0.7 and $0.5, respectively 

Receivables from related parties 

State deterred income taxes 

Other ^ 

Liabilities and Shareholders' ^ u i t y 

$19.0 
38.7 
4.6 

-
53.0 

-
29.5 

$190.9 

33.9 
5.2 
0.2 

150.9 
14.7 
27.3 

Current assets 144.8 423.1 

Total investments In subsidiaries, at equity 3,962.6 4,206.1 

220.3 

5.2 
9.0 

27.9 

27.0 

210.9 

5.3 
10.5 

16.5 

26.3 

Total assets $4,396.8 $4,898.7 

Short-tenn debt to related parties 

Short-term debt 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Accounts payable to related parties 

Interest payable to related parttes 

Accounte payable 

Liabilities from risk management acthrities 

Deferred income taxes 

Other current iiabiltties 

$315.7 
205.1 
65.6 
3.9 
4.7 
0.6 
1.9 
7.3 
4 4 

609.2 

346.0 
554.7 
23.2 

-
2.4 
2.7 

$276.1 
473.9 
150.0 
49.7 

5.9 
0.1 
1.5 
-

12.6 
969.8 

346.0 
465.1 

8.8 

3.5 
2.0 
3.9 

Cunent liabilities 

Long-term debt to related parties 

Long-tenn debt 

Federal deferred income taxes 

Uabilitiesfrom risk management activities 

Payables to related parties 

Other 

Long-tenn liabilities 929.0 829.3 

Commltmwits and contingencies 

Common stock equity 2,858.6 3>099.6 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity _ $4,398.8 $4.898.7 

The accompanying mtes to I n t e r s E n ^ y Group's parent company financial statements are an integral pari of these statements. 
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SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED 
PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) 

C. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Year Ended December 31 

(Millions) 2009 2008 2007 

Operating Activities 

Net income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile r«t incwne (fciss) to net cash provkled by opwaBng activHies 

Discontinued operations, net of tax 

Equity loss (income) from subsidiaries, net of dividends 

Defened income taxes 

Gain on sale of investment 

Cumulative eftect of diange in accounting principles, net of tax 

Other 

Changes in working capital 

Acounts receivables 

Accounts receivables from related parses 

Otiier current assets 

Accounts payable 

Accounts payable to related parties 

Other current liabilities 

($70.9) 

23.7 

$126.4 

7.9 

$251.3 

(2.8) 

158.5 

24.4 

(0.4) 

(4.7) 

(44.2) 

19.7 

-

(73.3) 

(116.4) 

(8.0) 

(1-6) 

14.0 

0.5 

(4.2) 

(2.4) 

0.5 

(44.6) 

(7.4) 

1.2 

20.3 

(25.2) 

(1.6) 

417 

(304) 

(2.0) 

(30.6) 

-
0.8 

2.9 

33.8 

Net cash provided by operating activities 74.9 111.1 70.9 

Investing Acthrities 

Capital ej^ndrtures 

Short-temi notes receivable from related parties 

Long-temi notes receivable ftom related parties 

Receivables from related parties 

Equity contributk>ns to subsidiaries 

Retum of capital torn subsidiaries 

Proceeds from sate of investment 

Cash paid Ibr transaction cost related to acquisitions 

Otiier 

-
97.9 

(10.0) 

1.5 

(56.1) 

155.5 

0.5 

-

-
(84.6) 

-
1.6 

(163.0) 

83.4 

-
-

(10.7) 

57.2 

-
1.8 

(100.9) 

34.1 

2.0 

(14.4) 

0.5 74 
Net cash provided by (used foQ investing activities 189.8 (155.2) (30.9) 

FinvKing Acthrltlas 

Commercial paper, net 

Notes pajrable to r^ated parties 

Issuance of notes payable 

Issuance of ^lort-tenn debt 

Redemption of notes payat^e 

Redemption of short-term debt 

Issuance of tong-tom debt 

Redemption of king-term debt 

Issuance of common stock 

(47.7) 

39.6 

-
-

(50.0) 

(157.9) 

155.0 

(150.0) 

182.5 

55J2 

155J 

50.0 

-
-
-

(454.4) 

545.9 

-
-

-
. 
-

45.6 

Dividends paW on common stock 

Other 
Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities 

Ctiange In cash and cash squhralents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivatents at end of year 

(206.9) 

(18.7) 
(436.6) 

(171.9) 

190.9 
$19.0 

(203.9) 

(4.5) 
235.0 

190.9 

$190.9 

(177.0) 

(1.7) 
(41.6) 

(1.6) 

1.6 
$ . 

The accompanying notes to Integrys Energy Group's parent company financial slatements are an integral part of these stetements. 
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SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED 
PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) 

D. NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SUPPLEMENTAL NOTES 

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Basis of Presentation-For Parent Company only presentation, investments in subsidiaries are 
accounted for using the equity metliod. Tlie condensed Parent Company financial statements and notes 
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes of Integrys Energy 
Group appearing in this Form 10-K. The consolidated financial statements of integrys Energy Group 
reflect certain businesses as discontinued operations. In the Integrys Energy Group consolidated 
financial statements, $26.5 million and $26.3 million assets were reported as held for saie and 
$0.3 million and $7.5 million liabilities were reported as held for sale at year-end 2009 and 2008, 
respectively. For Parent Company only presentation, the investments in discontinued operations are 
recorded in Investments in Subsidiary Companies. The condensed Parent Company statements of 
income and statements of cash flows report the eamings and cash flows of these businesses as 
discontinued operations. 

(b) Cash and Cash Equlvalents-Short-tenn investments with an original maturity of three months or 
less are reported as cash equivalents. 

The following is supplemental disclosure to the Integrys Energy Group Parent Company Statements of 
Cash Flows: 

(MiUions) 
Cash paid for interest 
Cash paid for interest - related parties 
Cash paid (received) for income taxes 

Significant non-cash transactions were as follows: 

(MiUions) 
Equity issued for net assets acquired in PEC merger 

2009 
$57.3 
23.6 

(15.4) 

2009 
$ -

2008 
$46.1 
24.9 
27.2 

2008 
$ -

2007 
$55.1 

3.8 

2007 
$1,559.3 

NOTE 2--FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RELATED PARTIES 

The following table shows the financial instruments included on the Balance Sheets of Integrys Energy 
Group Parent Company that are not recorded at fair value. 

(MUiions) 

Long-term notes receivable from related 
parties 

Lonq-temi debt to related parties 

Carrying 
Amount 

$220.3 
346.0 

2009 
Fair 

Value 

$235.5 
361.3 

Carrying 
Amount 

$210.9 
346.0 

2008 
Fair 

Value 

$199.9 
345.8 
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NOTE 3-SHORT-TERM NOTES RECEIVABLE - RELATED PARTIES 

(MUiions) 2009 2008 
UPPCO 
Integrys Energy Services 
MERC 
MGU 
IBS 

10.4 
-

3.6 
8.7 

30.3 

$ 6.8 
81.7 
22.3 
27.0 
13.1 

Total $53.0 $150.9 

NOTE 4--LONG-TERM NOTES RECEIVABLE - RELATED PARTIES 

(MUUons) 2009 2008 
WPS 

Series 
8.76% 
7.35% 

UPPCO 
Series 
5.25% 
6.06% 

MERC 
Series 
6.03% 
6.16% 
6.40% 

lyiGU 
Series 
5.72% 
5.76% 
5.98% 

Year Due 
2015 
2016 

Year Due 
2013 
2017 

Year Due 
2013 
2016 
2021 

Year Due 
2013 
2016 
2021 

3.8 
5.5 

15.0 
15.0 

29.0 
29.0 
29.0 

28.0 
28.0 
28.0 

$ 4.0 
5.9 

15.0 
15.0 

29.0 
29.0 
29.0 

28.0 
28.0 
28.0 

IBS 
Series 
6.86% 

Year Due 
2014 10.0 

Total 

NOTE 5~SH0RT-TERM NOTES PAYABLE- RELATED PARTIES 

(Millions) 
Integrys Energy Services 
PEC 
Total 

$220.3 

2009 
$218.7 

97.0 
$315.7 

$210.9 

2008 
$ -
276.1 

$276.1 
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NOTE 6-LONG-TBRM DEBT- RELATED PARTIES 

(MUiions) 
Long-temn notes to PEC due 2011 '̂̂  
Lonq-temi notes to Integrys Energy Services due 2021 *̂ * 
Totai 

2009 
$325.0 

21.0 
$346.0 

2008 
$325.0 

21.0 
$346.0 

*̂ ' On September 28, 2007, Integrys Energy Group issued a $325.0 miliion long-term promissory note to 
PEC. The note bears interest at a rate of 5.25% and matures in January 2011. Proceeds of the note 
were used to reduce the balance of commercial paper outstanding. 

*̂ ^ Integrys Energy GnDup has a long-term note payable to Integrys Energy Services at December 31, 
2009 and 2008 of $21.0 million. The note bears interest at a rate that approximates current market 
rates and is due in 2021. 

At December 31,2009, Integrys Energy Group (parent company) was in compliance with all covenants 
relating to outstanding debt to the related parties. A schedule of all principal debt payment amounts for 
Integrys Energy Group (parent company) is as follows: 

Year ending December 31 
(Millions) 
2010 $ -
2011 325.0 
2012 
2013 
2014 
Later years 21.0 
Total payments $346.0 

NOTE 7-INCOME TAXES 

The principal components of Integrys Energy Group's defended income tax assets and liabilities 
recognized in the balance sheet as of December 31 are as follows: 

(MUiions) 2009 2008 

Deferred income tax assets: 
Plant related 
State capital and operating loss carryfonA/ards 
Employee benefits 
Price risk management 
Deferred deductions 0.5 

$ -
10.0 
6.1 

. 

$10.9 
11.3 
6.8 
1.8 

Other 
Total deferred income tax assets 
Valuation allowance 
Net deferred income tax assets 

-
16.6 

$16.6 

1.1 
31.9 
(1.2) 

$30.7 

Deferred income tax liabilities: 
Plant related $12.9 $21.7 
Price risk management 0.2 
Other 6J 1.1 
Total defen-ed income tax liabilities $19,2 $22.8 

Carryfonward periods for state capital and operating loss carryfonwards vary, but in the majority of states 
in which we do business, the period is 15 years or more. The balance of the carryforwards of state net 
operating losses is $195.2 million for all states. No valuation allowances have been established due to 
the reasonabte certainty of the ability to realize the benefit of these losses in the future. 
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SCHEDULE II 
INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP 
VALUATION AND QUAUFYING ACCOUNTS 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
Years Ended December 31, 2009,2008, and 2007 

(in Millions) 

Fiscal Year 

2007 

2008 

2009 

Balance at 
Beginning of 

Year 

$17.0 

$56.0 

$62.5 

Acquisitions 
of 

Businesses 

$42.9 

$ -

$ -

Additions 
Charged to 
Expense 

$39.1 

$76.8 

$54.6 

Additions 
Charged to 

Other Accounts*^* 

$2.8 

$5.6 

$15.1 

Reductions ^̂ * 

$45.8 

$75.9 

$74.7 

Balance at 
End of Year 

$.56.0 

$62.5 

$57.5 

'̂ ^ Represents additions charged to regulatory assets and amounts charged to tax liabilities related to revenue taxes and state 
use taxes uncollectible from customers. 

*̂^ Represents amounts written off to the reserve, including any adjustments. 
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EXHIBIT INDEX 

Set forth below is a listing of all exhibits to this Annual Report on Fonn 10-K, including those incorporated 
by reference. 

Certain other instruments, which would otherwise be required to be listed below, have not been so listed 
as such instruments do not authorize long-term debt securities in an amount which exceeds 10% of the 
total assets of Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Integrys Energy 
Group agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the SEC upon request. 

Explanatory Note: Many o f the exhibits l is ted below were entered Into when integrys Energy 
Group, Inc. was known as WPS Resources Corporation but have been referred to below b y 
reference to ite current name. 

Exhibit 
Number Description of Documents 

2.1* Asset Contribution Agreement between ATC and Wisconsin Electric Power Company, 
Wisconsin Power and Light Company, WPS, Madison Gas & Electric Co., Edison Sault 
Electric Company, South Beloit Water, Gas and Electric Company, dated as of 
December 15, 2000. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2A-3 to Integrys Energy Group's 
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2000.) 

2.2* # Purchase and Sale Agreement between Integrys Energy Services, Inc., as Seller, and 
Macquarie Cook Power, Inc., as Purchaser, dated as of December 23.2009. 

2.3# First Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement dated January 26,2010, between 
Integrys Energy Services, Inc., as Seller, and Macquarie Cook Power, Inc., as Purchaser. 

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of Integrys Energy Group, as amended. (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Integrys Energy Group's Form 8-K filed February 27,2007.) 

3.2 By-Laws of Integrys Energy Group, as amended through December 17, 2009. (Incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Integrys Energy Group's Form 8-K filed Decemt)er22, 2009.) 

4.1 Senior Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1999, between Integrys Energy Group and 
U.S. Bank National Association (successor to Firstar Bank Milwaukee, N.A., National 
Association) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(b) to Amendment No. 1 to Form S-3 filed 
October 21,1999 [Reg. No. 333-88525]); First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
November 1,1999 between Integrys Energy Group and Firstar Bank, National Assodation 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4A of Fonn 8-K filed November 12,1999); Second 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 1,2002 between Integrys Energy Group and 
U.S. Bank National Association; Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 1,2009, by 
and between Integrys Energy Group and U.S. Bank National Association (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Integrys Energy Group's Fomi 8-K filed June 17,2009); and 
Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 1,2009, by and between Integrys Energy 
Group and U.S. Bank National Association (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to 
Integrys Energy Group's Form 8-K filed June 17, 2009). (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 4A of Fomi 8-K filed November 25, 2002.) All references to filings are those of 
Integrys Energy Grciup (File No. 1-11337). 
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4.2 Subordinated Indenture, dated as of November 13, 2006, between Integrys Energy GnDup 
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(c) to 
Amendment No. 1 to Forni S-3 filed December 4, 2006 [Reg. No. 333-133194]; and First 
Supplemental Indenture by and between Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as tmstee, dated December 1. 2006. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to 
Integrys Energy Group's Form 8-K filed December 1, 2006.) 

4.3 Replacement Capital Covenant of Integrys Energy Group, Inc.. dated December 1,2006. 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 to Integrys Energy Group Form 8-K filed 
December 1,2006.) 

4.4 Credit Agreement dated as of June 13, 2006, by and among PEC, the financial institutions 
party hereto, and Bank of America. N.A., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., ABN AMRO 
Incorporated, US Bank National Association, and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd. 
Chicago Branch, as agents. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to PEC - Form 10-Q 
filed August 9. 2006 [File No. 1-05540].) 

4.5 Guaranty, dated May 18, 2007, by and among Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and Bank of 
America, N.A. in its capacity as Administrative Agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.1 to Integrys Energy Group's Fonn 8-K filed May 22, 2007.) 

4.6 First Amendment and Consent to Credit Agreement dated May 18, 2007 between PEC and 
Bank of America N.A., as Administrative Agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to 
Integrys Energy Group's Fonri 8-K filed May 22, 2007.) 

4.7 First Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of January 1,1941 from WPS to U.S. Bank 
National Association (successor to First Wisconsin Trust Company), Tnjstee (Incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 7.01 - File No. 2-7229); Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
November 1,1947 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 7.02 - File No. 2-7602); 
Supplemental Indenture, t^ated as of November 1, 1950 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
4.04 - File No. 2-10174); Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1, 1953 (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4.03 - File No. 2-10716); Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 
1954 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.03 - File No. 2-13572); Supplemental Indenture, 
dated as of December 1,1957 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.03 - File No. 2-14527); 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1,1963 (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 1,1964 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Supplemental Indenture, 
dated as of November 1, 1967 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 
2-65710); Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 1,1969 (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1,1971 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Sixteenth Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as of August 1,1973 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 
2-65710); Seventeenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1,1973 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Eighteenth Supptemental 
Indenture, dated as of October 1,1975 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 
2-65710); Nineteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Febnjary 1,1977 (Incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Twentieth Supplemental Indenture, dated 
as of July 15,1980 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4B to Forni 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 1980); Twenty-First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1980 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4B to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 , 
1980); Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 1,1981 (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4B to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,1981); Twenty-Third 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Febmary 1,1984 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
4B to Fomn 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1983); Twenty-Fourth Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as of Mansh 15, 1984 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to Forni 10-Q 
for the quarter ended June 30,1984); Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
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October 1,1985 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30,1985); Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1,1987 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4A-1 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
1987); Twenty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 1991 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Form 8-K filed September 18, 1991); 
Twenty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 1,1992 (Incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 4B - File No. 33-51428); Twenty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
October 1,1992 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Fonn 8-K filed October 22,1992); 
Thirtieth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 1993 (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 4 to Form 8-K filed January 27, 1993); Thirty-First Supplemental Indenture, dated as 
of July 1,1993 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Fomn 8-K filed July 7,1993); 
Thirty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 1, 1993 (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,1993); Thirty-Third 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1,1998 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
4D to Forni 8-K filed December 18,1998); Thirty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
August 1,2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4D to Fomn 8-K filed August 24, 2001); 
Thirty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1,2002 (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4D to Form 8-K filed December 16, 2002); Thirty-Sixth Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as of December 8, 2003 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Fomn 
8-K filed December 9,2003); Thirty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
December 1, 2006 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Fomi 8-K filed November 30, 
2006); Thirty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 1,2006 (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006); Thirty-Ninth 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 1,2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
4.2 to Fonn 8-K filed November 16,2007); and Fortieth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
December 1,2008 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-K filed December 4, 
2008). All references to periodic reports are to those of WPS (File No. 1-3016). 

4.8 Indenture, dated as of December 1,1998, between WPS and U.S. Bank National Association 
(successor to Firstar Bank Milwaukee, N.A., National Association) (Incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 4A to Form 8-K filed December 18,1998); First Supplemental Indenture, dated as 
of December 1, 1998 between WPS and Firstar Bank Milwaukee, N.A., National Association 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4C to Fomi 8-K filed December 18, 1998); Second 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 1,2001 between WPS and Firstar Bank, 
National Association (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4C of Forni 8-K filed August 24, 
2001); Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1,2002 between WPS and U.S. 
Bank National Association (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4C of Fomri 8-K filed 
December 16, 2002); Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 8,2003, by and 
between WPS and U.S. Bank National Association (successor to Firstar Bank, National 
Association and Firstar Bank Milwaukee, N.A., National Association) (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K filed December 9, 2003); Fifth Supplemental Indenture, 
dated as of December 1,2006, by and between WPS and U.S. Bank National Association 
(successor to Firstar Bank, National Association and Firstar Bank Milwaukee, N.A., National 
Association) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K filed November 30,2006); 
Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2006, by and between WPS and 
U.S. Bank National Association (successor to Firstar Bank, National Association and Firstar 
Bank Milwaukee, N.A., National Association) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to 
Fonn 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006); Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated 
as of November 1,2007, by and between WPS and U.S. Bank National Association 
(successor to Firstar Bank, National Association and Firstar Bank Milwaukee, N.A., National 
Association) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K filed November 16, 2007); 
and Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1,2008, by and between WPS 
and U.S. Bank National Association (successor to Firstar Bank, National Association and 
Firstar Bank Milwaukee, N.A., National Association) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 
to Fomi 8-K filed December 4, 2008). References to periodic reports are to those of WPS 
(File No. 1-3016). 
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4.9 Indenture, dated as of January 18, 2001, between PEC and Bank One Trust Company 
National Association. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) to PEC Form 10-Q filed 
May 15, 2001[Flle No. 1-05540].) 

4.10 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 5, 2007, by and among PEC, Integrys 
Energy Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Tmst Company, N.A., as Tmstee including a 
Guaranty of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Integrys 
Energy GnDup's Forni 8-K filed March 9,2007.) 

4.11 PGL First and Refunding Mortgage, dated January 2, 1926, from Chicago By-Product Coke 
Company to Illinois Merchants Tmst Company, Trustee, assumed by PGL by Indenture 
dated March 1,1928 (PGL - May 17,1935, Exhibit B-6a, Exhibit B-6b A-2 File No. 2-2151, 
1936); Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 20,1936, (PGL - Form 8-K for the year 
1936, Exhibit B-6f); Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 10, 1950 (PGL - Fonn 8-K for 
the month of March 1950, Exhibit B-6i); Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1,1951 
(PGL - File No. 2-8989, Post-EffecUve, Exhibit 7-4(b)); Supplemental Indenture dated as of 
August 15,1967 (PGL - File No. 2-26983, Post-Effective, Exhibit 2-4); Supplemental 
Indenture dated as of September 15,1970 (PGL - File No. 2-38168, Post-Efl^ctive 
Exhibit 2-2); Supplemental Indenture dated June 1,1995 (PGL - Form 10-K for fiscal year 
ended September 30, 1995); Supplemental Indenture, First and Refunding Mortgage 
Multi-Modal Bonds, Series HH of PGL, effective March 1. 2000 (PGL - Form 10-K for fiscal 
year ended September 30,2000, Exhibit 4(b)); Supplemental Indenture dated as of 
February 1, 2003, First and Refunding Mortgage 5% Bonds, Series KK (PEC and PGL -
Fonn 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003, Exhibit 4(a)); Supplemental Indenture 
dated as of February 1,2003, First and Refunding Mortgage MulU-Moda) Bonds. Series LL 
(PEC and PGL - Fomi 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,2003, Exhibit 4(b)); 
Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 15, 2003, First and Refunding Mortgage 4.00% 
Bonds, Series MM-1 and Series MM-2 (PEC and PGL - Fonn 10-Q for the quarter ended 
March 31, 2003, Exhibit 4(c)); Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 15, 2003, First and 
Refunding Mortgage 4.625% Bonds, Series NN-1 and Series NN-2 (PEC and PGL - Form 
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,2003, Exhibit 4(e)); Supplemental Indenture dated as 
of October 1, 2003, First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds, Series 0 0 (PEC and PGL - Fonn 
10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2003, Exhibit 4(a)); PGL Supplemental Indenture 
dated as of October 1, 2003, First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds, Series PP (PEC and PGL 
- Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2003, Exhibit 4(b)); PGL Supplemental 
Indenture dated as of November 1,2003, First and Refunding Mortgage Multi-Modal Bonds, 
Series QQ (PEC and PGL - Fonn 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31,2003, Exhibit 
4(c)}; PGL Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 1, 2005, First and Refunding 
Mortgage Bonds, Series RR (PEC and PGL - Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
December 31, 2004, Exhibit 4(b)); Loan Agreement between PGL and Illinois Development 
Finance Authority dated October 1, 2003, Gas Supply Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 
2003C(PECand PGL - Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31,2003, Exhibit 4(d)); 
Loan Agreement between PGL and Illinois Development Finance Authority dated October 1, 
2003. Gas Supply Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2003D (PEC and PGL - Fomn 10-Q for 
the quarter ended December 31, 2003, Exhibit 4(e)); Loan Agreement between PGL and 
Illinois Development Finance Authority dated November 1, 2003, Gas Supply Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2003E (PEC and PGL - Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
December 31, 2003, Exhibit 4(f)); Loan Agreement between PGL and Illinois Finance 
Authority dated as of January 1,2005. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) to PEC 
Fomn 10-Q filed Febmary 9,2005); Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1,2008, 
First and Refunding Mortgage 7.00% Bonds, Series SS; Supplemental Indenture dated as of 
November 1,2008, First and Refunding Mortgage 8.00% Bonds, Series TT; and 
Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 1,2009, First and Refunding Mortgage 
4.63% Bonds, Series UU. 
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4.12 NSG Indenture, dated as of April 1, 1955, from NSG to Continental Bank, National 
Association, as Trustee; Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 20, 1963 
(NSG - File No. 2-35965, Exhibit 4-1); Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1 
1964 (NSG - File No. 2-35965, Exhibit 4-1); Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of 
February 1,1970 (NSG - File No. 2-35965, Exhibit 4-2); Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated 
asof December 1,1987 (NSG-Fonn 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1987. 
Exhibit 4); Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture dated December 1,1998 (NSG Gas - Fomi 
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,1999, Exhibit 4); Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture 
dated as of April 15, 2003, First Mortgage 4.625% Bonds, Series N-1 and Series N-2 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(g) to PEC Fomn 10-Q filed May 13,2003) and 
Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1,2008, First Mortgage 7.00% 
Bonds, Series O. 

10.1+ Form of Key Executive Employment and Severance Agreement entered into between 
Integrys Energy Group and each of the following: Phillip M. Mikulsky and [.any L. Weyers. 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Integrys Energy Group's Form 10-K filed 
Febmary 25, 2009.) 

10.2+ Form of Key Executive Employment and Severance Agreement entered into between 
Integrys Energy Group and each ofthe following: Lawrence T. Borgarcl, Diane L. Ford, 
Bradley A. Johnson, Thomas P. Meinz, Joseph P. O'Leary, Mark A. Radtke, 
Charies A. Schrock, and Barth J. Wolf. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Integrys 
Energy Group's Fomn 10-K filed Febmary 25, 2009.) 

10.3+ Fomn of Integrys Energy Group Perfonnance Stock Right Agreement. (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Integrys Energy Group's Fonn 8-K filed December 13,2005.) 

10.4+ Form of Integrys Energy Group 2007 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan Performance 
Stock Right Agreement approved May 17, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 
to Integrys Energy Group's Forni 10-K filed February 28, 2008.) 

10.5+ Form of Integrys Energy Group 2007 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan Performance 
Stock Right Agreement approved Febmary 14, 2008. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.6 to Integrys Energy Group's Forni 10-K filed Febmary 28, 2008.) 

10.6+ Form of Integrys Energy Group 2005 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan Restricted 
Stock Award Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Integrys Energy 
Group Forni 8-K filed December 13, 2006.) 

10.7+ Form of Integrys Energy Group 2007 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan Restricted 
Stock Award Agreement approved May 17,2007. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 
to Integrys Energy Group's Form 10-K filed February 28, 2008.) 

10.8+ Form of Integrys Energy Group 2007 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan Restricted 
Stock Unit Award Agreement approved Febmary 14, 2008. (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.9 to Integrys Energy Group's Fomri 10-K filed Febmary 28, 2008.) 

10.9+ Form of Integrys Energy Group 2007 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan NonQualified 
Stock Option Agreement approved May 17, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.10 to Integrys Energy Gnaup's Fomn 10-K filed Febmary 28, 2008.) 

10.10+ Form of Integrys Energy Group 2007 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan NonQualified 
Stock Option Agreement approved Febmary 14, 2008. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.11 to Integrys Energy Group's Fomi 10-K filed Febmary 28,2008.) 
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10.11+ Integrys Energy GnDup 1999 Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10-2 in 
Integrys Energy Group's Form 10-Q fiDr the quarter ended June 30, 1999, filed August 11, 
1999.) 

10.12+ Integrys Energy GnDup 1999 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4.2 in Integrys Energy Group's Form S-8, filed December 21,1999. 
[Reg. No. 333-93193].) 

10.13+ Integrys Energy Group Deferred Compensation Plan as Amended and Restated Effective 
April 1, 2008. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Integrys Energy Group's Form 
10-K filed February 28, 2008.) 

10.14+ Integrys Energy GnDup Pension Restoration and Supplemental Retirement Plan, as 
Amended and Restated Effective April 1, 2008. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to 
Integrys Energy Group's Form 8-K filed April 15, 2008.) 

10.15+ Integrys Energy Group 2001 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan. (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Integrys Energy GnDup's Fomi 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2005, filed February 28, 2006.) 

10.16+ Integrys Energy Group 2005 Omnibus Incentive Compensafion Plan. (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Integrys Energy Group's Form 10-Q filed August 4, 2005.) 

10.17+ Integrys Energy Group 2007 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan. (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Integrys Energy Grciup's Fomi 10-K filed February 28, 2008.) 

10.18+ PEC Directors Stock and Option Plan as amended December 4, 2002. (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10(g) to PEC Fomri 10-Q, filed Febmary 11,2003 [File No. 1-05540].) 

10.19+ PEC Directors Deferred Compensation Plan as amended and re^stated April 7, 2004. 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to PEC Forni 10-Q filed August4, 2005.) 

10.20+ PEC Executive Deferred Compensation Plan amended as of December 4, 2002. 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 (c) to PEC Fomri 10-Q filed Febmary 11,2003.) 

10.21+ PEC 1990 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan as amended December 4,2002. 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(d) to Quarteriy Report on Form 10-Q of PEC for the 
quarteriy period ended December 31, 2002, filed February 11, 2003 [File No. 1-05540].) 

10.22+ Amended and Restated Trust under PEC Directors Deferred Compensafion Plan, Directors 
Stock and Option Plan, Executive Deferred Compensation Plan and Supplemental 
Retirement Benefit Plan, dated as of August 13, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10 (a) to PEC Form 10-K filed December 11, 2003.) 

10.23+ Amendment Number One to the Amended and Restated Tmst under PEC Directors Deferred 
Compensation Plan, Directors Stock and Option Plan, Executive Defened Compensation 
Plan and Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan, dated as of July 24,2006. (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10(e) to PEC Fomi 10-K filed December 14, 2006.) 

10.24 Five Year Credit Agreement among Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and tiie lenders identified 
herein, Citibank, N.A., Wells Fargo Bank National Association, J P Morgan Chase Bank, 
N.A., UBS Securities LLC, U.S. Bank National Association, and U.S. Bank National 
Association and Citigroup Global Markets Inc., dated as of June 2, 2005. (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Integrys Energy Group's and WPS's Fonn 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30, 2005, filed August 4, 2005.) 
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10.25 Five Year Credit Agreement among Integrys Energy Group, Inc., as Borrower, the Lenders 
Identified Therein, Citibank, N.A., as Syndication Agent, U.S. Bank National Association, 
Bank of America, N.A., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Co-Documentation Agents, 
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Agent, and Wachovia Bank, National Association 
and Citigroup Global Maricets Inc, as Co-Lead Arrangers and Book Managers dated as of 
June 9,2006. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Integrys Energy Group's Form 
8-Kfiled June 15, 2006.) 

10.26 Five Year Credit Agreement among Wisconsin Public Service Corporation, as Bon^ower, The 
Lenders Identified Herein, U.S. Bank National Association, as Syndication Agent, Wells 
Fargo Bank National Association, as Co-Documentation Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, 
N.A., as Co-Documentation Agent, UBS Securities LLC, as Co-Documentation Agent 
Citibank, N.A., as Administiative Agent and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. and U.S. Bank 
National Association, as Co-Lead Arrangers and Book Managers dated as of June 2, 2005. 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to WPS's Fomn 10-K filed February 28,2008 [File 
No. 1-3016].) 

10.27 Credit Agreement Dated as of July 12, 2005 among PGL, The Financial Institutions Party 
Hereto, s Banks, ABN AMRO Bank N.V., as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, 
NA, as Syndication Agent ABN AMRO Incorporated, as Co-Lead Arranger and Joint 
Bookmnner, and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as Co-Lead Arranger and Joint Bookrunner. 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(A) to PEC Fomi 10-K/A filed December 14, 2005.) 

10.28* # Joint Plant Agreement by and between WPS and Dairyland Power Cooperative, dated as of 
November 23, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Integrys Energy Group's 
and WPS's Fonn 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.) 

10.29+ Incentive Agreement, dated as of April 2,2009, between Integrys Energy Group and 
Mark A. Radtke. 

12 Integrys Energy Group Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges. 

21 Subsidiaries of Integrys Energy Group. 

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for Integrys Energy Grciup. 

23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for American Transmission 
Company LLC. 

24 Powers of Attomey. 

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of tiie Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
and Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for Integrys 
Energy Group. 

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the SariDanes-Oxley Act 
and Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for Integrys 
Energy Group. 

32 Written Statement of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 
18 U.S.C. Section 1350 for Integrys Energy Group. 
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99.1 Proxy Statement for Integrys Energy Group's 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. [To be 
filed with the SEC under Regulation 14A within 120 days after December 31, 2009; except to 
the extent specifically incorporated by reference, the Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders shall not be deemed to be filed with the SEC as part of this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K.] 

99.2 Financial Statements of American Transmission Company LLC. 

* Schedules and exhibits to this document are not filed therewith. The registrant agrees to 
furnish supplementally a copy of any such schedule or exhibit to the SEC upon request. 

+ A management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 

# Portions of this exhibit have been redacted and are subject to a confidential h^atment 
request filed with the Secretary of SEC pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities and 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The redacted material was filed separately witii the 
SEC. 

•168-



ATTACHMENT F 
(Execution Copy) 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED FOR PORTIONS OF THIS DOCUMENT. 
PORTIONS FOR WHICH CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT IS REQUESTED ARE 
DENOTED BY [CONFIDENTIAL TREATIVtENT REQUESTED]. MATEIOAL OMITTED 
HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION. 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEIVIEIVT 
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EVTEGRYS ENERGY SERVICES, INC., 

as Seller, 

AND 

IMACQUARIE COOK POWER INC., 

as Purchaser 

DATED AS OF DECEJVIBER 23,2009 
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PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEJVIENT 

This Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated December 23, 2009, is entered into between 
Integrys Energy Services, Inc., a Wisconsin corporation (the "Seller"), and Macquarie Cook 
Power Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Purchaser"). Integrys Energy Group, hic, a Wisconsin 
corporation ("lEG"), joms herein solely for purposes of manifesting its agreement with the terms 
and conditions set forth in Section 2.13, Section 7.9, and Section 10.11. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the SeUer, through the use ofthe Transferred Assets, is engaged in a 
commodities trading and marketing business involved in the wholesale electricity market in the 
United States (such use ofthe Transferred Assets, considered as a whole, the "Business"): 

WHEREAS, in the course ofthe Business, the Seller has negotiated and managed the 
Trading Contracts, has received certain benefits and performed certain obligations under the 
Transferred Contracts, has entered into the Exchange Traded Transactions and owns the Other 
Assets; 

WHEREAS, the Seller desires to sell to the Purchaser all ofthe Seller's rights and 
obligations under the Transferred Assets, and the Purchaser desires to assume all ofthe Seller's 
rights and obhgations under the Transferred Assets, in each case, upon the terms and subject to 
the conditions contained in this Agreement; 

WHEREAS, in connection with the consummation ofthe Contemplated Transactions, the 
Parties intend to enter into the Related Agreements on or prior to the Closing Date; and 

WHEREAS, on the Mirror Effective Date, the Seller and the Purchaser will enter into the 
MiiTor Transactions (documented pursuant to the Mirror Confirms), pursuant to which only the 
economic benefits of and risks under each ofthe Trading Contracts will be borne by the 
Purchaser fi-om and after the Mirror Effective Date. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties, in consideration ofthe mutual promises contained 
herein and intending to be legally boxmd, agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS AND USAGE 

Section 1.1 Definitions. For puiposes of this Agreement, the following terms and 
variations thereof have the meanmgs specified or referred to in this Section 1.1: 

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any Person directly or indirectly 
controlling, controlled by, or imder common control with, such other Person as ofthe date on 
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which, or at any time durii^ the period for which, the determination of affiliation is being made. 
For purposes of this definition, the term "control" (including the correlative meanings ofthe 
terms "controlled by" and "xmder common control with"), as used with respect to any Person, 
means the possession, directly or indirectly, ofthe power to direct or cause the direction ofthe 
management policies of such Person, whether through the ownership of shares or by contract or 
otherwise. 

"Agreement" means this Purchase and Sale Agreement, as the same may be amended, 
restated, modified or supplemented fi-om time to time in accordance with its terms, and the 
Exhibits and Schedules hereto. 

"Assignment and Assumption Agreement means the Assignment and Assumption 
Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

"Assumed Liabihties" means collectively: 

(i) aU Liabilities relating to or arising out of any of the Trading Contracts on or 
after the Novation Date with respect to any such Trading Contracts, as the case may be; 

(ii) all Liabihties relating to or arising out of any ofthe Transferred Contracts (other 
than the ISO Contracts) on or after the Transfer Date with respect to any such Transferred 
Contracts, as the case may be; 

(iii) all Liabihties relating to or arising out of any ofthe Other Assets on or after the 
Transfer Date with respect to any such Other Assets, as the case may be; 

(iv) all Liabilities relating to or arising out of any ofthe Exchange Traded 
Transactions on or after the Mirror Effective Date with respect to any such Exchange Traded 
Transactions, as the case may be; and 

(v) all Liabilities relating to or arising out of any ofthe ISO Contracts on or after 
the Mirror Effective Date with respect to any such ISO Contracts, as the case may be, which for 
avoidance of doubt does not include any liability resulting fi-om adjustments or resettiement with 
respect to such ISO Contracts for any period before the Mirror Effective Date. 

"Bangor Agreement" means the Entitiement Agreement between Bangor-Hydro Electric 
Company and Seller, dated January 12,2009. 

"Bangor Financial Trade Agreement" means the financially-settled transaction 
transferring certain economic risks ofthe Bangor Agreement, to be entered into between the 
Seller and Purchaser on the Mirror Effective Date and confirmed via a confirmation substantially 
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C-1, under an ISDA Master Agreement, as such 
confirmation may be amended, restated, modified or supplemented from time to time in 
accordance with its terms. 

2 
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"Bangor Supply Trade Agreement" means the Bangor Supply Trade Agreement, 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C-2. to be entered into between the Purchaser 
and the Seller on the Effective Date, and confmned under the MCP-IES ISDA Master 
Agreement, as such confirmation may be amended, restated, modified or supplemented fiom 
time to time in accordance with its terms. 

"Bill of Sale" means the Bill of Sale substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
B. 

"Business" has the meaning provided in the recitals of this Agreement. For piuposes of 
this Agreement, however. Business excludes any and all business conducted by the Seller 
through the use of any and all Excluded Assets, 

"Business Dav" means a day other than Saturday, Sunday and any day on which banks 
located in New York City are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close. 

"Cash" means all cash and cash equivalents computed in accordance with US GAAP or, 
as applied to Purchaser, in accordance with internationally accepted accounting principles. 

"Chosen Courts" has the meaning provided in Section 10.5 

"Closing" has the meaning provided in Section 2.4. 

"Closing Date" has the meaning provided in Section 2.4. 

"Code" means the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, 

"Confidential Information" is defined in the Confidentiality Agreement and includes this 
Agreement (including the Schedules and Exhibits) and the Ancillary Agreements. 

"Confidentiality Agreement" means the Fu-st Amended and Restated Confidentiality 
Agreement by and among EEG, and its subsidiaries, and Purchaser, and its affihates, dated July 
28,2009, as the same may be amended, restated, modified or supplemented from time to time in 
accordance with its terms. 

"Consent" means any approval, consent, ratification, filing, waiver or other authorization. 

"Contemplated Transactions" means all ofthe transactions contemplated to be 
consimmiated under this Agreement and the Related Agreements. 

"Contract" means any contract, lease, license, evidence of Indebtedness, mortgage, 
indenture, security agreement or other commitment, imdertaking or agreement (whether written 
or oral) that is legally binding. 
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"Counterpart Trading Contract" means each Trading Contract that relates to the Business 
and not to any other business ofthe Seller or its Affiliates. 

"Counterparty" means a counterparty with respect to a Trading Contract, 

"Damages" means, with respect to any Indemnified Party, any and all losses, Liabihties, 
claims, obligations, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, Proceedings, damages or Taxes of any 
kind or nature whatsoever actually suffered or incurred by such Indemnified Party after Closing 
(together with all reasonably incurred cash disbursements, costs and expenses, including costs of 
mvestigation, defense and appeal and reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses), whether or not 
involving a Third-Party Claim but not, for the avoidance of doubt, including any diminution of 
value ofthe Transferred Assets; provided, however, that the foregoing limitation shall not limit 
in any manner the determination or quantification of Damages arising out of or relatmg to any 
Misbooking. In no event shall Damages include Non-Reimbursable Damages. 

"Defaulting Party" means, with respect to any termination of this Agreement, (i) the 
Party whose breach, default or other action gives rise to a termination right ofthe other Party 
pursuant to Section 8.1(c), (ii) the Party that suffers the occurrence of an Insolvency Event, or 
(iii) the Party whose obhgations are guaranteed by a Person that suffers an Insolvency Event. 

"Eh-aft Allocation" has the meaning provided in Section 10.3(b). 

"EEF' means the Edison Electric Institute. 

"EEI Master Agreement" means the Master Power Purchase and Sale Agreement 
published by the EEI, together with the cover sheet, any annexes and confirmations thereto, as 
amended fiom time to time. 

"Effective Date" means (i) if the Closing Date is the last day of a calendar month, the 
Closing Date, and (ii) if the Closing Date is not the last day of a calendar month, the last day of 
the calendar month in which the Closing Date occurs. 

"Electricity" has the meaning provided in Section 2.16, 

"Encumbrance" means any lien, option, pledge, charge, security interest, mortgage, 
easement, or similar restriction or Ihnitation. 

"ERCOT" means the Electric Reliability Council of Texas. 

"Exchange Request" has the meaning provided in Section 2.9(a). 

"Exchange Traded Transactions" means the trades hsted in Schedule 2.l(a)(iv\ 



ATTACHMENT F 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED FOR PORTIONS OF THIS DOCUMENT 
PORTIONS FOR WHICH CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT IS REQUESTED ARE 
DENOTED BY [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED]. IVIATERL^L OMITTED 
HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION. 

"Excluded Assets" means any assets ofthe Seller or its Affiliates of any kind other than 
the Transferred Assets, including those assets identified on Schedule Life). 

"Excluded Liabilities" means all Liabilities ofthe Seller and its Affiliates other than the 
Assumed Liabilities. 

"Excluded Transactions" means those Trading Contracts that the Purchaser does not 
acquire in connection with the Contemplated Transactions. 

"FCM" has the meaning provided in Section 2.9(a). 

"FERC" means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or any successor 
Governmental Body. 

"Final Allocation" has the meaning provided in Section 10.3(b). 

"Final Purchase Price Adjustment" means the adjustment (positive or negative) to the 
Initial Purchase Price set forth in Schedule 2.2(c) calculated as of Febmary 3,2010. 

"Financial Assurances" means guarantees, letters of credit, comfort letters, "keep whole" 
agreements, bonds or other financial security arrangements or other credit support arrangements 
(mcluding for the provision and maintenance of Cash collateral) of any type or kind whatsoever, 
whether or not accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise. 

"Governing Documents" means, with respect to any particular entity, (a) if a corporation 
or a limited company, the articles or certificate of incorporation and the articles of association or 
bylaws; (b) if a general partnership, the partnership agreement and any statement of partnership; 
(c) if a limited partnership, tiie limited partnership agreement and the certificate of limited 
partnership; and (d) if a limited liability company, the certificate of formation and limited 
liability company agreement. 

"Governmental Authorization" means any consent, license, pennit, certificate, clearance 
or other authorization or approval issued, granted, given or otherwise made available by or under 
the authority of any Governmental Body. 

"Governmental Body" means any federal, state, local, municipal, or other governmental 
or quasi-governmental authority or self-regulatory organization of any nature (including any 
agency, branch, department, board, commission, court, tribunal or other entity exercising 
governmental or quasi-governmental powers) or exercising, or entitled to exercise, any 
administrative, executive, judicial, legislative, enforcement, regulatory or taxing authority or 
power. 

"Guarantee Agreements" means, collectively, the Purchaser Guarantee Agreement and 
the Seller Guarantee Agreement. 
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"ICE" means the Intercontinental Exchange. 

"Identified Transactions" has the meaning provided in Section 2.13. 

"lEG" has the meaning provided in the preamble of this Agreement. 

"Indebtedness" means, with respect to any Person, any obhgations of such Person (a) for 
borrowed money, (b) evidenced by notes, bonds, debentures or similar instruments, (c) for the 
deferred purchase price of goods or services (other than payables or accruals incurred in the 
Ordinary Course of Business, including in connection with any trades, hedges or other 
transactions entered into in connection with the Business), (d) imder capital leases and (e) in the 
nature of Financial Assurances ofthe obligations described in clauses (a) through (d) above of 
any other Person; provided, that "Indebtedness" shall not include any Cash collateral or any 
obligation under any credit support agreement to retum any posted collateral (includmg Cash 
collateral) in each case relating to any Trading Contracts. 

"Indemnified Party" has the meaning provided in Section 9.4(a), 

"Indemnifying Party" has the meaning provided in Section 9.4(a). 

"hiitial Purchase Price" means [CONFIDENnAL TREATMENT REQUESTED], 
ft 

"Insolvency Event" means, with respect to any entity, such entity (i) files a petition or 
otherwise commences, authorizes, or acquiesces in the commencement of a proceeding or cause 
of action under any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar law, or has any such 
petition filed or commenced against it (i.e., an involuntary proceeding) that is not dismissed 
within thirty (30) calendar days; (ii) makes an assignment or any general arrangement for the 
benefit of creditors; (iii) otherwise becomes bankmpt or insolvent (however evidenced); (iv) has 
a liquidator, administrator, receiver, tmstee, conservator or similar official appointed with 
respect to it or any substantial portion of its property or assets; or (v) is generally unable to pay 
its debts as they fall due. 

"Interbook Matching Trade" has the meaning provided in Section 2.8(f)(ii), 

"Interbook Trades" means, subject to Section 7.1 (b), any intracompany transactions or 
transactions between Seller and any Affiliates of Seller which are hsted in Schedule 2.l(a)(ii)(C\ 

"Initial Purchase Price Adjustment" means the adjustment (positive or negative) to the 
Initial Ptuchase Price set forth in Schedule 2.2rb) and calculated as of January 29, 2010. 

"ISDA" means the Intemational Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc, 



ATTACHMENT F 

CONFIDENTL\L TREATMEISTF REQUESTED FOR PORTIONS OF THIS DOCUMENT 
PORTIONS FOR WHICH CONFIDENTIAL TREATIVIENT IS REQUESTED ARE 
DENOTED BY [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED]. IVL^TERIAL OMITTED 
HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURIIIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION. 

"ISDA Master Agreement means the 2002 master commodity trading agreement in the 
form promulgated by the ISDA, together with any schedules, annexes and confirmations thereto, 
as amended from time to time 

"ISO Contracts" means those Contracts identified on Schedule 2. Ka¥y), 

"ISO Request" has the meaning provided in Section 2.11(a). 

"Knowledge" means (i) with respect to the Seller, tiie actual knowledge (as opposed to 
any constmctive or imputed knowledge) ofthe individuals listed on Schedule I.Ua) and (ii) with 
respect to Purchaser, the actual knowledge (as opposed to any constmctive or imputed 
knowledge) ofthe individuals listed on Schedule 1.1(b): provided. howevCT. that, 
notwithstanding the foregomg, a Person identified in Schedule 1.1(a) or Schedule 1.1(b) charged 
with responsibihty for the aspect ofthe business relevant or related to the matter at issue shall be 
deemed to have actual knowledge of a particular matter if, in the pmdent and reasonable exercise 
of his or her duties and responsibihties in the Ordinary Course of Business, such Person should 
have reasonably known of such matter. 

"Law" means any binding laws, statutes, treaties, mles, regulations, ordmances, 
judgments, decrees, principles of common law, codes, Orders and other pronouncements having 
the effect of law of any Governmental Body, mcludmg all Governmental Authorizations. 

"Letter of Credit" means an irrevocable, transferable, standby letter of credit, in form and 
substance reasonably acceptable to Purchaser, issued by (a) a major U.S. commercial bank or the 
U.S. branch office of a major foreign bank assigned, in either case, a Credit Rating of at least (i) 
"A-" by S&P and "A3" by Moody's, if such entity is rated by both S&P and Moody's or (ii) "A-
" by S&P or "A3" by Moody's, if such entity is rated by either S&P or Moody's but not botii, or 
(b) any other entity as may be acceptable to Purchaser in its discretion. 

"Liability" means, witii respect to any Person, any and all Indebtedness, Uabilities and 
other obligations of any kind or nature of such Person, whether fixed, contingent or absolute, 
matured or unmatured or accmed or unaccmed, including those arising imder any Contract, 
agreement, arrangement, commitment or undertaking. 

"Loss" or "Losses" means losses, Liabilities, Damages, obhgations, payments, costs, and 
expenses, includmg the costs and expenses of any and all related actions, suits, Proceedings, 
assessments, judgments, settlements, and compromises and all related reasonable attorneys' fees 
and reasonable disbursements, 

"Material Adverse Effecf means any effect, change, occurrence, development, condition 
or event that, mdividually or in the aggregate, has had or would reasonably be expected to have a 
material adverse effect (financial or otiierwise) on the Business or the Transferred Assets, taken 
as a whole; provided, however, that the following shall not be considered when detennining 
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whether a Material Adverse Effect has occuned: any effect resulting from (a) any change in 
economic conditions generally or in the industry or geographic areas in which the Business is 
conducted or otherwise operated; (b) any change in cunency rates; (c) any continuation of an 
adveiise trend or condition; (d) any change in any Laws or accounting mles applicable to the 
Busmess or the Transfened Assets; (e) any change resulting from changes in the intemational, 
national, regional or local wholesale or retail power markets; (f) any changes, circumstances or 
effects directiy attributable to the announcement or pendency ofthe Contemplated Transactions, 
or resulting from or relating to compliance with the terms of, or the talcing of any action required 
by, this Agreement; (g) the commencement, occunence or intensification of any war, sabotage or 
armed hostihties; (h) acts of tenorism; (i) any faOure by the Seller to meet mtemal or published 
projections, forecasts or revenue or eamings predictions with respect to the Business; (j) any 
materially adverse change m the Business or the Transfened Assets which is cured (includhig by 
payment of money) before the Closing Date; (k) the performance of or compliance with any of 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement; (1) any matter disclosed in this Agreement, or any 
Schedule or Exhibit hereto; or (m) any actions taken at the request of Purchaser. 

"MCP-IES ISDA Master Agreement" means the ISDA Master Agreement, and the 
related schedules thereto, dated as of October 7, 2009, between the Purchaser and the Seller. 

"Mirmr Cnnfinn" means the confirmation and associated ISDA Master Agreement, with 
terms and conditions substantially similar to the terms contained in Exhibit D attached hereto, to 
be entered into between the Purchaser and the Seller on Minor Effective Date and, if the 
Purchaser exercises its rights pursuant to Section 2,12, the date on which the Mirror Confirm is 
novated to the Purchaser in accordance with the requirements of Section 2.12. 

"IVlinor Effective Date" means January 29,2010, as may be amended from tune to time; 
provided, however, that in the case of Exchange Traded Transactions, Minor Effective Date 
means either (i) such date or (ii) if such date is not a day on which the Relevant Exchange is 
open for trading, the next day on which the Relevant Exchange is open for tradii^. 

"Minor Transaction" the transaction pursuant to the Minor Confirm effective as ofthe 
Minor Effective Date. 

"Misbooked Trading Contract" has the meaning provided in Section 2.6. 

"Misbooking" means, with regard to any Trading Contract prior to the Novation Date 
with respect thereto, (i) any discrepancy between (A) the terms set forth on Schedule 1 to the 
Mirror Confirm (including the terms of any '̂ ^̂ ew Transaction" (as defined in the Mirror 
Confirm) deemed to be added to Schedule 1 in accordance with "Portfolio Additions" in the 
Minor Confirm) and (B) the actual terms and conditions of such Trading Contract, which 
discrepancy can be reasonably substantiated, and (ii) any Trading Contract identified on 
Schedule 2,l(a)(ii)(B) (Trading Contracts) for which the Seller cannot, prior to the Effective 
Date, provide the Purchaser with written documentation confirming or evidencing the 
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Coimterparty's assent to the material terms of such Trading Contract, which assent may be 
confirmed or evidenced by, among other things, the Coimterparty executing a Novation 
Agreement any time prior to the Effective Date. 

"Misbooking Trigger Date" has the meaning provided in Section 8.1(e). 

"Moody's" means Moody's Investor Services, Inc. or its successor. 

"Non-Defaulting Party" means, with respect to any termination of this Agreement, the 
Party that is not the Defaulting Party. 

'̂Non-Reimbursable Damages" has the meaning provided in Section 9.7(c), 

"'Novation Agreement" means a novation agreement substantially in the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit E. 

"Novation Condition" has the meaning provided in Section 2.8(b)(ii). 

"Novation Date" has the meaning provided in Section 2.8(d). 

"NYMEX" means the New York Mercantile Exchange, Inc. 

"Order" means any order, writ, injunction, judgment, decree, ruling, assessment or 
arbitration award of any Governmental Body or arbitrator (in each case whether preliminary or 
final). 

"Ordinary Course of Business" means the conduct ofthe business of a Person in 
accordance with such Person's normal day-to-day customs, practices and procedures consistent 
with past practice and which is commercially reasonable in light ofthe circumstances. 

"Other Assets" means those assets that are identified on Schedule 2, l(a)(iii), 

"Party" means each ofthe Seller and the Purchaser and, solely for purposes of Section 
2,13, 7,9 and 10.11, lEG. 

"Permitted Encumbrance" means those Encumbrances identified in Schedule 3.6, 

"Person" means any natural person, corporation, general partnership, limited partnership, 
limited liability company, joint venture, tmst, imion, proprietorship, Governmental Body or other 
entity, association or organization of any nature, however and wherever organized or constituted 
(whether or not having a separate legal personahty). 

"Post-Minor Trade" has the meaning assigned m Section 2,10(b). 
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"PPL Financial Trade Agreement" means the PPL Financial Trade Agreement, 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit L to be entered into between the Purchaser 
and the Seller on Minor Effective Date and confirmed under an ISDA Master Agreement, as 
such confinnation may be amended, restated, modified or supplemented from time to tune in 
accordance with its terms. 

"Pre-Closing Guidelines" means those guidelines enumerated in Schedule 7.1(b). 

"Proceeding" means any action, arbitration, audit, hearing, investigation, litigation or suit 
(whether civil, criminal, administrative, judicial or investigative, whether public or private) 
commenced, brought, conducted or heard by or before any Governmental Body or arbitrator. 

"Purchaser" has the meaning provided in the preamble of this Agreement, 

"Purchaser Guarantee Agreemenf means the Guarantee Agreement, substantiaDy in the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit F. entered into between Purchaser Parent, as guarantor 
thereunder, and the Seller, as beneficiary thereunder, dated as ofthe date hereof, as the same may 
be amended, restated, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with its terms, 
guaranteeing the obhgations of Purchaser imder this Agreement and the Mirror Confirm, 

"Purchaser Group" has the meaning provided in Section 9.2. 

"Purchaser Key Employees" mean employees ofthe Purchaser and any Affihate of 
Piu-chaser that uses the term "Macquarie" in its name, in each case, performing services m or for 
the Energy Markets Division ofthe Fixed Income, Cunencies & Commodities Group ofthe 
Purchaser, in each case, with the position and title of Associate Director, Managing Director, 
Division Director or Executive Director, 

"Purchaser Parent" means Macquarie Bank Limited. 

"Purchase Price" means the Initial Purchase Price, as initially adjusted by the Initial 
Purchase Price Adjustment and then finally adjusted by the Final Purchase Price Adjustment 

"Purchaser Required Consents" means the Consents and Governmental Authorizations 
that are required to be obtained and are listed in Schedule 4.5. 

"Related Agreements" means, collectively, the Assignment and Assumption Agreement, 
the Bill of Sale, the Guarantee Agreements, the Supply Trade Agreements, the Minor Confirm, 
and the Novation Agreements. 

"Related Purchaser Parties" means each Affiliate of Purchaser that is a party to this 
Agreement or any Related Agreement, 

10 
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"Related Seller Parties" means each Affihate of Seller that is a party to this Agreement or 
any Related Agreement. 

"Relevant Exchange" means the NYMEX or ICE, as apphcable. 

"Relevant ISO" means the PJM Interconnection, the Midwest ISO, tiie New York ISO, 
ISO New England, ERCOT, or die California ISO, as applicable, 

"Representative" means, with respect to a particular Person, any director, officer, 
manager, employee, agent, consultant, advisor, accountant, financial advisor, legal counsel or 
other representative of that Person, 

"Required Consents" means the Purchaser Required Consents and the Seller Required 
Consents. 

"Restricted Business" has the meaning provided in Section 7.9(a), 

"Restricted Period" has the meaning provided in Section 7,9(a). 

"S&P" means the Standard & Poor's Rating Group (a division of McGraw Hill, Inc.) or 
its successor. 

* 
"Schedules" means, with respect to Seller or Purchaser, the schedules delivered by Seller 

or Purchaser, as the case may be, pursuant to Article III or Article TV, respectively. 

"Seller" has the meaning provided in the preamble of this Agreement, 

"Seller Guarantee Agreement" means the Guarantee Agreement, substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit G, entered into between lEG, as guarantor thereunder, and the 
Pinchaser, as beneficiary thereunder, and to be delivered and enforceable as ofthe Mirror 
Effective Date, as the same may be amended, restated, modified or supplemented from time to 
tune m accordance with its terms, guaranteeing the obligations of Seller under this Agreement. 

"Seller Group" has the meaning provided in Section 9.3. 

"Seller Required Consents" means the Consents and Governmental Authorizations that 
are required to be obtained and are hsted in Schedule 3.5. 

"Subsidiary" means any Person (i) whose securities or other ownership interests having 
by their terms the power to elect a majority ofthe board of directors or other persons performing 
sunilar functions, are owned or controlled, directly or indhectiy, by the SeUer and/or one or more 
Subsidiaries, or (ii) whose business and policies the Seller and/or one or more Subsidiaries have 
the power to direct. 

11 
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"Substitute Exchange Traded Transaction" has the meaning provided in Section 2.9(b). 

"Successor Liabihty Taxes" means any Taxes imposed on the Seller or any entity that has 
ever been a member ofthe Seller's consolidated group ui respect ofthe Transfened Assets and 
the Business for a period or portion thereof ending on or before the Closing Date, and for which 
Purchaser may become liable by operation of Law, by assessment, or pursuant to the terms of an 
^reement entered mto by the Seller as a result of being treated as a transferee of or successor to 
the Seller due to the transfer ofthe Transfened Assets and the Business pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

"Supply Trade Agreements" means, collectively, the Bangor Financial Trade Agreement, 
the Bangor Supply Trade Agreement and the PPL Financial Trade Agreement, 

"Tax" means (a) any income, gross receipts, hcense, payroll, employment, excise, capital 
gains or corporation tax on capital gains, severance, stamp, stamp duty reserve tax, occupation, 
premium, property, environmental, wmdfall profit, customs, capital stock, franchise, employees' 
income withholding, foreign or domestic withholding, social security, unemployment, disability, 
real property, personal property, sales, use, transfer, documentary, value added, altemative, add 
on minimum and other tax, fee, assessment, levy, tariff, charge or duty of any kind whatsoever 
and any interest, penalty, addition or additional amount thereon imposed, assessed or collected 
by or under the authority of any Governmental Body, (b) any habihty for the payment of any 
amounts ofthe type described in the immediately preceding clause as a result of being (or 
ceasing to be) a member of an affiliated, consolidated, combined, imitary or aggregate group, 
under Treasury Regulation Section 1.1502-6 or any analogous or similar provision of state, local 
or foreign Law, or being included (or required to be included) in any Tax Retum related thereto, 
and (c) all habilities for the payment of amounts ofthe type described in clauses (a) or (b) as a 
result of being a transferee of or successor to any Person, by contract or otherwise. 

"Tax Laws" means any Law of any Governmental Body relating to any Tax, 

"Tax Retum" means any retum (including any information retum), report, statement, 
schedule, notice, form, declaration, or claim for refimd (including any amended return, report, 
statement, schedule, notice, form, declaration, or claim for refund) filed with or submitted to, or 
required to be filed with or submitted to, any Governmental Body with respect to Taxes. 

"Termination Fee" means a fee payable pursuant to Section 8.2 in the amount often 
million dollars ($10,000,000.00). 

"Third Party" means a Person other than the Seller or the Purchaser or any of their 
respective Affiliates. 

'Third-Party Claim" has the meaning provided in Section 9.4(b). 

12 
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"Trading Contracts" means, subject to Sections 2.6 and 7.1(b), those transactions and/or 
master trading agreements evidenced by written Contracts (i.e., not including any oral agreement 
or other undocumented transaction), includii^ any Interbook Trades (whether or not documented 
on agreement such as the ISDA Master Agreement, WSPP Master Agreement, or EEI Master 
Agreement), to which the Seller is a party and that are identified on Schedule 2.1(a)(ii)(A) 
(Master Agreements), Schedule 2.1(a)(ii)(B) (Trading Contracts), and Schedule 2.1(a)(ii)(C) 
(Interbook Trades); provided, however, that, notwithstanding anything else to the contrary 
herein, "Trading Contract" shall for all purposes hereunder only refer to the rights and Liabihties 
under such Contracts to the extent relating to or constituting a Counterpart Trading Contract and 
not to any other rights or Liabihties under such Contracts. 

[CONFIDENTIAL TREATIVIENT REQUESTED]. 

"Transfer Condition" means, collectively: 

(i) the receipt of all Governmental Authorizations and all Consents (including 
any required Third Party consent) necessary to permit the transfer or conveyance of such 
Transfened Assets to the Purchaser; and 

(ii) the applicable Third Party having (x) released the Seller and lEG from any 
and all obligations and Liabilities under such Transfened Contract or Other Asset and 
(y) released or agreed in writmg, with the Seller and lEG as third party beneficiaries, to release 
within a reasonable period of tune after the execution of such release the Seller and lEG from 
any and all obligations and Liabilities under any Financial Assurances related to such 
Transfened Contract and Other Asset, including the retum by the applicable Third Party of any 
collateral held by such Third Party to the Seller or lEG. 

"Transfer Date" means, with respect to any Transfened Contract or Other Asset, the later 
of (i) the last day ofthe calendar month in which the Transfer Condition has been satisfied and 
(ii) tiie Effective Date. 

"Transfer Taxes" has the meaning provided in Section 10,3(a). 

"Transfened Assets" means the Transfened Contracts, the Trading Contracts, the 
Exchange Traded Transactions, and the Other Assets, m each case, sold by the Seller to the 
Purchaser in accordance with, and subject to, the terms and conditions of, this Agreement. 

"Transfened Contracts" means, subject to Section 7,1(b), those written Contracts (i.e., 
not including any oral agreement or other undocumented transaction) that are used by or in 
support ofthe Business and that are identified on Schedule 2. l(a)(i) (Transfened Contracts), 
including any ISO Contracts, but excludmg any Trading Contracts. 
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"US GAAP" means US generally accepted accounting principles in effect from time to 
time. 

"US" or "United States" means tiie United States of America. 

"WSPP" means the Westem Systems Power Pool. 

"WSPP Master Agreement" means the Westem Systems Power Pool Agreement, as such 
agreement may be amended by the WSPP from time-to-time, including any Master Confirmation 
Agreement (as defined in the WSPP Agreement) or other modifications made by the parties 
thereto. 

Section 1.2 Rules of Construction and Usage, and Other Defmitional and 
Interpretive IMatters. 

(a) Interpretation. In this Agreement, unless a clear contrary intention appears: 

(i) Singular. The singular number includes the plural number and vice 
versa. 

(ii) Successors. Reference to any Person mcludes such Person's successors 
and assigns but, if applicable, only if such successors and assigns are not prohibited by this 
Agreement, and reference to a Person in a particular capacity excludes such Person in any other 
capacity or individually. 

(iii) Gender and Number. Any reference in this Agreement to gender 
includes all genders, and the meaning of defined terms apphes to both the singular and the plural 
of those terms. 

(iv) Agreements as Amended. Reference to any agreement, document or 
instrument means such agreement, docimient or mstrument as amended or modified and m effect 
fix)m time to time in accordance with the terms thereof 

(v) Laws as Amended. Reference to any Law means such Law as 
amended, modified, codified, replaced or reenacted, m whole or m part, and in effect from time 
to time, including rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and reference to any section or 
other provision of any Law means that provision of such Law from tiine to time in effect and 
constituting the substantive amendment, modification, codification, replacraient or reenactment 
of such section or other provision, m each case except to the extent that this would increase or 
alter the Liability ofthe Seller under this Agreement. 

(vi) Hereunder and Similar Words. "Hereimder," "hereof," "hereto," and 
words of similar import shall be deemed references to this Agreement as a whole and not to any 
particular Article, Section or other provision hereof 
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(vii) Headings. Thedivisionof this Agreement into Articles, Sections, and 
other subdivisions and the insertion of headings are for convenience of reference only and do not 
affect, and will not be utilized in construmg or interpreting, Ihis Agreement. 

(viii) Section and Articles. All references in this Agreement to a particular 
"Section" or "Articles" refers to the conespooding Section or Article of this Agreement imless 
otherwise specified. 

(ix) Dollars. Any reference in this Agreement to "dollars" or "$" means 
US dollars. 

(x) Calculation of Time Period. With respect to the determination of any 
period of time, "from" means "from and including" and "to" means "to but excludir^." If the 
last day of any time period is a non-Business Day, the time period will be extended to the next 
Busmess Day. Unless otherwise specified, all times are New York City time. 

(xi) Exhibits and Schedules. Unless otherwise expressly indicated, any 
reference in this Agreement to an "Exhibit" or a "Schedule" refers to an Exhibit or Schedule to 
this Agreement. The Exhibits and Schedules to this Agreement are incorporated and made a part 
of this Agreement as if set forth in full in tiiis Agreement and are an integral part of this 
Agreement. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defmed in a Schedule or Exhibit have the 
meanings set forth in this Agreement. 

(xii) Including. The word "including" or any variation thereof means 
"including without limitation" and does not limit any general statement that it follows to the 
specific or similar items or matters immediately following it 

(b) Equal Drafting. All Parties acknowledge that it and its attomeys have been 
given an equal opportimity to negotiate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that any 
rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved agamst the drafting Party or 
any sunilar rule operating against the drafter of an agreement shaU not be applicable to the 
constmction or interpretation of this Agreement. 

(c) Accounting Terms and Determinations. Unless otherwise specified herein, 
all accounting terms used herein shall be interpreted and all accounting detenninations hereunder 
shall be made in accordance with US GAAP, consistently applied or, with respect to Purchaser 
and its Affiliates, in accordance with internationally accepted accounting principles. 

(d) Ejusdem Generis. General words shall not be given a restrictive meaning by 
reason ofthe fact that they are followed by particular examples intended to be embraced by the 
general words. 
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ARTICLE H 
SALE OF THE TRANSFERRED CONTRACTS AND 

TRADING AGREEIVDENTS; CLOSING 

Section 2.1 Purchase and Sale of Transferred Contracts, Trading Contracts and 
Other Assets. 

(a) Subject to the satisfaction or waiver ofthe conditions precedent set forth in 
Article V and Article VI, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement: 

(i) Transferred Contracts: Subject to Section 2.7, the Seller agrees to 
sell to the Purchaser, free and clear of all Encumbrances (except Permitted Encumbrances), and 
the Purchaser agrees to purchase from the Seller, all ofthe rights, titie and mterests ofthe Seller 
in, and assume all ofthe Liabilities ofthe Seller under, each ofthe Transferred Contracts (other 
than the ISO Contracts), in each case, with effect from 11:59 p.m. New York City time on the 
Transfer Date with respect to each of such Transferred Contracts; 

(ii) Trading Contracts: Subject to Section 2.8, the Seller agrees to sell to 
the Purchaser, fi-ee and clear of all Encumbrances (except Permitted Encumbrances), and the 
Purchaser agrees to purchase fitim the Seller, by way of novation, all ofthe rights, titie and 
interests ofthe Seller in, and assume all ofthe Liabilities ofthe Seller under, each ofthe Trading 
Contracts, in each case, with effect fixjm 11:59 p.m. New York City time on the Novation Date 
with respect to each of such Trading Contract; 

(iii) Other Assets: The Seller agrees to sell to the Purchaser, free and 
clear of all Encumbrances (except Permitted Encumbrances), and the Purchaser agrees to 
purchase from the Seller, all ofthe rights, title and interests ofthe Seller in and to each ofthe 
Other Assets, with effect fiT>m 11:59 p.m. New York City time on the Transfer Date with respect 
to each of such Other Assets; 

(iv) Exchange Traded Transactions: Subject to Section 2.9, the Seller 
agrees to sell to the Purchaser, free and clear of all Encumbrances (except Permitted 
Encumbrances), and the Purchaser agrees to purchase from the SeUer, by way of novation, all of 
the rights, titie and interests ofthe Seller in and to the Exchange Traded Transactions, with effect 
fix)m 11:59 p.m. New York City time on the Minor Effective Date; and 

(v) ISO Contracts: Subject to Section 2.11, the Seller agrees to sell the 
Purchaser, free and clear of all Encumbrances (except Permitted Encumbrances), and the 
Purchaser agrees to purchase from the Seller, all ofthe rights, title and interest ofthe Seller in, 
and assume all the Liabilities ofthe Seller under, each ofthe ISO Contracts, with effect fix)m 
11:59 p.m. on the Mirror Effective Date. 
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(b) At all times, the Seller and its Affiliates shall retain all of their existing 
rights, titie and interests in and to the Excluded Assets, and the Purchaser shaU have no rights to 
the Excluded Assets. 

Section 2.2 Payment of Purchase Price. 

(a) Payment on the Mirror Effective Date. On the terms and subject to the 
terms and conditions hereof and in consideration ofthe Contemplated Transactions, on the Minor 
Effective Date, the Purchaser shall pay to the Seller the Initial Purchase Price, plus Initial 
Purchase Price Adjustment; provided, that any amoimt due pursuant to this Section 2.2 shall be 
payable on a net basis with respect to any other amoimts due imder the Mirror Confirm or under 
the PPL Financial Trade Agreement, in each case on Minor Effective Date. Such amount shall be 
dehvered by wire transfer in immediately available funds to the account or accounts designated by 
Seller. 

(b) Payment on February 3,2010. On the terms and subject to the terms and 
conditions hereof and in consideration ofthe Contemplated Transactions, on Febmary 3,2010, the 
Fmal Purchase Price Adjustment shall be paid (i) if positive, by the Purchaser to the SeUer, or (ii) 
if negative, by the Seller to the Purchaser, Such amount shall be delivered by wire transfer in 
immediately available funds to the accoimt or accounts designated by Purchaser or Seller, as the 
case may be; provided, however, that should the Parties not agree on the amount ofthe Final 
Purchase Price Adjustment, the undisputed amount of such adjustment shall be paid by the 
February 3,2010 deadline by the Purchaser or Seller (as the case may be), and tiiereafter the 
Parties shall use commercially reasonable efforts to resolve promptly their disagreement about the 
amount ofthe Final Piu-chase Price Adjustment in accordance with the dispute resolution process 
set forth in Schedule 2.2(c). 

Section 2.3 Assumed Liabilities; Excluded Liabilities. 

(a) In consideration ofthe transactions contemplated by Section 2.1(a), the 
Purchaser shall perform, discharge and satisfy, as and when due, all ofthe Assumed Liabilities 
from and after (i) with respect to any Transfened Contract (other than the ISO Contracts) or Other 
Asset, the Transfer Date with respect to such Transfened Contract (other than the ISO Contracts) 
and Other Asset, (ii) with respect to any Trading Contract, the Novation Date with respect to such 
Trading Contract, (iii) with respect to any Exchange Traded Transaction, the Muror Effective 
Date; and (iv) with respect to the ISO Contracts, the Minor Effective Date. 

(b) At all times, the Seller and its Affiliates shall retain and be responsible for all 
Excluded Liabilities, and the Purchaser shall not have any Liability with respect to the Excluded 
Liabihties, the Excluded Assets and the Excluded Transactions. 

Section 2,4 Closing. The consummation ofthe Contemplated Transactions (the 
"Closmg") shall take place at the offices of Foley & Lardner LLP, 321 North Clark Street, Suite 
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2800, Chicago, IL 60654-5313 (or such other place as the Parties may ^ree), three (3) Business 
Days following the satisfaction or waiver ofthe conditions set forth in Articles V and VI (other 
than those conditions that by thek terms are to be satisfied at the Closing, but subject to the 
satisfaction or waiver of such conditions) or at such other place, time and date as the Parties may 
agree (the "Closing Date"). For the avoidance of doubt, certain components ofthe Contemplated 
Transactions will be undertaken prior to the Closing Date as required hereby. 

Section 2.5 Closing Obligations. In addition to any other documents to be delivered 
under other provisions of this Agreement, at the Closing: 

(a) Seller's Deliveries. The SeUer shall deliver or cause to be dehvered to the 
Purchaser: 

(i) the Novation Agreements for each ofthe Trading Contracts for which 
the Novation Condition has been satisfied, duly executed by Seller; 

(ii) the Assignment and Assumption Agreement, duly executed by Seller; 

(iii) the Bill of Sale, duly executed by Seller; 

(iv) evidence ofthe filing with respect to and/or receipt of all the Seller 
Required Consents; 

(v) a duly executed certification pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section 
l,1445-2(b)(2) that the Seller is not a foreign Person withm the meaning set fortii in Section 
1445(f)(3) of tiie Code; 

(vi) a certificate duly executed by the Seller, dated as ofthe Closing Date, 
in accordance with Section 5.1(f); 

(vii) all consents, waivers or approvals obtamed by Seller fiom Third 
Parties in coimection with this Agreement; 

(viii) terminations or releases of Encumbrances on the Transfened Assets 
that are not Permitted Encumbrances; 

(ix) a certificate of status with respect to the Seller (dated as of a recent 
date), issued by the Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions; 

(x) a copy, certified by an authorized officer ofthe Seller, of the 
resolutions authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Related 
Agreements and instruments attached as exhibits to this Agreement and to the Related 
Agreements, and the consummation ofthe Contemplated Transactions, together with a certificate 
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by the Secretary ofthe SeUer as to the incumbency of those officers authorized to execute and 
deliver this Agreement and the Related Agreements; and 

(xi) such other customary instmments of transfer, assumptions, filings or 
documents, in form and substance reasonably satisfectory to the Purchaser, as may be required to 
give effect to the Contemplated Transactions. 

(b) Purchaser's Deliveries. The Purchaser shall deliver to the Seller: 

(i) the Novation Agreements for each ofthe Trading Contracts for which 
the Novation Condition has been satisfied, duly executed by Purchaser; 

(ii) the Assignment and Assumption Agreement, duly executed by 
Purchaser; 

(iii) the BiU of Sale, duly executed by Purchaser; 

(iv) evidence ofthe filing with respect to and/or receipt of all the 
Purchaser Reqiured Consents; 

(v) the releases of Financial Assurances with respect to any Trading 
Contracts, or the agreement ofthe Coimterparty to do so, in either case obtained on or prior to 
the Closing Date pursuant to Section 2,8(b)(ii) and, to the extent applicable, for any Transfened 
Contract or Other Asset for which the Transfer Condition has been satisfied; 

(vi) a certificate duly executed by the Purchaser, dated as of the Closing 
Date, in accordance with Section 6.1(e); 

(vii) evidence reasonably acceptable to the Seller of the Purchaser's 
existence and good standing (as of a recent date) under the laws ofthe State of Delaware; 

(viii) a copy, certified by an authorized officer ofthe Purchaser, ofthe 
resolutions authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Related 
Agreements and mstruments attached as exhibits to this Agreement and to the Related 
Agreements, and the consummation ofthe Contemplated Transactions, together with a certificate 
by the Secretary ofthe Purchaser as to the incumbency of those officers authorized to execute 
and dehver this Agreement and the Related Agreements; and 

(ix) such other customary instruments of transfer, assumptions, filings or 
documents, m form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Seller, as may be required to 
give effect to the Contemplated Transactions. 

(c) Without prejudice to any other rights of the Parties under this Agreement or 
to any other remedy they may have, if a Party has not comphed in full with its obligations under 
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this Section 2.5 on or before the Closing Date, the non-breaching Party may, at its discretion, 
waive the requirement to fulfill the unsatisfied obhgations in whole or in part and proceed to 
Closing to the extent reasonably practicable. 

Section 2.6 Misbooking Adjustments. Until [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT 
REQUESTED], the Purchaser may provide, within a commerciaUy reasonable time period, 
written notice to the Seller of any Misbooking identified or determined to exist at any time with 
respect to a Trading Contract (a "Misbooked Trading Contract"). 

(a) Misbooked Trades Accepted. Witiun [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT 
REQUESTED] ofthe date upon which such notice is received by the SeUer, the Purchaser shall 
determine the economic impact ofthe Misbooked Trading Contract by calculating (i) 
[CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED], as of tiie date notice is given pursuant to tiiis 
Section 2.6, as determined by reference to the actual characteristics of such Misbooked Trading 
Contract (giving effect to any errors discovered in coimection therewith), less (ii) 
[CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED], Depending on tiie result of such calculation, 
(x) if negative, the SeUer shall pay the absolute value ofthe amount resultmg fix}m such 
calculation to the Purchaser, or (y) if positive, the Purchaser shall pay the amount resultmg from 
such calculation to the SeUer, which payment shall, in either case, be paid within three (3) 
Business Days of such amount being detennined. 

(b) Misbooked Trades Rejected. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Purchaser 
shall have tiie ri^t to [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED] of tiie date of such 
notice of Misbooking is received by the Seller; provided, however, that if such Misbooked 
Trading Contract, after giving effect to the enor with respect thereto, would nonetheless be 
substantiaUy similar to the Transfened Assets (excluding Misbooked Trading Contracts), then the 
Purchaser shaU not reject the acceptance of such Misbooked Tradmg Contract, If the Purchaser 
detennines pursuant to tiiis Section 2.6(b) [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED], of 
such amount being determined, and such Trading Contract shall become an Excluded Transaction 
and shaU not be considered or otherwise deemed a Transferred Asset for any purpose hereunder 
fiDm and after such date of rejection; provided, that, for purposes of detemuning the value ofthe 
economic impact of rejecting any such Misbooked Trading Contract, the Parties shall use the 
market value of such Misbooked Trading Contract as ofthe Minor Effective Date, as detemiined 
by reference to Schedule 2.2(b). Upon rejection of a Misbooked Trading Contract pursuant to this 
Section 2.6(b), the term "Trading Contracts" shall thereafter not include any such rejected Trading 
Contract for any purpose hereunder. ' 

(c) Misbooking Calculations. For any determination of the amount payable 
pursuant to Section 2.6(a) or 2.6(b), Purchaser will act in good faith and use conunerciaily 
reasonable procedures in order to produce a commerciaUy reasonable result. In determining such 
amount(s). Purchaser may consider (i) quotations (either firm or indicative) for replacement 
transactions supplied by one or more Third Parties that may take into account the creditworthiness 
ofthe Purchaser or the SeUer at the time such quotation is provided and the terms of relevant 
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documentation, including credit support documentation; (ii) information consisting of relevant 
market data in the relevant market supplied by one or more Third Parties including relevant rates, 
prices, yields, yield curves, volatihties, spreads, conelations or other relevant market data in the 
relevant market; or (iii) information ofthe type described m clause (i) or (ii) fix)m intemal sources 
(including any Affihates) if that information is ofthe same type used by the Purchaser in the 
regular course of business for the valuation of simUar transactions. Third Parties that supply 
quotations pursuant to the foregoing clause (i) or market data pursuant to the foregoing clause (ii) 
may include dealers in the relevant markets, end-users ofthe relevant products or services, 
information vendors, brokers and other sources of market information. 

(d) Disputes of Misbooking Calculations. Seller shall have the right actmg 
in good faith in accordarice with commercially reasonable standards to dispute any determination 
ofthe amount payable pursuant to Section 2.6(a) or 2.6(b), provided that payment ofthe 
undisputed amoimt shall first be paid by the Purchaser or Seller, as the case may be, to the other 
Party. 

Section 2.7 Transferred Contracts; Other Assets, 

(a) On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, on the Transfer 
Date with respect to any Transfened Contracts (other than the ISO Contracts) or Other Assets, the 
Seller shall convey, assign and transfer to, and the Purchaser or one of its Affiliates (subject to 
Section 2.12) shall receive, undertake and assume, all such Transferred Contracts and Other 
Assets. To tiie extent that the transfer or conveyance of any such Transfened Contracts or Other 
Assets to the Purchaser requkes the Consent of a Third Party or Governmental Authorization, the 
Seller and the Purchaser shall use commercially reasonable efforts, and cooperate with each other, 
to obtain promptiy the relevant Consent or Governmental Authorization prior to the Closing Date. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement but 
subject to the requirements of Section 2.7(d), to the extent that the transfer or conveyance of any 
Transfened Contract or Other Asset to the Purchaser pursuant to this Section 2.7 requires the 
Consent of a Third Party or Governmental Authorization and such Consent or Governmental 
Authorization shall not have been obtained prior to the Closing Date: 

(i) this Agreement shall not constitute an assignment or attempted 
assignment of such Transferred Contract or Other Asset on the Effective Date if such assignment 
or attempted assignment would constitute a breach or violation of such Transfened Contract or 
Other Asset; 

(ii) such Transfened Contract or Other Asset shall not be deemed to be a 
Transfened Asset hereunder until the Transfer Date occurs with respect thereto; and 

(iii) the Closing shall proceed without regard to the transfer or conveyance 
of such Transfened Contract or Other Asset. 
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(c) With respect to any Transfened Contracts or Other Assets which are the 
subject of Section 2.7(b), the SeUer and the Purchaser shall use commercially reasonable efforts, 
and cooperate with each other, to obtain promptly the relevant Consent or Governmental 
Authorization required to transfer or convey any such Transfened Contracts or Other Assets fix)m 
the SeUer to the Purchaser after the Closing Date. Following Closmg, if and when the relevant 
Consent or Governmental Authorization is thereafter obtained with respect to such Transfened 
Contracts or Otiier Assets: 

(i) the Seller and the Purchaser shall use commerciaUy reasonable efforts 
to cooperate with each other in any mutually agreeable, reasonable and lawfiil anangements 
designed to allow the Purchaser to obtain all ofthe rights, titie, interests in, and assume all 
Liabihties under, such relevant Transfened Contract or Other Assets, and such Transfened 
Contracts or Other Assets shaU be deemed to be a Transfened Asset from and after the relevant 
Transfer Date for all purposes hereunder; and 

(ii) the Seller shall transfer or convey such relevant Transfened Contract 
or Other Assets to the Purchaser at no additional cost. 

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contanied in this Agreement, with 
respect to any Transferred Contracts (other than the ISO Contracts) or Other Assets which are the 
subject of Section 2.7(b), pending the receipt ofthe applicable Consent or Governmental 
Authorization, the Parties shall cooperate with each other in any mutually'agreeable, reasonable 
and lawful anangements designed to provide to the Purchaser the benefits of use of such 
Transfened Contracts or Other Assets and to the Seller or its Affiliates the benefits, including any 
indemnities, that they would have obtained had the Transfened Contracts or Other Assets been 
conveyed to the Purchaser at the Effective Date. To the extent that any such Transfened 
Contracts or Other Assets carmot be transferred or conveyed or the full benefits of use of any such 
Transfened Contracts or Other Assets cannot be provided to the Purchaser foUowing the Effective 
Date pursuant to this Section 2.7(d), then the Purchaser and the Seller shaU enter mto such 
anangements (including subleasing, sublicensing or subcontracting) to provide to the Parties the 
economic (taking into account Tax costs and benefits) and operational equivalent, to the extent 
permitted by applicable Law, of obtaining such Consent or Governmental Authorization and the 
performance by the Purchaser ofthe obligations thereunder. The Seller shaU hold in tmst for and 
pay to the Purchaser promptiy upon receipt thereof, all income, proceeds and other morues 
received by the Seller or any of its Affihates in connection with its use of any Transfened 
Contracts or Other Assets (net of any Taxes and any other costs incuned by the Seller or any of its 
Affiliates) foUowmg the Effective Date m coimection with the anangements under this Section 
2,7(d). 

(e) To the extent any Other Assets constitute the intellectual property of Seller, 
Seller hereby acknowledges, grants, and confirms that Purchaser shall in perpetuity have aU right, 
titie, permission, license and interest to own and use such inteUectual property from and after tiie 
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relevant Transfer Date as required for the use of such Other Assets without restriction or other 
limitation. 

Section 2.8 Trading Contracts. 

(a) On the terms and subject to the conditions set fortii herein and subject to 
Section 2.8(f) with respect to Interbook Trades, on the Novation Date with respect to any Trading 
Contract, the SeUer shaU convey, assign and transfer to, and the Purchaser or one of its Affiliates 
shall receive from, undertake and assume, such Tradmg Contract, m each case, pursuant to a 
Novation Agreement by and among the SeUer, the Purchaser and the Counterparty to each of such 
Trading Contracts. To the extent that the transfer of any of the Trading Contracts to the Purchaser 
requires the Consent of a Third Party or Governmental Authorization, the Seller and the Purchaser 
shall use commercially reasonable efforts, and cooperate with each other, to obtain promptly the 
relevant Consent or Governmental Authorization prior to the Closing Date. 

(b) Subject to Sections 2,8(c) and (d), the sale, transfer and novation of any 
Trading Contract shall be conditional on: 

(i) the receipt of aU Governmental Authorizations and all Consents 
(including any required Counterparty consent) necessary to permit the novation of such Trading 
Contract to the Purchaser; and 

(ii) the applicable Counterparty having (x) released the Seller, lEG and all 
of lEG's other Affihates from any and all obhgations and Liabihties under such Trading 
Contract and (y) released or agreed m writing, with the SeUer, lEG and all of lEG's other 
Affiliates as TTtird Party beneficiaries, to release within a reasonable period of time after die 
execution of such release the SeUer, lEG and all of lEG's other Affiliates from any and aU 
obligations and Liabihties under any Financial Assurances related to such Trading Contracts, 
including the retum by the appUcable Counterparty of any collateral held by such Counterparty 
to the Seller, lEG or ffiG*s other Affiliates (clauses (i) and (ii), collectively, the "Novation 
Condition"). 

(c) If the Purchaser has an existing master trading agreement with any 
Counterparty to a Trading Contract, [CONFIDENTIAL TREATIVIENT REQUESTED], tiie 
Purchaser and the Seller shall have the right to seek the consent of such Counterparty to make the 
Counterpart Trading Contracts under such Trading Contract subject to the existing master trading 
agreement between the Purchaser and such Counterparty or to negotiate changes to Seller's 
existing master trading agreement or a new master trading agreement with such Counterparty. To 
the extent possible, the Parties shaU use the form of Novation Agreement, with such amendments 
as may be necessary or advisable, to accommodate the particular circumstances relating to the 
relevant Counterpart Trading Contract [CO]SfFIDENTL\L TREATMENT REQUESTED] 
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(d) Subject to Section 2.8(f) with respect to Interbook Trades, the novation of 
any Trading Contract shall become effective on the later to occur of (i) the last day ofthe calendar 
month m which the Novation Condition with respect thereto is satisfied by each ofthe SeUer and 
the Purchaser and (ii) the Effective Date (the "Novation Date"). 

(e) To the extent that the Novation Date has not occuned with respect to any 
Trading Contract prior to or after the Closing Date: 

(i) this Agreement shall not constitute a novation, assignment or 
attempted assignment with respect to such Trading Contract at or after the Effective Date; 

(ii) the Seller and the Purchaser shall use commercially reasonable efforts 
(without the obhgation on the part of either Party to pay any money, assume or incur any 
Liability or agree to any material changes ofthe Closing m the terms or conditions of such 
Trading Contract), and cooperate with each other, to obtain promptiy the relevant Consent or 
Governmental Authorization after the Closing Date to the extent necessary to satisfy any 
Novation Condition; and 

(iii) such Trading Contract shall not be deemed to be a Transfened Asset 
untU the Novation Date with respect to such Trading Contract has occuned; 

provided, that, upon the occunence ofthe Novation Date with respect to such Trading Contract, 
such Trading Contract shaU be deemed to be a Transfened Asset fiDm and after such Novation 
Date for all piuposes hereunder. 

(f) With respect to each Interbook Trade, such Trading Contract will not be 
novated fitim Seller to Purchaser and is not subject to Section 2.S (a) through (e) above, but 
rather: 

(i) If the Interbook Trade is financially-settied, such Interbook Trade wiU 
be included as a Trading Contract under the Minor Confirm and shall remam subject to the terms 
of such Minor Confirm; and 

(ii) If the Interbook Trade is physically-settled, such Interbook Trade wiU 
be included as a Tradmg Contract under the Muror Confirm (and be financially-settled) and shall 
remam as a financially-settled transaction subject to the terms of such Mirror Confirm until the 
earlier of (y) the date the Interbook Trade expires or terminates in accordance with its terms, or 
(z) the occunence ofthe Effective Date. Upon the occunence ofthe Effective Date, any 
remaining Interbook Trades shall no longer be subject to the Minor Confirm and the 
conesponding Minor Transaction shaU terminate without a Portfolio Deletion Payment (as such 
term is defined in the Minor Confirm) coming due as a result of such termination, and in heu 
thereof a new physicaUy-settled transaction between Seller and Purchaser shall be deemed to be 
automatically entered into as ofthe Effective Date, which transaction shall be subject to, and 
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confirmed in accordance with, the MCP-IES ISDA Master Agreement (each such transaction, a 
"Interbook Matching Trade"), Each Interbook Matching Trade shall be between Purchaser and 
Seller only (and not with any Seller Affiliate) for the remaining term ofthe conesponding 
Interbook Trade, shall minor the terms ofthe Interbook Trade, and shall terminate automatically 
upon the termination or expiration ofthe Interbook Trade. 

Section 2.9 Exchange Traded Transactions. 

(a) On the Mirror Effective Date, the Seller shall request ofthe Relevant 
Exchange (the "Exchange Request") that the Exchange Traded Transactions be transfened to the 
Purchaser in accordance with the rules and procedures ofthe Relevant Exchange from the 
commodity futures brokerage accounts ofthe Seller hsted on Schedule 2.9(a) attached hereto, 
carried by the futures commission merchants (each an "FCM") listed thereon, to the account ofthe 
Purchaser via an ex-pit, ex-Ring or ex-order book transfer, and the Purchaser shall assume each 
Exchange Traded Transaction, by a novation effected pursuant to the applicable mles ofthe 
Relevant Exchange. Each such transfer shall be effected at the settiement price as ofthe close of 
trading on the Relevant Exchange on the Minor Effective Date, and other than payment of the 
Purchase Price, the Parties intend that no consideration wiU be paid in respect ofthe Exchange 
Traded Transactions. The Exchange Request shall be in form and substance reasonably 
satisfactory to the SeUer and the Purchaser, To the extent that the transfer or conveyance of any 
ofthe Exchange Traded Transactions to the Purchaser requires the Consent of a Third Party or 
Govermnental Authorization, the Seller and the Purchaser shall use commercially reasonable 
efforts, and cooperate with each other, to obtain promptly the relevant Consent or Governmental 
Authorization prior to the Muror Effective Date, 

(b) If following the Minor Effective Date this Agreement is terminated in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in Article VIII, tiicn on the Business Day 
immediately following the date that this Agreement is terminated, the Purchaser shall submit to 
the Relevant Exchange an Exchange Request that the Exchange Traded Transactions, or trades 
cleared on the Relevant Exchange that are substantially similar to the Exchange Traded 
Transactions (each a "Substitute Exchange Traded Transaction'*) be transfened to the Seller in 
accordance with the rules and procedures ofthe Relevant Exchange from the commodity futures 
brokerage accounts ofthe Purchaser listed on Schedule 2.9(b) attached hereto, carried by each 
FCM listed thereon, to the accoimt ofthe Seller via an ex-pit, ex-Ring or ex-order book transfer, 
and the SeUer shaU assume each Substitute Exchange Traded Transaction, by a novation effected 
pursuant to the applicable rules ofthe Relevant Exchange. Each such transfer pursuant to this 
Section 2.9(b) shall be effected at the settiement price as ofthe close of trading on the Relevant 
Exchange on the trading date immediately preceding the date of such transfer, and other than as 
provided in Article VIII, the Parties intend that no consideration will be paid in respect ofthe 
Substitute Exchange Traded Transactions. The Exchange Request shaU be ui same form and have 
the same substance as that which was provided to the Relevant Exchange under Section 2.9(a). 

Section 2.10 Mirror Transactions. 
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(a) Upon the Mirror Effective Date, the Seller and the Purchaser shall enter into 
the Mirror Confirm whereby only the economic benefits of and risks under each ofthe Trading 
Contract will be home by the Purchaser from and after the Minor Effective Date, pursuant to the 
terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Minor Confirm, 

(b) After the Mirror Effective Date until the Closmg Date, and subject to Section 
2.16, all trading agreements, interbook trades and other contracts that the Seller enters into, which 
are substantially siiiular to the Transfened Assets, in accordance with the Pre-Closing Guidelines 
or as otherwise consented to by Purchaser, in its sole discretion, shall be deemed "Trading 
Contracts", "Interbook Trades", "Transfened Contracts" or "ISO Contracts", as the case may be 
(each a "Post-Minor Trade"), and shall for aU purposes hereunder be encompassed by the Mirror 
Confirm without any fiuther action being taken by either the Purchaser or Seller. Thereafter, the 
sale, transfer and novation of each Post-Muror Trade shall be conditional on: 

(i) the receipt of aU Governmental Authorizations and aU Consents 
(including any required Third Party Consent) necessary to permit the transfer or conveyance of 
such Post-Minor Trade to the Purchaser; and 

(ii) the applicable Thud Party havmg (x) released the Seller, lEG and all 
of lEG's other Affihates from any and all obligations and Liabilities under such Post-Minor 
Trade and (y) released or agreed in writmg, with the Seller, lEG and all of lEG's other Affihates 
as Third Party beneficiaries, to release within a reasonable period of time after the execution of 
such release the Seller, lEG and all of lEG's other Affihates from any and all obhgations and 
Liabilities under any Financial Assurances related to such Post-Minor Trade, including the 
retum by the apphcable Third Party of any collateral held by such Third Party to the Seller, lEG 
or aU of EEC's other Affiliates. 

(c) If following the Mirror Effective Date this Agreement is temiinated in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set fortii in Article VIII, then following such 
termination, the Mirror Confirm shall be terminated and the Tennination Payment (as such term is 
defined in the Mirror Confirm) paid pursuant to the Minor Confirm and the ISDA Master 
Agreement govemmg the Muror Confirm. 

(d) For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties expressly acknowledge and agree 
that, while a Minor Transaction is in effect, any potential or actual event of default or 
performance faUure (except force majeure as specifically set forth in the Minor Confirm) of 
whatever description and for whatever reason by a Counterparty with respect to a Trading 
Contract shaU not affect or in any way diminish the respective obligations ofthe Purchaser and 
Seller under the Mirror Transaction that conesponds to such Trading Contract. 
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Section 2.11 ISO Contracts. 

(a) On the Mirror Effective Date, the SeUer shall request ofthe Relevant ISO 
(the "ISO Request") that the ISO Contracts be transfened to the Purchaser in accordance with the 
rules and procedures ofthe Relevant ISO. Upon such transfer, all required collateral obhgations 
to the Relevant ISO related to the ISO Contracts will become the responsibihty of Purchaser. The 
Parties intend that, other than the Purchase Price, no consideration will be paid in respect ofthe 
ISO Contracts. The ISO Request shaU be m form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the 
Seller and the Purchaser. To the extent that the transfer or conveyance of any of the ISO 
Contracts to the Purchaser requhes the Consent of a Third Party or Governmental Authorization, 
the SeUer and the Purchaser shall use commerciaUy reasonable efforts, and cooperate with each 
other, to obtain promptiy the relevant Consent or Governmental Authorization prior to the Minor 
Effective Date. 

(b) If following the Minor Effective Date, this Agreement is temiinated in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in Article VIII, then following such 
termination, the Purchaser shaU convey, assign and transfer to, and the Seller shall receive, 
undertake and assume, the ISO Contracts; provided, that if (x) the aggregate marked-to-market 
value for aU such ISO Contracts on the termination date is greater than zero, then the Seller shaU 
pay to the Purchaser an amount equal to such amount, and (y) the aggregate marked-to-market 
value for ah such ISO Contracts on the termination date is less than zero, then the Purchaser shall 
pay to the SeUer an amount equal to the absolute value of such amoimt. To the extent that the 
transfer or conveyance of any ofthe ISO Contracts requires the Consent of a Third Party or 
Governmental Authorization, the Purchaser and the Seller shaU use commercially reasonable 
efforts, and cooperate with each other, to obtain promptly the relevant Consent or Govermnental 
Authorization. The Parties shall cooperate in good faith and in a commercially reasonable maimer 
to establish the values required by the foregoing calculation. 

Section 2.12 Purchaser's Designee. Notwithstanding anytiiing to the contrary herein, 
the Purchaser may designate in writmg an Affihate ofthe Purchaser to exercise and perform the 
rights and obligations of Purchaser, as its designate, for purposes of Sections 2.5, 2,7,2.8,2.9, 
2,10,2.11, 2,13,2.14, 2.15 and 2.16, in which event, tiie term "Purchaser" as set fortii in any 
such section shall be deemed to mean and include "Purchaser's Affiliate" as the context so 
requires; provided, that in the event that the Muror Confirm and/or the PPL Financial Trade 
Agreement is entered into by an Affiliate of Purchaser pursuant to Sections 2.10 and 2.14 and 
this Section 2,12, then (i) the Purchaser agrees that siich Minor Confirm and/or PPL Financial 
Trade Agreement shall be novated to the Purchaser no later than the Effective Date such that the 
Minor Confirm and/or PPL Financial Trade Agreement shaU be under the MCP-IES ISDA 
Master Agreement and the Purchaser shall fulfill the rights and obligations set forth in Section 
2,10 and/or Section 2.14 (as the case may be) from and after the Effective Date (without regard 
to this Section 2.12), and (ii) the Seller agrees that it shall consent or otherwise agree to such 
novation and shall execute and deliver any documents or agreements reasonably necessary to 
give effect thereto. Notwithstanding the foregoing, m no event wiU any such designation by the 
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Purchaser reheve or discharge the Purchaser from any of its obhgations hereunder, nor shall any 
such designation be made without the SeUer's prior written consent if such designation would 
reasonably be expected to (a) prevent or materially impede, interfere with or delay the 
Contemplated Transactions, (b) cause the Seller reasonably to incur additional Third Party out of 
pocket costs and e3q)enses in excess of $10,000, in the aggregate, in connection with the 
consummation of Contemplated Transactions or (c) result in the Seller or its Affihates incurring 
a Tax LiabUity in excess ofthe Tax LiabUity Seller or its Affiliates would otherwise incur 
without such designation; provided, that with respect to any costs reasonably incuned by the 
SeUer in excess ofthe doUar limitation of clause (b) above, the Purchaser may avail itself of the 
rights under this Section 2.12 so long as the Purchase reimburses the SeUer promptiy for any 
such costs in excess of that amount. 

Section 2-13 Identified Transactions. For all transactions (the "Identified 
Transactions") reflected in the Trading Contracts with the Counterparties identified on Schedule 
2.13, SeUer shall retam tiie risk of [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED] for each 
Identified Transaction as follows: 

(a) With respect to each Identified Transaction, in the event that the Purchaser 
has the right to terminate such Identified Transaction as a result of a breach thereof by the 
Counterparty to such Identified Transaction and the Purchaser notifies such Counterparty in 
writing ofthe Purchaser's election to tenninate such Identified Transaction, the Seller shaU 
provide tiie Purchaser witiim [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED] of tiie Seller's 
receipt of written demand tiierefor [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED] under such 
Identified Transaction, which [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED]. 
Notwithstanding anything in the foregoing sentence to the contrary, with respect to each 
Counterparty witii whom the Purchaser has agreed to a [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT 
REQUESTED] in no event shall the Seller be obhgated to deliver any credit support in respect of 
any amounts owmg from such Counterparty under any such Identified Transactions 
[CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED]. 

(b) With regard to any Identified Transaction for which the Seller has provided a 
[CONFn)ENTL\L TREATMENT REQUESTED] pursuant to Section 2.13(a), if tiie Purchaser 
determines (reasonably in accordance Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, consistentiy 
apphed), [CONFIDENTL\L TREATMENT REQUESTED] tiie Purchaser shaU have tiie right, 
upon givmg tiie SeUer [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED] prior written notice, to 
[CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED], provided, however, tiiat tiie SeUer shaU have 
tiie right witiim such [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED] period to deliver to tiie 
Purchaser [CONFn>ENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED] amount, in which case tiie Purchaser 
may not [CONFIDENTLVL TREATMENT REQUESTED], 

(c) Until such time as the Purchaser exercises its rights pursuant to Section 
2,13(b), the Purchaser shall exercise commercially reasonable efforts to collect on amounts owing 
in respect of non-payment by the relevant Counterparty to relevant Identified Transactions, and 
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Purchaser and the Seller shall coordinate and cooperate each other in their commercially 
reasonable discretion with respect to such collection efforts. Upon the Purchaser exercising its 
rights pursuant to Section 2.13(b), but prior to the Purchaser, [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT 
REQUESTED] in respect ofthe applicable the Identified Transaction(s) giving rise to such 
exercise by Purchaser [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED] to such Identified 
Transaction(s). 

(d) In the event that the Purchaser exercises its rights under Section 2.13(a), 
prior to tiie Purchaser [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED], tiie Purchaser shaU 
[CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED] all of tiie Identified Transactions witii tiie 
Counterparty that is the subject ofthe payment default giving rise to such exercise by the 
Purchaser. 

Section 2.14 Financial and Physical Settiement. Not later than the Minor Effective 
Date, the Seller and the Purchaser shaU execute and deliver the PPL Fmancial Trade Agreement 
and the Bangor Financial Trade Agreement. 

Section 2.15 ERCOT Trading Contracts. If requested by the Purchaser, in its 
discretion, from time to time until the first anniversary ofthe Effective Date, the SeUer shall act 
for and on behalf of the Purchaser as its Qualified Scheduling Entity (as such term is defined by 
ERCOT) with respect to the Trading Contracts that provide for physically-delivered electric 
enei^ in ERCOT, m accordance with terms and conditions to be agreed by the Parties, acting 
reasonably and in good faith. The Purchaser shall compensate the Seller for any services Seller 
provided in accordance with this Section 2.15 by paying to Seller any Third Party out of pocket 
costs and expenses reasonably incuned by Seller in providing such services, plus ten thousand 
dollars ($10,000) for each month in which such services are provided. 

Section 2,16 Flattening Trades and New Trades. On the Minor Effective Date and 
from time-to-time thereafter until the Mirror Confirm terminates, Purchaser and Seller shall enter 
into one or more physically-settled transactions under the MCP-IES ISDA Master Agreement 
representing sales to Seller with respect to ah requirements ofthe Seller to purchase additional 
physically-delivered electric energy, capacity, anciUary services, renewable energy certificates, 
or related products ("Electricity") or representing purchases from Seller for any excess 
Electricity SeUer may have in order to estabhsh and maintain, to the extent reasonably 
practicable, a flattened position in Electricity for SeUer (such transactions, the "Flattening 
Trades"). All Flattening Trades shall be priced using the same or equivalent uidex price, ISO-
published price or mutually-agreed price as specified in the relevant Mirror Transaction or Post-
Mirror Trade. 

ARTICLE IH 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE SELLER 
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Section 3.1 Scope. As an inducement to the Purchaser to enter into this Agreement 
and to consummate the Contemplated Transactions, the Seller makes the representations and 
warranties to Purchaser set forth m this Article III on the date hereof and on the Closing Date 
(unless any such representation or wananty is made as of a specific date, in which case such 
representation and warranty is made as of only such date), except as set forth in, or as qualified 
by, the Schedules, References to specific, numbered Schedules in this Article III do not limit the 
general apphcabihty ofthe exceptions, qualifications, and other matters set forth m all other 
Schedules to each and every representation and wananty set fortii in this Article III. 

Section 3.2 Corporate Organization and Authority of Seller. The SeUer is 
corporation vahdly existing and in active status under the Laws ofthe State of Wisconsin and has 
aU requisite company power and authority to own the Transfened Assets and to carry on the 
Business as now being conducted. Each ofthe Related Seller Parties is corporation, limited 
liability company or partnership vahdly existing and in active status under the laws ofthe 
jurisdiction of organization. The Seller and each of the Related Seller Parties, as the case may 
be, has all requisite corporate power and authority necessary to execute, deliver and perform this 
Agreement and each ofthe Related Agreements to which it is a party. The Seller is duly 
qualified or authorized to do busmess as a foreign entity and is m good standing under the Laws 
of each jurisdiction in which the conduct ofthe Business occurs, except where the faUure to be 
so qualified, authorized or in good standmg would not reasonably be expected to have a Material 
Adverse Effect. The execution and delivery by the Seller and each ofthe Related SeUer Parties 
of this Agreement and each ofthe Related Agreements to which it is a party and the performance 
by Seller and each ofthe Related Seller Parties, as the case may be, ofthe Contemplated 
Transactions to which it is a party have been duly authorized by all necessary company action on 
the part of Seller and each ofthe Related Seller Parties, as the case may be. 

Section 33 Enforceability. This Agreement is, and each Related Agreement to be 
executed and delivered by the Seller and each ofthe Related SeUer Parties, as the case may be, at 
or prior to the Closing wUl be, duly and validly executed and delivered by the Seller and each of 
the Related Seller Parties, as the case may be, and this Agreement is and each Related 
Agreement to be executed and delivered by the Seller and each ofthe Related Seller Parties, as 
the case may be, wUl be when executed and delivered, a valid and legally bindii^ obUgation of 
the SeUer and each ofthe Related SeUer Parties, as the case may be, enforceable agamst the 
Seller and each ofthe Related Seller Parties, as the case may be, in accordance with their 
respective terms, except as enforceabUity may be limited by applicable bankmptcy, insolvency 
or other similar Laws affecting or relating to enforcement of creditors' rights generally or general 
principles of equity. 

Section 3.4 No Conflict. Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement or any 
Related Agreement by the Seller or any ofthe Related SeUer Parties, as the case may be, nor the 
performance by Seller or any ofthe Related SeUer Parties, as the case may be, ofthe provisions 
of this Agreement or any Related Agreement to which it is a party wUl (a) violate the Govemii^ 
Documents ofthe Seller or any ofthe Related Seller Parties, as the case may be, (b) violate any 
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Law or Order by which SeUer, any ofthe Related Seller Parties or any ofthe Transfened Assets 
is boimd, or (c) except as set fortii on Schedule 3.4. result in a breach or violation of any 
provision of, constitute a default under, or give rise to any right of termination or cancellation 
under, or result in or permit an acceleration of, any material indenture, mortgage, lease or other 
agreement or instrument to which the SeUer or any ofthe Related Seller Parties is a party or by 
which the Seller, any ofthe Related SeUer Parties or any ofthe Transfened Assets are bound, 
except in the case ofthe foregoing clauses (b) and (c), as would not reasonably be expected to 
have a Material Adverse Effect or a material adverse effect on the Seller's or any of tiie Related 
Seller Parties' ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement or any ofthe Related 
Agreements to which it is a party. 

Section 3,5 Third Party Consents. Except as otherwise set forth on Schedule 3.5, no 
material authorization, consent, waiver or approval of or filing with or notification to any Third 
Party (including a Governmental Body) is requhed to be obtamed by the Seller or any ofthe 
Related Seller Parties, as the case may be, in connection with (i) the SeUer's or any ofthe 
Related Seller Parties' execution and dehvery of this Agreement or any ofthe Related 
Agreements, as the case may be, (ii) the SeUer's sale and transfer ofthe Transfened Assets to 
Purchaser on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, (iii) the Seller's or any ofthe 
Related Seller Parties' performance of their respective obhgations under this Agreement and any 
Related Agreement to which it is a party other than, in each case, (a) the Seller Required 
Consents or (b) an authorization, consent, waiver, approval, filing or notification which, if not 
obtained or made, would not, individually or in the aggregate, be reasonably expected to have a 
Material Adverse Effect, 

Section 3.6 Transferred Assets. Except as otherwise set forth on Schedule 3.6, the 
Seller has good and defensible title to all ofthe tangible and intangible personal property 
constituting part ofthe Transfened Assets, and subject to obtaining any necessary material 
Consents pursuant to this Agreement, at the Closing, the Purchaser shaU receive the Transferred 
Assets free and clear of all Encumbrances other than the Permitted Encumbrances. 

Section 3.7 Contracts; No Default. 

(a) (i) Schedules 2.l(a)(ii)(A). (B) and (C) contain, as of the date hereof, an 
accurate and complete list of each Trading Contract (or in the case of forms described in 
clause (ii), a listing of such forms) and (ii) except for multiple agreements that are documented 
under a standard form ISDA Master Agreement, EEI Master Agreement or WSPP Master 
Agreement without amendments, in which case only such form need be made avaUable, the Seller 
has made available to the Purchaser accurate and complete copies of each such Trading Contract, 
together with any and all material amendments or modifications thereto through and including the 
date hereof Schedule 2. l(a)(i) contams, as ofthe date hereof, an accurate and complete list of 
each Transferred Contract and the Seller has made available to the Purchaser accurate and 
complete copies of each Transfened Contract, together with any and all material amendments or 
moihfications thereto through and includmg the date hereof 
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(b) As ofthe date hereof: 

(i) each Trading Contract and Transfened Contmct is in ftiU force and 
effect and is a valid and enforceable obhgation ofthe SeUer except as such enforceability may be 
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or simUar laws affecting the enforcement of 
creditors' rights generaUy and general principles of equity (whether considered in a Proceeding 
at law or in equity); 

(ii) no event or condition exists that constitutes or, after notice or a lapse 
of time or both, wUl constitute, a material default on the part ofthe Seller or, to Seller's 
Knowledge, any Counterparty or other party under, in each case, any such Trading Contract or 
Transfened Contract; and 

(iu) there is no contract, agreement or other arrangement granting any 
Person any preferential right to purchase any ofthe Transfened Assets. 

Section 3.8 Taxes. 

(a) All Taxes and Tax habUities due with respect to the Transfened Assets 
(whether or not shown as due on a Tax Retum) have been timely paid. Seller has timely filed or 
caused to be timely fUed aU Tax Retums tiiat are required to be filed with respect to the 
Transfened Assets. All such Tax Retums have accurately and completely reflected, and wiU 
accurately reflect, aU habihty for Taxes relating to the Transfened Assets for the period covered 
thereby and was prepared and filed in accordance with all applicable Laws. 

(b) There are no liens for Taxes upon any ofthe Transfened Assets nor, to the 
Knowledge ofthe Seller, is any taxing authority in the process of imposing any lien for Taxes on 
any ofthe Transfened Assets, other than hens for Taxes that are not yet due and payable. 

(c) Seller has not, as ofthe Closing Date, entered into an agreement or waiver or 
requested to enter into an agreement or waiver extending any statute of limitations relating to the 
payment or collection of Taxes relating to the Transfened Assets, There is no dispute or claim 
conceming any Tax habihty relating to the Transfened Assets either (A) claimed or raised by any 
Governmental Body or (B) to which the SeUer has Knowledge, 

(d) All Taxes which SeUer is (or was) required to withhold or collect in 
coimection with the Transferred Assets have been duly withheld or collected, and have been 
tunely paid over the proper authorities to the extent due and payable, and all Forms W-2 and 1099 
with respect thereto have been properly completed and tunely filed. 

(e) There are no tax sharing, aUocation, indemnification or sunilar agreements in 
effect as between Seller and any other party under which Purchaser could be hable for any Taxes 
or other claims of any party. 
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(f) The SeUer is not a party to any closii^ agreement as described in Code 
Section 7121 (or any conesponding or similar provision of state, local or foreign income Tax law) 
with respect to the Transfened Assets. 

(g) No event has occuned that could reasonably be expected to impose upon 
Purchaser any transferee liability for any Taxes due or to become due fix)m SeUer. 

Section 3.9 Litigation, There are no claims, actions, suits or Proceedings now 
pending or, to the SeUer's Knowledge, threatened against or affecting the Seller or the 
Transfened Assets, at law or hi equity, or before or by any Governmental Body which (a) may 
knpair the abUity ofthe SeUer or the Seller Related Parties to perform this Agreement or any 
Related Agreement, (b) questions the vahdity or propriety of this Agreement or any Related 
Agreement or of any action taken under this Agreement or any Related Agreement or (c) would 
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. 

Section 3.10 No Commissions. No commissions or brokers' or finders' fees are 
payable by, through or on account of any acts ofthe Seller in coimection with this Agreement or 
the Contemplated Transaction for which the Purchaser could be liable or obligated. 

Section 3.11 Reserved. 

Section 3,12 Compliance with Laws, The Seller is in comphance with all Laws 
applicable to the Transfened Assets, except where any such non-compliance would not, 
individually or ui the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 

Section 3.13 Ability to Perform, The Seller cunentiy has or, as ofthe relevant time, 
will have available to it sufficient ftmding (in the form of Cash reflected on the Seller's balance 
sheet, under existing credit facilities or otherwise) to enable the Seller to consummate the 
Conten^lated Transactions on the terms set forth in this Agreement, to pay aU expenses to be 
incurred by the Seller in connection with this Agreement and to perform aU of its other 
obligations under this Agreement and any Related Agreement to which it is a party. 

Section 3.14 Seller's Knowledge. The Seller has informed Purchaser of any material 
mistakes or omissions on the Purchaser's Schedules of which the Seller is aware or any breach 
by the Purchaser of any ofthe representations and warranties set forth in Article IV, including 
anything that the SeUer is aware of that might give rise to a claim by the SeUer against Purchaser 
under the terms of this Agreement or any Related Agreement. 

Section 3.15 Disclaimer. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS 
ARTICLE m, THE PURCHASER IS ACQUIRING THE TRANSFERRED ASSETS "AS IS, 
WHERE IS" AND THE SELLER HAS NOT MADE AND DOES NOT MAKE ANY 
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY NATURE AS TO THE TRANSFERRED 
ASSETS (INCLUDDSTG ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A 
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PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE 
VALUE, CONDITION, NATURE, OR CAPABILITY OF ANY TRANSFERRED ASSET), 
AND THE PURCHASER BY THIS AGREEMENT EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT 
NO SUCH OTHER REPRESEl^ATIONS OR WARRANTIES HAVE BEEN MADE BY THE 
SELLER OR RELIED UPON BY THE PURCHASER, THE SELLER IS NOT LL\BLE OR 
BOUND IN ANY MANNER BY ANY EXPRESSED OR UVIPLIED WARRANTIES, 
GUARANTIES, PROMISES, STATEMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS OR INFORMATION 
PERTAINING TO THE TRANSFERRED ASSETS MADE OR FURNISHED BY ANY 
AGENT, EMPLOYEE, SERVANT OR OTHER PERSON REPRESENTING OR 
PURPORTING TO REPRESENT THE SELLER, UNLESS THE WARRANTIES, 
GUARANTIES, PROMISES, STATEMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS OR EsfFORMATION 
ARE EXPRESSLY AND SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN THIS ARTICLE III. 

ARTICLE FŜ  
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE PURCHASER 

Section 4.1 Scope. As an inducement to the Seller to enter this Agreement and to 
consummate the Contemplated Transactions, the Purchaser makes the representations and 
wananties to the Seller set forth in this Article TV on the date hereof and on the Closing Date 
(unless any such representation or wananty is made as of a specific date, in which case such 
representation and wananty is made as of only such date). 

Section 4.2 Corporate Organization and Authority. The Purchaser is a corporation 
duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws ofthe State of Delaware 
and has full power and authority to execute, deliver and perform this Agreement and each ofthe 
Related Agreements to which it is a party. Each ofthe Related Purchaser Parties that are a party 
to this Agreement or any ofthe Related Agreements is a corporation, limited liability company 
or partnership validly existing and in active status under the Laws of the jurisdiction of 
organization. Each ofthe Purchaser and the Related Purchaser Parties has aU requisite corporate 
power and authority necessary to execute, dehver and perform this Agreement and each ofthe 
Related Agreements to which it is a party. The Purchaser is duly qualified or authorized to do 
business as a foreign corporation and is in good standing under the Laws of each jurisdiction in 
which the conduct of its business or the ownership of its properties requires such qualification or 
authorization, except where the faUure to be so qualified, authorized or in good standing would 
not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Purchaser's abihty to 
consummate the Contemplated Transactions. The execution and delivery by the Purchaser and 
each of each of the Related Purchaser Parties of this Agreement and each Related Agreement to 
which it is a party and the performance by the Purchaser and each ofthe Related Purchaser 
Parties, as the case may be, ofthe Contemplated Transactions have been duly authorized by all 
necessary corporate or other actions and Proceedings on the part ofthe Purchaser and such 
Related Purchaser Parties, as the case may be. 
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Section 4.3 Enforceability. This Agreement is, and each Related Agreement to be 
executed and dehvered by the Purchaser and each ofthe Related Purchaser Parties, as the case 
may be, at or prior to the Closing wUl be, duly and vahdly executed and delivered by the 
Purchaser and each ofthe Related Purchaser Parties, as the case may be, and this Agreement is 
and each Related Agreement to be executed and delivered by the Purchaser and each ofthe 
Related Purchaser Parties, as the case may be, will be when executed and delivered, a vahd and 
legally binding obhgation ofthe Purchaser and each ofthe Related Purchaser Parties, as the case 
may be, enforceable against the Purchaser and each ofthe Related Purchaser Parties, as the case 
may be, in accordance with their respective terms, except as such enforceabUity may be limited 
by applicable bankmptcy, insolvency or other sunilar Laws affecting or relating to enforcement 
of creditors' rights generally or general principles of equity. 

Section 4.4 No Conflict. Neither the execution of this Agreement or any Related 
Agreement by the Purchaser or any ofthe Related Purchaser Parties, as the case may be, nor the 
performance by the Purchaser or any ofthe Related Purchaser Parties, as the case may be, ofthe 
provisions of this Agreement or any Related Agreement will (a) violate the Governing 
Documents ofthe Purchaser or any ofthe Related Purchaser Parties, as the case may be, (b) 
violate any Law or Order by which the Purchaser or any ofthe Related Purchaser Parties is 
bound, or (c) result m a breach or violation of any provision of, constitute a defauh under, or 
give rise to any right of termination or cancellation under, or result in or permit an acceleration 
of, any material mdenture, mortgage, lease or other agreement or mstrument to which the 
Purchaser or any ofthe Related Purchaser Parties is a party or by which the Purchaser or any of 
the Related Purchaser Parties is boimd, except in the case ofthe foregoing clauses (b) and (c), as 
would not reasonably be expected to result in a Mat^al Adverse Effect on the Purchaser's or 
any ofthe Related Purchaser Parties' ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement or 
any ofthe Related Agreements to which it is a party. 

Section 4.5 Third Party Consents. Except as otherwise set fortii on Schedule 4.5. no 
material autiiorization, consent, waiver or approval of or filmg with or notification to any Tlurd 
Party (including a Governmental Body) is requked to be obtauied by the Purchaser or any ofthe 
Related Purchaser Parties, as the case may be, hi connection with the Purchaser's purchase ofthe 
Transfened Assets from the Seller and any ofthe Related Purchaser Parties, as the case may be, 
on the terms and conditions set forth m this Agreement and to permit the Purchaser or any of the 
Related Purchaser Parties, as the case may be, to perform its other obligations under this 
Agreement and any Related Agreements to which it is a party other than (a) the Purchaser 
Required Consents or (b) an authorization, consent, waiver, approval, filing or notification 
which, if not obtained or made, would not, individually or m tiie aggregate, prevent or materially 
delay the consummation ofthe Conterc^lated Transactions. 

Section 4.6 Litigation. There are no claims, actions, suits or Proceedings now 
pending or, to the Purchaser's Knowledge, threatened agamst or affecting the Purchaser or the 
Purchaser Related Parties, at law or m equity, or before or by any Governmental Body which 
may impah the ability ofthe Purchaser or the Purchaser Related Parties to perform this 
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Agreement or any Related Agreement or which questions the validity or propriety of this 
Agreement or any Related Agreement or of any action taken under this Agreement or Related 
Agreement. 

Section 4.7 Purchaser's Investigation. The Purchaser is an mformed and 
sophisticated purchaser of assets similar to the Transfened Assets and, in connection with the 
Contemplated Transactions, has sought the advice of experts who are experienced in the 
evaluation and purchase of assets sinular to the Transfened Assets. The Purchaser has 
undertaken such investigation ofthe Transfened Assets as it has deemed necessary to enable it to 
make an informed decision with respect to this Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions. 
The Purchaser acknowledges that the Seller has provided the Purchaser with such access to the 
personnel, properties, leased premises and records (including copies ofthe material Trading 
Contracts) ofthe Seller and relating to the Business as the Purchaser has requested, subject to the 
limitations set forth in Section 7.2. In entering into this Agreement, in purchasing the 
Transfened Assets and in consummating the Contemplated Transactions, the Purchaser has 
rehed solely upon its own investigation and the e?q)ress representations and warranties ofthe 
Seller set forth in Article III, and neither the Seller nor any of its officers, directors, shareholders, 
employees, Affiliates, agents or Representatives has made any representation or wananty as to 
the Seller, the Transfened Assets, or this Agreement, except as expressly set forth hi this 
Agreement. To the fullest extent permitted by Law, neither the Seller nor any of its officers, 
directors, shareholders, employees, Affihates, agents or Representatives shall have any liability 
to the Purchaser for any information made available to, or statements made to, the Purchaser (or 
any of its agents, officers, directors, employees, Affihates or Representatives), other than the 
representations and wananties of Seller expressly set forth in Article III and the express 
obUgation ofthe SeUer to indemnify the Purchaser followmg the Closing to the extent set forth m 
Article DC. 

Section 4.8 Ability to Perform. The Purchaser cunentiy has avaUable to it sufficient 
funding (in the form of Cash reflected on the Purchaser's balance sheet, under existing credit 
faciUties or otherwise) to enable the Purchaser to consummate the purchase ofthe Transferred 
Assets on the terms set forth in this Agreement, to pay all expenses to be mcuned by the 
Purchaser in connection with this Agreement and to perform all of its other obligations under this 
Agreement and any Related Agreement to which it is a party. 

Section 4.9 No Commissions, No commissions or brokers' or finders' fees are 
payable by, tiirough or on account of any acts ofthe Purchaser or its Representatives in 
connection with this Agreement or the Contemplated Transactions for which the SeUer could be 
liable or obhgated. 

Section 4.10 Purchaser's Knowledge. The Purchaser has informed Seller of any 
material mistakes or omissions on the Seller's Schedules of which the Purchaser is aware or any 
breach by the Seller of any ofthe representations and wananties set forth in Article HI, including 
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anything that the Purchaser is aware of that might give rise to a claim by the Purchaser against 
the SeUer under the terms of this Agreement or any Related Agreement. 

Section 4.11 No Other Representation or Warranty, Except for the representations 
and wananties contained in this Article IV, and as may be made by the Purchaser in any Related 
Agreement, neither the Purchaser nor any other Person acting on behalf of the Purchaser makes 
any representation or wananty, express or implied, regarding the Purchaser or the Contemplated 
Transactions. 

Section 4.12 Disclaimer. THE PURCHASER IS NOT LL\BLE OR BOUND BV ANY 
MANNER BY ANY EXPRESSED OR UVIPLIED WARRANTIES, GUARANTIES, 
PROMISES, STATEMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS OR INFORMATION PERTAINING TO 
THE TRANSFERRED ASSETS MADE OR FURNISHED BY ANY AGENT, EMPLOYEE, 
SERVANT OR OTHER PERSON REPRESENTING OR PURPORTBSIG TO REPRESENT 
THE PURCHASER, UNLESS THE WARRANTIES, GUARANTIES, PROMISES, 
STATEMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS OR INFORMATION ARE EXPRESSLY AND 
SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN THIS ARTICLE IV. 

ARTICLE V 
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE 

PURCHASER'S OBLIGATION TO CLOSE 

Section 5.1 Purchaser Closing Conditions. The obligation ofthe Purchaser to 
consummate the Contemplated Transactions is subject to the satisfaction, as ofthe Closing, of 
each ofthe foUowing conditions (any of which may be waived in writing by the Purchaser, in 
whole or in part): 

(a) aU agreements and covenants required by this Agreement to be complied 
with or performed by the Seller at or prior to the Closing shall have been comphed with or 
performed in all material respects; 

(b) all representations and warranties ofthe SeUer in this Agreement (i) that are 
qualified as to materiahty or Material Adverse Effect shaU be tme and conect, in all respects, as 
ofthe Closing or other time stated as if made at and as of that time and (ii) that are not so qualified 
shall be tme and conect, in all material respects, as ofthe Closing or other time stated as if made 
at and as of that time; 

(c) the Purchaser Required Consents shall have been obtained or occuned, as 
applicable; 

(d) tiie [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED] shall have been 
satisfied; 
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(e) no Order which prevents the consummation of any material aspect of the 
Contemplated Transactions shall have been issued and remain in effect (each Party agreeing to use 
its commerciaUy reasonable efforts to have any such Order Ufted) and no Law shall have been 
enacted which prohibits the consummation ofthe Contemplated Transactions; 

(f) the SeUer shall have dehvered to the Purchaser a certificate of a duly 
authorized officer ofthe SeUer, dated as ofthe Closing Date, certifying that, to the knowledge of 
such officer, the conditions set forth in Section 5.1(a) and (b) have been satisfied as ofthe Closing 
Date; 

(g) the SeUer Guarantee Agreement shall be in fitil force and effect and no 
material default or breach shall have occuned thereunder; 

(h) the Muror Confirm shaU be in fitil force and effect and no material default or 
breach by SeUer shall have occurred thereunder; 

(i) the Supply Trade Agreements shall each be in fiiU force and effect and no 
material default or breach by SeUer shall have occuned thereunder; and 

(j) the Purchaser shaU have received those documents to be delivered to the 
Purchaser in accordance with Section 2.5(a). 

ft 

ARTICLE VI 
CONDniONS PRECEDENT TO THE SELLER'S OBLIGATION TO CLOSE 

Section 6.1 Seller Closing Conditions. The obUgation ofthe Seller to consummate 
the Contemplated Transactions is subject to the satisfaction, as ofthe Closing, of each ofthe 
foUowing conditions (any of which may be waived in writing by the Seller in whole or in part): 

(a) aU agreements and covenants required by this Agreement to be complied 
with or performed by Purchaser at or prior to the Closing shaU have been complied with and 
performed in all material respects; 

(b) all representations and wananties of the Purchaser in this Agreement (i) that 
are quaUfied as to materiality or material adverse effect shall be true and conect, in aU respects, as 
ofthe Closmg or other time stated as if made at and as of that time and (ii) that are not so qualified 
shall be tme and conect, in all material respects, as ofthe Closing or other time stated as if made 
at and as of that time; 

(c) the Seller Required Consents described in items 1 and 2 on Schedule 3.5 
shall have been obtained or occuned, as applicable; 

(d) no Order which prevents the consummation of any material aspect ofthe 
Contemplated Transactions shall have been issued and remain in effect (each Party agrecmg to use 
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its commerciaUy reasonable efforts to have any such Order hfted) and no Law shall have been 
enacted which prohibits the consummation ofthe Contemplated Transactions; 

(e) the Purchaser shall have delivered to the Seller a certificate of a duly 
authorized officer ofthe Seller, dated as ofthe Closing Date, certifying that, to the knowledge of 
such officer, the conditions set forth in Section 6.1(a) and (b) have been satisfied as ofthe Closing 
Date; 

(f) the Purchaser Guarantee Agreement shall be in fiill force and effect and no 
material defauh or breach shaU have occuned thereunder; 

(g) the Minor Confirm shall be in full force and effect and no material default or 
breach by Purchaser shall have occuned thereunder; 

(h) the Supply Trade Agreements shall be in fiill force and effect and no material 
default or breach by Purchaser shall liave occuned thereunder; and 

(i) the SeUer shaU have received those documents to be delivered to the Seller in 
accordance with Section 2.5(b). 

ARTICLE Vn 
ADDITIONAL COVENANTS 

Section 7.1 Conduct of Business. 

(a) From and after the date hereof until the Effective Date (the "Interim Period"), 
the Seller shall not (and shaU cause its Affiliates not to), with respect to the Transfened Assets: 

(i) cease to provide any material services previously provided in support 
ofthe Business except in accordance with the Ordinary Course of Business; 

(ii) make any sale, transfer or other disposition of any Transferred Asset 
that is material to the conduct and operations ofthe Business other than any such sale, transfer, 
or other disposition that is made in tiie Ordinary Course of Busmess; 

(iii) with respect to the Seller and its controlled Affihates, create or permit 
"to be created any Encumbrance on any Transfened Asset, other than (i) in the Ordinary Course 
of Business to the extent that such Encumbrance does not materiaUy and adversely affect the 
Business, (ii) Permitted Encumbrances to the extent that such Encumbrance does not materially 
and adversely affect the Business, (iu) that which would not materiaUy and adversely affect such 
Transfened Asset after the Effective Date or (iv) as contemplated in this Agreement or any ofthe 
Related Agreements; 
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(iv) change any accounting methods, policies or practices appUcable to the 
Business; 

(v) amend, assign, terminate, cancel, or compromise any material claims 
ofthe Seller against any Coimterparty other than any such amendment, assigmnent, termination, 
cancellation or compromise made in the Ordinary Course of Business; 

(vi) make any material changes in the methods of operations of the 
Business except in the Ordinary Course of Business, including, without limitation, risk 
management practices and policies relating thereto; 

(vii) enter into any agreement that is material to the Transfened Assets or 
the conduct ofthe Business, except as in accordance with Schedule 7.1(b). that the Purchaser 
would assume, or for which the Purchaser would otherwise become hable, as part ofthe 
Contemplated Transaction, or terminate, amend, or otherwise modify in any material respect or 
waive any material rights under any Transfened Asset that is material to the conduct ofthe 
Business other than any such termination, amendment, or modification that is made in the 
Ordinary Course of Business; 

(viii) mcur any Indebtedness in connection with the Business other than in 
the Ordinary Course of Business; or 

(ix) take any action to do or engage (or commit to do or engage) in any of 
the foregoing. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the foregoing shaU not 
apply to the taking of any action (i) tiiat is required (uicluding by virtue of being an express 
condition to Closing) or explicitiy permitted by the terms of this Agreement or the Related 
Agreements, (ii) that is reasonably necessary in connection with the execution and implementation 
ofthe Contemplated Transactions, (iii) to which the Purchaser 0VGS its prior written consent (such 
consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), (iv) that is set forth in Schedule 7.1(b). or (v) 
that is required in order to comply with applicable Law or Orders. 

Section 7.2 Information and Access. From the date hereof until the last Transfer 
Date or Novation Date, as the case may be, to occur with respect to the Transfened Assets 
hereunder, the SeUer shaU (and shall cause its controlled Affiliates to): (a) permit the Purchaser 
and its Representatives to have reasonable access during nomiai busmess hours, and in a manner 
so as not to mterfere with the nomiai operations, to all premises, properties, personnel, 
accountants, books, records, contracts and documents of or pertaining to the Transfened Assets 
(subject to the Seller's right to redact information unrelated to the Transferred Assets); and (b) 
fimush the Purchaser and its Representatives with all such mformation and data concerning the 
Transfened Assets as the Purchaser or its Representatives reasonably may request in coimection 
with their review of information in accordance with clause (a), except to the extent that such 
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information is subject to attomey-client privilege or fimiishing any such information or data 
would create any Liability under applicable Law, including antitmst Law, or would violate any 
Law, Order or Contract applicable to the Seller or any of its Affiliates or by which any ofthe 
Transfened Assets are bound. The Purchaser wiU indemnify and hold harmless the SeUer and its 
Affiliates (separate and apart from the Purchaser's obligations in Article DC and without regard 
to any basket, cap or other conditions or limitations contained in Article IX) from and against 
any Losses caused to the SeUer or any of its Affiliates by the gross negligence or willftti 
misconduct ofthe Purchaser or its Representatives in coimection with such access. 
Notwithstanding anything in this Section 7.2 the Seller will not be required to pennit access to or 
furnish Tax Retums, books, records, contracts, documents, information or data relating to Taxes 
to the extent that such Taxes do not relate exclusively to the Transfened Assets, and the 
Purchaser will not have access to persoimel and medical records if such access could, in the 
Seller's good faith judgment, subject the Seller to risk of liability or otherwise violate any 
applicable Law. 

Section 7.3 Filings; CommerciaUy Reasonable Efforts to Close. 

(a) In addition to the obligations set forth in Sections 2,5,2.6,2.7,2.8 and 2.11 
from the date hereof untU the Closmg Date, the Seller and the Purchaser shall (and shall cause 
their respective Affiliates to, as applicable), as promptiy as practicable, (i) use commercially 
reasonable efforts to obtain all Consents of, make aU filings with and give aU notices to any 
Governmental Body or any other Person requhed m order to consummate the Contemplated 
Transactions, including aU Required Consents; (ii) provide such other information and 
communications to any such Governmental Body or other Persons as such Governmental Body or 
other Persons may reasonably request in connection with the activities listed in this Section 7.3; 
and (iii) reasonably cooperate with each other to perform their respective obligations under this 
Section 7.3. The Parties will provide prompt notification to each other when any such Consent, 
filing or notice refened to hi clauses (i) and (ii) above is obtained, taken, made or given, as 
applicable, will keep each other reasonably informed as to the progress of any such actions and 
will advise each other of any communications (and, unless precluded by any Law, provide copies 
of any such communications that are in writmg) with any Governmental Body or other Person 
regarding any ofthe Contemplated Transactions. In furtherance ofthe foregomg covenants, any 
filings with and notices to any Governmental Body or any otiier Person shall be submitted or 
made as soon as practicable, but in no event later than January 15,2010 for ftiings with FERC, 
and the Parties shall request e:q)edited treatment of such filings, shall promptiy make any 
appropriate or necessary subsequent or supplemental filings and shall cooperate in the preparation 
of such filmgs as is reasonably necessary and appropriate. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything else to the contrary herem, each of tiie SeUer and 
the Purchaser shall (and shall cause their respective Affiliates to, as applicable) use commercially 
reasonable efforts (except to the extent a different standard is expressly provided for m this 
Agreement) to consummate the Contemplated Transactions. 
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(c) The SeUer and the Purchaser shall each pay 50% of any consideration 
payable to Third Parties or filing, recordation or similar fees arising, in each case, in connection 
with the actions imdertaken piusuant to Section 2.7, 2.8, 2.9,2.11, or 7,6; provided, however, that 
the foregoing shall not apply to any Governmental Authorizations that are specifically required by 
Purchaser to consummate the Contemplated Transactions, 

(d) Subject to the other terms and conditions hereof, the Purchaser acknowledges 
that certam Consents reqiured in connection with certain Trading Contracts and/or Transfened 
Contracts may not have been obtained prior to the Closing Date, Except with respect to 
obligations ofthe SeUer set forth hi Sections 2.7,2,8, 2.9, and this 7.3, the Purchaser agrees that 
the Seller shaU otherwise not be subject to Liabihty hereunder for the failure to obtain any 
Consent or the termination of any Trading Contract or Transfened Contract as a result of the 
Contenq)lated Transactions. 

(e) Notwithstanding anĵ thing else herein to the contrary, the SeUer and the 
Purchaser agree that, m the event that any Consent or Governmental Authorization that is 
necessary or desirable to preserve for the Business any right or benefit under any Transfened 
Assets is not obtained prior to the Closing Date, the Seller will, subsequent to the Closing Date, 
use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain, or cooperate with the Purchaser ui obtaming, such 
Consent or Governmental Authorization as promptiy thereafter as practicable. 

Section 7.4 Retention of and Access to Records. 

(a) After the Closing Date, the SeUer shall (and shall cause its Affiliates to) 
provide the Purchaser and its R^resentatives reasonable access to such books and records, or 
portions thereof, relating in any manner to the Transfened Assets during nonnal business hours 
and on reasonable notice, for any reasonable business purpose, including to enable them to 
prepare financial statements or Tax Retums, deal with Tax audits or as they may otherwise 
reasonably request. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 7.4(a), the Seller and its Affiliates 
will only be required to deliver to the Purchaser the portions of such books and records that relate 
primarily to the Transfened Assets and may redact any statements or other information on the 
portions of such books and records that do not relate to the Transferred Assets (subject to the 
Seller's right to redact information unrelated to the Transfened Assets). Notwithstanding 
anything in this Section 7.4(a), the SeUer wiU not be required to pennit access to or furnish Tax 
Retums, books, records, contracts, documents, mformation or data relating to Taxes to the extent 
fiiat such Taxes do not relate exclusively to the Transferred Assets. Such access will be afforded 
during nomiai business hours by the Party in possession ofthe books and records upon receipt of 
reasonable advance notice, but (a) any review of books and records wUl be conducted in such a 
manner as not to mterfere unreasonably with the operation ofthe business of any Party or its 
Affiliates, (b) no Party wiU be required to take any action which would constitute a waiver ofthe 
attomey-chent privUege, and (c) no Party need supply the other Party with any infoimation which 
that Party is under a contractual or other legal obligation not to supply. 
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(b) After the seventh (7th) anniversary ofthe Closing Date (or such later date as 
may be required under Laws applicable to the Purchaser or Purchaser's document retention 
policies), the Seller or its Affiliates may elect to destroy any books and records described in 
Section 7.4(a). The Purchaser shaU, prior to the seventh (7th) anniversary ofthe Closing Date or 
thereafter during the effective term ofthe requkements under this Section 7.4(b), advise the SeUer 
as to the Law referred to in the immediately preceding sentence. 

Section 7.5 Further Assurances. 

(a) The Parties shaU (and shaU cause their respective Affiliates to, as applicable) 
cooperate reasonably with each other and with tiieir respective Representatives in connection with 
any steps required to be taken as part of their respective obligations under this Agreement, and, 
subject to any restrictions set forth in Section 7.2, shaU furnish upon request to each other such 
further mformation as the other Party may reasonably request for the purpose of carrymg out the 
intent of this Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions. 

(b) Subject to tiie terms and conditions of this Agreement, at any thne or from 
time to time after the date of this Agreement, at any Party's reasonable request and without fiuther 
consideration, each Party shall do all acts and things as may be necessary or desirable and are 
within its control to carry out the intent of this Agreement and the Reiated Agreements, including 
executing and delivering further instruments of sale, transfer, conveyance, assignment, novation, 
confimiation or other documents that may be reasonably reqmred and providing additional 
materials and information. 

(c) Both after the date hereof and after the Closing Date, each ofthe Seller and 
the Purchaser shall use commercially reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all 
appropriate action, do or cause to be done all things necessary, proper or advisable under 
appUcable Law, and to execute and deliver such documents and other papers, as may be necessary 
or appropriate to carry out the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to consummate the 
Contemplated Transactions, including obtaining any and aU outstanding Required Consents. 

(d) The Parties shaU (and shall cause theh respective Affiliates to, as explicable) 
use commerciaUy reasonable efforts in connection with the steps reqmred to be taken to effectuate 
any leasing anangements required hereby. 

Section 7.6 Transition^lans. 

(a) Within five (5) Business Days after the date of this Agreement, the Seller and 
the Purchaser shall form one or more joint transition teams to plan for and perform the various 
activities set forth m this Section 7.6, as well as other activities that are to be performed between 
the date of this Agreement and Closuig. 
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(b) With respect to each Financial Assurance relatmg to any Transfened Asset, 
the Purchaser shall use commercially reasonable efforts, with the assistance ofthe SeUer and its 
Affihates as reasonably requested by the Purchaser, to (i) cause lEG and its Affiliates to be 
released fitim any such Fmancial Assurances, including obtaining waivers and Consents from any 
applicable Persons to replace any such Financial Assurances with appropriate Financial 
Assurances from the Purchaser and/or Purchaser Parent and (ii) to perform the actions required by 
Section 2.8(b). 

Section 7.7 Confidentiality. 

(a) Unless and untU the Contemplated Transactions have been consummated, the 
Purchaser and SeUer wiU abide by the Confidentiahty Agreement. If the Contemplated 
Transactions are consummated, the Confidentiality Agreement wiU no longer apply to 
Confidential Infonnation related solely to the Transferred Assets, but wiU continue in fiill force 
and effect with respect to aU other Confidential Information. 

(b) From and after the Closing, the SeUer shall treat as confidential and shall 
safeguard any and aU information, knowledge and data relatii^ to the Transfened Assets m its 
possession by using the same degree of care, but no less than a reasonable standard of care, to 
prevent the unauthorized use, dissemination or disclosure of such information, knowledge and 
data as the Seller used with respect thereto prior to the date hereof, it being understood that the 
SeUer may disclose such infonnation (i) to the extent required to comply with Law, the mles of 
any exchange or pursuant to regulatory request; provided, that the SeUer shall provide as much 
prior written notice to the Purchaser of such disclosure as is practical under the circumstances and 
shall seek to limit such disclosure, and (ii) to its representatives and advisors to the extent that 
such representatives and advisors have a reasonable basis to know such information in connection 
with any services or work to be performed for or on behalf ofthe SeUer. 

(c) From and after the Closing, the Purchaser shall treat as confidential and shall 
safeguard any and all mformation, knowledge or data mcluded in any information relating to the 
business ofthe Seller and its Affihates and the Transfened Assets that becomes known to the 
Purchaser as a result ofthe Contemplated Transactions except as otiierwise agreed to by the SeUer 
in writing by using the same degree of care, but no less than a reasonable standard of care, to 
prevent the unauthorized use, dissemination or disclosure of such mformation, knowledge and 
data as the Purchaser uses with respect to its own information, knowledge and data, it being 
understood that the Purchaser may disclose such information (i) to the extent required to comply 
with Law, the rules of any exchange or pursuant to regulatory request; provided, that the 
Purchaser shall provide as much prior written notice to the SeUer of such disclosure as is practical 
under the circumstances and shall seek to limit such disclosure, and (ii) to its representatives and 
advisors to the extent that such representatives and advisors have a reasonable basis to know such 
information in coimection with any services or work to be performed for or on behalf of the 
Purchaser. 
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(d) The Purchaser and the SeUer acknowledge that the confidentiality obligations 
set forth in this Section 7.7 shall not extend to mformation, knowledge and data that is publicly 
available or becomes publicly available through no act or omission ofthe party owing a duty of 
confidentiality, or is or becomes available on a non-confidential basis from a source other than the 
party owing a duty of confidentiahty so long as such source is not known by such party to be 
bound by a confidentiahty agreement with, or other obhgations of secrecy to, the other party, 

(e) In the event of a breach of the obligations hereunder by the Purchaser or the 
Seller, the other party, in addition to all other avaUable remedies, shall be entitied to injunctive 
relief to enforce the provisions of this Section 7.7 in any court of competent jurisdiction. 

Section 7.8 Related Agreements, Each ofthe Seller and the Purchaser agrees that it 
shall, and shall cause their respective Affiliates to, as applicable, enter into and deliver, at or 
prior to the Minor Effective Date or the Closing Date, as applicable, each ofthe Related 
Agreements, to which it or its Affihates is intended to be a party. 

Section 7.9 Non-Competition 

(a) Each ofthe SeUer and lEG agrees that for a period of thirty-six (36) calendar 
months beghming at the Closing (the "Restricted Period"), none ofthe SeUer, lEG or any of their 
Affiliates, whether or not a party to this Agreement or any Related Agreement, shall offer, 
participate through ownership or engage, eitiier directly or indirectly, in the sale or marketing of 
wholesale electricity in the United States, or otherwise operate, control or manage, either directiy 
or indirectiy, any business substantially sinular to the Business (the "Restricted Business"). 

(b) Notwithstandmg the foregoing, this Section 7,9 shall not operate to prevent 
or restrict: 

(i) the regulated public utUity Affiliates of each ofthe Seller and lEG 
that are identified on Schedule 7.9: 

(ii) the Seller, lEG or their Affihates from managuig, servicing, 
operating, using or otherwise transacting busuiess with any ofthe Excluded Assets or Excluded 
Transactions; 

(iii) any Person or Persons acquiring any ofthe Seller, lEG or their 
respective Affiliates by merger, consolidation, amalgamation, share purchase or purchase of 
substantially all ofthe assets ofthe Seller, lEG or any such Affihates where such Person was not, 
prior to such acquisition, an Affiliate ofthe SeUer or lEG, as the case may be; 

(iv) the Seller, lEG and theh Affiliates fix)m purchasing or seUing 
wholesale electricity, or related hedge positions, in cormection with (A) the generation facilities 
owned by the SeUer, lEG or their Affihates, and (B) the retained retail electricity business 
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encompassed by the Excluded Assets; provided, that the primary purpose ofthe Seller, lEG or 
any of their Affiliates in conducting such activity is not to compete with the Restricted Business; 

(v) the direct or indirect acquisition by the SeUer, lEG or any of their 
Affiliates (through acquisition, merger or other strategic transaction) of an interest in any Person 
that engages m the Restricted Business; provided, that the primary purpose ofthe Seller, lEG or 
any of their Affihates in conducting such activity is not to complete with the Restricted Business; 
and 

(c) The Restricted Period shaU be extended by the length of any period during 
which the SeUer, lEG or its Affiliates are in breach ofthe terms of this Section 7.9. 

(d) As a separate and independent covenant of each ofthe Seller and lEG, for a 
period of one (I) year foUowing the Effective Date, each ofthe Seller and lEG shall, and shall 
cause their respective Affiliates not to, (i) employ or receive or accept the performance of services 
by any Purchaser Key Employee, or (ii) sohcit for employment any Purchaser Key Employee; 
provided, that clause (i) or (u) shaU not limit the Seller's, lEG's or their respective Affiliates' 
abihty to engage in general solicitations of employment not targeted at Purchaser Key Employees 
or employing an individual who contacts Seller, lEG or their respective Affihates on his or her 
own initiative. 

(e) Each ofthe Seller and lEG acknowledges and agrees that its obligations set 
forth in this Section 7.9 are an essential element of this Agreement and that, but for the agreement 
ofthe Seller and lEG in this Section 7.9, the Purchaser would not have entered into this 
Agreement. Each ofthe SeUer, lEG and the Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that the 
undertakmgs ofthe Seller and lEG in this Section 7.9 constitute an independent covenant ofthe 
Seller and lEG and shall not be affected by the performance or nonperformance by any Party 
hereto of any other term or provision of this Agreement. Each of the Seller, lEG and the 
Purchaser acknowledges that it has consulted with its own counsel with regard to this Section 7.9 
and, after such consultation, agrees that the obligations ofthe Seller and lEG set forth in this 
Section 7.9 are reasonable and proper, have been negotiated fiilly and fairly and represent an 
agreement based on the totaUty ofthe Contemplated Transactions. 

Section 7.10 Notice of Material Developments. Prior to the Closing Date, the 
Purchaser and the Seller shaU use commercially reasonable efforts to communicate promptly 
with each other about material events, circumstances, facts and oceunences relating to the 
Transfened Assets and arising subsequent to the date hereof; provided, however, that no such 
notification shaU otherwise affect in any maimer the liabUity of such party hereunder, includuig 
with respect to indemnification. 

Section 7.11 The Seller's Employees. 
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(a) No later than thirty (30) Business Days prior to the Closing, the Purchaser 
wiU give a Qualifying Offer of employment to each ofthe employees ofthe Seller that Purchaser 
identifies on a Schedule to be provided to Seller by Purchaser not later than the Mhror Effective 
Date; provided, however, that each such Qualifying Offer shall be subject to the customary hiring 
policies and procedures ofthe Purchaser, including, but not limited to, appropriate screemng 
procedures, as applicable. Each such person who becomes employed by tiie Purchaser pursuant 
to this Section 7.11 is refened to herem as a "Transfened Employee". For purposes hereof, a 
"Ouahfving Offer" means an offer that provides for employment with the Purchaser or one of its 
Affiliates commencing on the Closing Date. AU of such Qualifying Offers shall be made in 
accordance with applicable Laws, and shall remain open for a period expiribg no earlier than five 
(5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date. Any such offer which is accepted before it expires 
shaU thereafter be inevocable, except for good cause. FoUowing acceptance of such offers, Ihe 
Purchaser will provide written notice thereof to the Seller. 

(b) The Purchaser, for a period of one (1) year following the Effective Date, 
shall, and shall cause its Affihates not to, (i) employ or receive or accept the performance of 
services by any employee ofthe SeUer or any of its Affiliates (other than the Transfened 
Employees), or (ii) solicit for employment any employee ofthe Seller or any of its Affiliates; 
provided, that clause (i) or (ii) shall not Ihnit the Purchasers or it Affiliates' ability to engage in 
genera] solicitations of employment not targeted at such employees ofthe Seller or any of its 
Afjfiliates or employing an individual who contacts the Purchaser or its Affiliates on his or her 
own initiative. 

ARTICLE V m 
TERMINATION 

Section 8.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated prior to the Closing 
solely as follows: 

(a) by mutual written consent ofthe Seller and the Purchaser; 

(b) [CONFIDENTL^L TREATMENT REQUESTED] by tiie SeUer or tiie 
Purchaser by not less [CONFIDENTLY. TREATMENT REQUESTED] prior written notice to 
the otiier Party (if the terminating Party is not, at such time, in material breach of this Agreement 
which breach has caused the Closing not to occur prior to such date), if the Closing has not 
occuned on or before the date such notice is given; or 

(c) if the Seller or the Purchaser fails in any material respect to perform or 
comply with any covenant hereunder or under any Related Agreement to be performed or 
comphed with on or prior to the Closing Date or any rqiresentation or wananty made or deemed 
made by the Seller or the Purchaser proves to be inconect or misleading in any material respect 
when made or deemed made and as a result thereof the non-defaulting Party would not under the 
terms of this Agreement be obligated to consummate the Closii^, then, in each case, upon 
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[CONFD3ENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED] written notice from the non-defaultmg Party 
(unless tiie defaultmg Party shaU have cured, withm such [CONFIDENTL^L TREATMENT 
REQUESTED] period, the condition giving rise to such notice in a manner that would cause the 
conditions to Closing of this Agreement to be satisfied, in which case, this Agreement shall 
continue in effect notwithstanding any such notice or,); or 

(d) by either Party immediately upon the occunence of an Insolvency Event with 
respect to the other Party or the Person guaranteeing the obligations of such Party; or 

(e) by the Purchaser if on any date the sum of all payments made pursuant to 
Section 2.6 either to tiie Purchaser or to tiie Seller aggregate to (i) $ [CONFIDENTIAL 
TREATMENT REQUESTED] (m each mstance, a "Misbookmg Trigger Date") upon written 
notice to tiie SeUer witiun tiie earlier [CONFIDENTL\L TREATMENT REQUESTED] followmg 
tiie relevant Misbookmg Trigger Date and [CONFIDENTL\L TREATMENT REQUESTED], 

Section S2 Termination Fee; Sole and Exclusive Remedy. In the event this 
Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 8.1(c) or (d), in addition to any amounts payable by 
either Party pursuant to Sections 2,9,2.10 and 2,11, the Defaulting Party with respect to such 
tennination shaU pay to the Non-Defaulting Party, within five (5) Business Days ofthe date of 
termination of this Agreement, the Termination Fee by wire transfer in immediately available 
funds to the accoimt or accounts designated by the Non-Defaulting Party. Each ofthe SeUer and 
the Purchase hereby expressly acknowledge, agree and stipulate that (i) the Termination Fee 
represents compensation for costs and losses associated with the termination of this Agreement 
and the failure to consummate the Contemplated Transactions, which costs and losses are 
difficult or knpossible to ascertain with any certainty, including costs and losses relating, but not 
linuted, to hedguig costs, attomeys fees, other professional services fees, costs of capital and 
opportunity costs related to the Transfened Assets, but particularly to the Transfened Contracts 
and Other Assets, (ii) the amount ofthe Termination Fee, in addition to any amounts payable by 
either Party pursuant to Sections 2.9,2.10 and 2.11, constitutes a reasonable approximation of 
the costs and losses to the Non-Defaulting Party as a result of tennination of this Agreement and 
the failure to consummate the Contemplated Transactions, (iii) it hereby waives its right to 
contest the payment or amount the Termination Fee, including on the grounds that the payment 
ofthe Tennination Fee constitutes a penalty or otherwise, (iv) except m the case of fraud, willful 
breach or wiUfUl misconduct, the payment ofthe Termination Fee by the Defaulting Party 
constitutes, together with any amounts payable by either Party pursuant to Sections 2.9,2,10 and 
2.11, the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Non-Defaulting Party for any breach or 
default under tiiis Agreement or any Related Agreement, For the avoidance of doubt, the remedy 
of specific performance set forth in Section 10.11 shaU not be avaUable to any Party upon 
termination of this Agreement and payment ofthe Termination Fee in accordance with this 
Section 8.2. 

Section 8.3 Effect of Termination. 
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(a) In the event this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 8.1, aU further 
obligations ofthe Parties hereunder shaU terminate and this Agreement shaU become nuU and void 
and of no fiirther force and effect, except with respect to Section 2.9(b), Section 2.10(b), Section 
2.11 (b), Section 8.2, this Section 8.3 and Article X and except that notiiir^ in this Section 8.3 
shall relieve any Party from Uability for any breach of this Agreement that arose prior to such 
termination, for which habihty the provisions of Article DC shall remain in effect in accordance 
with the provisions and limitations of such Article. Such termination shall not relieve any Party of 
any Liabihty for any intentional breach of this Agreement or fiaud prior to such termination. The 
provisions ofthe Confidentiality Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement for a 
period of two (2) years from the date of termmation. 

(b) Any payments to be made between the Parties pursuant to (i) this Agreement, 
mcluding any payments to be made pursuant to Sections 2,9(b), 2,10(c), 2,11(b), and 8.2, (ii) the 
Guarantee Agreements, (in) the Supply Trade Agreements, (iv) the Mirror Confirm, and (v) the 
MCP-IES ISDA Master Agreement as it relates to Section 2.16, may be made on a net basis, with 
the Party owing the greater amount pajong to the Party owing the lesser amount the difference 
between such amounts; provided, in calculating any such payment on a net basis, such calculation 
shall be performed by, first, calculating the payments to be made on a net basis with respect to 
each agreement individually and, second, by calculating the payment to be made on a net basis 
among all the foregoing agreements coUectively; provided, however, that the foregoing provision 
shall not apply to any rights, claims or pajnnents made, owing or relating to the terms and 
conditions set forth ui Article IX. 

ARTICLE IX 
INDEMNinCATION 

Section 9.1 Survival. 

(a) AU covenants and other agreements in this Agreement to be performed after 
the Closing shall survive the Closuig until so performed. All representations and wananties in 
this Agreement shall survive the Closmg for a period of eighteen (18) months after the Closing 
Date; provided- however, that the representations and wananties set forth in Sections 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 
3.6 and 3.8 shall survive the Closing for a period of three (3) years after the Closmg Date. 

(b) Subject to Section 9.1(c), the SeUer shaU not be hable for the exacerbation of 
any Losses with respect to any claim, action or Proceeding in cormection with this Agreement 
unless the Seller receives from the Purchaser written notice (i) as soon as reasonably practicable 
after the Purchaser becomes aware of such claim, action or Proceeding, and (ii) containing 
specific details ofthe claim, action or Proceeding, including the Purchaser's estimate, or for a 
claim, action or Proceeding with respect to Taxes, the Purchaser's estimate resulting fix)m its best 
efforts, on a without prejudice basis, in each case, ofthe amoimt at issue with respect to such the 
claim, action or Proceeding. 
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(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Seller shaU not be liable 
for any Losses with respect to any claim, action or Proceeding in connection with this Agreement 
unless the Seller receives fix)m the Purchaser written notice prior to the expiration ofthe 
apphcable survival period set forth in Section 9.1(a) with respect to any claim for indemnification 
pursuant to Section 9.2(a). 

Section 9.2 Indemnification by SeUer 

From and after the Closing Date, the Seller shall indemnify and hold the Purchaser and 
each of its Affihates, directors, shareholders, officers and employees (collectively, the 
"Purchaser Group"), harmless from and agamst Losses inq)osed upon or incuned by any of them 
which arise out of: 

(a) any misrepresentation or inaccuracy of a representation or wananty made by 
the SeUer in this Agreement, pursuant to any certificate delivered by the Seller pursuant hereto or 
as may be made by the SeUer m any Related Agreements; 

(b) any breach or non-fulfilhnent of any covenant or agreement on the part of the 
Seller or its Affihates in this Agreement or any Related Agreement to which it is a party, as the 
case may be; 

• (c) any (A) Liabilities for Successor Liabihty Taxes or any other Taxes with 
respect to any ofthe Transfened Assets or the Business, in each case related to a Tax period (or 
portion of any period) which ends, with respect to each Transfened Asset or the Business, on or 
before the earlier of (i) the date that such Transferred Asset or the Business is novated (if 
applicable), and (ii) the date that such Transfened Asset or the Business is treated by the Law 
imposing such Taxes as transfened from the Seller to the Purchaser, or (B) habUity ofthe SeUer 
for Transfer Taxes pursuant to Section 10.3(a); and 

(d) the Excluded Assets, the Excluded Transactions and the Excluded Liabilities, 

Section 9.3 Indemnification by Purchaser. From and after the Closii^ Date, the 
Purchaser shall mdemnify and hold the Seller and each of its Affihates, directors, shareholders, 
officers and employees (the "Seller (Sroup"). harmless fix)m and against Losses imposed upon or 
kicuned by any of them which arise out of 

(a) any misrepresentation or inaccuracy of a representation or warranty made by 
the Purchaser in this Agreement, pursuant to any certificate dehvered by the Purchaser pursuant 
hereto or as may be made by the Seller in any Related Agreements; 

(b) any breach or non-fulfillment of any covenant or agreement on the part of the 
Purchaser in this Agreement; 
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(c) any (A) Liabihties for any Taxes with respect to the Transfened Assets or the 
Business, in each case related to a Tax period (or portion of any period) which begins, with 
respect to each Transfened Asset or the Business, after the earlier of (i) the date that such 
Transfened Asset or the Business is novated (if applicable), and (ii) the date that such Transfened 
Asset or the Business is treated by the Law imposing such Taxes as transfened fix)m the Seller to 
the Purchaser, or (B) liability ofthe Purchaser for Transfer Taxes pursuant to Section 10.3(a); or 

(d) the ownership, possession, use, mamtenance, admmistration, or operation of 
the Transfened Assets after the Closing; and 

(e) the Assumed Liabilities, 

Section 9.4 Indemnification Procedures. 

(a) Asserting a Claim. Without limiting the provisions of Section 9.1, if a Party 
(an "Indemnified Party") wishes to assert a claim for indemnification against the other Party (the 
"Indemnifiing Party"), the Indemnified Party shaU give notice to the Indemnifying Party, setting 
forth with particularity the basis for the claim, promptiy after the Indemnified Party becomes 
aware of any fact, condition, or event which gives rise to a Claim for which indenmification may 
be sought under this Article DC, Failure to notify the Indemnifying Party shall not relieve the 
Indemnifying Party of liabUity it may have to the Indemnified Party, except to the extent that the 
Indemnifying Party has been materially prejudiced by such faUure and except that nothing in this 
Agreement shall be deemed to extend the time limits set forth in Section 9.1. Each Indemnified 
Party shall use commerciaUy reasonable efforts to mitigate Losses for which it seeks 
indemnification under this Article IX. 

(b) Third Partv Claims. If any lawsmt, enforcement action, demand or claim is 
brought or made by any other Person (a "Third Partv Clahn") against an Indemnified Party is the 
basis for an indemnification claim pursuant to Section 9,2 or Section 9.3, the Indemnifying Party 
shaU be entitled, if it so elects, to take control ofthe defense and investigation ofthe Third Party 
Clahn and to employ and engage attorneys of its own choice reasonably acceptable to the 
Indemnified Party to handle and defend the Thhd Party Claim, at the Indemnifying Party's cost, 
risk and expense. Any election by the Indemnifying Party to take control ofthe defense and 
investigation of a Third Party Claim shaU not be deemed a waiver ofthe Indemnifying Party's 
right to determine at a later date that the Third Party Claim is not entitled to indemnification under 
this Agreement, in which case Indemnifying Party may, in the exercise of its sole discretion, 
detemiine not to continue to defend that Third Party Claim and any action taken by the 
Indemnifying Party in cormection with that determination shall be undertaken in a manner so as 
not to materiaUy prejudice the defense or the rights ofthe Indemnified Party. The Indemnified 
Party shall cooperate with the Indemnifying Party so as to minimize the risk of any such 
prejudice. The Indemnified Party shaU cooperate in all reasonable respects with the Indemnifying 
Party and such attomeys in the mvestigation, trial and defense of any Third Party Claim and any 
resulting appeal, which shall include: (a) furnishing such records, information and testimony, and 
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attending such conferences, discovery proceedings, hearings, trials and appeals, as reasonably 
may be requested in connection with the Third Party Claun, (b) affording access during nonnal 
busmess hours to the Indemnifying Party to, and reasonable retention by the Indenmified Party of, 
records and information which are reasonably relevant to the Third Party Claim, and (c) making 
its employees available on a mutually convenient basis to provide additional information and 
explanation of any material provided to the Indemnifying Party under this Agreement. The 
Indemnified Party nevertheless may, at its own cost, participate in the investigation, trial and 
defense of such Third Party Claim or any resultii^ appeal. 

Section 9.5 Settiement or Compromise of Third Party Action; Failure to Assume 
Defense, ff the Indemnifying Party has assumed control ofthe defense of a Third Party Claim 
pursuant to Section 9.4, the Indemnifying Party may consent to a settlement or compromise of, 
or the entry of any monetary judgment arising fix)m the Third Party Claim without the prior 
consent ofthe Indemnified Party if, and only if, the proposed settlement, compromise or entry (a) 
does not contain an admission of guilt or wrongdoing on the part ofthe Indemnified Party, and 
(b) does not provide for any remedy or sanction against the Indemnified Party other than the 
payment of money which the Indemnifying Party agrees to pay and does pay. If the 
Indemnifymg Party does not assume the defense ofthe Third Party Claim in accordance with 
Section 9.4 within twenty (20) Business Days after the receipt of notice ofthe Third Party Claim, 
the Indemnified Party may, at the Indemnifying Party's expense, defend the Third Party Claim, 
but may settle or compromise the Third Party Clahn only with the consent ofthe Indemnifyuig 
Party. 

Section 9.6 Adjustment to Purchase Price. Amounts paid with respect to 
indemnification pursuant to Section 9.2(a) or Section 9.3(a) shaU be treated as an adjustment to 
the Purchase Price. 

Section 9.7 General Limitations. 

(a) Basket. Except in the case of (i) fraud, willful breach or willful misconduct, 
(ii) Liability for Taxes that are the responsibUity ofthe SeUer, and (ui) as provided in Section 
10.11, the SeUer shall not be liable to any member ofthe Purchaser Ghoup under Section 9.2(a), 
and the Purchaser shaU not be liable to any member ofthe Seller Grroup under Section 9.3(a) 
imless and untU the aggregate cumulative amount of aU such Losses exceeds one miUion dollars 
($1,000,000.00), and then shall be hable only to the extent of such excess; provided, however, that 
the limitation pursuant to this Section 9.7(a) shall not apply (i) to any adjustment to the Purchase 
Price occurring pursuant to the terms and provisions of Article II, mcluding without limitation 
with respect to any Misbooking and Identified Transactions, or (ii) to any claim for 
indemnification arising from a breach of Section 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 or 3.6. 

(b) Cap. Except in the case of (i) fraud, wUlfiti breach or wiUful misconduct, (ii) 
Liability for Taxes that are the responsibility ofthe Seller, and (in) as provided in Section 10.11, 
m no event shall the aggregate cumulative amoimt ofthe SeUer's Liabihties under Section 9.2(a), 
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or the Purchaser's Liabilities under Section 9.3(a), exceed twenty-five million doUars 
($25,000,000.00); provided, however, that the limitation pursuant to this Section 9.7(b) shall not 
^ply (i) to any adjustment to the Purchase Price occurring pursuant to the terms and provisions of 
Article II, including without limitation with respect to any Misbookmg and Identified 
Transactions, or (ii) to any claim for indemnification arising fix»m a breach of Section 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 
3.6, 3.9, 3,12 or 3,13. 

(c) Lhnitation. NOTWITHSTANDD^G ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY 
ELSEWHERE IN THIS AGREEMENT OR PROVDDED FOR UNDER ANY APPLICABLE 
LAW, NO PARTY WD.L, IN ANY EVENT, BE LIABLE, EITHER IN CONTRACT OR IN 
TORT, FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, DSTCIDENTAL, U^UDIRECT, SPECIAL, OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES, DSfCLUDÊ JG LOSS OF FUTURE REVENUE, INCOME, OR PROFITS, 
DUVraSFUTION OF VALUE, OR LOSS OF BUSINESS REPUTATION OR OPPORTUNITY, 
RELATING TO THE BREACH OR ALLEGED BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT OR 
OTHERWISE, WHETHER OR NOT THE POSSIBE.ITY OF SUCH DAMAGES HAS BEEN 
DISCLOSED IN ADVANCE OR COULD HAVE BEEN REASONABLY FORESEEN ("Non-
Reimbursable Damages"), 

(d) CoUateral Sources. In calculating the amount of Losses for which an 
Indenmified Party is entitied to indemnification under Section 9.2(a) or Section 9.3(a), as 
apphcable, the amount of Losses shaU be reduced by (a) any insurance proceeds actually received 
by the Indemnified Party fiDm an insurance carrier with respect to those Losses, provided that if 
the Indemnified Party fails to either diligently pursue any such insurance proceeds reasonably 
available to it or assign a valid right to the Indemnifying Party to pursue such insurance proceeds, 
the Indenmifying Party's obligation shall be reduced by the amount of insiu'ance proceeds that 
would have been reasonably available to and obtainable by the Indemnified Party, (b) any 
amounts actually received by the Indemnified Party from Third Parties with respect to Losses 
pursuant to mdemnification, wananty or other sunilar rights, provided that if the Indemnified 
Party fails to diUgently pursue such rights, the Indemnifying Party's obligation shaU be reduced 
by the amounts available to the Indemnified Party, and (c) Tax benefits. If any Losses for which 
indemnification is provided under Section 9.2(a) or Section 9.3(a), as applicable, subsequentiy are 
reduced by any insurance payment or recovery from a Third Party or loss of Tax benefits, the 
Indemnified Party promptiy shall remit the amoimt of such reduction to the Indemnifyuig Party. 

(e) Duty to Mitigate Losses. Each Indemnified person shall use its 
commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate any indernnifiable Losses. 

(f) Additional Limitations, Neither Indenmifying Party shaU have any 
indemnification obligations under this Article DC to the extent that, as a result of any gross 
neghgence or wiUful misconduct of an Indemnified Party after the Closing Date, the amount of 
Losses subject to indenmification by such Indemnifying Party is exacerbated. 
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Section 9.8 Exclusive Remedies. Except in the case of fraud, willfiti breach and 
willful misconduct, and except as provided in Section 10.11, the SeUer and the Purchaser 
acknowledge and agree that, fiiDm and after the Closing, the sole and exclusive remedy for any 
breach or inaccuracy, or alleged breach or inaccuracy, of any representation or warranty in this 
Agreement, any certificate dehvered pursuant hereto, as the case may be, or any Related 
Agreement or any covenant or agreement to be performed under this Agreement or any Related 
Agreement on or prior to the Closing Date, wiU be indemnification in accordance with this 
Article IX. In furtherance ofthe foregoing, the Seller and the Purchaser waive, to the fullest 
extent pemiitted by apphcable Law, any and all other rights, claims, and causes of action 
(including rights of contributions, if any) that may be based upon, arise out of, or relate to this 
Agreement or any such certificate or Related Agreement, or the negotiation, execution, or 
performance of this Agreement or any Related Agreement (mcluding any tort or breach of 
contract claim or cause of action based upon, arising out of, or related to any representation or 
wananty made m or in connection with this Agreement or any Related Agreement or as an 
inducement to enter into this Agreement or any Related Agreement), known or unknown, 
foreseen or unforeseen, which exist or may arise in the future, that it may have against the other 
arising under or based upon any Law (including any such Law under or relating to environmental 
matters), common law, or otherwise. 

Section 9.9 Non-Recourse. No past, present or future director, officer, employee, 
incorporator, member, partner, stockholder, affihate, agent or Representative ofthe Seller or the 
Purchaser, respectively, or their respective Affiliates, shall have any Liability for any obligations 
or Liabihties of Seller under this Agreement or the other documents dehvered by the SeUer or the 
Purchaser in connection with this Agreement, of or for any claim based on, in respect of, or by 
reason of, the Contemplated Transactions. 

ARTICLE X 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 10.1 Expenses, Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement 
(mcluding m Section 7,3(c)), whether or not the Contemplated Transactions are consummated, 
the Parties shall bear their own costs and expenses in cormection with the preparation, 
negotiation and execution of this Agreement and the Related Agreements and the consummation 
ofthe Contemplated Transactions. 

Section 10.2 Public Announcements and Confidentiality. None ofthe Parties nor 
their respective Subsidiaries or Affiliates, as the case may be, shall issue or cause the pubhcation 
of this Agreement, any Related Agreement or any press release or other public aimouncement or 
communication with respect to the Contemplated Transactions without the prior written consent 
ofthe other Parties hereto, which consent shall not be unreasonably witiiheld or withdrawn, 
except to the extent a Party's counsel deems necessary or advisable in order to comply with any 
Law or the regulations or policies of any securities exchange or otiier similar regulatory body (in 
which case the disclosing Party shaU give the other Parties notice as is reasonably practicable of 
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any required disclosure, shall limit such disclosure to the information requhed to comply with 
such Law or regulations, and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to accommodate any 
suggested changes to such disclosure from the other Parties to the extent reasonably practicable). 

Section 10.3 Tax Matters. 

(a) Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the 
Purchaser and the Seller shaU each pay one-half of all Transfer Taxes incuned in coimection with 
this Agreement and the Contemplated Transactions. The Seller and the Purchaser shaU cooperate 
in tunely making aU filings, Tax Retums, reports and forms as may be requhed to comply with the 
provisions of Tax Laws. For purposes of this Agreement, "Transfer Taxes" shall mean all 
transfer, sales and use, stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax, documentary, registration and other 
such taxes (including all applicable real estate transfer taxes). 

(b) Within sixty (60) days ofthe Closing Date, the Seller shall prepare a draft 
aUocation ofthe consideration paid for the Transfened Assets among the Transferred Assets, 
which aUocation wiU also include a determination as to the total gross value of all Transfened 
Assets that have a positive value, and a determination as to the total gross value of aU Transfened 
Assets that have a negative value (the "Draft AUocation"). The Purchaser shall have sixty 
(60) days after receipt ofthe Draft Allocation to object m writing to the Draft Allocation. If the 
Purchaser does not object to the Draft Allocation within such 60-day period, the Draft Allocation 
shall become final (the "Fmal Allocation"). If the Purchaser objects to tlie Draft Allocation in 
writing within such 60-day period, the Seller and the Purchaser shall attempt m good faith to 
resolve the disputed items in the Draft Allocation, and any such resolution shaU constitute the 
Fmal AUocation, If, within thfrty (30) days after the Purchaser has objected in writing to the Draft 
Allocation, the Parties have not resolved all disputed items with respect to the Draft AUocation, 
the remaining disputed items shall be resolved by a nationaUy recognized accounting firm, and its 
resolution sMll constitute the Final Allocation. The Seller and the Purchaser (1) shall be bound 
by the Fmal Allocation for purposes of determining any and all consequences with respect to 
Taxes ofthe Transfened Assets, (2) shaU prepare and file all Tax Retums to be fUed with any 
taxing authority in a manner consistent with the Final Allocation, and (3) shall take no position 
inconsistent with the Final Allocation in any Tax Retum, in any discussion with or Proceeding 
before any taxing authority, or otherwise, 

(c) To the extent necessary to determine the habihty for Taxes for a portion of a 
taxable year or period that begins before and ends after the Closing Date, the determination ofthe 
Taxes for the portion ofthe year or period ending on, and the portion ofthe year or period 
beginning after, the Closing Date shall be determined by assuming that the taxable year or period 
ended as ofthe close of bushiess on the Closing Date, except that those annual property taxes and 
exemptions, aUowances or deductions that are calculated on an aimual basis shall be prorated on a 
time basis. 
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Section 10.4 Notices. All notices, Consents, waivers and other communications 
required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given to a Party 
when (a) delivered to the appropriate address by hand or by nationally recognized overnight 
courier service (costs prepaid), (b) sent by facsimile or e-maU with confirmation of transmission 
by the transmitting equipment or (c) received or rejected by the addressee, if sent by certified 
mail, retum receipt requested, hi each case to the foUowing addresses, facsimile numbers or 
e-mail addresses and marked to the attention ofthe person (by name or title) designated below 
(or to such other address, facsimile number, e-mail address or person as a Party may designate by 
notice to the other Parties): 

If to the SeUer: 

Integrys Energy Services, Inc. 
1716 Lawrence Drive 
De Pere, WI 54115 
Attention: Darnel J. Verbanac, COO 
Facsmiile: (920) 617-6070 

With copies to: 

Foley & Lardner LLP 
777 East Wisconsin Avenue 
Milwaukee, WI 53202 
Attention: Allen W. Williams, Jr, 

Jason W, AUen 
Facshnile: (414) 297-4900 

If to the Purchaser: 

Macquarie Cook Power Inc. 
One Allen Center 
500 DaUas Street, Suite 3100 
Houston, TX 77002 
Attention: Benjamin Preston 
Telephone: +1-713-275-6142 
FacsunUe: +1-713-275-6115 

With a copy to: 

Macquarie Cook Power Inc 
One Allen Center 
500 Dallas Street, Suite 3100 
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Houston, TX 77002 
Attention: Patricia Jones, Legal Risk Management 
Telephone: +1-713-275-6107 
Facsmiile: +1-713-275-6115 

IftoIEG: 

Integrys Energy Group, Inc, 
700 North Adams Street 
Green Bay, WI 54301 
Attention: Barth J. Wolf, Vice President, Chief Legal Officer and Secretary 
Facsmiile: (920) 433-1526 

With copies to: 

Foley & Lardner LLP 
777 East Wisconsin Avenue 
Milwaukee, WI 53202 
Attention: Allen W, WUliams, Jr. 

Jason W. Allen 
Facsimile: (414) 297-4900 

Section 10.5 Governing Law; Submission to Jurisdiction; Selection of Forum; 
Waiver of Trial by Jury. THE AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND 
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK 
WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW TO THE EXTENT THAT 
SUCH PRINCIPLES WOULD PERMIT OR REQUIRE THE APPLICATION OF LAWS OF 
ANOTHER JURISDICTION, Each Party hereto agrees tiiat it shaU bring any action or 
Proceeding in respect of any claim arising out of or related to this Agreement or the transactions 
contained in or contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements, exclusively in the 
United States District Court for the Southem District of New York (or if subject matter 
jurisdiction before the federal court does not exist, then before the New York State Supreme 
Court for the Borough of Manhattan, in New York, New York) (the "Chosen Courts"), and 
solely in coimection with claims arising under this Agreement or the transactions that are the 
subject of this Agreement or any ofthe Related Agreements (i) irrevocably submits to the 
exclusive jurisdiction ofthe Chosen Courts, (ii) waives any objection to laying venue in any such 
action or Proceeding in the Chosen Comts, (ui) waives any objection that the Chosen Courts are 
an inconveruent forum or do not have jurisdiction over any Party hereto and (iv) agrees that 
service of process upon such Party in any such action or Proceeding shall be effective if notice is 
given in accordance with Section 10.4 of this Agreement. Each Party hereto inevocably 
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designates CT. Corporation as its agent and attomey in fact for the acceptance of service of 
process and making an appearance on its behalf in any such claim or Proceeding and for the 
taking of aU such acts as may be necessary or appropriate in order to confer jurisdiction over it 
before the Chose Courts and each Party hereto stipulates that such consent and appointment is 
inevocable and coupled with an interest. Each Party hereto hrevocably waives any and aU right 
to trial by jury m any legal Proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the 
Contemplated Transactions. 

Section 10.6 Amendment and Waiver. Any provision of this Agreement may be 
amended or waived if, and only if, such amendment or waiver is in writing and signed, in the 
case of an amendment, by the Purchaser and the Seller, or ui the case of a waiver, by the Party 
against whom the waiver is to be effective. No faUure or delay by any Party m exercising any 
right, power or privUege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or 
partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 
right, power or privUege, The rights and remedies herein provided shaU be cumulative and not 
exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law except as otherwise provided in Article IX 
hereof 

Section 10.7 Entire Agreement. 

(a) This Agreement, together with the Related Agreements, supersedes all prior 
agreements, whether written or oral, between the Parties with respect to its'subject matter 
(including any letter of intent between the Parties related to the subject matter of this Agreement) 
and constitutes (along with the Schedules, Exhibits and other documents dehvered pursuant to this 
Agreement) the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to its subject matter except for 
the Confidentiality Agreement, which shaU remain in fuU force and effect until the Closing, 

(b) In the case of any conflict between this Agreement and any of the Related 
Agreements, the relevant Related Agreement shaU prevaU except as e5q>ressly set forth m such 
Related Agreement. 

Section 10.8 Assignments, Successors and No Third-Party Rights. No Party may, in 
whole or in part, assign any of its rights or interests or delegate any of its obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of both the Purchaser and the SeUer, and any 
attempt to do so wiU be void; provided, however, that without prior written consent either the 
Purchaser or the Seller may pursuant to a corporate reorganization assign any of its rights or 
interests under this Agreement to any Affihate so long as (a) the assignee is bound by this 
Agreement, (b) the assignee remains an Affiliate ofthe Purchaser or the Seller, as the case may 
be, and (c) such assignment does not prevent or materiaUy impede, interfere with, or delay the 
Contemplated Transaction, increase the costs to non-assigning Party ofthe consummation of 
Contemplated Transaction or result in any SeUer or its Affiliates incurring a Tax LiabUity in 
excess ofthe Tax Liabihty SeUer or its AffiUates would otherwise incur without such 
designation. Subject to the preceding sentence, and except as otherwise expressly provided m 
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Sections 9.2 and 9.3, this Agreement wiU apply to, be binding m all respects upon and inure to 
the benefit ofthe successors and permitted assigns ofthe Parties. Nothing expressed or refened 
to m this Agreement wiU be construed to give any Person other than the Parties to this 
Agreement any legal or equitable right, remedy or clahn under or with respect to this Agreement 
or any provision of this Agreement, except such rights as shall inure to a successor or pemiitted 
assignee pursuant to this Section 10.8. 

Section 10.9 Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shaU be deemed 
severable and the invalidity or imenforceabihty of any provision shall not affect the validity or 
enforceabUity ofthe other provisions hereof If any provision of this Agreement, or the 
application thereof to any Person or any circumstance, is invaUd or unenforceable, (a) a suitable 
and equitable provision shall be substituted therefor in order to carry out, so far as may be valid 
and enforceable, the intent and purpose of such invalid or unenforceable provision, and (b) the 
remainder of this Agreement and the application of such provision to other Persons or 
circumstances shaU not be affected by such invalidity or unenforceability, nor shall such 
mvalidity or unenforceability affect tiie validity or enforceability of such provision, or the 
apphcation thereof, in any other jurisdiction. 

Section 10.10 Execution of Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in one or 
more counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original copy of this Agreement and 
aU of which, when taken together, will be deemed to constitute one and the same agreement. 
The exchange of copies of tiiis Agreement and of signature pages by facsimile or e-mail 
transmission shall constitute effective execution and delivery of this Agreement as to the Parties 
and may be used m heu of the original Agreement for all purposes. Signatures of the Parties 
transmitted by facsimile or e-mail shall be deemed to be their original signatures for all purposes. 

Section 10.11 Specific Performance, Subject to Section 8.2, the Parties hereto, 
including lEG (solely with respect to Section 7.9), acknowledge and agree that kreparable harm 
for which monetary damages would not be an adequate remedy would occur in the event of a 
breach of any ofthe terms or provisions of this Agreement related to effecting the Closing or 
Section 2.7(a) and (d) (Transfened Contracts; Other Assets), Section 2,8(a) (Tradmg Contracts), 
Section 2.9 (Exchange Traded Transactions), Section 2.10 (Minor Transactions), Section 2.11 
(ISO Contracts), Section 7.3 (Filings; Commercially Reasonable Efforts to Close), Section 7.6 
(Transition Plans), Section 7.7 (Confidentiality) and Section 7.9 (Non-Competition). 
Accordingly, the Parties hereto, including lEG, agree that, in addition to other remedies, each of 
the Parties shall be entitled to specific perfonnance without the necessity of proving the 
inadequacy of monetary damages as a remedy and to obtain injunctive relief against any such 
breaches or threatened breaches of this Agreement. 

Section 10,12 Disclosures. Prior to the Closing Date, the Seller may, at its option, 
supplement or amend the Schedules with items that are not material in order to avoid any 
misunderstanding; provided, however, that any such inclusion, or any references to dollar 
amounts, shall not be deemed to effectuate an acknowledgment or representation that such items 
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CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED FOR PORTIONS OF THIS DOCUMENT. 
PORTIONS FOR WHICH CONFIDENTLAL TREATMENT IS REQUESTED ARE 
DENOTED BY [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED]. MATERLAL OMUTED 
HAS BEEN FD^ED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION. 

are material, to estabhsh any standard of materiality, or to define fiirther the meaning of such 
terms for purposes of this Agreement. Other than with respect to supplements and amendments 
made in accordance with Section 2.10(b), (i) m the event that the Purchaser reasonably believes 
that the changes to the Schedules resulting from such supplements and amendments, considered 
coUectively, will cause a closuig condition set forth in Section 5.1 to fail to be satisfied, the 
Purchaser shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon fifteen (15) Business Days 
notice from the date of such relevant supplement or amendment pursuant to Article VIII, and (ii) 
if the Purchaser does not exercise its right pursuant to clause (i) above, any supplement or 
amendment made pursuant this Section 10.12 shall not diminish, limit or waive the SeUer's 
indemnification obligations under this Agreement. 

[Remainder of page left blank intentionaUyJ 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement, aU as of tiie date 
first above written. 

ESriEGRYS ENERGY SERVICES, INC. 

B y : _ 
Name: 
Title: 

INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, ESfC. (solely witii 
respect to Section 2.13, Section 7.9, and Section 
10.11) 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

MACQUARIE COOK POWER D^C. 

By: 
Name: Benjamin Preston 
Title: Executive Director 

By: 
Name: Patricia Jones 
Title: Associate Director 

[Signature Page to Purchase and Sale Agreement] 
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Exhibit A - Form of Assignment and Assumption Agreement 

[X]FormAttached[X] 

MILW 9816935.1 
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Exhibit B - Form of Bill of Sale 

[X]FomiAttached[X] 
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Exhibit C-1 - Form of Bangor Financial Trade Agreement 

[X]ForaiAttached[X] 



ATTACHMENT F 

Exhibit C-2 Form of Bangor Supply Trade Agreement 

[X]ForaiAttached[X] 
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Exhibit D - Form of Mirror Confirm 

[X]FormAttached[X] 
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Exhibit E - Form of Novation Agreement 

[X]FonnAttachedpq 
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Exhibit F - Form of Purchaser Guarantee Agreement 

[X]FormAttached[X] 
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Exhibit G - Form of SeUer Guarantee Agreement 

[X]Fonn Attached[X] 



ATTACHMENT F 

Exhibit H - Form of Indicated Transactions Letter of Credit 

[X]FormAttached[X] 



ATTACHMENT F 

Exhibit I Form of PPL Financial Trade Agreement 

[X]FormAttached[X] 
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CONFIDENTLAL TREATMENT REQUESTED FOR PORTIONS OF THIS 
DOCUMENT. PORTIONS FOR WHICH CONFIDENTLAL TREATMENT IS 
REQUESTED ARE DENOTED BY [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED]. 
MATERLAL OMUTED HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITUES 
AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION. 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 
(this "Amendment") is dated and executed as of January 26, 2010, by and between 
Macquarie Cook Power Inc., ("MCP") a corporation organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of Delaware, Integrys Energy Services, Inc., ("lES") a Wisconsm 
corporation, and Integrys Energy Cjroup, Inc., ("lEG") a Wisconsm corporation 
(coUectively, the "Parties" and individuaUy, a "Party"). 

BACKGROUND 

WHEREAS, reference is made to that certain Purchase and Sale Agreement (the 
"Agreemenf). dated December 23,2009, between and among MCP, lES and lEG. 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend certain terms ofthe Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, tiie Parties hereby agree as foUows: 

1. DEFINITIONS. 

Capitalized terms used in this Amendment, to the extent not otherwise defined 
herein, have the same meanings assigned to such terms in the Agreement, as amended 
hereby. 

2. AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT. 

2.1 Definition of "Initial Purchase Price" 

The definition of "Initial Purchase Price" set forth in the Agreement shaU 
be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the foUowing: "'Initial Purchase 
Price" means [CONFIDENTLAL TREATMENT REQUESTED]." 

2.2 Section 2.9: Exchange Traded Transactions 

The terms of Section 2.9 shall be deleted in their entirety and replaced 
with the terms set forth on Exhibit A hereto. 

2.3 Section 2,16: Flattening Trade and New Trades 

The terms of Section 2.16 shaU be deleted in their entirety and replaced 
with the following: 

"Flattening Trades and New Trades. On the Minor Effective Date and on a 
monthly basis thereafter until the Minor Confirm is terminated in its entirety, 
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Purchaser and Seller shall enter into one or more physically-settled transactions 
under the MCP-IES ISDA Master Agreement representing sales to Seller with 
respect to all requirements of the Seller during the apphcable month to purchase 
additional physically-delivered electric energy, capacity, ancUlary services, 
renewable energy certificates, or related products ("Electricity") or representing 
purchases from Seller during such month for any excess Electricity Seller may 
have in order to establish and maintain, to the extent reasonably practicable, a 
flattened position in Electricity for Seller during such month (such transactions, 
the "Flattening Trades"). AU Flattenmg Trades shaU be priced using the same or 
equivalent index price, ISO-pubUshed price or mutually-agreed price as specified 
in the relevant Minor Transaction or Post-Minor Trade." 

2.4 Schedule 2.1(a)(ii)(A) - Master Agreements 

The following is added as an additional Master Agreement on Schedule 
2.1 (a)(ii)(A): "Kentucky Municipal Power Agency" 

2.5 Schedule 2.2(b): Initial Purchase Price Adjustment 

Paragraph 1 in Schedule 2.2(b) is deleted in its enthcty and replaced with 
the foUowing: "Initial Purchase Price Adjustment Amount̂ ^ is defined as 
$[CONFIDENTLAL TREATMENT REQUESTED]." 

2.6 Schedule 2.2(c): Final Purchase Price Adiustment 

(a) The "Ffrst Valuation Difference" referenced m the first sentence of 
Paragraph 2 shall be deleted and replaced with 
"[CONFIDENTUL TREATMENT REQUESTED]." 

(b) The last sentence of Paragraph 2 of the Schedule is deleted m its 
entirety and replaced with the following: "For purposes hereof, 
the MCPI First Valuation is [CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT 
REQUESTED] and the lES First Valuation is 
[CONFIDENTLAL TREATMENT REQUESTED]." 

(c) Paragraph 9, "Exchange Traded Contract Adjustment," is deleted 
in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

"Exchange Traded Contract Adiustment" means the dollar 
amount (positive or negative) of the negative value of those 
Exchange Traded Transactions which are' natural gas forward 
exchange traded transactions, calculated at the settlement price as 
of the close of trading on the Relevant Exchange on the Minor 
Effective Date. For the avoidance of doubt, the parties 
acknowledge and agree that the Exchange Traded Transactions 
referenced above do not include power trades or option trades." 
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3. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

3.1 Section Headings. Headings and numbers have been set fortii herein for 
convenience only. Unless the contrary is compeUed by the context, everything contained 
in each Section applies equally to this entire Amendment. 

3.2 Severabilitv of Provisions. Each provision of this Amendment will be 
severable fix)m every other provision of this Amendment for the purpose of determining 
the legal enforceabihty of any specific provision. 

33 Counterparts: Electronic Execution. This Amendment may be executed 
in any number of counterparts and by different parties on separate counterparts, each of 
which, when executed and dehvered, wiU be deemed to be an original, and aU of which, 
when taken together, will constitute but one and the same Amendment. Delivery of an 
executed counterpart of this Amendment by facsimUe or other then generaUy accepted 
means of electronic transmission (such as portable document format ("PDF")) wiU be 
equaUy as effective as delivery of an original executed counterpart of this Amendment 
Any party dehvering an executed counterpart of this Amendment by electronic means 
also will dehver an original executed counterpart of this Amendment but the failure to 
deliver an original executed counterpart wUl not affect the time of deemed delivery, 
vahdity, enforceability, or binding effect of this Amendment. 

3.4 Reference to Agreement: Effectiveness. The Agreement, as amended 
hereby, and all other agreements, documents or instruments now or hereafter executed 
and dehvered pursuant to the terms thereof are hereby amended so that any reference in 
the Agreement or such other agreements, documents and instruments will mean a 
reference to the Agreement, as amended hereby. This Amendment shall be deemed 
effective on and as of the date of execution of this Amendment, Except as hereby 
amended, the Agreement remains in fiill force and effect, and is hereby, in aU respects, 
ratified and confirmed, 

3.5 Successors and Assigns, This Amendment is binding upon and wiU inure 
to the benefit of Parties and their respective successors and assigns, subject to the 
provisions of Section 10.8 ofthe Agreement 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, tiie parties hereto have caused tiiis Amendment to be 
executed and delivered as ofthe date fu-st above written. 

INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVICES, INC. 

B y : _ 
Name: 
Title: 

INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC. 

B y : _ 
Name: 
Title: 

MACQUARIE COOK POWER INC. 

By: 
Name: Benjamin Preston 
Title: Executive Director 

By: 
Name: Patricia Jones 
Title: Associate Director 
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EXHIBIT A 

Section 2.9 Exchange Traded Transactions. 

(a) The SeUer shall request of the Relevant Exchange (the "Exchange Request") that 
the Exchange Traded Transactions be transferred to the Purchaser in accordance with the rules 
and procedures ofthe Relevant Exchange (if applicable) from the commodity futures brokerage 
accounts ofthe Seller listed on Schedule 2.9(a) attached hereto, carried by the futures 
commission merchants (each an "FCM") listed thereon, to the account ofthe Purchaser as set 
forth below, and the Purchaser shaU assume each Exchange Traded Transaction, by a novation 
effected pursuant to the appUcable rules ofthe Relevant Exchange, if applicable. The Exchange 
Request shaU be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Seller and the Purchaser. 
To the extent that the transfer or conveyance of any ofthe Exchange Traded Transactions to the 
Purchaser requires the Consent of a Third Party or Governmental Authorization, the SeUer and 
the Purchaser shall use commerciaUy reasonable efforts, and cooperate with each other, to obtain 
promptly the relevant Consent or Governmental Authorization prior to the Mirror Effective Date. 

(i) Exchange Power Forwards. On the Minor Effective Date, Exchange 
Traded Transactions which are power forward transactions shall be transfened to Purchaser in 
one account at historical (original) prices via an ex-pit book transfer in accordance with the 
apphcable rules ofthe Relevant Exchange. The Parties acknowledge that the Relevant Exchange 
shaU transfer such transactions at the settiement price as ofthe close of trading on the Relevant 
Exchange on the Minor Effective Date, Any difference between such transfer calculations shall 
be resolved by mutual agreement between the Parties and their respective brokerage accounts, 
such that the Parties are kept whole to the Relevant Exchange. The Purchase Price will not 
require adjustment due to the transfer of Exchange Power Forwards. 

(ii) Exchange Power Options. On the Muror Effective Date, Exchange 
Traded Transactions which are power option transactions shall be transfened to Purchaser m one 
account at historical (original) strike prices with no additional premium via an ex-pit book 
transfer m accordance with the applicable rules ofthe Relevant Exchange. The Purchase Price 
wiU not require adjustment due to the transfer of Exchange Power Options. 

(iii) Exchange Gas Options. On the Mirror Effective Date, Exchange Traded 
Transactions which are natural gas option transactions with contract months on or after March 
2010 shall be transfened from Seller to Purchaser through the execution of a new exchange-
cleared options between Seller and Purchaser, such that the transactions will be transfened to 
Purchaser at the origmal strike prices of such transactions with no added premium. The Purchase 
Price will not require adjustment due to the transfer of Exchange Gas Options. 

(iv) Exchange Gas Forwards. On Febmary 1,2010, Exchange Traded 
Transactions which are natural gas forward transactions with conttact months on or after March 
2010 shall be transferred fix)m SeUer to Purchaser through the execution of a new exchange-
cleared swap between Seller and Purchaser, such that the transactions will be transfened to 
Purchaser at the settiement price as ofthe close of trading on the Relevant Exchange on January 
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29,2010, The Pxu-chase Price will be adjusted for such transactions in accordance with the Final 
Purchase Price Adjustment, 

(b) If following the Minor Effective Date tiiis Agreement is terminated in accordance 
with the terms and conditions set forth in Article VIII, then with respect to Exchange Power 
Forwards and Exchange Power Options, on the Busmess Day immediately followmg the date 
that this Agreement is terminated, the Purchaser shaU submit to the Relevant Exchange an 
Exchange Request that such Exchange Traded Transactions, or trades cleared on the Relevant 
Exchange that are substantially simUar to such Exchange Traded Transactions (each a 
"Substitute Exchange Traded Transaction") be transfened to the SeUer in accordance with the 
rules and procedures ofthe Relevant Exchange fi^m the commodity futures brokerage accounts 
ofthe Purchaser listed on Schedule 2.9(b) attached hereto, carried by each FCM listed thereon, to 
the account ofthe Seller via an ex-pit, ex-Ring or ex-order book transfer, and the Seller shall 
assume each Substitute Exchange Traded Transaction, by a novation effected pursuant to the 
apphcable rules ofthe Relevant Exchange. Each such transfer pursuant to this Section 2.9(b) 
shall be effected at the historic (original) price. The Exchange Request shall be in same form 
and have the same substance as that which was provided to the Relevant Exchange under Section 
2.9(a). 

(c) If following the Minor Effective Date this Agreement is terminated in accordance 
with the terms and conditions set forth in Article VIII, then with respect to Exchange Gas 
Options and Exchange Gas Forwards, on the Business Day knmediately foUowing the date 
that this Agreement is terminated, the Purchaser and Seller shall enter into equal and off-setting 
exchange-cleared option and swap transactions, respectively, such that the Exchange Gas 
Options and Exchange Gas Forwards positions are transferred back to Seller, Each such transfer 
of Exchange Gas Options pursuant to this Section 2.9(c) shall be effected at the original strike 
prices of such transactions (with no premium payable), and each such transfer of Exchange Gas 
Forwards pursuant to this Section 2.9(c) shall be effected at the settiement price as ofthe close of 
tradmg on the Relevant Exchange on the trading date immediately preceding the date of such 
transfer. Other than as provided m Article VIII, tiie Parties intend that no additional 
consideration will be paid in respect ofthe Substitute Exchange Traded Transactions. 
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PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL 

April 2, 2009 

Mark A. Radtke 
3240 Crystal Creek C:t 
Green Bay. Wl 54313-8554 

Re: Incentive Agreement 

Dear Mark: 

As you know, Integrys Energy Group, Inc., (the "Company") is engaged in a restructuring 
process for its wholly owned subsidiary, Integrys Energy Services, inc. ("TEGE"). This 
restructuring may invoive the sale or transfer of all or portions of TEGE's and its subsidiaries' 
business, and/or an intemal reorganization or re-sizing of that business (collectively, the "TEGE 
Restructuring"). In an effort to ensure business continuity, preserve value and facilitate the TEGE 
Restructuring (the "Objective"), the Company is therefore willing to enter Into this incentive 
agreement (this "Agreement") with you, subject to the provisions set forth herein. 

1. Definitions. In this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings indicated: (a) 
"Purchaser" means any person or entity that acquires part or all of TEGE or TEGE's 
business in connection with the TEGE Restructuring, specifically excluding TEGE itself, 
the Company, and any entity 80% or more of whose equity interest is owned, directly or 
indirectly, by the Company; and (b) "Acquisition" means the acquisition of part or all of 
TEGE or TEGE's business by a Purchaser in connection with the TEGE Restructuring. 

2. Eligibility Guidelines. The Company, in its reasonable discretion, will determine whether 
you are eligible to receive an award of the target incentive ('TEGE Restructuring 
Incentive") under this Agreement, In determining your eligibility for the TEGE 
Restmcturing Incentive, the Company will consider several factors including but not 
limited to the following: 

a. The Company and TEGE obtain the Objective pursuant to the TEGE 
Restructuring; 

b. You accomplish a sale of all or major core portions of the TEGE business 
obtaining full value for the fonAord book and the retum of working capital; 

c. You accomplish a sale of substantial parts of the TEGE business such as 
product or regional fonA/ard books; 

d. You accomplish a timely wind-down of the TEGE business; 
e. You accomplish an altemative result agreed to and approved by the Company; 
f. You maintain a Company value perspective in alt decisions; 
g. You cooperate folly in achieving the TEGE Restructuring and meeting the 

Objective, including but not limited to cooperating with all constituents such as 
the Company management team, intemal service provider, and third party 
service providers (investment bankers, consultants, outside counsel and others 
associated with the TEGE Restructuring.) 

You have no entitlement to a TEGE Restructuring Incentive unless and until you are 
awarded a TEGE Restructuring Incentive by the Company. 
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3. Amount and Payment The amount of your target TEGE Restructuring Incentive is 
$1,500,000 (One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars). This is a target amount 
only and may be modified by the Company in its discretion. As soon as practicable after 
the date on which the Company determines that the TEGE Restructuring has been 
completed (the "TEGE Restructuring Completion Date"), the Company shall determine 
under Paragraph 2 whether a TEGE Restructuring Incentive will be awarded. Unless a 
forfeiture condition identified in Paragraph 4 applies, or the Company determines you are 
otherwise ineligible lo receive the TEGE Restructuring Incentive pursuant to Paragraph 2, 
the TEGE Restructuring Incentive will be paid as soon as reasonably possible after the 
date on which the Company awards a TEGE Restmcturing Incentive to you but not later 
than March 15 of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the Company 
awards a TEGE Restructuring Incentive to you. The payment will be reflected as a bonus 
payment subiject to usual and customary withholding amounts. It will be directly 
deposited into your primary account as shown in our records. 

4. Forfeiture. You shall forfeit your right to the TEGE Restructuring Incentive if (i) you 
voluntarily terminate your employment with TEGE or the Company before the TEGE 
Restructuring Completion Date, except for a termination in conjunction with your 
accepting employment, with Company's consent, with a Purchaser in connection with an 
Acquisition; (ii) your employment is terminated by TEGE or the Company for cause 
before the TEGE Restructuring Completion Date; or (iii) you die or become disabled 
before the TEGE Restructuring Completion Date. For purposes of this Agreement, 
"cause" shall mean (1) your violation of Paragraph 5 (Confidentiality) or any other 
provision of this Agreement. (II) willful misconduct by you or regular neglect in the 
perfomiance of your duties and responsibilities to TEGE or the Company, or 
unsatisfactory job performance by you, or (III) your violation of any written agreement 
between you and TEGE and/or the Company, or your violation of any TEGE or Company 
policy or agreement, including but not limited to any policy concerning fair employment 
practices, confidentiality, non-solicitation or non-competition. "Disability" or "disabled" 
shall have the meaning set forth in the long-term disability benefits plan (permanent 
disability) covering employees of TEGE or the Company. 

5. Confidentialitv. The TEGE Restructuring Incentive is payable to you only if you keep the 
existence and terms of this Agreement strictly confidential. You agree not to disclose this 
Agreement or any information conceming this Agreement to other employees of TEGE, 
the Company or its affiliates, or to any TEGE or Company customers or suppliers, or to 
any other third party, except your spouse, attomey, financial advisor, accountant, or as 
may be required by law. This confidentiality commitment on your part is material to this 
Agreement and will remain in foil force and effect after any TEGE Restructuring Incentive 
is paid. 

6. Terms and Conditions. The following terms and conditions also apply to this Agreement: 

(i) The offer or provision of any TEGE Restructuring Incentive under this 
Agreement is not an offer of a contract of employment by TEGE or the Company and 
does not alter your current employment status with TEGE or the Company. 

(ii) You may not sell, assign, pledge or otherwise transfer your right to any portion 
of the TEGE Restructuring Incentive, and any purported sale, assignment, pledge or 
transfer is void. 

(iii) In the event that any arbitrator or court of competent jurisdiction holds or finds 
any term or provision of this Agreement to be invalid or illegal under applicable law, the 
remaining tenns and provisions shall continue to be fully effective. 
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(iv) It is expressly understood and agreed that if you receive payment of the TEGE 
Restructuring Incentive in accordance with this Agreement, that payment is in addition to 
any other compensation or benefits for which you may be eligible by reason of your 
employment with TEGE or the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event 
your Key Executive Employment and Severance Agreement with the Company dated 
January 1, 2009, is triggered prior to the TEGE Restructuring Completion Date, the 
Company reserves the right to modify the target TEGE Restructuring Incentive set forth 
herein. 

(vi) Any amounts paid hereunder are not intended to constitute "defended 
compensation" subject to the election and distribution requirements of Section 409A of 
the Intemal Revenue Code. 

(vii) Notwithstanding any other pnavision of this Agreement, if any portion of any 
TEGE Restructuring Incentive awarded to you, in conjunction with any other payment to 
which you are entitled under any other agreement with or plan of the Company or its 
affiliates (in its aggregate, "Total Payments"), would constitute an "excess parachute 
payment" that is subject to the tax (the "Excise Tax") imposed by Section 4999 of the 
Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), or any successor provision, 
then the Total Payments to be made to you shall be reduced such that the value of the 
aggregate Total Payments that you are entitled to receive shall be One Dollar ($1) less 
than the maximum amount which you may receive without becoming subject to the tax 
imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (or any successor provision); provided that the 
foregoing reduction in the amount of Total Payments shall not apply if the after-tax value 
to you of the Total Payments prior to reduction in accordance with this paragraph is 
greater than the after-tax value to you if Total Payments are reduced in accordance with 
this paragraph. For purposes of detennining the after-tax value of Total Payments, you 
will be deemed to pay federal income taxes and employment taxes at the highest 
marginal rate of federal income and employment taxation in the calendar year in which 
the TEGE pestmcturing Incentive is to be paid and state and local income taxes at the 
highest marginal rates of taxation in the state and locality of your domicile for income tax 
purposes on the date the TEGE Restructuring Incentive payment Is made, net of the 
maximum reduction in federal income taxes that may be obtained from deduction of 
such state and local taxes. 

(viii) No verbal or written representations made by TEGE or Company employees or 
others that are contrary or in addition to the terms set forth in this Agreement shall be 
binding upon TEGE, the Company, or any other affiliate of the Company, or their 
respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees or agents. As used in this 
Agreement, the temn "TEGE" also includes any successor in interest to TEGE. This 
Agreement may be amended only in a writing signed by you and by the Executive 
Chaimian or President and CEO of the Company. 

(ix) In the event of any dispute or controversy over the meaning or application of any 
provision of this Agreement, you and the Company shall meet to discuss the dispute and 
attempt to resolve it in good faith. If you and the Company are unable to resolve the 
dispute, however, you agree that it will be submitted to an arbitrator for final and binding 
resolution, pursuant to the rules of the American Arbitration Association. Any such 
arisitration shall take place in Wisconsin. This Agreement shall be govemed by the 
intemal laws of the State of Wisconsin. 

(x) Any amounts paid hereunder shall not constitute compensation for purposes of 
any retirement plan or other plan, program, policy or contract covering the Company and 
its affiliates and shall not entitle you to a benefit under any plan, program, policy or 
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contract which is greater than the benefit to which you would have been entitled had 
such amounts not been paid. 

Please confinn your agreement with and acceptance of the tenns of this Agreement by dating 
and signing the enclosed copy and retuming it to me no later than April 24, 2009. 

Sincerely yours. 

l-arry L. Weyers 
Executive Chainnan 
Integrys Energy Group, Inc. 

Accepted and Agreed to: 

Signature: 

Print Name: 

Date: ___ 
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INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP 
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

Exhibit 12 

(Millions) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

EARNINGS 
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 
Provision for income taxes 

($71.6) 
83.2 

$124.7 
51.2 

$181.0 
86.0 

$147.8 
45.0 

$146.1 
39.6 

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 
Less: 

Undistributed eamings of less than 50% owned affiliates 
Prefened stock dividends of subsidiary (a) 
Interest capitalized (b) 

11.6 

m-2) 
0.6 

(0-2) 

175.9 

(16.4) 
(5.1) 

267.0 

3.8 
(5.2) 

Total eamings as defined $168.2 $325.2 $440.2 

192.8 

13.0 
(5.3) 

$307.5 

185.7 

7.5 
(4.9) 

Adjusted Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes (4.2) 154.4 265.6 200.5 188.3 
Total fixed charges as defined 172.4 170.8 174.6 107.0 69.5 

$257.8 

FIXED CHARGES 
Interest expense 
Interest capitalized (c) 
Interest factor applicable to rentals 
Prefened stock dividends of subsidiary (a) 

$164.8 
2.6 
5.6 

(0.6) 

$158.1 
2.0 
5.6 
5.1 

$164.5 
0.3 
4.6 
5.2 

$99.2 
0.2 
2.3 
5.3 

$62.0 
0.4 
2.2 
4.9 

Total fixed charges as defined $172.4 $170.8 $174.6 $107.0 $69.5 

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES (d) 1.9 2.5 2.9 37 

(a) Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary are computed by dividing the preferred stock dividends of subsidiary by 100% minus the income tax rate. 

(b) Includes interest capitalized for the unregulated segment. 

(c) Includes allowance for funds used during constmction. 

(d) For the 12 months ended December 31. 2009, eamings as defined were inadequate to cover fixed charges as defined by $4.2 million, driven 
by a pre-tax non-cash goodwill impairment loss of $291.1 million. 
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Exhibit 21 

A f f i l i a tes a n d S u b s i d i a r i e s o f I n t eg rys E n e r g y G r o u p , Inc. 
Decembe r 3 1 , 2 0 0 9 

INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC.+ * 

Wisconsin Pubiic Service Corporation+ 
WPS Leasing, lnc.+ 
Wisconsin Valley Improvement Company (27.1 % ovwiership) + 
Wisconsin River Power Company (50% ownership)* 
WPS Investments, LLC (approximately 12.77% ownership)* 

American Transmission Company LLC (approximately 34.07% ownership)* 
ATC Management Inc. (32.11 % ownership of Class A Shares, 20% ownership of Class B Shares)* 

WPS Investments, LLC (approximately 84.51% ownership)* 

American Transmission Company LLC (approximately 34.07% ownership)* 

Michigan Gas Utilities Corporation+* 

Minnesota Energy Resources Corporation** 

Integrys Business Support, LLC** 

WPS Visions, Inc.* 

Badger Energy Services, LLC (12.50% ownership)* 

Integrys Energy Services, Inc.* 
Integrys Energy Services - Natural Gas, LLC** 
Integrys Energy Sen/ices - Electric, LLC** 
Quest Energy, LLC*** 
integrys Energy Services of Canada Corp. (formed under Canadian taw) 
Integrys Energy Services of New York, Inc.***+++ 

• Integrys Energy Services of Texas, L P * * * * * (99% ownership) 
Integrys Energy Services of Texas, LP+++++ ( 1 % ownership) 
PERC Holdings, LLC** 

WPS Power Development, LLC+ 
PDI Stoneman, Inc.* 
Winnebago Energy Center, LLC** 
WPS Canada Generation, Inc.* 
WPS New England Generation, Inc.* 
Wisconsin Woodgas LLC* 
Wisconsin Energy Operations LLC (49% ownership)* 
ECO Coal Pelletization #12 LLC** 
Sunbury Holdings, LLC** 

WPS Westwood Generation, LLC** 
WPS Empire State, Inc . * * * * * * 

WPS Beaver Falls Generation, LLC** 
WPS Syracuse Generation, LLC** 

Combined Locks Energy Center, LLC* 
Peoples Natural Gas Liquids, LLC** 
Solar Hold 2008-1, LLC** 

Soltage-MA2 700 Tinton Falls, LLC** (99% ownership) 
Soltage-ADC 630 Jamesburg, LLC** (99% ownership) 
So(tage-PLG 500 Midfbrd. LLC** (99% ownership) 

Solar Hold 2008-2, LLC** 
Solar Man, LLC** 
Sun Devil Solar LLC** 
Solar Star California 11, LLC** 
Solar Star New Jersey, I, LLC** 
Crimson Solar, LLC** 
Solar Star New Jersey, II, LLC** 
Solar Star TM2, LLC** 

LGS Renewables. I, LC* * *+ * (50% ownership) 



ATTACHMENT F 

Affiliates and Subsidiaries o f Integrys Energy Group, Inc. 
Decennber 31,2009 

INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP, INC.** 

Peoples Energy Corporation**** 
The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company**** 

Peoples Gas Neighborhood Development Corporation**** 
North Shore Gas Company**** 
Peoples Energy Resources Company, LLC** 
Peoples District Energy Corporation**** 
Peoples Energy Ventures, LLC** 

Peoples Energy Home Services, LLC-** 
Peoples Energy Neighborhood Development, LLC** 
Peoples Technology, LLC** 

Upper Peninsula Power Company*** 
VI/PS Investments, LLC (approximately 2.72 ownership)* 

American Transmission Company LLC (approximately 34.07% ownership)* 
ATC Management Inc. (1.96% ownership)* 

Penvest, Inc.*** 

* Integrys Energy Group, Inc. is the parent holding company. All affiliated companies listed are 100% owned except 
as noted othen/vise. All affiliates are currently active, with the exception of Wisconsin Woodgas, LLC; Wisconsin 
Energy Operations LLC; ECO Coal Pelletization #12, LLC;PDI Stoneman, Inc.; Peoples Energy Ventures, LLC; and 
Peoples District Energy Corporation. 

+ Formed under Wisconsin law. 
+* Formed under Delaware law. 
+** Formed under Michigan law. 
+*+* Formed under Illinois law. 
+++** Formed under Texas (aw. 

Fornied under New York law. 



ATTACHMENT F 

Exhibit 23.1 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBUC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-158218, 333-140921, 
333-133194, 333-121971, and 333-140744 on Fonn S-3, 333-136911 on Fonn S-4, and 333-150312, 
333-150311, 333-140912, 333-63101. 333-71990, 333-71992. 333-81134, 333-93193, 333-127890, and 
333-127889 on Fonn S-8 of our reports dated February 25, 2010, relating to the consolidated financial 
statements and financial statement schedules of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (which 
report expresses an unqualified opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the adoption of 
a new accounting standard in 2008), and the effectiveness of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. and 
subsidiaries intemal control over financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of 
Integrys Energy Group, Inc. for the year ended December 31,2009. 

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP 

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 
February 25, 2010 



ATTACHMENT F 

Exhibit 23.2 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-158218, 333-140921, 
333-133194, 333-121971, and 333-140744 on Forni S-3, 333-136911 on Forni S-4, and 333-150312, 
333-150311. 333-140912. 333-63101, 333-71990, 333-71992, 333-81134. 333-93193, 333-127890, and 
333-127889 on Form S-8 of Integrys Energy Group, Inc. of our report dated February 4, 2010, relating to 
the financial statements of American Transmission Company LLC, appearing in this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K of Integrys Energy Gre)up, Inc. for the year ended December 31,2009. 

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP 

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 
February 25, 2010 


